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ST. JAMES’S PLACE

WEALTH MANAGEMENT

St James’s Place plc 1s the FTSE 100 hsted Parent Company of the St James’s Place
Wealth Management Group The Group provides high quality wealth management
advice, investment management and related services to businesses and mdividuals
across the UK, through 1ts representatives — The St James’s Place Partnership

St James’s Place Wealth Management Group manages £58 6 billon of chent funds

At the heart of the sustained growth in our busmness 1s the importance we place on
mamntaning long lasting relationships with our Partners and clients and serving
them well OQur approach was once again publicly endorsed during the last twelve
months, when we won several idustry awards that were voted for by chents, members

gf the public and jéﬂow mdustzy peets
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SUMMARY OF THE YEAR

NUMBER OF CLIENTS PARTNERSHIP NUMBERS “E
525,800-49%, 2 26446%
2014. 484,000 2014: 2,132 7
FUNDS UNDER DIVIDEND
MANAGEMENT (PENCE PER SHARE)

£58.6bna13%

2014 £52 Obn

27.96p «20%

2014: 23.30p per share
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GROSS INFLOW OF FUNDS PROFIT BEFORE
UNDER MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER TAX
£9.24bn a17% £151.3mw17%
2014: £7.88bn 2014: £182.9m -
<
NET INFLOW OF FUNDS EEV OPERATING :
UNDER MANAGEMENT PROFIT z
o
£5.78bna14% £660.2ma11%
2014: £5.09n 2014: £596.4m
CLIENTS PARTNERS

Our propasition continued to
be attractive to advisers 1n the year
and we saw improvements 1n quality,
both 1n terms of business credentials
and qualifications

Growth 1n chent numbers contributed
to the increase 1 investment of new
funds The qualrty of the clrent
outcome, as reflected i chent
retention and feedback, continued
to be strong

Visit us onhne

Our website aad 1Pad app
contan a full nvestor relations
section with news, reports,

] UoI3ewWIoIUuT 243N I | S1UIAlEIS [e1DUeUY I |

FUNDS FINANCIAL

weheasts, financial ealendar und

share price information
www sjp co uk
chek on Sharcholder

In another successful year, new Growth 1n clients and Partners

business from chents combned with
positive growth mn underlying

mvestments, resultmg I an Imncredase
m funds under management

cornbined with positive investment
performance to underpin the finanaal
results and contmued growth of
the business
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

David Bellamy
Chuef Executive

‘Despite the continued uncertainty in world
stock markets, St. James’s Place has once

again achieved strong growth across all c_)f
the ke)f aspects Qf the business.’

In many ways, 2015 was a quite extraordinary year From the continuation of the Greek bailout saga to the crisis in
Syria and Iraq, including the nise of ISIS and the atrocities commatted by 1ts supporters across the world and the
desperate 1mages of migrants m Turkey, the Mediterranean and throughout Europe Closer to home, we had what
for many was a surprise result in the UK general election, and an equally surprising leadership result for the Labour
Party The year ended with severe flooding in the North, with those dreadful scenes of disruption to many farmihes,
but where we saw how a great community spirit and resihence can endure A dufficult time for many people and a
volatile one for markets

Despate the continued uncertanty in world stock markets, St James’s Place (S]P) has once again achieved strong
growth across all of the key aspects of the business Gross inflows were 17% higher at a record £9 24 hilhon which,
when comibined with the sustained high retention of clhients and their investments, resulted 1n record net inflows in
the twelve months of £5 78 ballion, taking funds under management to £58 6 billion, up 13% for the year

Our success has been and continues to be built on our fundamental behef that for most people their finances and
wealth are personal and they want to be treated 1n a hughly personalised way and by someone they trust Indeed, we
see a growing demand for sound, personal, financial planming advice as mdividuals begin to fully comprehend the
financial impheation of increased life expectancy whilst being faced with increasingly complex options in respect of

thear pension funds

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPQRT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 Registered No 03183415




As mvestor behaviours adapt to this changing retirement
landscape and the prolonged environment of low interest rates,
we have continued to evolve our investment approach, through
the troduction of new investment funds, the Strategic Income
and Drversified Bond funds, launched 1n November to provide
increased mvestment diversification for chents Alongside

the evolution of our investment management approach, the
acquisition of Rowan Dartington Heldings Limited, a specialist
stockbroking and discretronary investment service, broadens
our range of supplementary investment services, to include
advisory portfolic management, direct equity, trust and charity
portfolio management We plan to make these enhanced services
available to our existing clients later 1n the spring, whilst
enabling our Partners and advisers to access new clients who
value such services

At the other end of the spectrum, we recognise the
mtergenemtlonal challenges that some of our clents tell us they
face 1n trymng to help thewr offspring, particularly mn relation

to owning their own homes or funding education So1n 2016,
m addition to looking to enhance our estate planping services
through a more formalised probate service and expansion of our
long term care offerings, we will explore with our third party
providers bespoke mortgage and protection products to meet
this need

Financial Performance

The strong growth 1n new business and funds under
management are reflected 1n the financial results in all
measures However, the results were negatively impacted
by a significant £14 2 million 1ncrease 1n our levy to the
Financial Services Compensation Scheme

The figures also reflect our continued strategic investments
mcluding the SJP Academy, our Asian operattons and our back
office infrastructure development

The operating profit on a European Embedded Value (EEV) basis
was £660 2 million (2014 £596 4 milhon) which reflects the
above factors, together with a positive experience and operating
assumption change

‘The profit before shareholder tax, on an International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) basis of £151 3 mllion (2014

£182 9 mrlhon) was also impacted by the negative £21 7 milhon
change 1n the movement of certain accounting intangible

assets and habilites The underlying profit for the year was
£163 7 million compared with £173 6 mullion for the prior year

A more detailed commentary on the finanaal results 15 included
n the CFO's Report on pages 18 and 19 and the Financial
Review on pages 20 to 39

Dividend

At the half year we increased the interim dividend by 20% and
said 1t was our intention to increase the final dividend at a sumlar
rate Consequently, and supported by the continued strong
performance of the business, the Board has proposed a final
dividend of 17 24 pence per share, up 20%, which brings the full
year dividend to 27 96 pence per share, also up 20%

The fina! dividend for 2015, subject to approval of shareholders
at our AGM, will be paid on 13 May to shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 8 April As usual, a Dividend
Reinvestment Plan continues to be available for shareholders

Chents

At the heart of our sustained growth 1s our comrmitment to
achieving the best possible outcome for our clients and the
importance we place on mamtaming long lasting relationships
with them and serving them and our Partners well We firmly
believe that this highly persenalised approach continues to have a
very important place in UK financial services today and wall do
s0 1n the future

However, we are not at all complacent and every year we take
the opportumty to seek feedback, from our clients directly,

in response to their annual Wealth Account statement The
research carried out in the last two months once again showsa
consistently high advocacy score, where 95% of our chents
confirmed that they would recommend 5t James’s Place to
others, with around 60% having already done so Simularly,
when asked to assess our proposition 1n terms of value for
money, 79% of our clients saxd excellent or good, witha further
19% describing it as reasonable

I said earlier that for most people their finances and wealth are
personal and these survey results, together with the direct contact
our Partners mantain with clients, reassures us that our clients
value the personal face-to-face relationship they provide Last year,
largely through the strong advocacy of our existing clients, a
further 54,000 new chents were introduced to St James's Place,
taking the total number of chents to over 525,000

Investment Management

Stock markets started 2015 very positively, reaching record
highs 1n both the US and UK before retreating over the
remainder of year on concerns of slowing global growth and in
particular 1n respect of China

Year on year stock markets fell with the FTSE 100, for example,
down 4 9% n capital terms albeat the return including dividends
was only marg: nally negative

Against this backdrop the relative performance of our funds was

good and in parucular all our portfolios made a positive return,
with the Balance Income portfolio, for example, up 3 2%

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

CONTINUED

Low nterest rates continue to present a challenge for income
seekang nvestors In recognition of ths, as 1 mentioned earlier,
we launched two new income focused funds in November

Farstly, the Diversified Bond fund which aims to provide an
attractive level of income by 1nvesting across a broad universe of
global fixed-interest markets The fund combines three
complementary investment strategles managed by Payden & Rygel,
Brigade Capital Management and TwentyFour Asset Management

The second new fund s the Strategic Income fund which aims to
generate a higher level of income than traditional fixed-interest
and equity funds This fund blends four independent investment
strategies managed by MidQcean Credit Fund Management,
Schroders, BlueBay Asset Management and TwentyFour Asset
Management and predominantly invests in hugh-yielding
fixed-interest assets whilst having some exposure to global
equity markets

With the addition of these new funds and speciahist investment
managers, our mvestment proposition for chients now includes
70 carefully selected managers from around the world

Market volatility and continued global uncertainty underhine the
importance of diversification, which remeins one of our core
wvestment principles By continuing to develop our mvestment
approach, so that 1t takes account of 2 changing inVestment
world, we are confident we can help our clients fulfil their long
term financial goals

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

The St. James’s Place Partnership

Increasing the number of Partners and providing them with the
tools and support to deliver high quality cutcomes for chents 1s one
of the key drivers to achieving our long term growth objectives

In 2015, alongside the impressive financial results, [ am therefore
pleased to report that through the continued acquisition of highly
established advisers, the integration of new Partners in Asia and
the success of our extended Academy programme, the size of the
Partnership increased to 2,264, whilst our total qualtfied adviser
community increased by 10% %o 3,113

The sustained growth in our Partner and adviser community
bears testimony to the reputation that we have built for both the
quality of our chient proposition and the level of support and
development our Partners and advisers recerve

As our Partner practices grow and the admimstration of their
clients” affarrs becomes mereasingly complex, we will look to
find ways to make 1t easier for our Partners, advisers and their
support staff to serve therr chients well and build even more
successful businesses Thas 1s the driver behind cur mvestment 1n
our back-office development and the extenston of our Academy
concept to the tramning of specialist support staff for our
existing Partners

This commumity of around 4,000 people performs a variety of
roles for Partners and we plan to deepen our relatonshup with
these teams 1 2016 so as to help with the smooth running of our
Partners’ businesses

Alongside these imtiatives, we are investing in addinonal space
for our London offices and we will be opening a new office, n

Canary Wharf, in May

Our business 1n Asia 1s making good progress and we continue to
focus our overseas efforts here such that whilst we will continue
to explore an entry into the Middle East, if we do deaide to
enter, 1t’s unhtkely we will do so unt1l 2017

Registered No 03183415




‘Back-office’ Administration

In 2014, we embarked on one of the most significant developments
1n our back office for some ttme  The 1mtial phase saw the
umification of our two major back office teams, 1 Craigforth and
Essex, coming together under the management of IFDS

That was followed by the development of a new software
platform, called ‘Bluedoor’, for the combmned admimstration
teams and towards the end of last year, we began the migration
of our business to the new platform, starting with our unit trust
and ISA business, which was successfully completed 1n October

Thus year our focus 1s on pensiens and we anticipate launching
our new retirement account on the platform later in the summer

The St. James’s Place Foundation

and Community Engagement

2015 was again a record year for fund rasing for our Foundation
Raising funds for those less fortunate has always been at the heart
of the Group’s culture, and the collective efforts of the whole of
our community, including employees, Partners, supphers and
others connected to St James's Place, resulted in over £3 5§
mullion being raised which, when matched by the Company,
meant over £7 million for the Foundation The cumulative total
rased to date 15 now approaching £50 million, and we were
again able to support over 6 00 charitable projects in the year

Our cultural driver of ‘doing the right thing’ runs through the
whole orgamsatron, underpinning all our interactions with our
local and extended communities Qur continued membership
of FTSE4GOQOD recogrises the positive nature of our work 1n
these areas We're proud of the sigmficant contribution we
make through our Foundation and our other initiatives,
including our structured programmes for summer interns

and Apprenticeships We are also commutted to maintaining
our Living Wage accreditanon, being one of only 20 FTSE100
compantes to achieve this status

Finally, we're also very proud of the contribution that our whole
community makes to their communities, not least through the
wide vanety of fund raising events for the Foundation that took
place throughout the year

Further details of our CSR activities are set out on pages 48
to 54 and an update on the Foundation 1s provided on pages 56
to 59

Partners and Employees

The strength and continued growth of the business 1s due 1n no
small part to the hard work and dedication of our Partners, their
staff and all of our employees and administration support teams

On behalf of the Board and shareholders I thank everyone
connected with St James’s Place for their contribution to
these results and for their continued enthusiasm, dedication
and commitment

Outlook

We have once again achieved strong growth across all of the key
aspects of the business and are well placed to achieve further
growth n 2016 and beyond

David Bellamy
Chzgf Executive
22 March 2016
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MARKET OVERVIEW

The UK Wealth Market

St James's Place’s prime target market 15 UK mdviduals with
between £50,000 and £5 million in investable assets There
were estimated to be 9 6 milhon such individuals at the end
of 2015 and, over the next five years, the number 15 projected
to grow by 496 per annum to 11 9 millron  Their investable
assets are projected to grow from £1 6 trillon to £1 2 trilhon
o this ime

Advice-led Sector

In November 2015 the FCA reported 30,600 UK financal
advisers in our core target recruitment groups of bank and
financial advisers focussing on wealth management, the total
having dechned by 19% from over 38,000 at the end of 2011
With 3,113 advisers at the end of 2015, St James’s Place now
represents over 10% of the UK’s financial adviser population

Based on 2014 funds under management of £52 billion, we
ranked first1n the 2015 Private Asset and Wealth Managers
(PAM) Directory by Assets under Management, having grown
by £7 7 billion 1n the previous 12 months (+17%) This growth
rate was the largest in volume and the second largestin
percentage of any 1n the top 10 and represented 41% of the
total growth of the top 40 wealth managers 1n that year

We were also identified as the largest ISA manager by the
Investment Association i August 2015 with £10 9 billon ISA
funds under management

Wealth Solutions

The pensions market 15 1n a state of flux The steady decline in
the number of open Defined Benefit schemes 1n the UK means
that relying on a company pension will soon be a thing of the
past Alongside this, due to the increase in hife expectancy, the
old age dependency ratic {number of elderly people expressed
as a proportion of the working age population) 1s expected to
increase from 34% to 50% by the middle of the century with
successive governments taking steps to put back the State
Pension Age i order to curb the pressure on state pensions
The expectation 1s that the fimetable of change will be brought
forward and the upper retirement age could be mcreased to 69

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLCANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOTINTS 2015

The government 1s also trying to encourage ndividuals to
provide for their own future, complementing the new Auto-
Enrolment regime with changes to make pensions savings more
appealing The Spring budgets of both 2014 and 2015 sntroduced
radical changes to increase flexibihity 1n the use of Defined
Contribution pension savings removal of the obhgation to take
an anmuty at age 75, access from age 55 by pension investors to
their pension funds with the freedom to choose between taking
an income, 2 lump sum or combinations of the two including the
whole amount (subject to mcome tax), the 55% pension ‘death
tax’ has been abolished There are many other changes which
both hiberate the savers and complicate the decision making
process Whilst the povernment has offered access to free
guidance provided by the Cinzens Advice Bureau and the
Pensions Adwisory Service, the UK savings ratio 15 at its lowest
for years, and the need for encouragement to save and for holistic
financial advice has never been greater

The March 2015 increase in annual allowance for [SAs to
£15,240p a and the introduction of the ability to switch both
ways between cash and stocks & shares means ISAs are becomimng
a sigmficant way to accumulate wealth 1n a tax efficient way

Pensions represented 40% of our new business in 2015, with a
further 34% from Unit Trusts and [SAs All of these changes
will have significance for our business over the next few years

Numeer oF UK mpivipuats (000s)
with between £50k and £5m of hquid assets
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

St James’s Place plc 1s a FISE 1 00 listed Company The business 1s centred on the UK
and seeks to attract chents from the mass qﬁ]uent and high net worth markets

CLIENTS PARTNERS FUNDS FINANCIAL
Value for
To delver Teo continue To increase Clients
positive to grow and funds under
outcomes to || develop the |L}[ management
an mncreasing Partnership
population
of clients Value for
Shareholders

S]P 15 a wealth management business, the Group ’s advisers, the
St James’s Place Partnership, provide chents with a financial
planming service and face-to-face advice, and chents’ wealth

1s managed through the Group’s distinctive Investment.
Management Approach (IMA) Almost uniquely within the UK
wealth management market, this vertically integrated model
means that the Group 1s directly responsible for the whole
offering, including advice, management of investments and any
related services

The Partnership 1s critical to the success of the business

Partners are able to attract chents and, through building trust,
develop long term relationships, supporting chents with their
financial needs over ime Ths relationship-based approach s
greatly valued by the Group’s chents, no more so than in periods
of financial uncertainty The Group’s experience 1s that there is
an increasing demand for trusted advice from experienced
advisers, backed by a strong brand and an organisation which
takes responsibility for all aspects of the service

Asaresult, the Group 15 able to attract and retain retail funds
under management from which 1t receives an annual
management fee Ths 15 the principal source of income for the
Group, and 1t grows with additional new business and also as a
result of growth in markets and the success of our approach to
mvestment management

Attracting new funds under management 15 core to the success
of the Group, and growth m new business anses as a result of
both increasing Partner numbers and also encouraging further
development by existing Partners By providing an attractive
proposition, the Group 1s able to recruit new members to the
Partnership, and the provision of high quality support enables
Partners to grow both their own businesses and ours

Group expendrture 15 carefully managed with clear objectives
set and with a particular focus on managing fixed costs

Many activities are outsourced so we can benefit from industry
specialists and expenses that vary with business levels

Such expenses include the costs of chent admmistration and
investment admimistration, the costs of which can then be met
from margins 1n our products Overall, a small proportion of
expenditure 15 required to maintain exisung funds, but the
majority 1s 1nvested in supporting and growing the Partnership
and acquiring new funds

Profits emerge from the business prinapally as a result of the

annual management income from funds under management
exceeding expenses

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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BUSINESS MODEL IN ACTION

CLIENTS

>

Putting chents at the heart of everything we do 15 core to our
culture and enables us to work together to run a genwmnely chent-
focussed business It 1s important for clients to have a clear
understanding of the level of service they can expect from their
Partner, so they can be confident that this will meet their needs

The level of ongoing service 1s agreed between the Partner and
the client and, most importantly, 1s tailored appropriately to the
level of care and attention they require Clear and robust systems
and controls are 1n place to enable us to dehver the agreed level
of service and support the delivery of posiive chent outcomes

Dehvermg a positive client experience 1s integral to any
successful and productive busmess It requires an effective
business plan, robust infrastructure and processes that work
The result 1s sanisfied chents who understand the ongoing service
that they recerve and whose expectations are met, or exceeded

We achieve this primanly through the activity of the St James’s
Place Partnership (see page 9) Our Partners recognise that no
one client’s objectives or circumstances are the same as
ancther’s, and so tailor the advice and service to suit them
Chents often continue the working relationship with their
Partner over many years, apprectating a source of trusted advice
as their financial needs evolve over the years

In order to ensure that pur business continues to be chent-
focused, senior management monitors all areas of the business
which can affect the client expenence Monitoring covers all
stages of the chent hfe-cycle, including the suitability of advice,
administration, investment experience, chent feedback and,
rarely, chent complaints

Our annual Wealth Account survey, which we have now been

running for five years, continues to be an invaluable opportunity

to get feedback from chents, with over 47,000 responses to the

2015 questionnaire recerved in the end Response to a survey has

again been sought from clents in Q1 2016 and highlights include

*  92% receive the right amount of face-to-face commumcation
from their Partner, and 25% know that they can requesta
meeting at any tume

* 79% rated the proposttion as exther good or excellent value
for money, with a further 19% describing it as reasonable

* 95% of clients would recommend St James’s Place to others,
with an inereased proportion of around 60% already having
done so (2014 46%)

*  78% of those stll saving for renrement feel exther very or
fairly confident that their current pension, savings and
investment plans will be sufficient to cover their living
expenses and desired hfestyle in retirement, compared with
94% of retired clients

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Our survey confirmed that the majority of our chents are aware
of the various changes in pension freedom rules in recent years
but, asn previous years, most believe they will be unaffected
and do not expect to change their reurement plans However,
another area of concern for many of them was the “inter-
generational’ challenge, and in particular their destre to support
younger members of their farmly

Despite receiving much positive feedback from clients, we never
become complacent and 1n 2016 we will continue to seek
improvements to the service and all round expenence for clients

CLIENT GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION
As of 30 June 2015

QOverseas Clients 2%

Registered No 03183415




BUSINESS MODEL IN ACTION

PARTNERS

Members of the St James's Place Partnership play the leading
role in delivering our wealth management service

Our Partners, so called because of the way they workn
partnership with both their chents and their colleagues, are some
of the most experienced and able professionals working mn wealth
management today St James's Place has chosen to promote

our services exclusively through the Partnership, reflecting the
confidence we have 1n Partners’ ability to build and maintain
long-term working relationships with their chents, and so

to be able to provide sound financial advice The exclusive
arrangernent also provides chients with clanity of responsibility in
relation to their financial dealings St Jamnes's Place works hard
to support these client-Partner relatienships, placing them at the
heart of all we do

Establishing long-term relationships 1s key Clients need to be
able to place a igh degree of reliance on financial advice and so
being able to call upon the services of long-term advisers who
understand their individual personal aircumstances 1s important
But 1t 15 also important that clients are dealt with in the *way they
would choose’ and not ssmply 1n a single prescribed way Our
Partners are located throughout the UK, enablhing face-to-face
advice to be delivered wherever they may be Long term
relationships clearly work for chients but are also good for
business, with 90% of our new business estmated to come from
existing clients and their referrals

New Partners are provided with a document entitled ‘What 1t
means to be a member’ This sets cut a philosophy and some
principles We believe the shared commitment to lving up to
these principles 1s what gives the Partnership 1ts competitive
edge and makes 1t a group of professionals that other advisers
aspire to jon  Our principles emphasise integrity, trust,
openness, partnership and teamwork and are designed to guide
individual and corporate actions, decisions and standards across
our commumty

Given the importance of our Partners, we are committed to
providing ongomg professional development to ensure they
remain appropriately quabfied, techmically able and equipped

to deliver a first class service We also encourage and provide
support for Partners who choose to pursue further qualifications,
with many Partners having plans to progress to Chartered

Status As aresult of the professionalism of our Partners,

we are happy to guarantee the surtabibity of the advice that

they give when recommending any of the wealth management
products and services provided by companies in the Group

Growth n the Partnership 1s a crucial long-term objective

In addition to our existing successful recruitment proposttion
we continued to develop the St James’s Place Academy This
provides an opportumty for smitable second-careerists to receive
traimng and assistance to build a Partner busintess with us We
now have three regional centres 1n London, Manchester and
Solihull, and are opening one 1n Edinburgh in February During
2015 we enrolled over 100 new students and expect to increase
thus to around 120:1n 2016 Also 1n 2015, we graduated

49 Academy Partners following the two year programme and
expect this to nise in 2016 m line with our regional expansion
Around half of our new students are from non-financial
backgrounds and the average age, at 38, 1s ten years younger
than the average Partner

In addition, our Next Generation Academy (initially aimed at
bringing sons and daughters of exasting Partners into their
businesses) also supparts growth and builds succession for cur
existing successful businesses So far we have enrolled over
140 new students onto this programme — now widened to
mclude non-farmly, with an average age of 27 To date, 61 of
these students have progressed to become fully qualified and
authorised members of the Partnership

The Henley Group, a successful IFA business based 1n Hong
Kong, Shanghai and Singapore, which we purchased in 2014,
has now been rebranded St James’s Place Wealth Management
and has already grown to 83 advisers working across the three
offices with nearly 5,000 clients and £460 milhon assets under
advice It extends our geographical scope and provides a new
region for recruitment

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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BUSINESS MODEL IN ACTION

FUNDS

At the beart gf the proposition to our clients 1s

our Investment Management Approach

Investment success 1s cntical to future financial well-being, but 1t
15 a field which presents a umque problem future performance

1s unpredictable As a result, when clents choose mvestment
managers, no matter how successful historically, they can never
be sure that they have made the right choice, and even if they have,
1t may not continue to be the right choice over the years to come

We believe that our Investment Management Approach (IMA)
addresses these perenmal challenges We do not place clents’
mvestments mn the hands of an ‘in-house’ team of fund managers,
indeed, we employ no fund managers of cur own and so avoid
that conflict Instead, we choose fund managers from the many
fund management firns that exist throughout the world

The responsibility of selecting the range of funds and fund
managers that are made available to the chents of 5t James’s
Place at any one time falls upon the Investment Commuttee
The Commuttee 15 made up of a small group of executives and
four ‘independent’ investment experts, and 1s advised by
respected independent investment research consultanaes,
mncluding Stamford Associates, Redington and AON Censulting

The Investment Committee meets regularly to monitor
performance and considers detailed reports from cur consultants
and each fund manager Ifa change in the marketplace calls for
the addition of another manager, the Commttee will select one

Equally, if the Comrmittee's momtoring activity leads to 2 loss

of confidence 1n the abthty of an existing manager to perform 1n
the future, then 1t will replace them With nearly £60 billion of
chient assets invested n St James’s Place funds and products,

the Commuttee 15 also mindful of 1ts stewardship responsibihitzes,
and actively monitors and promotes engagement by all of our
fund managers

Successful long term investment also depends on judicious
dwversificatbon  The Investment Commuttee provides illustrations
as to how to do thus through the provision of Portfohos, which
combine various managers’ funds in proportions depending on the
broad investment objective Ultimately, however, the right solution
for each chent can only be achieved through the face-to-face advice
process, which 1s the responsibility of thewr individual Partner

Alongside our IMA, during 2015 we entered into an agreement
to acquire Rowan Dartington, which specialises in Discretionary
Fund Management (DFM) including direct equity, trust and
chanity portfolio management Subsequent to the year-end we
recewved regulatory approval for the acqusinon which 1s now
unconditional The firm employs around 100 people across 10
regional offices with funds under management of over £1 1 bilhon
Thus will both broaden the range of investment options we can
offer exasting chients and enable us to participate more fully 1n the
substantial DFM sector of the UK wealth market

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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funds

34

fund houses

14
exclusive to
UK retail
1nvestors

65
lead fund

managers

8

asset classes /
strategies

14

cities
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INDEPENDENT
EXPERTISE

INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

INVESTMENT
CONSULTANTS

‘MANAGES THE
MANAGERY’

Appoints the

ﬁmd managers

Sets performance

objectives

Risk management

and strategy

Deccisions:
Change ﬁrm?
2
Change manager:
No change?
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BUSINESS MODEL IN ACTION
OUR PEOPLE

‘We are a 1'e]c1t1'onship business
where peop]e are our most

important asset. ’

Thus statement 1s 2 core cultural belief and a fundamental element of the success of St James’s Place Members of
our community tend to share core values that are lughly compatible wath the values that are central to the business
and established at the cutset — experuse, integrity and discrenon They are passionate about our business and beheve
mn hard work and dedication Age, race, colour, creed, sexuahty, disability and gender are irrelevant ment and
expertence are of greatest importance They treat each other with mutual respect, openness and farrness and are

driven by a desire to ‘do the rght thing’ by all our stakeholders

Thus 15 our culture, which 1s central to our success We are therefore proactive 1n bu1]dmg and remforcmg it

For this most important of business differentiators 1t 1s the Board that provides both ‘tone at the top’ and oversight
The Board 1s commutted to being consistent and clear-sighted in 1ts leadership and support of the culture,

and 1n particular the principle that ‘St James’s Place will seek to do the nght thing for its chents and for all 1ts
stakeholders’ In a world where the reputation of the financial services industry 1s constantly under pressure,

we aspire to create an authentic alternative which clients and supphers can trust, and which the communities

we are part of can appreciate and respect However, we recognise that we won't always get everything right, and so
we also beheve in acknowledging mustakes made, rectifying them and learning from them
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Our people are a sustarnable compentive advantage, so we aim
to attract the best and help them fulfil their potential We secure
their commtment by providing them with an interesting and
challenging career within a first class working environment

We reward them competitively, as well as encouraging equuty
ownership, including in the Partnership We are a Living Wage
employer and have commutted to meeting the hving wage for all
our employees and suppliers

‘We recogmse that as our business grows we will have to take
care with our culture Our employee numbers now exceed
1,300 1n the UK (1,400 worldwide)} and the number of Partners
exceeds 2,000 (over 3,000 advisers) with over 4,000 support
staff, and these numbers will continue to grow 1n future years

To ensure contimuty of our culture, we ensure that all
employees and Partners joining the business are selected for their
fit with our corporate values, as well as their competency, and
that they are given a full induction as the first step m their career
with our business This includes recerving a booklet entitled
‘Our Approach’, which gives gmdance on the culture and values
of St Jamexs’s Place, and the employee handbook includes a
statement about our Code of Ethics We believe 1t 15 important
that cur commumty knows and understands our objectives,
including the ethos behind the St James’s Place brand and how
1ts 1ntegrity and values should be mamntained We also encourage
shared commutment to the St James’s Place Foundation

Maintmining freshness of commitment to our culture 1s
promoted through a variety of activities including an Annual
Company Meeting, employse and Partner Surveys, regular
Partner meetings, feedback opportumties for employees with
Directors and a Leadership Conference for senior management
They all provide opportunities to renew our joint understanding
and encourage commitment to our shared culture, as well as
€nsuring a CoMMON awareness of the financal and economic
factors affecting the Company’s performance

13

Our regular employee survey, which we conduct every other year,
provides important insiphts, crucaally on employee engagement
The most recent survey was in 2014 and we recewved a strong
survey respense rate of 87% (compared to 86% i 2012) Our
overall engagement score was 87%, which was significantly
higher than the financial services benchmark of 72% We plan to
continue with the br-annual process, which means our next survey
will bein 2016 As a result of the strong engagement we also have
low levels of staff turnover, being 10% 1n 2015 (2014 9%) for

the UK business, and the proportion of UK employees that are
temporary staff1s just over 4% (2014 7%) (in 2016 we will reflect
expenience of our Asian business as well)

Information about the breakdown of employees by gender 1s
shown below

MANAGERS &
DECISION MAKERS

BOARD
DIRECTORS

7 Male

No change % women increased from
16% to 19%
TOTAL
EMPLOYEES

665 Female
697 Male

% women consistent at 49%
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OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY EXPLAINED

Our key business objective 1s growth in funds under management (FUM)
through offering a high quality service to chents. Growth in FUM (and Net Inflows)
requires growth 1n Gross Inflows and retention of FUM

Our growth strategy for delivering increasing
Gross Inflows mvolves

— Growing the size of the Partnership, and
— TImproving Partner productivity

Qur support strategy for dehvering sustained retention
of FUM mvolves

— Delivering high quahity service to Partners and chents, and

- Drlvmg consistent gOOd investent performance

As aresult of pursuing these strateges for over 20 years, we have
built strong relationships with our Partners and clients, and we
benefit from strong chient and Partner loyalty and advocacy This
provides a strategic advantage over our competrtors, and as a result
we have experienced Gross Inflows growth of 15-20% p a over
the longer term, with FUM doubling every five years Weare
confident that, with this strategy, we can continue to deliver
strifar growth in FUM 1n the medum-term (up to five years)

1

DELIVER POSITIVE
OUTCOMES TO CLIENTS

What this means:

Through our face-to-face based adwice service, we
a1 to help chentsmn a way which reflects their
personal circumstances

Our approach 1s based on development of long~
term relationshups, founded on trust By
continually seeking to enhance our processes and
make improvements to the client experience we
achieve client satisfaction, leading to strong
retention and high levels of chient advocacy Asa
result, we are able to attract new clients through
both referrals and mtroductions

Our focus for 2016:

- Ensuring the underlying administration of our
client offering meets all expectations

- Introduce a new retirement account propaosttion

- Integrate the Rowan Dartington DFM offermg
as part of our holistic chient offering

- Extend our relationship with Metro Bank and
the services they provide for our chents

- Develop our offermg for supporting chents
wanting to make ‘mter-generational’ financial
arrangements

2

GROW PARTNERSHIP AND
DEVELOP EXISTING PARTNERS

What this means:

Through providing an attractive proposition we
are able to recruit new members to the
Partnership, and by providing ugh quality support

we can help them to grow

Our Partners play the leading role in delvering
our wealth management service Expanding their
number 1s central to our growth aspirations Our
support for them includes ongoing professional
development as well as support systems and
nfrastructure, to ensure they are equpped to
deliver a first class service to their chents

Our focus for 2016:

- Continue to attract high quality advisers to
join the Partnership

- Support existing Partners in gaining further
quabifications, ncluding Chartered Status

- Expand our existing regional academies
mitiative to include Edinburgh and enhance
our next generation (succession) academy

- Secure our presence m Asia

- Integrate Rowan Dartlngton mto cur Partner
proposiion

Our Chents p 8 4
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INCREASE FUNDS
UNDER MANAGEMENT

What this means:

Management of client funds 1s at the heart of our
business They are managed through our
distinctive Investment Management Approach
(IMA)

Overall FUM growth 1s driven by successful
Partners supporting satisfied clients, underpinned
by consistent delivery of the IMA

Focus on dehvering for clients has resulted 1n
doubling of FUM over the past five years, as well
as in the five years preceding that Funds under
management has historically increased organically
through 15 to 20% growth (over the longer term)
through gross inflows, market leading retention
experience and superior mnvestment returns

Qur focus for 2016:

- Continuing focus on the IMA proposition, and
‘select, monitor, change’

- Broadening of the investment proposition

- Review our ‘stewardship’ focus

- Integration of the DFM option into our overall
approach to ivestinent management

4

ACHIEVE SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN PROFITS

‘What this means:

The principal source of income for the Group 1s
annual management mcome from funds under
management As aresult, 1t grows with new
business and with growth 1ninvestments

Profits, and ulumately dividends, reflect expense
management as well

Sustamnable growth in profits mvolves effective
management of expenditure, both ongoing and
development, 1n order to achieve increasing FUM
Current year events will inevitably impact the result
n any one year, but focus on hwlding the underlymng

fundamentals will lead to growth in profits

Our focus for 2016:

- Manage expense growth to around 10% p a

- Expenditure focused on safely delivening our
strategy, inchuding achieving 15-20% growth in
gross inflows

- Investment 1n the business to support long-term
growth

- Embedding the new Solvency Il regulatory
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OUR OBJECTIVES AND RELATED
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

CLIENTS
TO DELIVER POSITIVE OUTCOMES TO AN
INCREASING POPULATION OF CLIENTS

Progress During 2015

2015 was another successful year as the business continued to
grow Clent numbers grew by 9% contnibuting to the increase
mn investment of new funds The quality of the chent outcome,
as reflected 1n chent retention and feedback, continued to be
as strong as ever

CrienT NUMBERS

.

Our business model 1s based on managing clicnt wealth and so the number
of clients 15 a key measure of the health of the busmess As wellas
reflecting past performance, 1t also indicates future opportumity, as our
experience suggests that over 90% of new business comes from existing
clients or their referrals In 2015, we were pleased that ¢lient numbers
increased from 484,000 to 525,800

CLIENT RETENTION

Our business 15 long-term and client retention feeds directly imto the
finanaal result However, 1t 15 also an indication of mimimum standards
having been met We are therefore delighted that retention was again
above 95%, continuing the trend in recent years

CLIENT ADVOCACY

Qur reputation 18 vitally important to our bustness model and thisis best
expressed through the experience of our chents Our annual Wealth
Account survey typically receives over 40,000 responses and provides an
excchlent snap-shot of chent experience In recent years we have momtored
the trend of responses to the question *Would you recommend St James's
Place to anyone else?

ST JAMES § PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

PARTNERS
TO CONTINUE TO GROW AND
DEVELOP THE PARTNERSHIP

Progress During 2015

Our proposition continued to be attractive to advisers in the year
whach, along51de deve]opment of the existing community, led to
improvements 1n quality both 1n terms of business credenuials
and qualifications The Partnership also welcomed graduates
from the Academy imitiative and new recruits in Asia

NuMmBER OF PARTNERS

‘Without our Partners, we would have no chents We were thercfore pleased
10 deliver growth ahead of our long term aspirations, supported by Academy
Partners and recrurtment in Asia Partner numbers grew from 2,132 2014
to 2,264 this year

PArRTNER RETENTION

Partner retennan reflects Parters' continuing satsfaction with our
proposition but also the mamntenance of their quality against the standards
we require We are therefore pleased to note that retention has remarned at
the hugh level of $6% when compared with the prior year

GRross INFLOWS PER PARTNER

Productivity of Partners 1s 3 measure of their success as business people, but
also feeds into success for the Company We are pleased that n 2015
individual adviser productivity continued to increase, leading to an overalt
Increase 1n gross inflows (updated this year from angle premiums to reflect
our funds based metrics) per Partner from £3 9 million to £4 2 million

Registered No 03183415




FUNDS
TO INCREASE FUNDS UNDER
MANAGEMENT (FUM)

Progress During 2015

In another successful year, new busiess from chients combined
with positive growth 1n underlying investments resulted 1n an
increase 1n total FUM to £58 6 billion, growth of 13% over the
year This growth feeds through directly to the financral
performance 1n the year

FuNDs UNDER MANAGEMENT

The prafitability measures of the Group are ultimately driven by the income
we earn from FUM The FUM have exhibited compound annual growth of
17% over the last ten years

Gross INFLOWS

Gross nflows 1s the gross new investment and pensions business (principally
single premium) recened during the year We aim to grow Gross [nflows by
15-20% per annum over the long term, which we again achieved 1n 2015

NeT INFLOWS

Retention of funds 1s a result of satisfied clients and 15 essential if the FUM
15 to continue 1o grow Growth of 14% in the year was higher than we had
expected and 1eflected lower levels of withdiawal, particularly due 1o
pension clients extending retrement and investment clients remaining
invested through volanle markets

17

FINANCIAL
TO ACHIEVE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH IN
REPORTED PROFIT ON ALL MEASURES

Progress During 2015

Our business model 1s simple and 1s ahgned with the needs of
both our chents and our Partners Strong performance in those
areas combined with positive investment performance to
underpin the financial results We are pleased to reporta
continuation of the trend of recent years

EEV OperATING PROFIT BEFORE Tax

The EEV reporting basis assesses the full value of the emergence of
sharcholder cash returns over the long term New business (Gross Inflows) 1s
the most significant underlying draver of EEV Operating Profit, but positie
expenence variances and operating assumption changes also contributed to
the growth of 11% year on year

PROFIT BEFORE SHAREHOLDER TAX

Whlst steady growth in the fundamentals of the business underpinned the
2015 result of £151 3 million, there were a ttmber of larger non-operational
¢ costs that impacted the result These included an increase in the FSCS
levy, an increase 1n the investment in our back afhicc infrastructure and the
negative contribution from movements in DAC/DIR/PVIF intangbles

DIVIDEND

Growth in profit measures, particularly cash, means the Company is able to
increase the level of dividend We are pleased to confirm anincrease of 20%in
dividend 10 the year, bringing the tota) increase over the last 5 years to 366%
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT

Andrew Croft
Chief Finanaial Officer

As highlighted earlier, 2015 was
another year of strong operating

pe;jbrmance with ‘grm-vth in all the
business ftmdamentals. ’

The financial results reflect this operating performance but they were also impacted by both a significant increase
1n the levy charged by the Financial Services Compensation Schemne (FSCS levy) and the higher costs associated with
2 number of strategic investments we are making 1n the business, laying foundations for the future

The FSCS levy for the year was £20 1 milhon (£15 9 million post tax), an increase of £14 2 muillion compared to the
prior year charge of £5 9 million (£4 7 mllion post tax)

The costs associated with our strategic mvestments include the Academny at £5 5 million (2014 £4 1 million),
our Asian operations at £7 5 milhon (2014 £3 6 million} and our back office infrastructure development at
£18 1 mlhon (2014 £11 9 mallion)

The additional FSCS levy and these investment costs affect all the profit measures

Financial Results

We continue to report our results on both [FRS and EEV bases, as well as providing further detail on the cash
result, reﬂectmg cash emergence from the business Detailed explanation and analysis of these measures 1s provided
on pages 20 and 21

IFRS Result
We present both the Profit before shareheolder tax, which removes the impact of policyholder tax, and Underlying
profit before shareholder tax, which adjusts the Profit before shareholder tax for movements in intangible assets and

lLiabilitres (DAC/DIR/PVIF see page 27)
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We regard Underlying profit as the most appropriate measure,
based upon IFRS, for assessing operating performance

The performance on these measures 1s noted 1n the table below

2015 2014

£'Million £’ Million

Profit before sharcholder tax 151.3 182 9
Underlying profit before

shareholder tax 1637 173 6

Both measures have been impacted by the £14 2 mullion increase
m the FSCS levy together with the higher costs associated with
our investment 1n laying the foundanons for the future In
addition the Profit before shareholder tax result has also been
adversely affected by a reduction of £21 7 mullion 1n contribution
from movements 1n the DAC/DIR/PVIF adjustments

Cash Result

At £182 1 nullion (2014 £173 8 mullion), the Underlying cash
result for the year was up 5%, reflecting the strong underlying
growth in income from Funds under Management (up 18%),
partaally offset by the addional FSCS levy (£11 2 mullion post-tax)
together with the Academy and Asian expenditure For
comparson, 1f we were to adjust for the increase in the FSCS levy,
the Underlymg Cash Result would have been some 11% higher

Taking 1nto account the cost of our mvestment 1nto the back
office infrastructure and other timing variances, the Cash result
was £171 5 rmllion (2014 £165 1 million)

EEV Result

The new busmess profit of £440 7 milhon (2014 £373 1
rmllion) was up 18% reflecting the strong gross inflows, whilst
the Operating profit for the period was £660 2 muihon (2014
£596 4 million}

The Operating profit reflects not only the higher new business
profit but also a further positive expertence variance anda
positive operating assumption change, partially offset by the
higher FSCS levy and investment costs The 2015 result 15 also
negatively impacted by a lower opening risk discount rate (5 0%
n 2015 vs 6 2% 1n 2014}, resulting 1n a lower contribution from
the unwind of discount rate of some £41 4 million less than that
expectedaf the discount rate was unchanged

The net asset value per share increased 12% over the year to
737 3 pence (2014 657 9 pence)

Dividend

At the half year we increased the intenim dividend by 20% and
commented 1t was our 1ntention to imcrease the final dividend at
a sirnilar rate

19

Given the continued strong performance 'of the business, the
Board has proposed a final dividend of 17 24 pence per share, up
20% Ths provides for a full year diidend of 27 96 pence per
share, also growth of 20%, and represents a payout ratio
compared to underlying cash of 80% However, 1f we adjust the
underlying cash result to remove the increase 1n the FSCS levy,
then the payout ratio would be 76%

It 15 our 1ntention to continue our policy of increasing the
dividend 1n hine with the underlying performance of the

business

Capital and Solvency 11

We continue to manage the balance sheet prudently to ensure the
Group's salvency 1s maintained safely through the economic cycle
This 1s tmportant not only for the safeguarding of our chents’
assets, but also to ensure we can maintain returns to shareholders

The start of 2016 sees the introduction of a new regulatory
solvency regime known as Solvency Il The underlying driver of
the new Selvency Il regulation 1s to focus attention on risk and
risk management Whilst the regulations introduce extensive
new valuation and reporting requirements, some presentational
changes and a number of moving parts, 1t has not altered our
business or risk profile, and our solvency position remans both
robust and secure

After taking account of the £50 5 million cost of the proposed
final dividend, we are reporting Solvency Il free assets at the
Group level of £809 2 million compared to corresponding
Solvency | free assets of £440 2 mllion

The new Solvency I solvency ratio at the Group level 15 151%
{156% before the final proposed dividend)

Concluding Remarks
2015 was another strong finaneal performance which has
enabled the Board to propose a 20% increase in the dividend

Our core business and 1ts financials are 1n good shape  As noted
in my opening remarks, we have already been laying strategic
foundations for the future, which now mncludes the acquisition of
the discretionary fund management business Rowan Dartington
We are well set for further growth, and contimung to increase
the return to shareholders

Andrew Croft
Chaef Financiel Officer
22 March 2016

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUN 52015

¥
2
2
I
ud
(o]
=
[}
<
=]
~*

I 1 UOTIEPUROT 92R[4 § saure[ 15 |

DOUBUIIADN

I uollewIouy 21110 I I SR TRIDURUL] | I



20

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Model

The Group's strategy 1s to attract and retam retail funds under
management (FUM) on which we receive an annual management
fee Thisis the principal source of income for the Group, from
which we invest in growth and development of the Partnership,
acquiring new funds under management and meeting the
expenses of the business

The level of income 1s dependent on thelevel of client funds and
asset values In addition, since much of our business does not
generate net cash 1n the first six years, the level of income will
increase as a result of new business from s1x years ago becoming
cash penerative This deferral of cash generation means the
business always has six years’ worth of funds in the ‘gestation’
period (Analysis of the FUM from which income 1s generated 1s
presented 1n Section 1)

Group expenditure 1s carefully managed with clear targets set for
growth in estabhshment expenses in the year Many other
expenses increase with business levels and are met from margins
in the products However, the Group also mnvests 1n new chent
services, computer systems and other corporate initiatives, all of
which are reported as development expenditure (Analysis of the
Expenses 1s presented 1n Section 2 )

A small proportion of Group expenditure 15 required to support
management of existing funds, but the majority of expenditure 15
investment 1n growing the Partnership and acquiring new funds
The resulting new business 15 expected to generate income for an
average of 14 years, and provide a good return on the investment

(see page 23)

As the business matures, the proportion of the cash emergence
from the existing business required to support the acqusition of
new business 1s reducing This has resulted in strong growth in
underlying cash emergence 1n recent years which has ultimately
fed through to growth in the dividend

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Profit Measurement

Ir1 hine wath statutory reporting requirements we report proﬁts
assessed on an [FRS basis However, given the long-term nature
of the business and the high level of investment 1n new business
generation each year, management believes the IFRS result does
not provide an easy guide to the cash hikely to emerge in future
years, nor does 1t reflect the total economic value of the business
We therefore complement our statutory IFRS reporting with
additional analysis

Firstly, we provide additional analysis 1n relation to the tax
reported under IFRS The 1IFRS methodology requires that the
tax recogmised 1n: the financal statements should include the tax
incurred on behalf of pohcyholders in our UK hfe assurance
company Since the policyholder tax charge 15 unrelated to the
performance of the business and 1s paid on to HMRC,
management believes 1t 15 useful to separately identify the profit
before shareholder tax This measure reflects the [FRS profit
before tax, adjusted for tax paid on behalf of policyholders

Secondly, the IFRS standards promote recogmtion of profits in
line with the provision of services and so, for long-term business,
some of the initial cash flows are spread over the hife of the
contract through the use of intangible assets and Labilities
{(known as DAC — Deferred Acquisitton Costs and DIR —
Deferred Income) Due to regulation change in 2013 there was a
step change in the progression of these 1tems, which resulted 1n
stgnificant accounting presentation changes despite the
fundamentals of our vertically-integrated busmness remaining
unchanged We therefore present an additional ‘non-GAAP’
underltying profit measure which 1s derived from the IFRS
result by adjusting for these intangibles Management believes
this adjusted IFRS result provides the most useful measure of
operating performance

Thardly, the cash result and underlying cash result are the
principal measures that the Board considers when determining
the dividend payment to shareholders as they best reflect the cash
generated by the bustness

Registered No 03183415




The Board starts by considering the underlying cash result, wihach
most clearly reflects the impact of the primary drivers of the
bustness (bexng FUM and expenses as described in Sections 1 and
2} Ths 1s derwved from the underlying profit measure, principally
by adjusting for differences between deferred and current tax,
share option costs and some solvency reserve impacts

Other cash flows are taken into account in the Cash result, not
least tax settlement timing vanances and changes in solvency
reserving requirements  Allowance 15 also made for the cost of
the back-office infrastructure development

These two measures are presented with a breakdown explamning
the sources of profit based on the key drivers of the business,
with the aum of assisting investars to understand the
development of profits The Board also beheves it1s useful to
understand the contributron to profits from just the in-force
business as this reflects the value being generated by the exising
business, and so the breakdown 1dentifies the new business
impact and makes clear the ongoing contribution from the
established business

Neither the cash result nor the underlying cash result should be
confused with the IFRS cash flow statement which is prepared
m accordance with [AS 7 and disclosed on page 118

Finally, we also present an embedded value result Management
believes this approach is particularly useful for investors seeking
to assess the full value of the long-term emergence of
shareholder cash returns, since 1t includes an asset 1n the
valuation reflecting the net present value of the expected future
cash flows from the business This type of presentation 15 also
commonly referred to as a ‘discounted cash flow’ valuation

Our embedded value 15 based on the EEV principles, which
were set out as an industry standard by the Chief Financial
Officers (CFO) Forum 1n 2004

Many of the future cash flows derive from fund charges, which
change with movements 1n stock markets Since the impact of
these changes 1s unrelated to the performance of the business,
management believes that the EEV operating profit
(reflecting the EEV profit before tax, adjusted to reflect only
the expected investment performance and no change 1n
economic basis) provides the most useful measure of
performance 1n the year

We have provided an analysis of the FUM development 1in
Section 1 and Expenses in Section 2 Section 3 providesa
commentary on the performance of the business on the IFRS
basis whalst Sections 4 and 5 provide further detail on the Cash
and EEV results Fnally, Section 6 covers the Solvency and
Capital Management
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| FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

SECTION 1: FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

This section starts with analysis of the movement 1n the funds under management of the Group Thus 1s followed by information zbout
the income the Group earns from managing these funds, together with the profile of these earmings, and finally a geographical and
segmental analysis of the funds under management

Movement in Funds Under Management

During 2015 we have seen gross new funds of £9 24 billion, growth of 17% and a net mflow of funds under management of

£5 78 bullron (2014 £5 09 billion), growth of 14% Investment return has also been positive although not as strong as in the prior
year Nevertheless, given the strong net inflow, and the positive investment performance, funds under management increased to

£58 61 billion

Analysis of the development of the funds under management 1s provided :n the following tables

Year Ended 31 December 2015 Note Investment Pension uT/ISA Total
EBillion £Billion £Bilhon £Bi1llion
Opening funds under management 21.14 18.08 1279 5201
Gross inflows 2.45 366 313 9.24
Net 1nvestment return 019 0.38 025 082
Regular income withdrawals and maturities 1 {0 48) (0 62) - (1.10)
Surrenders and part surrenders 2 {0 78) (0.64) (0.94) (2.36)
Closing funds under management 22.52 20 86 1523 58.61
Netinflows 1.19 240 219 5.78
Implied surrender rate as 2 percentage of average
3.6% 3 3% 6 7% 4.3%

funds under management

In addition, there 1s a further £430 milhon of funds under management 1n third party funds within our Asia business

Year Ended 31 December 2014 Note Investment Pension UT/ISA Total
£'Bilbion £ Bullion £'Bitlon £'Bithon
Opening funds under management 18 74 15 36 10 20 44 30
Gross inflows 270 243 275 7 88
Net investment return 0 87 117 058 262
Regular income withdrawals and matunities 1 (0 43) (0 42) - (0 85)
Surrenders and part surrenders 2 (0 74) (0 46) (0 74) (194
Ciosing funds under management 21 14 18 08 1279 52 01
Net inflows 153 155 201 509

Imphed surrender rate as a percentage of average
funds under management 3 7% 2 8% 6 4% 4 0%

In addition, there was a further £449 milhion of funds under management 1n third party funds within our Asia business

Notes
t  Regular income withdrawals are those smounts selected by clients whichare paid out by way of perindic income The withdrawals have been d in the calcul of the embedded value new

business prefit

Maturities are those sums paid out where the plan has reached the selected maturity date (e g retirement date) The expected maturities have been assumed In the caleulstion of the embedded value

new business profic
2 Surrenders and part surrenders are those amounts where clients have chosen to withdraw money [rom their plan Surrenders are assumed to occur in the calculation of the embedded value new

business profit based on actual experience updated on an anpual basis, by plan duration and the age of the elfent The unplled surrender rate shown o the table sbove 15 very much a simple average
and reflects only recent experience. Whalst 1t could be compared with the long term assumptions underlying the calculation of the embedded value, it should not be assumed that small movements in

this rate will result tn a change to the lang term embedded value assumptions

Fees on Funds Under Management
As noted at the start of this Financal Review, our financial model 15 to attract and retam retail funds under management (FUM) on

which we receive an annual management fee
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The net annual management fee retained by the Group 1s € 0 77% post tax However, due to our product structure, nvestment and
pension business does not generate net cash in the first six years Consequently, the level of Income we are receiving today 1s not fully
representative of the expected earmings from the funds we are managing, and these earnings will increase as a result of the new
bustmess from s1x years ago becoming cash generative This deferral of cash generation means there 1s always six years’ worth of
business 1n the ‘gestation’ period
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Qur product structure 1nvolves an early withdrawal charge that reduces to zero aver the first six years of the life of the policy This
allows us to establish an opening liabihty net of the outstanding withdrawal charge that would apply 1f the policy were to be encashed

As the withdrawal charge reduces to zero over the first six years of the pohcy, so the labihity to the policyholder 1s enhanced by
ncreasing their funds by 1% per annum . In other words, there 15 a cost which offsets the annual management fee above Thisas
known as the ‘unwind’ of the withdrawal charge

Asa result this business does not make a meamngful contribution to the cash result until year seven The table below provides an
estmated current value of the funds under management where the early withdrawal charge apples

| 1 UONEPUNOY 0Bl § sauel -1g |

Year Total

£Bithon
2010 20
2011 24
2012 7
2013 37 &
2014 39 3
2015 45 2
Total 192 8

These funds under management are not yet generating income within the cash result but will do so once the six year early withdrawal
charge 1s fully unwound This £19 2 billion represents approximately a third of the total funds under management whach, 1f all the
business reached the end of the early withdrawal charge period, would contribute an additional £147 7 mullion to the annual post-tax
cash result

Although, as noted above, a proportion of the new client funds do not generate a meamngful net ncome to the Group within the first
six years, the Group does 1ncur costs associated with attracting these new funds and therefore the Directors believe 1t 15 useful to
provide details of the economuc return we expect will be generated from the new business In other words, the business case for the
investment 1n attracting new chents and funds under management

As detailed later in this review on page 29, a net cost of £84 2 million (2014 £62 7 million) has been mncurred to attract the
£9 24 billion of gross new funds (2014 £7 88 billion) The increase in this net cost has been impacted by a significant increase in
the FSCS levy

We regard thus as an investment 1n new busmess which we expect to generate mcome 1n the future sigmficantly exceeding thas cost
and therefore provide positive returns for shareholders The table below provides details of the new business added during the
reporting pertods and different measures of valuing the investment

i UOEWAOIUT A2U10 ]i SIUDWITELQ Feroue ULy |

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Gross inflows (£’Billion) 924 7 88
Post-tax investment 1n new business {(£'Million) (84.2) ©27)
Post-tax present value of expected profit from investment (£’ Milhon) 358.9 298 4
Cost of new business (% of new money invested)* 0.9% 0 8%
New busmess margin (% of new money invested) 4.8% 4 7%
Cash payback period (years) 5 4
Internal rate of return (net of tax) 22.1% 26 1%

*  Theinvestment as a percentage of net inflow of funds under management was 1 5% compared with 1 2% for 2014

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015




24

FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Geographical and Segmental Analysis
The table below provides a geographical and segmental analysis of funds under management at the end of each year

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

£Billion % oftotal £ Billion % of total
UK Equitres i56 27% 14 9 29%
North American Equities 131 22% 10 4 20%
Fixed Interest 8.8 15% 71 14%
European Equities 62 11% 60 11%
Asa & Pacific Equitics 49 8% 48 9%
Cash 46 8% 44 8%
Property 22 4% 15 3%
Alternative Investments 1.3 2% 09 2%
Other 19 3% 20 4%
Total 58.6 100% 520 100%

SECTION 2: EXPENSES

Management Expenses
The table below provides the usual breakdown of the management expendsture (before tax) for the combined financial services activines

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2013 2014
EMallwon £ Milhon
Pard from policy margins and advice charges
Partner remuneration 1 5185 455 4
Investment expenses 1 121.9 124 6
Third party administration 1 56.6 443
697.0 624 3
Drrect expenses
Other performance related costs 2 94 3 86 8
Establishment costs 3 139.4 1251
Academy costs 4 5.5 41
Other development costs 5 21.1 156
Back office intiastructure costs 6 18.1 119
Regulatory fees 7 75 61
FSCS levy 8 20.1 59
Contribution from third party product sales Cj (25.4) (22 4)
280 6 233 1
Total 977 6 857 4

Notes

1 These costs are met from correspond:ng policy margins and any variatton in them from changes in the volumes of new business or the level of the stock markets dots not directly impact the
profitability of the Group

2 Other performance related costs, for both Partners and employees, vary with the level of new business and operanng profit performance of the business

3 Establishment costs are the running costs of the Group s infrastructure and are relatively fixed In nature 1n the short term, although they are subject toinflationary increases These costs will
increase as the infrastricture expands to manage the higher number of clients, the growing number of advisers 2nd increasing business volumas
The growth in establishment expenses during the year was higher than our original expectations as a consequence of an increase 1o expenditure assoctated wath the high level of adviser recruitment
1n the year together with the rosts relating to the higher business volumes
During 2015 we will be expanding cur presence in London with & new office opening wn Canary Wharf as well as taling additional space 1n our exasting Londen locations Reflecung this
additonal expenditure, we expect establishment expenses 1n 2016 to increase by ¢ 11% (8 5% before these additional property costs)
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4 The Academy continues to be 41 important strategic wavestment for the futare The additonal expenditure duning 2015 reflected both the increased number of Academy participants together
with the expansion of the programme to Manchester and Solihull 2016 spend will increase further to an expected £7 5 mullion, reflecung continued Academy intakes in Landon, additional
intakes 1n Manchester and Solibull, plus our first Academy intake in Edinburgh

5 Other development costs represent the expenditure d with the on-going develop in our investment proposition, corporate imtiatives technology improvements and other system
develop These costs d to £21 1 milhon for the year (2014 £15 6 million) Incladed within these costs Is £1 6 mllion 10 relation to due dihigence and trancaction costs of our
acqusioon of Rowan Dartington
We will contisue to1nvest in the business and anticrpate development spend 1n 2016 to be in line wich the previous year

6 The costs of the back office nvestment programme and related costs were £18 1 millon (2014 £11 9 millon)

The change programine has continued to progress well during 2015, albert the projectas running behind and costing more than our erginal plan During the final quarter of last year we
underioak full migration of the wmt ust and 1SA buniness onto the new systern This was a significant milestone for the project and we will start (o see the benefits acerae in 2016 (within the EEV
result an assumption change has been made to reflect the lower charges which now apply to the existing business)

Having successfully completed this phase of the project, during 2016 we will launch a new retirement account and plan the migration of the existing pension and drawdawn business, once the
penstons fandscape is clear A we contiaue to develop the system and migrate the existng business we wall incur further mvestment expendsture and aaucipate cost for 2014 of » mmular amount,
102015

7 The regulatory costs represent the fees payable to the regulatory bodies of £7 5 million (2014 £6 1 mallion), we expect 2036 costs to increase to some £8 5 mulllon

8 Thu represents our required contribution to the Financial Services Comp ton Scheme of £20 | million (2014 £5 9 mullisw)

The key driver of this inercase relates to our share of compensation claims made by the FSCS in relation to external fulures within the hfe and pensi intermediary regulatory category Whilst we

arcanticpating a further elevated levy i 2016 (aur current estimate is for a levy of ¢ £16 0 million), we expect a more normalised lovel in future years
9 Contribution from third party produet now business reflects the net income received from wealth management business of £10 0 million (2014 £% 0 million), from group pension business of £0 9
million {2014 EO 8 mullion) and from protection bummess of £14 § mullion (2014 £12 6 mullion)

The table below provides a reconciliation from these management expenses to the total group expenses included in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 114

Yecar Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£'Malhon £ Mllon

Expenses per table above 977 6 857 4

Reversal of contribution from third party product sales 254 22 4
Other expenses

DAC movement 68 0 75 8

Amortisation of PVIF 32 32

Investment transaction costs 19.0 206

Share option costs 157 114

Share option N1 3.4 27

Acquired IFA operating costs ' 6.7 60

SJP Asia operating costs 7.5 36

Interest expense 4.4 38

Chantable donations 3.5 36

Other 157 124

147 1 143 1

Total expenses 1,150 1 1,022 9

SECTION 3: INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

The performance of the business and the IFRS result are best understood through the key drivers of FUM and expenses as described
in the previous sections, together with other miscellaneous cash flows These combine to explain the Underlying cash result on which
the Underlying profit and the IFRS result develop

The following table starts with the Underlying cash result (detailed in Section 4 on page 29) and provides a reconcihation to the
Underlying profit result and the IFRS result

The results are reported ‘after tax” and also ‘before shareholder tax’ In arriving at the profit before shareholder tax (which s
effectively ‘after policyholder tax"), 1t 15 necessary to estimate the analysis of the total tax charge between that payable in respect of
pohcyholders and that payable by shareholders Shareholder tax 1s assessed based on the effective rate of tax that 1s applicable to the
shareholders, with the balance being treated as tax in respect of policyhelders Further detail 1s provided on page 28 of this review
and 1 Note 8 on page 135
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

SECTION 3: INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) continued

2015 2014
Before Before
Shareholder Shareholder
Tax After Tax Tax Alter Tax*®
LMilhon £Malhion £ Million £Million
Underlying cash , 1970 182 1 192 9 173 8
Share options {157) (15.0) (11 4) (11 4)
Deferred tax impacts - 52.1 - 346
Solvency reserves (1.8) (1.8) (7 4) (74)
Back office infrastructure (I8 1) (14.4) (11 9) 3
Variance 2.3 3.8 11 4 06
Underlying profit 163.7 206 8 173 6 180 9
DAC/DIR/PVIF (12 4) (4 8) 23 70
TFRS profit 151.3 202.0 829 187 9

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Pence Pence

IFRS basic earnings per share 389 366
IFRS diluted earnings per share 38.5 359
Underlying basic earnings per share 398 352
Underlying diluted earnings per share 394 34 6
Underlymng cash basic earnings per share 346 338
Underlying cash diluted earmings per share 34.2 332

Underlying Profit before Shareholder Tax
A breakdown by segment of the underlying profit resultis provided in the following table

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£Million £'Million

Life business 174.2 160 7
Unit Trust business 707 612
Funds management business 244 9 2219
Distribution business (21.2) (109
Back office infrastructure development (18 1) 1%
Other (41.9) 259
Underlying profit before shareholder tax 163 7 173 6

Funds Management
The profit for the year to 31 Decernber 2015 was £244 9 mulhon (2014 £221 9 million) which was 10% higher than the prior year
The increase mainly reflects h1g}1er income from funds under management

Dustribution Business

St James’s Place 15 a vertically integrated firm, allowing 1t to benefit from the synergies of combining management of funds with
distribution Therefore, as well as the income generated on the funds under management, there 1s a profit or loss from the
distribution activity In any one year, this result will depend upon the level of new business and expenses
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The 2015 result has been negatively impacted by a sigmficantly
higher contnbution to the FSCS, which for the year was

£20 1 million (2014 £5 9 million) The Asian business also made
a loss in the year of £7 0 millon (2014 £1 7 mullion for the part
year 1n 2014} reflecting the corporate investment in securing

this business  After adjusting for these costs i both years, there
was a trading profit of £5 2 million in the current year compared
with a trading loss of £3 3 million 1n 2014

Back Office Development

As noted on page 25, the costs incurred during the year on the
back office development project (known as Bluedoor) were £18 1
mtllion (2014 £11 9 mulhon)

Other

Other operations made a negative contribution of £41 9 milhion
(2014 loss of £25 5 milhon) The largest contributors to the
result are share option activity and strategic investment activity
(other than the back office development :dentified separately
above) The higher share option cost of £15 7 milhion in the
current year (2014 £11 4 mlhon) reflects the launch of a new
Partner share scheme 1n the second half of 2015 The expected
full year share option cost for 2016 15 £197 million

NI costs assocrated with the exercise of share options were also
higher in the year at £3 4 milhon (2014 £27 mullion)
[nvestment 1n strategic developments, including the Academy,
Asia proposition development and Rowan Dartington, also
mereased from £6 4 million to £8 4 milhon

Total

The total underlying profit before shareholder tax for the year
was £163 7 rullion compared with £173 6 millien1n 2014 The
lower result in 2015 reflects the increase 1n share option costs,
the higher FSCS levy and the back office development costs in
the year Adjusting for these 1tems in both years provides a hke
for ike comparison of £217 6 mullion for 2015, up 7 3% from
£202 8 mullion for the prior year

DAC/DIR/PVIF

Asnoted 1n the following table, the net movement in these
intangibles resulted 1n a negative contribution to profit before tax
of £12 4 mullion for the year compared with a positive
contribution to profit of £9 3 million 1n 2014

27

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Before Before
Shareholder Sharcholder
Tax After Tax Tax Alfter Tax
£Mullion £Million £ Mallion £'Million
Amortisation
credit 12.4 158 28 3 221
Arsing on new
business (24.8) (20.6) (19 0) (s 1
Movement tn
year (12.4) (4.8) 93 70

The reduction, year on year, 1n the amortisetion credit before
shareholder tax 15 the consequence of the changes m adviser
charging rules in 2013, which altered the nature of certain cash
flows 1n the Group, moving them from long term manufacturing
margins to short term advice margins The positive contribution
from the amortisation of accumulated DAC, DIR and PVIF
balances from prior years has, as anticipated and reported
previcusly, reduced during 2015 In 2016 we expectitto reduce
by a further £20 million and become a charge as the amortisation
of outstanding deferred expenses exceeds the recogmtion of
deferred income Further reductions in future years should be
expected as the historic balances are unwound

The smaller reduction 1n the amortisation credit after tax
includes a £5 9 million credit which 1s the impact of the changes
1n future corporatien tax rates whach 1s explaned 1n more detail
1 the section on shareholder tax on page 28 The impactisa
credit because the deferred tax hability assoctated with the DAC
and PVIF balances exceeds the deferred tax hability associated
with the DIR balances

By contrast with the amortisation credit, the negative
contribution arising on new business has increased during 2016
reflecung the hugher new business levels This will continue to
move 1n line with new business volumes

It 15 important to note the intangible and deferred nature of these
items, meaning that they don’t reflect the operating performance
of the business This 1s why manapgement regards the Underlying
profit measure as the most appropriate measure, based upon
IFRS, for assessing operating performance

Profit before Shareholder Tax

The profit before shareholder tax for the year was £151 3 mllon
compared with £182 3 million 1n 2014 As the analysis 1n the
paragraphs above demonstrates, the lower resultin the current
year reflects the sigmficant increase 1n the FSCS levy, the
increased 1nvestment in back-office development and other
corporate mtiatives, but also a negative £21 7 milhon
contribution from the movement in DAC/DIR /PVIF intangibles
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Shareholder Tax

The tax reported under IFRS each year 1s impacted by a variety
of effects, both current and future, particularly one-off events
such as the change 1n corporation tax rate Therefore, to assist
shareholders, the table below provides a high level analysis of
shareholder tax and the imphed tax rate A more detailed
analysis 1s included 1n Note 8 to the financial statements

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£'Million £'Milhon
Expected sharcholder tax (29.2) (357
Recogmtion of capital losses 74.8 395
Other tax adjustments 06 12
Corpaoration tax rate change 45 -
Actual shareholder tax 50.7 50
Expected shareholder tax rate 19 3% 19 5%
Actual shareholder tax rate (33.5%) (2 7%)

The expected shareholder tax prinapally reflects the
current UK corporation tax and overseas rates applicable and
will vary from year to year depending upon the emergence of
profit between the different tax regimes which apply to the
5t James's Place Group compames

Tn the second half of 2015, management completed the review of
all historic Group companies, a project that commenced a number
of years ago Duning this process management identified further
capita] losses which it 15 expected will be utilised over the next ten
years, albeit the actual rate of utihsation will depend on business
growth and external factors, partrcularly investment market
conditions The rate of utilisation has been tested for sensitivity to
expenence and 1t 15 resihent to a range of reasonably foreseeable
scenartos Therefore a further deferred tax asset of £74 8 million
has been established within the IFRS result

A further two reductions in the corporation tax rate (from 20%
to 19%1n Apnil 2017 followed by a further cut to 18% m April

2020) were announced in the 2015 Summer budget and included

1n the Finance (No2) Act 2015 The impact of these changes on
the deferred tax assets and habilities has been included as a
reduction 1n tax of £4 5 milthon

The overall impact of the above effects 1s to increase the tax

credit reported n the profit before shareholder tax result to a
credit of £50 7 million (2014 credit of £5 0 milhon)

5T JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

IFRS Profit
The total IFRS resuit 1s presented in the table below, grossed up
for the incluston of tax incurred on behalf of policyholders

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£'¥ullon £ Milhon

IFRS profit before tax 174.1 294 4
Policyholder tax (22.8) (111 5)
Profit before shareholder tax 151.3 182 9
Shareholder tax 50.7 50
IFRS profit after tax 2020 187 2

In 2015, the IFRS profit before tax for the year was £174 1
mithen (2014 £294 4 mlhon) with the principal contribution to
the change being the decrease in the poheyholder tax charges
from £111 5 mlhon 1 2014 to £22 8 million 1n the current year

The policyholder tax charge depends on the level of
underlying policyholder taxable benefit determined by growth in
value of the SJP funds The higher charge in 2014 reflects higher
growthin polhicyholders’ funds in that year compared to the
current year

The IFRS profit after tax for the year was £202 0 mlhion
compared to £187 9 mullion for 2014, which reflects the impact
from the recogmuion of capital losses as already covered

Analysis of IFRS Assets and Net Assets per Share
The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the IFRS
POSltlon at the reportmg dates

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£Milhon £ Millien

Purchased value of in-force* 274 29 4
Deferred acquisition costs* 627.2 662 2
Deferred income* (368.3) (398
Other IFRS net assets 199 8 145 2
Solvency net assets 609.0 5720
Total IFRS net assets 1,095 1 1,010 1

+  pet of deferred 1ax

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Pence Penee

Net asset value per share 208 7 194 5
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SECTION 4: CASH RESULT
The Cash and Underlying cash results should not be confused with the IFRS cash flow statement whach 1s prepared in accordance

with TAS 7 and disclosed on page 118

The Cash result and Underlying cash resulr are the principal measures the Board considers when determining the dvdend payment to
shareholders The Board starts by considering the Underlying cash result, which most clearly reflects the impact of the primary drivers of
the business (being FUM and expenses as descnibed in Sections 1 and 2) This 15 derived from the Underlying profit measure, principally
by adjusting for differences between deferred and current tax, share option costs and some solvency reserve impacts

Other cash flows are also taken mto account in the Cash result, not least tax settlement timing variances and changes in solvency
reserving requirements Allowance 15 also made for the cost of the back office development In considening the dividend the Directors
will take mto account the impact of the Cash result on the overall capital position of the Group

The Cash result and Underlying cash result, which are presented after tax, are a comhination of the cash emerging from the business
in force at the start of the year less the investment made to acquire new business during the year The tables and commentary below
provide an indicative analysis of the cash result into these two elements

Year Ended 31 December 2015 Note In-Force New Busmess Total
£ Mallion £Mullion £Million
Net annual management fee 1 4067 335 440 2
Unwind of early withdrawal charge 2 (143 1) (18 5) (161.6)
Net income from funds under management 263 6 150 278.6
Margin ansing from new business 3 - 417 41.7
Establishment expenses 4 (11.1) (100 2) (111.3)
Development expenses 5 - (21 2) (212)
Regulatory fees 3 (0.6) (52) (5.8)
FSCS levy 7 (16) (14 3) (15.9)
Shareholder interest 8 8.6 - 86
Tax reltef from capital losses 9 12.1 - 121
Miscellaneous 10 (4.7) - {4.7)
Underlying cash result 266 3 (84 2) 182.1
Back office infrastructure development 11 (14 4)
Varance 12 3.8
Cash result 171.5
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

SECTION 4: CASH RESULT continued

Ycar Ended 31 December 2014 Note tn-Force  New Busincss Total

£'Mallion & Million £'Milbon
Net annual management fee 1 344 1 293 373 4
Unwind of early withdrawal charge 2 (121 0y (16 1) (137 1)
Net income from funds under management 2231 132 236 3
Margin ansing from new business 3 - 36 6 366
Establishment expenses 4 (59 (88 5) 98 4)
Development expenses 5 - {15 6) (15 6}
Regulatory fees 6 05 (4 2) 47
FSCS levy 7 (0 5) (4 2) * 7
Shareholder interest 8 77 - 77
Tax rehef from capital losses 9 167 - 16 7
Miscellaneous 10 On - € 1)
Underlying cash result 236 5 (627 173 8
Back office infrastructure development 11 ©3
Variance 12 06
Cash result 165 1

Notes

Al
1

| numbers are expressed after tax at the prevaling tax rate for each year
The net annual management fee This iy the manufacturing margia the Group retains from funds under management after payment of the associated costs (¢ g investment advisory fees and Fartner
remuneration} Broadly speaking the Group retalns an average rate of 0 77% (post tax) of funds under management (2014 0 77% post ax)
The level of net annual management fee was some 18% higher than last year, reflecting the higher average funds under management 1n 2015
Further analysls of the FUM generating the oet annual management fee, and the outlook, 15 presented in Secuon 1 on page 22

2 Unwind of carly withdrawal charge Thisrelates to the reserving methodology applied to the early withdrawal charge within the structure of single premum Wi and pension business At the cutset of
the product we establish a lability net of the outstanding withdrawal charge which would apply 1f the policy were to be encashed  As the withdrawal charpe reduces by 1% per annum to zero over the
first sux years (the pestation penod), the hablity 10 the policyholder increases This cost Is known as the 'unwind of tarly withdrawal charge® In practice it offsets the annual management fee above
Like the net annuml mansgerncat fee, the unwind of the withdrawal charge has increased due to growth in funds under management However, the movement 1s also impacted by the fact that the
funds under management added six years apo have complated the withdrawal charge period
Further commentary on the unwind of the withdraw al charge, together with information on the FUM still In the gestation period, 1s presented in Section | on page 23

3 Marginarising rom new business This 1$ the cash impact of new business in the year reflecting growth in new business and production related expenses

4 Establishment expenses Thesc arc the expenses of running the Group's infrastructure Further analysis is prescnted in Section 2 on page 24

5 Devclopment expenses Thesc represent the expenditure on Group developments Further analysis 1s presented in Scction 2 on page 25

6  Regulatory fees Thaa reflects the focs payable to the Regulatory bodics Further analyns ts presented 1n Section 2 on page 25

7 F5CSlevy This reflects the full year levy Further analysis is presented in Section 2 on page 25

Sharchalder Interest This Is the assumed income acerulng on the mvestments and cash held for regulatory purposes together with the interest received on the surplus capltal held by the Group

9 Tax releclof caputal loxses In recent years, 2 deferred tax assct has been established for historte caputal losses which are now regarded as being capable of utihisation over the medmm term During
the year £12 1 miilion tax value of these losses has been utilised (2014 £16 7 milllon) benefiting the cash result by the same amount In both yeara the acteal tax losses utihised exceeded the
expected £8 10 million benefitin a year
Since the tax losses have been recognised iImmediately through a deferred tax asset ln the IFRS result, utilisation of tax losses in the cash resultis offict in the IFRS results because of the reduction
in the deferred tax asset

10 Miscellaneous This represcnts the cash flow of the business not covered in any of the other catepories, including tax relief ansing from deferred recognition of insurance business acqmsition
expenses (due to structural uming differences in the life company tax computation)

11  Back officc infrastructure These costs relate to a major project which has combined our back offices under one management team and put in place one unified, chient centric administration
system, enabling them to deliver improved service and improved efficiency for the business Further analysis I3 preseated in Sectton 2 on page 15

12 Varawce This reflects vartances in the cash result in a year due to the :mpact of actual exp {includi and performance) on tnsurance reserves, a8
well as varances in the settlement of tax related liabilitica between the policyholders (unit hinked funds), t.hc sharcholder and HMRC In both years che vamances arise mainly from policyholder
tax charge effects

Cash Balance Sheet

In addition to presenting an IFRS balance sheet (on page 117) and an EEV balance sheet (on page 188), we beheve 1t 1s beneficial to
provide a balance sheet using the approach underlying our cash result This s because the cash result 1s adjusted for non-cash items
such as DAC, DIR and deferred tax as well as removing the policyholder interest in the umit-inked funds

The following table analyses the differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the Cash result balance sheet These adjustments

n

clude netting out assets and habilities of the policyhelder interest in umit-linked funds (Adjustment 1), and removal of a number of

sigmificant ‘non-cash’ items (Adjustment 2} —1n particular DAC, DIR and deferred tax
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IFRS Cash Result “E
Balance  Adjustment  Adjustment Balance =
31 December 2015 Sheet 1 2 Sheet 2014 K
£Malhon £Mallion £Mulhon £Million £'Million b=
Assets -
Goodwill 101 - — 101 101
Deferred acquisition costs 7450 - (745 0) - - _U
Acquired value of in force business 336 - (336 - - ‘;
Developments 43 - - 43 77 % |
Property & equipment 80 - — 80 79 - 1
Deferred tax assets 2259 - (225 9) - - ;,'S :
Investment property 1,344 9 {1,344 9) - - - E |
Equities 37,9608 (37,960 8) - - - g
Fixed income securities 8,934 0 (8,850 9) - 831 833 g
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 3,269 6 (2,738 6) - 5310 5173 g
Derwvative financial instruments 364 1 (364 1) - - - |
Reinsurance assets 850 - - 850 855 [
Insurance and investment contract receivables 76 2 - - 76 2 635
Other receivables 8910 (472 6) (5 8) 4126 292 6 <
Cash & cash equivalents 5,325 1 (5,091 6) - 2335 274 3 b
Total assets 59,277.6  (56,823.5) (1,0103) 1,443 8 1,342 2 g
3
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabihities 463 5 (376 5) (2 6) 84 4 892
Other provisions i54 - — 15 4 i1 4 —
Investment contracts 43,1598 (43,115 5) - 443 18 7 ey
Borrowings 1818 - ~ 1818 84 3 B
Derivative financial instruments 2211 (221 1) - — - g
Deferred tax habihities 434 6 93 7) (140 5) 200 4 263 6 E
Insurance and nvestment contract payables 459 - - 459 50 4 %
Deferred income 4135 — (413 5) - - ‘S
Income tax habilities 29 6 - - 296 328 @
Other payables 660 8 (460 3) (11 199 4 188 6 —
NAV attributable to unit holders 12,556 4 (12,556 4) - - -
Preference shares 01 - - 01 01 g
Total habihities 58,1825 (56,823 5) (557.7) 801.3 7391 E
Net assets 1,095.1 - (4526) 6425 603 1 g
5
Adjustments 2
1 Nets out the policyholder interest in unit-inked assets and Labihties g
2 Removal of IFRS non-cash adjustments |

The movement in the Cash result net assets 1s equal to the Cash result adjusted for dividends paid in the year and other changes in
equity excluding the cost of share aptions (see page 116 — Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity)

Going forward, the Solvency I regulauens no longer apply and therefore we will change the Cash result and the Cash result balance
sheet that we present to reflect the equivalent movement in net assets under the new Selvency Il regulations — see also page 35
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

SECTION 5: EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE (EEV)
Lafe business and wealth management business differ from most
other businesses, 1n that the shareholder profit from the sale of a
product emerges over 2 long period n the future We therefore
complement the IFRS result by providing additional disclosure
on a realistic basis, in line with the European Embedded Value
principles Ths result brings into account the net present value
of the expected future cash flows and we beleve this measure 15
useful to investors when assessing the total economic value of the
Group’s operating performance

The table below and accompanying notes summarise the profit
before tax of the combined business The detailed result 1s shown
on pages 186 to 196

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£'Mallion £'Milhon

Life business 467.0 467 0

Unit Trust business 274 4 1777

Funds management business 741 4 644 7

Distribution business (21 2) (10 3
Back ofhce infrastructure

development (18.1) (11 9
Other (419) (25 5)
EEV operating profit 660.2 596 4

Investment return variance (24.4) 80 2

Economic assumption changes 09 (70
EEV profit before tax 6367 669 &

Tax (ti6 5) (132 6)
Corporation tax change 47.8 —

EEV profit after tax 5680 5370

Year Ended Year Ended
31D b 3] Decemb
2015 2014
Pence Pence
EEV operating profit basic
earnings per share 1039 931
EEV operating profit diluted
earnings per share 1028 915
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EEV Operating Profit

Funds Management Business

The funds management business operating profit has increased to
£741 4 rmllion (2014 £644 7 milhon) and a full analys:s of the
result 1s shown below

Ycar Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£Mulion £ Million

New business contnbution 440.7 373 1

Profit irom existing business

— unwind of the discount rate 172 4 182 0

— experience variance 781 785

— operating assumption change 44 1 30

Investment income 6.1 81
Funds management business

EEV operating profit 741.4 644 7

The new business contribution for the year at £440 7
mlhion (2014 £373 1 milhion) was some 18% higher than the
prior year, reflecting new business growth

The unwind of the discount rate for the year was £172 4
milhen (2014 £182 0 mulhion) The unwind is calculated by
multiplying the opening VIF by the discount rate but Edjustmg to
reflect emergence of profits into cash during the year The lower
result 1n the current year principally reflects the lower opening
discount rate, as the opening VIF balance was higher

The discount rate 1s based on the risk free rate, which 1s set by
reference to the yield on a UK 10 year glt at the start of the year
As a result, the unwind for the current year 1s based on a
discount rate of 5 0% compared with 6 2% for the prior year
Had the current year discount rate been consistent with 2014
then the unwind and operating profit would have been £41 4
milion higher

There was a very strong positive experience vanance during the
year of £78 1 million, which follows a similarly strong posttive
variance of £78 5 milhon in the prior year As covered on page
28, further capital losses were Wentified withm historic Group
comparnes, and the net present value of the future benefit 15
recogmsed in the EEV as a positive £63 1 million experience
variance

The balance of the experience variance reflects continuing
strong retention and other miscellaneous items
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There was a large positive operating assumption change in the year of £44 1 million (2014 £3 0 mulhion) The major
contributors to this result are changes to the pension retention assumption and the maintenance expense assumption, as follows

1 Pension retentron assumption — For a number of years, retentton of penston funds under management has been better than the
EEV operating assumption Following the 2015 annual actuarial investigation, the assumption has been amended to better reflect
experience The maximum term has also been extended, reflecting the potential for continuation of the business beyond the chent

age of 75
2 Mamtenance expense assumption — During 2015 the contract with our third party back office administrator was updated to

reflect admimistration charges for business administered on the new Bluedoor admimistration platform  This resulted 1n a change
mn the mamtenance expense operating assumption However, 1t will take some time for the remaining business to be migrated to
the new system, and so the valuation also reflects the expected costs of both the future systems development and nugration of the
remaimng existing business

The operating assumption change therefore reflects the full cost of the change in tariff on exasting business, but we also expect
savings will arise on new business costs These are not reflected in the embedded value and will emerge within the future new
business contribution

The mmvestment income for the year was lower at £6 1 million (2014 £8 1 muliion), reflecting the lower risk free interest rate

Dustribution Business, Back Office Development and Other
These items have already been commented on 1n the IFRS section on page 27

Investment Return Variance
The investment return variance reflects the capitalised impact on the future annual management fees resulting from the difference
between the actual and assumed investment returns Given the size of our funds under management, a small difference can resultina

large POSIUVC or neganve variance

The fall in global stock markets during the second half of 2015 has impacted the investment return on our funds However, in
comparnison to the falls experienced 1n world stock markets (for example the FTSE 100 fell 4 9%6), the investment returns on our funds
were only shghtly lower than allowed for in the calculation of the embedded value Consequently there was a small negative investment
return variance of £24 4 milhon for the year (2014 positive £80 2 mllion reflecting the strong market growth in that year)

Economic Assumption Changes
There was a small positive variance of £0 9 million arising from changes in the economic basis adopted at the year-end (2014 £70

mulhion negative)

EEV Profit before Tax
The total profit before tax for the year was £636 7 mlhon, compared with £669 6 million, although the comparison 15 obscured by
the different investment market experience and consequential investment return variance 1n the two years

Tax
The tax charge at £116 5 million (2014 £132 6 mullion) reflects the underlying result

A further two reductions 1n the corperation tax rate (from 20% to 19% 1n Apnl 2017 followed by a further cut to 18% 1n April
2020) were announced 1n the 2015 Summer budget and included in the Finance (No2) Act 2015 The capitalised effect of these
changes has been included as a reductton i tax of £47 8 rillion

EEV Profit after Tax

The EEV profit after tax was £568 ¢ million (2014 £537 0 mllion) reflecting the movement 1n EEV profit before tax, but also the
positive impact of the tax rate change
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

New Business Margin

The largest single element of the EEV operating profit (analysed in the previous section) 1s the new business contribution The level of
new business contribution generally moves in line with new business levels To demonstrate this link, and aid understanding of the
results, we provide addiional analysis of the new business margin (*Margin’) Thos 15 calculated as the new business contribution
divided by the new money invested, and 1s expressed as a percentage

The table below presents the margin before tax from our manufactured business based on gross fund flows

Year Ended Year Ended
M December 31 December
2015 2014
Life business
Investment business
New business contnibution (£'Mallion) 124.9 146 2
New money mvested (£ Million) 2,447.0 2,702 0
Margn (%) 5.1 54
Pension business
New business contribution (£’Million) 140.6 875
New money nvested (£'Mallion) 3,660.9 2,428 §
Margin (%) 3.8 36
Un1t Trust business
New business contribution (£’ Million) 175.2 139 4
New money invested (£’ Million) 3,1299 2,750 7
Margin (%) 56 51
Total business
New business contribution (£’ Million) 440.7 3731
New money invested (£'Milhon) 9,237 8 7,881 2
Margin (%} 48 47
Post tax margin (%) 39 38

Overall the margin has increased to 4 8% (2014 4 7%) The changes 1n margin in the different business hnes result from different
drivers The reduction in Investment business margin reflects particular features of the business written i the year The increase in
margin on Pension business reflects the change in retention assumptions The increase in margin on Unit Trust business reflects
revised allocation of expenses as a result of mugration of the business to the new admimstration system

The benefit of lower expenses associated with the new adrministration contract will reflectin the 2016 results, as an increase in the

new business margin for all business 1n future years

Analysis of the EEV Result and Net Assets per Share

The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the embedded value position at the reporting dates

Year Ended Year Ended
3! December 31 December
2015 2014
£Mallion £ Mallion

Value of in-force
— Lafe 2,471 6 2,234 0
— Unmnit Trust 787 6 6112
Solvency I net assets 609 0 572 0
Total embedded value 3,868 2 34172
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Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Pence Pence

Net asset value per share 737.3 6579

SECTION 6: SOLVENCY, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY

The new Solvency Il regulation for European Insurance companies and groups became effective from 1 January 2016 Asa
consequence, this year we are reporting for the last time on the familiar Solvency 1 basis, and we are mtroducmg new reporfing on
the Solvency I basis

Solvency I

We have already presented the Cash result net assets of £642 5 mulhon (2014 £603 1 million)n the table on page 31 The Solvency ]
net assets at £6092 0 rmlhon (2014 £572 0 mullion) 1s some £33 5 mullion lower, prineipally due to an amount of additional prudential
reserves (over that required by the UK regulator) arising from the Irish solvency regulations

The table below provides an analysis of the Solvency I position between regulated and non-regulated entiies, together with an
assessment against both the required mimimum regulatory capital and the internal capital requirement set by the Board (referred to

as the Management solvency buffer) .

Other
Life Regulated Other Total
£'Million £Mallion £'Malhon £'Million
Solvency I net assets 3385 98 1 172 4 609 0
Intra-group proposed dividends i (140 O) - 140 0 -
Proposed final 2015 divadend (90 5) (90 5)
Solvency I net assets after dividends 198 5 98.1 2219 5185
Required minimum regulatory capstal 521 26 2
Solvency ratio 381% 374%
Management solvency buffer 164 3 523
Management solvency ratio 121% 188%

Comparison with previous valuations will show that the Group solvercy position remains resilient, reflecting the Group's low
appetite for market, credit and hquidity risk in relation to solvency

The Insurance Groups Directive (IGD) assessment 15 calculated by considering the level of net assets 1n the Group (outside of the
insurance companies) that could be available to support the solvency of the msurance company (and other regulated companies)

It therefore represents additional solvency cover over the £198 5 mllion Life company solvency assets dentified 1n the table above
At 31 December 2015 the IGD resources were estimated at £250 million (2014 £266 mullion)

Solvency 11

The underlying driver of the new Solvency 11 regulation 1s to focus attention on risk management We therefore mntroduce our
Solvency II results by reprising some key themes underpinning risk management 1n our business

St James's Place 1s a simple Wealth Management Group (in contrast with the many complex msurance groups that are also mmpacted
by Sclvency II), offering mainly mvestment products Our strategy 1s to attract and admimster retail funds under management, from
which we recewve an annual management fee (we are a fee-based business) Our clients can access their investments on demand but,
because we match the surrender value, movements in equity markets, interest rates, mortality, morbidity, longevity and currency
rates have little impact on our abihty to meet liabiliies (although they can affect emergence of profit) We also have a prudent capital
management approach and mnvest surplus assets 1n cash, AAA rated money-market funds and UK government securities The overall
effect has been a resihent solvency position and ability to meet habihities, even through adverse market conditions
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Solvency IF continued

The new regulation introduces extensive new valuation and reporting requirements However, our approach to managing the
busimness 15 unchanged we will continue to match the surrender value on unit-hnked business, thereby mitigating both matket and
persistency risk, and ensuring that we will always be able to meet our liallhity to chents

Nevertheless, the new regulation does introduce changes to the way we report on solvency Firstly, the net assets will be presented
on a Solvency 11 basis and we have provided a reconciliation to the Solvency I basis in Note 1 below Secondly, we are required to
recognise a new asset In respect of the expected Value of In-Force cashflows (VIF), together with a new Risk Margin (RM) (an
amount reflecting the cost to secure the transfer of the business to a third party, if required) Together the Solvency Il net assets,

VIF and RM will comprise the ‘Own Funds’ (equal to the difference between the Gross Assets and the Techmcal Provisions) Finally,
we calculate a Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) which reflects the caprtal required to protect against a range of 1 1 200 stresses

Given our simple business we have been able to adopt the Standard Formula approach 1n calculating the SCR], and we have not needed
(or chosen) to adopt any of the Transitional Provisions in the calculation of the techmical provisions or SCR

Solvency II Opening Balance Sheet
An analysis of the opemng Solvency I position for our Group, spht by regulated and non-regulated entities at the end of 2015,
15 presented 1n the table below

QOther

Note Life Regulated Other Total

£ Marllion £Mullion £vallion £mallion

Solvency Ii net assets 1 5535 26 7 1627 812 9
Intra-group proposed dividends (140 0) 1400 —
Proposed final 2015 dividend (90 5) (90 5)
Solvency II net assets (post dividend) 413.5 96 7 212.2 722 4
Value of in-force (VIF) 2 2,306 6 — - 2,306 6
Risk margin 3 (624 0y — — (624 0)
Own funds 2,096 1 96 7 2122 2,405.0
Solvency capital requirement 4 (1,569 6) (26 2) - (1,595 8)
Solvency II free assets 5265 705 212.2 809 2

Notes

1 Sharebolder net assets are the tangible assets the Group holds 1n excess of those assets held to meet the client habilities To axd
comparison with the Solvency I shar¢holder assets (shown 1n this Section on page 35) and the Cash result net assets (shown n
Section 4 on page 31) a reconcilation 15 provided in the table below

[

Other

Life Regulated Other Total

£Millian £Mullion £'hllon £'Mallion

Solvency I net assets (Sectron 6 page 35) 338 5 98 1 172 4 6090
Release of Solvency 1 prudence reserves and other adjustments 370 13 (4 8) 335
Cash result net assets (Section 4 page 31) 3755 99 4 167 6 642.5
IFRS deferred tax asset 170 3 53 175 6
Goodwill and intangibles (14 4) (14 4)
Release of Solvency I reserves 95 99
Other (2 2) (27 42 07
Solvency II net assets 5535 9% 7 162 7 812 9

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 Registered No 03183415




37

2 The value of in-force represents the expected future emergence of profit, calculated as prescribed by the Solvency II regulations
Speaific requirements in the Solvency Il regulation give nse to differences with the VIF presented 1n the EEV result on pages 32
to 35 and therefore, to aid understanding, the table below provides a reconciiation between the two numbers Note, Solvency I
only apphes to the life business and so the unit trust business VIF 15 not reflected in the Solvency 1t own funds assessment

Other

Life Regulated Other ‘Total

£Million £'Milhon £'Mallion £Mallion

EEV VIF (Section § page 34) 24716 7876 - 3,259 2
Remove UT/ISA VIF (787 6) (787 6)
Change 1n contract boundaries (111 8) (111 8)
Discounted deferred tax asset (123 8) (123 8)

Add back EEV risk margmm 147 8 147 8
Economic hasis differences (31 1) (311
Adjustment for Solvency I reserves and other items (46 1) (46 1)
Solvency Il YIF 2,306.6 - - 2,306 6

The principal differences between the two methods of calculating VIF are

- The Solvency Il approach has not been extended to our Unit Trust and ISA business meaning the significant additional VIF on
this business 15 not reflected

- The Solvency Il methodology requires a very prudent assumption about the ‘contract boundary” for regular premum business,
resulting 1n the potential value from all future investment premiums being discounted

- Under EEV a discounted deferred tax asset 1s assessed 1n the VIF Under the Solvency 11 approach the undiscounted deferred
tax asset {calculated 1n hne with the IFRS 12) 15 assessed 1n the net assets

- Under our EEV approach we make allowance for non-hedgeable nisk through including an exphait margin in the risk discount
rate of 0 73% (see page 190) The equivalent requirement 1n Solvency I11s achueved through ensuning assumptions are ‘best
estumate of outcomes’ The explicit addition therefore falls away 1n Solvency I1

The remainung difference in the VIF balance 15 made up of a number of smaller ponts including the removal of Solvency I reserves
and the use of a shghtly different economic basis

3 The assessment of the ‘Risk Margin’ 1s a specific new adjustment for Solvency 11
4 The solvency capital requirement has been calculated using the prescribed rules for the standard formula approach We have not

used an internal model

Solvency Ratios and Sensitivities

In comparing the Solvency [ and Solvency [ positions it will be noted that the level of own funds is higher under Solvency II, however
the Solvency Capital Requirement 15 also mgher As the following table demonstrates, the increase in the SCR leads to a much lower
value for the solvency ratio, despite the lugher level of free assets This 1s a general feature of Sclvency 1T and the change to lower
solvency ratios will be common acrass the industry .
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Solvency Ratios and Sensitivities contmued

Solvencyl  Salvency Il

£'Million £Million

Net assets before final dividend 609 0 8129
Final proposed dividend (50 5) (90 5}
Net assets after final dividend 5185 722.4
Value of in-force (VIF) — 2,306 6
Risk margin - (624 0y
Own funds (A) 5183 2,405.0
Solvency capital requirement (B) (78 3) (1,595 8)
Free assets 440.2 809.2
Solvency ratio (A/B) 662% 151%

The solvency ratios before taking account of the final dividend are 778% under Solvency I 'and 156% under Sclvency II

The nature of our business 1s that much of the Own Funds value reflects future profits, but the SCR simularly reflects loss of future
profits Asaresult, the solvency ratio can move counter-intuitively with changes in experience, as the following sensitivities demonstrate

Solvency 11 Solvency

Free Assets Ratio

£'Million %

Onginal valuation 805 2 151%
10% reduction 1n FUM 7536 153%
10% 1ncrease in lapse assumption 8320 156%
10% 1increase 1n renewal expense assumption TI7 2 149%

Introducing the Management Solvency Buffer (MSB)

As aresult of the counter-intuitive nature of the sensitivities above, we believe a solvency ratio 15 not an appropriate metric on which
to assess the strength of our business and 1nstead we intend to use as our metric, the level of assets n excess of chient unit-linked
habilities Thus will ensure we are able to meet chent habihties at all times, and we also intend to hold a prudent MSB as protection
against other risks We have assessed the MSB for our Life business as £150 milhon, having taling into account a wide range of factors
and mnformation, not least the results from stress and scenario testing carried out as part of our annual ORSA (Own Risk and
Solvency Assessment) We will also contmue to hold capital within the Group 1n respect of the other regulated (but non-nsurance}
comparues, typically based on 200% of the sectoral requirement

R Other
Life Regulated Other Total
£nulhion £'Million £Million £Mallion
Solvency 1l net assets 553§ %6 7 162 7 812 9
Intra-group proposed dividends (140 0) - 140 0 -
Proposed final 2015 dividend (90 5) (50 5)
rSolvency II net assets (post dividend) 413.5 96 7 2122 722.4—|

Management Solvency Bufter 1500 523
Management solvency ratio 276% 185%

It1s worth noting that the Solvency Il net assets mcludes a £170 mithon IFRS deferred tax asset which 1s not immediately fungible
However, we do expect 1t will be utihsed over the next ten years, albeit the actual rate of utilisation will depend on business growth
and external factors, particularly investment market conditions More generally, our mntention s that assets backing the MSB should

be hiquid and of hagh credit quality

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 Registered No 03183415




Liqudaty

As noted above, our investment pohicy 1s always to hold assets to match umit-linked habrhities, and to hold any excess 1n assets that are
liqud and high credit quality An analysis of the hquid asset holdings1s provided below

Hclding Name £Million £'Mallron
UK government gilts

2% UK Treasury Index Linked 22/01/2016 125

5 8% UK Treasury 26/07/2016 11 4

4% UK Treasury 07/09/2016 130

2 5% UK Treasury Index Linked 17/07/2024 179

2% UK Treasury Index Linked 26/01/2035 24 4 792
Other government bonds

1 125% Singapore Government Bonds 01/04/2016 39
AAA rated money market funds

BlackRock 123 2

Goldman Sachs 371

HSBC 54 9

Insight 84 0

JP Morgan 870

Legal & General 803

Royal Bank of Scotland 80

Scottish Widows 565 5310
Bank balances

Bank of Scotland 738

Barclays 68 3

HSEBC 21 4

Lleyds TSB 282

NatWest 111

RBS 129

Santander 74

Qthers 10 4 2335
Total 847.6

In the normal course of business, the Company 1s expected to generate regular, positive cashflow from annual management 1ncome
exceeding expenses As noted previously, future growth in cashflow 1s driven by new business, butin the short term growth will

reflect the transition as new business from six years ago becomes cash generative

A further source of hqudity 15 share option proceeds At 31 December 2015, there were 2 3 milhon share options outstanding under
the various share option schemes which, 1f exercised, would provide up to £11 0 million (2014 £15 4 million) of future capital and

Iiqudity for the Company

Finally, as noted at the half-year, the Group has refinanced and extended our borrewing arrangements, providing funding for the

acquisition of Rowan Dartington and committed facilities for the future should they be required See Note 23 on page 147

The key calls on hquidity will be payment of the Group dividend and investment to support the business As noted previously, our
pohicy 1s to ncrease the dividend 1n Lhine with the underlying performance of the business We believe this will also enable us to

continue to 1nvest in the business to support our gI’OWf_h asplratlons
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RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview and Culture

The St James’s Place Group 15 exposed to a wide varety of risks
as a result of its business activities and the industry 1n which 1t
operates, as well as a number of external factors and threats
Under the leadershup, direction and oversight of our Board,
these risks are carefully managed, contributing to our
competiive advantage and helping us to achieve our business
and chient cbjectives as set out on pages 16 and 17

We do not seek to elimmate risk entirely, rather we seek to
understand cur nisks fully, and to apply appropriate risk
management strateges such that all material risks are identified,
and appropriately managed or mitigated Risk managementisa
core aspect of decision-malkang and 1s embedded 1n our culture
Qur framework 15 speafically designed to manage the risks that
are inportant to our shareholders, Partners, chents, regulators
and employees, and to provide reasonable assurance aganst
material financial misstatement or loss

Risk management and solvency projections form a key part of the
bustness planming process, including 1n relation to decisions on
strategic developments, pricing and dividend payments

Risk Appetite
The Board chooses carefully the risks 1t accepts and those 1t seeks
to limit or avord These choices are set out 1n our Risk Appetite

Statement, which 1s owned by the Board and reviewed at least
annually In particular it articulates

* Risks that are actively sought in pursuit of return

* Risks that are consciously avoided

* Risks that are reduced through transfer to other parties
* Rusks that are minimised through controls

Rusk appetite can and wall change over time, somenmes

rapidly as economic and business environment conditions
change, and therefore the statement 1s an evolving document

A comprehensive suite of indicators enable the Risk Committee,
on behalf of the Board, to monitor that the Group remams
within 1ts agreed appetite

Risk Management Framework

The Board, through its Risk Commuttee, takes an active role in
overseeing the Risk Management Framework, for which it 1s
responsible Thas framework 1s the combined processes by
which the Group 1dentifies, assesses, measures, manages and
momitors the risks that may impact on the successful delivery
of business objectives

The Group’s CRSA 1sa central part of this framework, the man
elements of which are shown m the following diagram

STRATEGY — KEY OUTCOMES

Risk Appctite

Risk

Risk

Capital

Standard
Formula

Governance

Board

BRC

Own

ExBo

Group Risk

ssmient

Monitor

ExCo
Other ExCos

Risk Culturc
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The Board Risk Committee (BRC) comprises Independent Non-executive Board members, and 15 responsible for ensuring that a
culture of effective risk identification and management 1s fostered across the Group A report of its activity during the year can be

found on pages 77 to 79

The BRC 15 supported by the Executive Board (ExBo), but also by the Group Risk Execunive and by Risk Management teams at
Group and local levels, which take the lead in ensuring an appropriate framework 15 1n place and that there 15 on-going development
and co-ordination of risk management within the Group The other executive sub-committees of ExBo (the Executive Commuittees)
also provide support for the management of risks in their areas of responsibility

The Risk Management Framewaork 15 grounded m the outcomes which are key to our organisation These are

CLIENTS

PARTNERS

FUNDS

That we deliver posrtive
outcomesfor our increasmg
population of clients

That we continue to grow
and develop the Partnership,
both numbers and skills

That we treat all of our
stakeholders well

REGULATORS

FINANCIALS & SHAREHOLDERS

That we are comphant, have an open
and honest relationship with our
regulators and protect our reputation

That we delrver sustainable
growth 1n reported profits on
all measures

Whlst clearly a ssmplification of the business model, this focuses
attention on those things that are of greatest importance,

and hence indicates where risk management activity should be
focused It also allows the identification of the individuals within
the Group responsible for managing these risks

Within these outcomes, indicators are used to momtor
performance against risk appetite Each mdicator has an owner
on the Executive Board who 1s accountable for managing the
associated nisks and providing regular reports to the Executive
Board This enables the Executive Board to maintain effective
oversight of all outcomes, and to manage any conflicts of interest
that arise between them

To ensure a comprehensive risk umverse, theresalso a
bottom-up element to our framework Each Division of the
Group 1s responsible for the :dentification, management and
quarterly reporting of its own risks, and 1s supported in this

by the Risk Management function Each nsk 1s assessed by
considering its potential impact and the hkehhood of its
occurrence, with impact assessments being made against
financial and non-financial metrics Establishment of appropriate
controls 15 a core part of the risk management process

Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)

Many of the activities of the Group, and the legal entittes 1n

the Group, are regulated We have relationships with the UK
regulators (PRA and FCA) and the Irish Regulator (Central Bank
of Treland}, and with the local regulators in Singapore and

Hong Kong The nature of our activities and the regulatory focus

results in additional risk management activities, including, but
not limited to, stress and scenario testing, loss event recording,
resolution planning and risk caprtal management activity

The different regulated entities 1n the Group are governed by a
number of speafic regulations, however, as an Insurance Group
we are primarily governed by the new Solvency II Directive,
which came into force on 1 January 2016 As part of these
regulations, we are required to undertake an ORSA for the
Group and each insurance company withun the Group The Group
has been preparing for the new regulations for a number of years,
and has submuitted preparatory ORSA reports to our regulators n
2014 and 2015, relating to the periods ended 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014, respectively

The ORSA 15 directed by the Board and 15 intended to be

a comprehensive nisk assessment, bringing together an
understanding of the risks that the Group faces, in the context

of the strategic plan, and how these risks may change over our
planning period Italso requires quantitatve analysis of the capital
required, and how 1t might develop over our planning period

(5 years)

Capital for our insurance companies 1s based on the Sclvency 11
regulations separate risk based capital assessments are
performed for the other regulated entities As a result of these
activities we have considered the calculation and allocation of
risk capital to all the major risks 1n the Group, and the 1nsurance
companies 1n particular, and the adequacy of the capital position
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RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Viability Statement

In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have assessed the Group’s
current financial position and future prospects over a five year
period, and have a reasonable expectation that the Group will
be able to continue 1n operation and meet 1ts liabilitres as they
fall due over the period of ths assessment

In reaching this conclusion the Directors have taken into account
a number of different strands of work, including

+ The Business Plan and associated ‘2020 Vision’ document,

* Anassessment of the economuc, regulatory, competitive and
r1sk environment which was carried out as part of the Board’s
strategy review process, and

* The latest Group ORSA, which 15 a new requirement under
the Sclvency IT Directive, and which scope 1s summarised m
the section above

As a result of this work the Board has concluded that the business
mode] remains appropriate, with no concerns that would
fundamentally threaten the busmess model or market This s
also supported by the resilience that the Group has demonstrated
over recent years and 1n a veriety of different external conditions

A planmng period of five years 1s used both 1n medium term
business plannmg and also for the ORSA, and has therefore been
used for the Code requirement as well, reflecting the horizon
over which the Board sets medum term strategy

The ORSA was particularly useful in assessing viability as it has a
similar purpose and includes a range of stress tests, which have
been performed at the level of the two insurance companies

(St James’s Place UK Plcand St James’s Place International Plc)
as well as at the level of the Group The stress tests evaluated the
umpact on the free assets of the Group of a change 1n key
assumptions or circumstances In all adverse tests, free assets
were available, demonstrating the Group’s resihence to adverse
conditions Reverse stress tests have also been performed on
lLiquidity, the results of which indicate that the Group can
reasonably expect to have sufficient hiquid funds to be able to
meet 1ts habilities over the planning period

The Group momtors performance against a range of predefined
indicators, whrch will identify 1f experience over the planming
period duffers from risk appetite or expectations, allowing
managerent action to be taken

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Internal Control

The internal contral environment 1n St James’s Place 1s built
upon a strong control culture which 1s underpinned by our
Code of Ethics and orgamsational delegation of responsibility
The Board has adopted the ‘three lines of defence’ model for the
internal control system, under which the 1st Line 15 Business
Operations, the 2nd Line 1s Oversight Functiens including Risk
Management and Comphance, and the 3rd Line 1s Independent
Assurance The purpose of this internal control system 1s to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of
objectives relating to operations, reporting, and comphance

Management has delegated responsibihity to implement and
mamtan effective controls, such that the Group operates within
the risk appetite agreed by the Board The Audit Comrmittee, on
behalf of the Board, momtors the effectiveness of internal controls
across all business areas primanly through the cutcomes of
independent assurance assignments undertaken by Internal Audit

Control Self-Assessment

Control Self-Assessment (CSA) 15 a continuous actvty, which has
a formal summary on an annual basis, and forms a key part of our
internal control system Thus self-assessment process requires
business areas to review their controls regularly, and sign-off

on therr efficacy, agamst a standard set of control statements
Collectively these control statements embody the elements
required for an organisation to maintain a control framework
across the five components of Control Environment, Risk
Assessment, Control Actrvities, Information & Commumcation,
and Monitoring Activities, as lad down in the internationally
accepted COSO control standards

'This process 15 benefical as 1t provides confidence that business
areas can meet their objectives, clarity to support decision
making, and agility in adapting to change and complexity

The annual summary of the control self-assessment process
contrbutes to the year-end Internal Control Evaluation exerase
undertaken by Internal Audit as part of the assurance provision
to the Audit Commuttee

Financial Reporting Processes
Speaifically 1n relation to the financial reporting processes,
the main features of the internal control systems iclude

* Extensive documentation, operaticn and assessment of
controls in key risk areas

= Monthly review and sign-off of all financial accounting data
submitted by outsource providers and the results of all
subsidianes within the Group

* Formal review of financial statements by semor management,
for both 1ndividual companies and the consohdated Group

Registered No 03183415
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following tables summarise the principal risks and uncertainties that are inherent within both the Group'’s business model and
the market in which we operate These principal risks and uncertainties, the business outcomes on which they impact, and the hagh
level controls and processes through which we aim to rinigate them, are as follows

NON-FINANCIAL RISKS —
v
DESCRIPTION OUTCOME MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS .;
Client Clents invarably rely on members of the Clients, There are many processes in place to mitigate thus risk, g
propositon | St James's Place Partnership for the financals including detailed advice gndance, Partner traiming -
proviston of 1mitzal and ongoing advice and and accreditation, appropriate incentive structures, E
Failures in the quality of service provided, | shareholders | quality checking, chient engagement conducted by °
and 1 particular any advice faihings, could the Clent Gutcomes teamn and extensive monitoring e
lead to redress costs, reputational damage of the internal funds and portfolios The Group 2
and regulatory intervention guarantees the advice given by Partners and also has &
appropriate professional indemnity insurance 1n place \_g
Competiton | Competitor activity in the adviser-based Financials Thus risk 1s mitigated through ensuning our businessis [
wealth management market may result in and run efficiently, beng responsive to the needs of our
a reduction 1n new business volumes, shareholders | chents and Partners and seeking contirmal c
reduced retention of existing business, improvements to processes Charges are benchmarked g
pressure on margins for both new and against competitors and competitor actvity monitored e
existing busmess, and the potential loss of Regular reports are provided to the Executive Board, E
Partners and key employces allowing action to be taken ina timely manner 1n the o
event of a threat to our business model The Group
offers a diversified product range, including both
onshore and offshore investments, and third party L
relationships are in place to provide access to products -
which are not manufactured within the Group We ‘E
have a proven track record in Partner acquisition and =
retention, which we believe would make 1t difficult for g
anew entrant to challenge our positon In addition, g
our more established Partners often have sigmficant %
equity stakes in their practices and their ability to g
access these 15 structured to ad retenton g
w
Regulatory, The nature of the Group 15 such that 1t Regulators, Regulatory and Ieg]slatlve change 13 largely a risk —
legislative falls under the influence of regulators and Partners, which cannot be mitigated, although the Group seeks
and tax legslators in multple jurisdictions, a chents, to engage with regulators and policy makers in an open <
environment | growing number given the Group’s financials and constructive manner, with the aim that key 1ssues 5
expansion mto Asia The risks are and impacting the Group are taken mnto consideration 1n ;.l
two-fold shareholders | the drafting of changes Our governance structures, z
N ) management committees and compliance monitoring E
- New regulatory, legslative or tax 2
activities seek to ensure we remain comphant =4
requirements may result th ] 5
with regulation =
mmplementation costs and disruption 10
business L—
- Failure to comply with exusting or new
applicable regulations could result ina
fine or regulatory censure
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RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

NON-FINANCIAL RISKS CONTINUED

People and
culture

DESCRIPTION

People and the dishnctive culture of the
Group play an important part in its
success Over-stretch, the loss of key
personnel or unwanted changes o calture
may therefore impact on this success

OUTCOME

People

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

This risk 1s mitigated through effective leadership, the
implementation of executive and management
development imuiatives, forward succession planning
and regular surveys and consultation groups The latter
enable us to menitor the sentiment of our staff and
Partners and identify any potential adverse impacts
upon, or trends within, our culture, and respond

appropriately

Partner
proposition,
recrutment

and
retention

Group products are distrbuted, and
ongomng advice 15 provided, exclusively
through the S]P Partnerstup Inadequacies
mn the range of products, technology or
services offered by the Partnership may
result in inefficiencies and frustration,
with consequent loss of Partners and
chient tmpact, or inability to recrut new
Partners

Partners

The Partner proposition 1s an area of continual focus,
with outputs from regular Partner surveys and other
Partner feedback being reflected on an ongoing basis
We employ a number of specialist managers specifically
to manage the recrutment and retention of high
quahty Partners, and a dedicated senior management
team oversees the S[P Academy, which broadens our
recriutment streams Formal retention strategnes are 1n
place to ensure that, wherever possible, we retamn good
quality and experienced Partners All recruitment and
retention activity 1s closely momtored

Investment
Management
Approach

Our approach to investment management
may fail to dehiver expected returns to
chients of the Group

Chents

We actively manage and monitor the performance of
our investment managers through the Investment
Commuttee which also makes use of firms of
professional advisers, including respected independent
investment research consultancies, Starnford
Assocrates, Redington and AON Consulting, to help
themn with this key task We offer a broad range of
funds, which allows client diversification and mitigates
our new business, persistency and market risks

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 201s

Registered No 03183415




Operations
and IT

DESCRIPTION

The Group’s business model involves the
outsourang of admimstration to thard
parties Poor service from, or failure of,
one of these third parties, the failure of an
IT system, or a sigmficant cyber-attack or
fraud, could lead to disruption of services
to clents, reputational damage and profit
impacts There ts also a risk that clients or
Partners may experience disruption of
service during the implementation of our
new third party adminmstration platform

OUTCOME

Chents ,
financials
and
shareholders

45

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

These rsks are mingated by service level agreements,
monitormng of administration providers and an effective
information security control framework, including
regular penetration testing exerases We remain vigalant
to the increasing threat from cyber risks and have also
recently strengthened frand prevention controls We
mamtan close working relatonships with our
outsourang partners, who are central to our business
model This enables us to work effectively and efficently
together to deliver the best result In the extreme event,
all our relationships are governed by formal agreements
with nohce penods and full exit management plans and,
if required, strong alternative providers exist in the
tmarket The business continuity arrangements of each
outsourcer are also continually tested and improved and
scenario analyss 1s carried out The risk of service
disruption on implementation of the new admimstration
platform is being mingated through diligent quahty
checking and phased implementztions

Pohitical

Changes 1n the political landscape could
lead to substantral changes in policy,
resulting 1n significant development costs
and disruption to the Group’s busmess
Failure to deliver changes in the required
tumescales may lead to reputational
damage and loss of new business

A speaific current example of this risk 1s
the potential of ‘Brexat’ following a
referendum

Financials
and
shareholders

In many cases political risk cannot be mitigated,
although the Group seeks engagement with major
political parties and also engages the services of
relevant public relations and communucations
consultants, with the aim that key 15sues impacting the
Group are taken into consideration 1n the development
of changes

[nvestor
relations

Failure to communicate effectively with
new and existing shareholders may lead 1o
falls in the share price and reputational
damage

Financials
and
shareholders

This risk 1s mitigated through the work of the investor
relations team, whose remit 15 to ensure the
maintenance of pesitive relatienstups with

sharehalders
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RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

FINANCIAL RISKS

DESCRIPTION

QUTCOME

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

Market nsk
—Lossof
Annual
Management
Charge
(AMC)

mcome

A reduction 1n funds may anse from
market shocks, poor market performance,
or a widening of credit spreads

This would reduce future AMC income,
and hence future profits

It may also result in I-E tax mefficiency for
SJPUK plc, as the value of deferred tax
assets depends on having sufficient levels
of future investment income to provide
rehef for the expenses

Shareholder assets may be used to seed
new funds, leading to direct exposure to
market movements for short periods after
the launch of new funds

Finaneals
and
shareholders

The Group accepts the risk of reduced future profits
as a result of market risk within umt hnked and umt
trust funds

A realistic value has been placed on tax rehef
anucipated from deferred expenses, but 1t 15 accepted
that, following a market fall, the recovery of this value
may be deferred over a longer period, thereby reducing
1ts value

The use of seeding capital 1s approved by the
Executive Board for each indivadual fund launch, and
shareholder funds are withdrawn as soon as possible,
typically within a few months of launch owing to
predictable fund inflows when new funds are included
mn portfolios

Insurance
nisk

A reduction i funds under management
ow1ng to poor persistency would reduce
future AMCincome This may anise from
factors such as changes 1n the econemic
climate, poor nvestment performance,
competitor actwvity, or reputatlonal
damage to the Group

Adverse mortality or disability
experience, in particular higher death
claims following an inaident or
widespread illness, or longer-term
increases in mortality rates, would reduce
future profits

Financials
and
shareholders

Persistency risk 1s managed through the long-term
relabonships between Partners and clients In
particular, Partners keep chents informed during
periods of market volanihty, and lower-risk funds and
portfolios are available, with no charges for switching
The Investment Management Approach nvolves
monitoring of fund manager performance, and changes
are made where appropriate Some of the key sources
of reputational nsk and related controls are described
1n the table above

Mortality and disability risk 1s substantially reduced
through the use of reassurance with low retention
Mortality risk benefits on investment products are
generany limited to 1% of invested assets Most risk
deductions are reviewable and an mcrease 1n
reagsurance rates would be passed on to chents through
increases to charges and/or premiums within five

years Experience analyssis performed

Expense rsk

Increased expenses, m particular higher
than expected adrmimistrauon costs,
would reduce future profits

Financials
and
shareholders

Expenses are controlled through contracts with

third party admimistrators and expense controls at
Group level, so that growth in average per policy
expenses 15 no greater than the rate of Increase in the
average weekly earnings index Admmistration charges
are reviewable

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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Interest rate
and credit

risks

DESCRIPTION

Changes in interest rates or the failure of
a counterparty may reduce the value of
fixed interest assets held to match future
fixed iabilities, and shareholder assets

Key counterparties include reassurers,
banks, money market funds, 1ssuers of
fixed interest securities, Partners to
whom loans have been granted, and
other debtors

OUTCOME

Financials
and

shareholders

47

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

Asset-hability matching reduces interest rate risk on
matching assets and no guarantees are offered

Shareholder funds are invested in high credht rating
and highly hquid cash and cash-equivalent investments,
and only highly rated reinsurers are used

Partner loans are granted for business purposes, and
are secured agamst 1ncome strearns on a conservative
multiple and with extensive financial menitoring

A pre-payment has been made to IFDS n anttaipation
of future benefits arising from the development of the
new Bluedoor admimistration system However, the
contract with Bluedoor would enable the Group to
continue to use the Bluedoor system in the event of
failure of IFDS

Liquidity

nisk

Laquidity 1ssues may anse from chent
requests to switch or withdraw money
from unit-hnked funds, and through
events that may require immedate
recourse to shareholder funds

Financials
and

shareholders

Chent funds are invested in deep and hquid markets
and, where investments are less hiquid, contractual
terms are mcluded, allowing the flexibility to defer
withdrawals Sizeable balances of hiquid shareholder
assets are maintained and the emergence of cash profits
1s monitared Banks' propensity to lend 1n support of
Partner loans 1s 2lso momtored Liquidity scenario
analysis has been conducted duning 2015, to verify the
adequacy of the hquidity buffers that are held
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

‘St. James’s Place is committed to growing
our business in a way that considers the

economic, social and environmental impacts

gf what we do.’

We understand that respensible management 15 important to all our stakeholders -- shareholders, chents, Partners,
employees, supphers and the commumties in which we operate

Our commtment to responsible management was estabhished 1n the founding prinaiples of the Company and 15
expressed in both the ‘Our Approach’ document, which 1s shared with all members of our community, and the
“What it rneans to be a member’ brochure, which sets out the expectations for our Partners We believe responsible
management continues to be embedded 1n our culture, and reminders and encou ragement to live by this phl]osophy
are provided regularly through team meeungs, and employee and Partner newsletters

By living up to the expectations established within our culture, we believe we will be able to demonstrate
trustworthiness, reliability and a commutment to the common good Ina world where the reputation of the

financral services industry 1s constantly under pressture, we aspire to create an authentic alternative whuch all our
stakeholders can trust, and which the communities we are part of can appreciate and respect

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 Registered No 03183415
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Our approacb to
Corporate Socal Responsibility
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CHARITY ENVIRONMENT

We are constantly seekang to improve our delivery, but recent pubhc
endorsements include

* We have receved various awards relating to our client offering over the years
Mast recently, these have wncluded the Wealth Adviser Award for ‘Best Private
Client Investment Manager” (third year running), the Personal Finance Awards
‘Best Financial Adviser’ (sixth year runmng), FDs' Excellence Awards ‘Best
Pension Provider’, City of London Wealth Management Company of the Year
Award and two Financral Times/Investors Chromcle Awards for ‘Best Wealth
Manager for Inherttance Tax and Succession Planning’ and ‘Best Wealth
Manager for Trusts’,

* Our business model has been recogmised through winning the 2015/16
Britain’s Most Admired Companies Award 1n our sector, which 1s run 1n
association with Management Today, and

* Qur continued inclusion mn the FTSE4Good Index, which comprises
companies that meet globally recognised corporate social responsibility
critersa, recognised our positive culture and ongomng commitment to ‘
responsible management
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

CONTINUED

CSR Governance
Responsible management 1s central to our culture, and the task of maintaining this culture (including our CSR ambitions) 15 a key

focus of the Executive Commuttee of the Board, with oversight by the full Board

The Executive Commuttee of the Board 1s supported in this objective (as m all of their work) by a number of sub-commuttees, which
are chared by Directors or semor management

MANAGING COMMITTEE REMIT

Our Culture Executive Committee of the Board To ensure the strength and mantenance
of the umque culture throughout our
Comrnumty

CSR overview, Local Community, CSR Group To co-ordinate the Group’s approach to
CSR and CSR Department with

particular focus on promoting local
community engagement and
environmental matters

Volunteering, Supphers and the
Environment

Investment Management Approach [nvestment Committee To manage our Investment Management
Approach and oversee our fund

managers

The St James’s Place Foundation Foundation Trustees To manage the St James’s Place
Foundation, including overseeing

grant-making and compliance with the
charity’s objectives

Community Support

The St James’s Place Foundation

We have always recogmsed our social responsibility to our local communities and, from the founding of the Group, have encouraged
our staff and Partners to use their expertise to help local charities and other voluntary organisations The desire to provide support to
the less fortunate 1n socety resulted 1n the estabhishment of the independent St James's Place Foundation which continues to receive
support from all parts of the St James’s Place commumty employees, Partners, clients, suppliers and shareholders This has been
another record year for fundraising by members of our commumty and as a result the matching grant from the Company was £4 3
mulhon (including gft aidy Since 1992, the St James’s Place community has raised over £46 6 million for the Foundation to
distribute to good causes Addimonal information from the St James's Place Foundation about its activities 1s provided on pages 56 to
59 or available from 1ts website at www sjpfoundation ce uk

Community Yolunteering and Support

St James's Place has a strong tradition of volunteer support for the work of the Foundation, but more recently we have sought to
recognise the other community volunteering in which our employees engage In 2015 we were pleased to support 86 employees
(offering over 13,500 hours of community support) with grants of up to £1,000 to support their volunteering efforts We are aiming
to expand this imtrative further in 2016, reaching out to all our UK offices

We have also started two new volunteering imtiatives Firstly, we have started offering ‘community support team challenges’ These
provide an opportunity for groups of colleagues to undertake community and charity projects together, which can also be beneficial
n strengthening teamwork and motivaton  Over 600 hours of communuty work have been undertaken thus year, working with
causes local to our offices including local charies, conservation projects, and an NHS trust Secondly, we have been seeking out
opportunities to link the professional skills of our employees to the professional needs of local charites, particularly through support
for the Involve Gloucestershire imtiative We plan to build on both of these imitiatives during 2016

We also continue to suppert commumty organisations and charities local to our offices through grants For example, support for core
costs has been given to The Churn Project which works to improve the quality of hife and well-being of 1solated and disadvantaged
people within Cirencester We are also delighted that over 30 of our employees volunteer for The Churn Project, allowing them te
make a direct contribution to the community around their place of work
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Employabihty Sklls  for Young People

St James's Place 15 an entrepreneurnal organisation and we have always been keen that the next generation should be able to
contribute successfully through employment

Cirencester College

St James’s Place has now been providing support to Cirencester College, a further education college local to our head-office, for over
11 years During that time, we have been able to offer 69 internships to students from Cirencester College, with 26 of them turmng
wnto full ime employment opportunites, often 1n our Apprenticeship scheme (see below) However, our main nvolvement has been
providing support for the four ‘Academy Programmes’, each destgned for students who aspire to work 1n a particular market sector
These programmes are operated in conjunction with the national chanity ‘Career Ready’ and our support includes providing students
with paid summer mternships as well as providing 14 mentors to provide support and business coaching to many students

Apprenticeships

Working in conjunction with Cirencester College, which provides the training, our apprenticeship programme 15 now well
established Our 2015 September intake of 12 has included a pilot Financial Services apprenticeship alongside our existing
apprenticeships in Business Admimistration, Marketing, IT and Accountancy A further intake of 12 apprentices 1s planned for
September 2016 The value of these opportumities for both the young people and the local community has been recogmised througha
variety of awards ranging from a specral award by our local Cirencester Chamber of Commerce, to a commendation as a finalist in
the National Apprentice Scheme awards for Newcomer Large Employer of the Year

Other Employahlity Skills Traiming

‘We have continued our work with the charity Young Gloucestershire to provide employability skills training for young people m the
area, many of whom are less academically able or from 2 disadvantaged background A range of volunteers from the Company have
fulfilled roles as trustees and mentors and financial support has also been provided The support helps the young people to present
themselves in the best possible way to potential new employers through CV skills, personal presentation tips and interview techniques

We have also built upon our 2014 pilot with the charnty Active Communities Network (ACN), working with inner aity young people,
often from disadvantaged backgrounds Supporting their ‘Urban Stars’ programme 1n Tower Hamlets, Poplar, Bermondsey and the
Aylesbury Estate, 58 volunteers from our Field Management Team and the Partnership worked with over 110 young people, helping
them with business planmng, CV writing, interview skalls and financial education

This year we have also looked to suppert organisations Like Young Enterprise and EmployabihityUK to help young people bridge the
gap between education and work

Financial Education

As one of the leading providers of financial advice to individuals and business owners in the UK, we recogmise the importance and
value of financial education and this continued to be a core focus in the year During 2015 we ran several of our Year 9 and 6th form
Financial Education courses with schools delivering a flexible modular programme to fit the PSHE (Personal, Social and Health
Education) and Maths curriculumn  Qur material has been dehvered by teachers through normal lessons with content tailored to meet
the students’ needs and curriculum requirements But we have also used internal traiung sessions to build up a team of experienced
employees who can volunteer to support the delivery of the courses This support has allowed other schools to deliver the course on
an inset day for a class or full year group, and provides pupils with experience beyond thewr teachers

We have also developed our advanced education material for year 12 and 13 students for use in out-of-school settings Working with
OPENhouse in Stroud and Young Gloucestershire we have tailored materals and delivered sessions to vulnerable children and young
adults who have additional educational needs and to some who are currently NEET

"The Financial Education programme will be a key focusin 2016, when we will seek external accreditation for our programme and
expand delivery to more schools and alternative youth work locations across the UK through all our offices This roll out will be led
by volunteer employees and Partners, linking our offices with local educational provision

Loughborough University Swimming

In the build up to Rio 2016, we are pleased to continue our sponsorshup of the Loughborough University Swimming programme
Ths enables the squad to receive additiona! coaching, and, since our relationship started 1n 2007, the team have medalled 1n all major
UK and International events including European, Commonwealth, World Championships and the Olympic Games
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CONTINUED

During the year, the squad had a strong presence 1n the FINA World Championships m Kazan, Russia and the IPC World
Championships in Glaspow Fran Halsall anchored the Great Britamn 4 x 100m mixed medley relay team home to claim the gold
medal and a world record at the FINA World Championships in Kazan, Russia Fran said ‘] think we all stepped up and did a great
swim To swim a world record and be world champion 1s incredible —1t’s 2 mice way to start my week’ Loughberough’s Rachael
Kelly swam the butterily leg in the qualifying round and was also awarded a Gold medal

Loughborough’s Paralympic swimmer Ellie Simmonds OBE won Gold with a new world record 1n the 200m mdividual medley at the
IPC Swimming World Championships in Glasgow Ellie also won a Silver medal and two Bronze medals James Hollis also achieved
new British records in the 50m and 100m butterfly

Suppliers and Supply Chain
5t James's Place beheves in treating all our stakeholders farrly We also believe 1n the benefits to be gained from building long-term

relationships based on mutual trust As a result, many of our key suppliers have been associated with the Group for a number of years
and we have been able to cultivate very strong and mutually beneficial relationships, such as our providers of outsourced
administration services 1FDS, Capita and State Street '

More generally, we expect all our supphers te act 1n accordance with the standards embedded in our culture, 2nd will undertake due
diligence on new service providers to ensure we are comfortable with their approach to socally responsible management An
important development for us 1n 2014 was accreditation with the Living Wage Foundation, which involved us working closely with
our supply chain We are particularly pleased that many of our supphers share our desire to make a positive and lasting difference to
the lives of those less fortunate than ourselves, and we are very grateful to all those who have provided support to the St James's
Place Foundation, both through donations and through active participation in many of the events

St James's Place has always placed great reliance on the support of third party supphiers and the continued success of cur business
reflects, amongst other things, our success in cultivating and managing successful relationships with supphers ‘We are pleased to have
signed up to the Prompt Payment Code which 15 encouraged by the Department of Business Innovation and Skalls (BIS) and
demonstrates a commitment to good practice between organisations and thewr suppliers Signatories to the Code commt to paying
their suppliers within agreed and clearly defined terms, and commut also to ensuring that there 1s a proper process for dealing with
any 1ssues that may arise

The Environment

St James's Place 1s committed to managing our environmental impact through effective management of energy systems, travel, water
usage and waste recycling We recogmse the effect our business can have on climate change and we take a positive approach to
managing our business activities, whilst at the same time encouraging all Partners and staff to consider their own personal impact on

the environment

Oversight of our environmental strategy 1s through a Corporate Social Responsibility Group (CSR Group) with ulumate
responsibility resting with David Bellamy (CEO) The group meets on a monthly basis and reviews environmental performance

We measure our environmental data from October to September and the following tables summarise targets and progress, expressed
in terms of both absclute and normalised CO,e ermissions for our core business activities n recent years Core business activities are
defined as those within ‘Operational Control’ In previous years, we have explicitly excluded our investment property portfolios
(held on behalf of clients), but in 2015 we are extending our reporting te include themn, and also te include Well to Tank (WTT)
emissions for all scopes within the progress table The assessment uses the CarbonNeutral Company Protocol together with the 2015
converston rates as provided by Defra for all our emission categories The data was verified and reporting information calculated by

Carbon Clear

In previous years St James’s Place has purchased carbon credits in order to offset our carbon fostprint and achieve ‘carbon neutral
company’ status However, following a review of our environmental strategy in 2015, we are now focusing our efforts on managing
our carbon footprint directly, and on stewardship of our funds under management including the environmental imphcations of those

companes tn which we tnvest
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I) Targets &
Absolute Emussions Targets =
3
% of % ncreaso Base Year =
Emssions m P a from Emissions
1D Scaope Description Scope Base Year Base Year (tonnes COe) Target Year
Absl 1 Gas and owned vehicles 100% 5% 2013 851 2016
o
Abs2 2 Electricity 100% 5% 2013 2,218 2016 &
Business travel, waste, S
Abs3 3 hotel stays, electnaty T&D 100% 5% 2013 3,704 2016 2
o]
B
Normahsed Emissions Targets 8
Base Year g
Normalised E
% of % icrease Emissions &
Emissions in pa from (tonnes CO:c o
ID Scope Description Scope Base Year Base Year per’000sgft) Target Year g
Intl 1 Gas and owned vehicles 100% 0% 2013 303 2016 —
Int2 2 Electricity 100% 0% 2013 790 2016
Business travel, waste,
Int3 3 hotel stays, electricity T&D 100% 0% 2013 13 18 2016

In 2014, we set new targets for the next three years for both absolute and normalised measurements ‘We are targeting that
normalised emissions targets will remam constant, 1 € anil increase, but in absolute terms emissions will be hmited toa 5% p a
increase, which compares to forecast busimess growth of 15% p a The targets also explicitly take into account the commussioning of a
second head office building 1n Cirencester This 15 being built to accommedate business growth and 15 due to be completed during the
target period We hope to achieve a BREAM rating of ‘very good’ for the new building

SIUEBLLIIAD D)

2) Progress E
I
Absolute Emissions Progress a
Actual 8
Emissions in g
Year % vartance from =
03] Scope (tonnes COp) Target Comment g
Emssions from gas and owned vehicles have fallen 2
due to a reduction 1n the number of Company-owned g
Absl 1 764 -19% cars and reduced mileage —
Emussions from electriaity have increased this year due to the
mnclusion of our operations 1n Asia, although previous plant <
Abs2? 2 1,984 -19% improvements mean we are still ahead of target E
We remain well ahead of our Scope 3 emissions absolute target, g
Abs3 3 2,559 -37% driven mainly by a significant reduction 1n long-haul flights 1
3 (Property Trust a
Investments and Two extra Scope 3 categories are being reported this year — c;>
Abs3 1 WTT) 12,182 n/a SJP Property Trusts and WTT for all Scopes
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Normalised Emissions Progress

CONTINUED

Normalised
Emusstons
mn Year
(tonnes COe % variance
1D Scope  per’000sqft) from Target Comment
Intl 1 262 _13% In all areas, the reduced floor space compared to the original
expectation has partially offset the impact of the reduction emussions
- 0,

Int2 2 6 81 14% In 2016 new office premises are expected to be added, which will
Int3 3 8 78 -33% change this analysis

Comparative data for 2013 1s presented as the Base Year information in the Target tables above Since then we have seen reductions in
all areas of our carbon footprint, despite continuing growth in the business Key reasons for the improvements are documented in the
table above, but, looking to the future, we anticipate higher Scope 2 ermissions in 2316 as a result of taking on additional office

premises ;n London, and from moving into our new building in Cirencester Since the increase will arise from new buildings, we are

expecting that the normalised emissions level wall improve compared to target

3) Enussions Trend (excluding Investment Property Portfohios and WTT)

Gross Emissions (tonnes CO,e}

Absl

Gas and owned vehicles

Abs2

Abs3

Business travel

2013 2014 2015
851 932 764
2,218 1,888 1,984
3,704 2,366 2,559
6,773 5,186 5,307
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APPROVAL OF THE STRATEGIC REPORT

As part of the Annual Report by the Directors it 1s a statutory requirement to produce a Strategic Report

The purpose of the report 1s
‘to inform members of the Company and help them assess how the Directors have performed their duty under section 172 of the

Companies Act 2006 (duty to promote the success of the Company)’

o
s
=
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&

s
=
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=
o
=

The objective of the report 1s to provide sharcholders with an analysis of the Company's past performance, to impart msight into its
business model, strategies, objectives and principal risks and to provide context for the financial statements in the Annual Report

The Directors consider that the report, compnising pages 1 to 54 of this document, meets the statutory purpose and objectives of the
Strategic Report

| | uotIEpUNO aderd s sowel g |

On behalf of the Board

David Bellary Andrew Croft

C[ung Executive Chlgf Financral Ofﬁcer
22 March 2016
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ST. JAMES’S PLACE FOUNDATION

‘Since its formation 23 years ago,
the St. James’s Place Group has

been committed to ﬁsrering a
culture gf giving back’ to those
who need it most.’

Tuscan Peaks Challenge raising £115,000

It 15 a philesophy that has contributed much to the nature of our culture, and been a source of great pride Since 1952,
the St James’s Place Foundation has received nearly £50 milhon for distribution to good causes The overwhelmmng
majority of this has come as the result of fundraising or donations made by 5t James's Place Partners and employees

of the Company

Funds raised by Partners and employees are matched pound-for-pound by the Company, which also covers all
expenses relating to the running of the Foundation This means that all the funds raised go directly to those
registered chanties, at home and overseas, that meet the Foundation’s themes of chenshing children, combating
cancer and supporting hospices

Maore than 85% of St James’s Place Partners and employees give to the Foundation through their pay or earmings on
a monthly basis, which alone generates over £2 milhon annually, including matching
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Annua) 5t Albans Tnatblon and Duathlon rasing £92,516

Review of 2015

Continuing 1ts record of year on year growth, the 5t James’s
Place Foundation enjoyed another record year for fundraising m
2015, rassing over £7 milhion for good causes in the UK and
abroad This was achieved 1n no small part through contributions
from a number of successful major fundraising events throughout
the year, which represent a vital part of the Foundation’s income

Events included the annual Triathlon and Duathlon m St
Albans, which raised £92,816 for Hope and Homes for Chuldren
(and which has now reahsed £1 5 million 1n the last 13 years for
that charity), the Big Walk 2015, centred on Hadrian’s Well,
whieh rmised £65,000, the Tuscan Three Peaks Challenge
reahsing £115,000, an epc three-day cycle challenge in Provence
raising £282,000, a world record-breaking skydive for the late
Teenage Cancer Trust Ambassador, Stephen Sutton, 1n which

5t James's Place employees raised £10,000, a further £104,000
from the annual Summer Swing event 1n Congleton, and
£80,500 from two regronal Children of Courage events
Yorkshire and the Midlands All amounts shown include
Company matching

Addinionally, Partners and employees showed their generosity

by supporting the refugee crisisin Europe, and the aftermath of
the Nepal earthquakes at the beginning of the year At the end

of the year, our community had raised over £25,000 for Save
The Children in support of the charity’s efforts to help thousands
of displaced children fleeing warfare and conflict in the Middle

East 1n what 15 an ongoing humanitarian erisis Simlarly in
Nepal, which holds a special place 1n the hearts of the St James's
Place community following the Everest expedition in 2012, the
Foundation has donated £40,000 to youth charities supporting
the needs of famlies and commumties devastated by the
catastrophic earthquakes which killed thousands and destroyed
over 800,000 homes

The Foundation makes donations and grants ranging from a few
hundred to hundreds of thousands of pounds In doing so, the
Foundation seeks to make a real difference to the lives of chuldren
and young people at home and overseas Chosen charities are
selected very carefully, with the underlying goal being to make the
biggest difference to as many chartes as possible

Any small charity that meets the Foundation’s selection criteria
can apply for a grant 1f 1t has a project that 1s for the direct benefit
of economically disadvantaged or socially margnalised young
people aged 25 or under, the physically disabled, those suffering
from a mental condition, or a hfe-threateming or degenerative
illness The Foundation also helps those people whose lives have
been adversely affected by illness through the hospice movement,
making grants to hospices to support the cost of complementary
therapy, equipment or specialist staff
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ST. JAMES’S PLACE FOUNDATION

CONTINUED

Highhghted below are examples of some of the many charities
which have benefited from the Foundation’s support in the last
12 months

Making a Positive Difference

Through the Foundation’s grving programmes we aim to
make a posiave and lasting dfference to the hives of chnldren
mn need both 1n the UK and overseas, and so they can reach
their full potential, here are some examples of the donations
we have made

Hope and Homes for Children

The Foundation, a long term supporter of Hope and Homes for
Chuildren, announced a commitment of £600,000 over three
years, starting in 2015, to support the charity’s vital work in
Romama helping children out of orphanages and 1nto loving
family homes The Foundation also donated towards the charity’s
Numb3rs Appeal which, with UK Aid Match, raised over

£4 mullion Thus will support the chanty’s work 1n Rwanda and
across East Afnica over the next three years, where the focus will
be on reducing reliance on orphanages as a means of carmg’for
children

Philippme Community Fund

The Foundation granted £93,600 to the Phalippine Community
Fund (PCF} which was set up 13 years ago to improve the
quality of life for impoverished communities in the 1slands

The PCF works 1n the most depressed areas of the Phihppines,
providing education, nutrtuon, health, medical and famly-
enhancement programmes

EdUKaid

A grant of £37,000 was awarded by the Foundation to EdUKaid
to assist its work in improving the educational prospects of
deprived children in the poor rural region of Mtwara 1n
Tanzania, benefiting 700 deprived children aged between four
and six years

A grant of £37,000 was awarded to EdUKaid

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Envision

Envision inspires young people to gain skills and confidence,
and the Foundation has awarded £75,000 over a three year
pertod to fund the cost of 1its Commumity Apprentice Scheme,
helping disadvantaged young people in Bristol Envision’s
projects help young people to design their own local community
programmes, tackling 1ssues ranging from street crime to
climate change, and inspiring them to become effective role
models 1n their communities

The Art Room

The Foundation granted £77,000 to provide funding for the next
three years for a Deputy Manager at the Northolt Art Room in
Ealing, a chanty which offers art as therapy to chuldren and young
adults to rase their self-esteem, self-confidence and 1ndependence

Roald Dahl’'s Marvellous Children’s Charity

Roald Dahl's Marvellous Children’s Charity helps to make life
better for seriously 11l children and young people mn the UK, and
the Foundation donated £84,500 spread over twa years to help
fund the salary costs of a nurse speafically caring for children
who are 1ll, The charity is inspired by the behef that every chuld
has the right to a marvellous hfe, no matter how 1l a child s, or
how short their life may be

A commitment of £255 00D was made to the Panathloa Challenge

Registered No 03183415




A grant of £500,000 was rmade 10 OnSide Youth Zones

Panathlon Challenge

The Foundation committed £255,000 to the Panathlon
Challenge, a national charity which provides sporting
opportumties for over 5,000 disabled young pecple each year
Since 1999, Panathlon has invested over £5 5 million in
opportumties for young people to compete in sport

A Lasting Legacy — Funding Capital Projects
Across the UK

Thanks to the record amount raised in 2015, and 1n previous
years, the Foundation has been able to consider support for
larger Capital Projects — those that we believe will help children
1n need over a number of years, and leave a lasting legacy for
both disabled and disadvantaged children, and for young people
in the future In 2015 projects totalling 1n excess of £2 million
were completed, including

Smule, Support & Care

£1 2 million to help buld a Care Centre :n Hampshire providing
respite breaks where children and young adults with severe
disabilities can stay with their famihes or carers Established in
1994, Smule, Support and Care provides respite care, across
Hampshire and West Sussex, ranging from several hours per
week for a child with a mild form of autism, through to 24-hour
care for those suffering severe hfe-hmiting conditions

OnSide Youth Zones ‘The Way’

£500,000 to help build a state-of-the-art youth centre in
Wolverhampton, providing a vital space for disadvantaged and
chsabled young people to engage in life-changing actn.'ltles,
such as sport, fitness, dance, arts, music, media, enterprise
and wellbeing, and self-1mprovement OnSide Youth Zones
spearheads the development of the Youth Zone ‘model’ across
the country

59

A £2,500 pram was awarded o Support Dogs

Local Office Allowances

Local office allowances are small grants made by individual
St James's Place offices and are an excellent way of making a
difference 1n their local commumities In the last 12 months,
258 local grants were made totalling £449,183, often with
stories that touch the heart

Charhe’s Beach Hut Fund

Charlie’s Beach Hut Fund was established in Perranporth,
Cornwall by his parents as a permanent memorial to Charlie
Codling, who died at the age of four from an incurable brain
tumour The Foundanion donated £2,000 to support the Fund
with the annual cost of maintaimng the hut which provides
famihies of children wath hife-limiting 1llnesses with a relaxing
environment 1 which they can forge happy memories

Jacob and Mimnta

A £2,500 grant from Cirencester to Support Dogs helped bring
joy to a lonely little boy called Jacob Trapped 1n hus own world
by autism, the grant funded the arrival of a yellow Labrador
dog called Minta, trained as an Autism Assistance dog, which
has transformed his hfe Boy and dog are the best of friends,
and Minta has proved to be the best possible medicine

Future Plans

Once again, following a record year of fundraising, the
Foundation plans to build on its achievernents 1n 2016 to enable
1t to contnbute and make a difference to even more chanitable
projects both in the UK and abroad A number of exating
fundraising events and mitiatives are already planned for 2016,
reflecting the wonderful commitment the St James's Place
community makes to the Foundation every year

If you would hike to know more about the St James's Place
Foundation please visit its website at www sjpfoundation co uk
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sarah Bates
Chairman

David Bellam
Chief Executive Officer .

Andrew Croft
Chief Financial Officer

Date of Appointment Chairman January 2014
Non-executive Director, September 2004
Chair of the Nomination Commuttes

Date of Appointment Chicf Executive Officer
September 1597
Jomed St James's Place 1991

Date of Appomntment Chief Financial Officer
Septernber 2004
Joined 5t James’s Place 1993

Experience

Sarah brings over 30 years' expenence from the
mvestment and investment management sectors,
both executive and non executive Amongst her
many roles, she was Joint C1O and CEQ for [nvesco
UK and its Institutional Diwiston between 1999
and 2003 She has also served as Chairman of the
Association of [nvestment Companies from 2011

to 2013 She retains a range of investment related
responsibiiies which support her Chairmanship of
5t James's Piace

External Appointments

Chairman of | P Morgan American Investment
Trust ple, and Witan Pacific Investment Trust
Naon-executive director of Worldwide Healtheare
and Polar Capital Technology Trust ple Semor
independent director of U and [ plc Member of
the investment comnmuttee of the Universittes
Superanmiatnon Fund
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Expenence

David has worked 1 the finantial services industry
since 1973 He joined the Founders of the Company
at the outset to establish the back office Since then
he bas held a number of roles at St jamnes’s Place,
inchiding Group Operatians Director and Managing
Director Hes a Trustee of the St James’s Place
Foundation

External Appomntments
Member of the Financial Conduct Authonity's
Practiuoner Panel

Expenence

Andrew jomed the Company mn 1993 and has been
Chief Financial Officer since 2004 Having trained
as an Accountant with Deloitte Haslans and Sells
(now part of PricewaterhouseCoopers) he then
worked in the Financial services sector Since
jorming St james’s Place he has held a number of
roles within the Finance department, assuming the
role of Finance Director in 2002 He s a Trustee of
the 8t James's Place Foundanon

External Appomntments

Lay member of the Audit, Risk & Investrnent
Commuttees of the Royal College of Surgeons
of England

David Lamb Ian Gascoigne
Managing Director Managing Director
Date of Appointment Executive Director Date of Appomntment January 2003
December 2007 Joined St James's Place 1991 e
Joined St James's Place 1392
Expenence

Expenence

David 1s Mamaging Director with responsibelity

for Private Client, International and Discretionary
Fund Manzgement business and the Group's
investment business, including the fund range

He1s a Fellow of the Instrtute and Faculty of
Actuaries, having worked 1n the financial sector
since 1979, and has sigmficant experience 1n wealth
management, together with mvestment and
portfolio managernent He is chair of the Investment
Commuttee and a Trustee of the St James’s Place
Foundation

External Appointments

Non-executn e director of The Henderson Smaller
Companees [nvestment Frust plc

Director of the Wealth Management Association
Governor of the Umversity of the West of England

lan 1§ Managing Director responsible for the
management and development of the Partnership
He has worked i the financial services industry
since 1986 and has considerable experience in

the financial advisory space lan 15 a Trustee of the
St James's Place Foundation

External Appointments
Member of the Advisary Board of Loughbarough
University Business School
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Iain Cornish
Semor Independent Non-executive
Drrector

eon

Date of Appointment Semor Independent
Dhrector January 2014

MNon executive Director October 2011

Chair of the Risk Commuttee

Expenience

[am brings expenence from both the financial

and regulatory environments He was a sentor
consultant at KPMG, specialising in the banking
and finance sector, and then served as chref
executive of the Yorkshire Building Soctety

In recent years he hag been an independent director
of the Prudential Regulation Authority and
chairman of the FSA Practitioner Panel

External Appomntments
Charrman of Shawbreok Group plc and non-
executive director of Arrow Global Group ple

Baroness Wheatcroft
Independent Non-executive Director

omn

Simon Jeffreys
Independent Non-executive Director

L L] |

Date of Appointment Non executive Director
January 2014
Chair of the Audit Commuttee

Expenence

Stman brings expenience of the auditig world and
financial services He was a sentor audit partner
with PricewaterhouseCaoopers LLP from 1986 10
2006 where he also led their Global Investment
Management practice Between 2006 and 2014,
Sinon was CFO and Chief Admimstrative Officer
at Fidelity International and then CFO and Chief
Operating Officer at the Wellcome Trust

External Appointments

Chairman of AGN UK Limited, non executive
director and chair of the Audit Cornrmttees of
Henderson International Income Trust plcand
SimCorp A/S, a listed Danush financial services
software company Semior Advisor to
‘Wellcome Trust

Roger Yates
Independent Non-executive Director

[ 1] |

Date of Appointment Non executive Director
Aprl 2012

Expenence

Baroness Wheatcroft brings experience of the
meda and also the legislature Her career has
included editormal roles at both the Sunday
Telegraph and The Times, as well as being
editor-in chuef at the Wall Strect Journal, Eurcpe
She 15 2 member of the House of Lords Her
financial services experience includes previous
appointments as a non executive director of
Barclays Group plc and Shaftesbury ple

External Appomtment.s

Non executve director of Fiat Chrysler
Automobiles Chairman of the Financal Times
Appointments Comrmuittee

Date of Appointment Non executive Director
January 2014
Char of the Remuneration Comrmttee

Experience

Roger brnings over 30 years of investment
management expenence He started his career
with GT Management Lunited 1n 1981 and has
subsequently held positions at Morgen Grenfell,
Invesco and Henderson Group ple, where he was
chief executive officer Most recently, he was
chairman of Electra Private Equity ple untl

5 November 2015 and a non-executive director
of IG Holdings ple, from which he resigned on
15 October 2015

External Appointments

Non executive chairman of Pioneer Global Asset
Management S p A

Non executne director of ] P Morgan Elect plc
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Full hiographical details may be found on
the corporate website at www g)p co uk

11oday o18azeng

| uonEPUNOg ade[d § sauref 1 | |

=
2
=
=
s
=
"

Committee key

® Member of Awdit Commuttec

O Member of Rish Commuttee

B Moember of Remuneration Commmnttee
B Member of Nomination Committee
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

Sarah Bates

Chairman

I am pleased we are reporting to you on a
' good set of results for St. James’s Place plc,

its clients, shareholders, Partners, stcyﬁr and

other stakeholders. 2015 was another year
of political, social and economic turbulence,
but the business has again performed
robustly.’

St James's Place has grown steadily since its foundation 1n 1992 There 15 clearly a sigmficant demand from our
chents for the integrated financial advice and investment approach provided by our Partners QOur challenge 15 to
continue to deliver the support to our Partners to help them deliver what chients value, 1n ways which meet or
exceed their expectations This allows us to continue to grow through high levels of chent satisfactien which leads to
high levels of retention, increasing advocacy and a sound reputation It requires focus on the provision of face-to-face
advice and the integnity of the investment management approach, together with the avoidance of unwise diversions
The world around us changes, of course, and sets us challenges from trme to time, and wll continue to do so

Successfully managing the growth n our community, and nurturing such a pool of talent, 15 a key responsibility for
any organisation and this 15 therefore a key area of interest for the Board We leok to attract, develop and retamn
talented people of both genders, and indeed of diverse skills and mind-sets 1n a wider sense, so as not to unwitungly
exclude any particular group from the opportunities we can offer or deprive ourselves of people who could bring
benefits to our commumty Last year, 1 reported that a group led by Ian Gascoigne would look at patterns of ferale
participation m our workforce, and there 1s more imformation about his progress on page 103 We also continue to
observe the sklis, experience and potential of our people and having expanded the Executive Board at the start of
2015 we are building on these foundations We have also been looking at the skills and experience of the Board and
planming for longer-term succession
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Of course culture 15 key and the Board remains convinced that
maintaining the culture of ‘dong the right thing’ 15 essential for
the successful future of the business That’s not to say that we get
everything nght all the tirme but setting the prmaiple matters

2015 has been a busy year for §t James's Place, and your Board
has been active in 1ts oversight 1 noted last year that ‘we are not
great strategic risk takers’, and we have continued to take a
cauttous approach, to avoid losing focus or expanding beyond
our expertise Qur cere business has continued to grow strongly
and m 2014 we established our longer term 2020 vision which
examned the size of the opportunity available to us by retaining
that focus Cur relatively small steps into Asia and into the DFM
market make use of our core strengths, and the experuse already
developed within our business However, they also allow us to
expand our areas of activity, and the offening to our clents,
without taking undue risk, and over the longer term they may
provide significant opportunittes We have also moved forward
with the development of the new back-office admimstration
system, whach has 1nvolved a significant amount of work on a
large programme The Board 15 mindful that rapid development
1s challenging for any organisation and needs careful
management Further developments will therefore only be
considered in light of our low risk appetite for strategic risk

Whilst our Board has always engaged actively in consideration
of risk management, the mntroduction of Solvency II, the new
Senuor Insurance Managers Regime (SIMR), and the new
Corporate Governance Cede requirements for a ‘robust
assessment of risk’ and a ‘viability statement’, have all resulted
n partricular work this year The Board has spent a considerable
amount of ime engaging wrth and overseeing these processes
As an “insurance group’ we are required to consider our whole
Group inan ORSA This comprehensnve assessment of our
ability to delver to clients over the hifetime of thewr pohees also
provides insight into the risks to delivering for shareholders

We have a conservative approach to managing the balance sheet
with chent habihues and assets being matched Our risk profile
1s therefore less like an insurance company and more comparable
with providers of advice and asset management, with our main
financal risk bemng the potential loss of future value (1 € loss of
the Embedded Value) Consequently, our key risks are nat
financial, but operaticnal and reputational, or put another way
delivery to chents and Partners

63

Thas year we undertook an external Board evaluation The detail
of the evaluation can be found on page 69, but 1n summary we
were pleased that the Board was considered to be working well,
with effective discussions and constructive relationships We
will, however, continue to learn and adapt our trarming and
development programmes are active and bemg supplemented,
and we can make our paperwork more ngorous

Finally, during the course of the year we noted and participated
in a number of publicinitiatives secking to support and develop
Board governance Asa Wealth Management business, we are
interested 1n these initiatives not only as a corporate body but
also in respect of the £58 0 illion of assets we manage on behalf
of our chents The stewardship of these assets 1s very important
and we have been working with both our fund managers and
with our corporate advisers to evolve our future approach Our
own ongomng dialogue with shareholders 15 equally important
and further detail on our activity 1n thus respect can be found on
page 67 It goes without saying that I am always pleased to meet
with shareholders and please do feel free to contact me during

the year

2015 has been another good year for St James's Place and for
your Board, and we are pleased to propose a final dividend of

17 24 pence per share, up 20% 1look forward to supporting the
business in continuing to deliver to chents, Partners, employees

and shareholders 1n 2016

Sarah Bates
Chairman

22 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Make up of the Board and 1ts Commaittees

The Board Rusk

Sarah Bates (Chairman) lain Cornish (Char)
David Bellamy (CEQ) Simon Jeffreys
Andrew Croft Baroness Wheatcroft
David Lamb Roger Yates

lan Gascoigne

lain Cormsh (5ID) Nommnation

Simon Jeffreys
Baroness Wheatcroft

Sarah Bates (Charr)
Tain Cornish

Roger Yates Baroness Wheatcroft
Audit Remuneration
Sumon Jeffreys (Char) Roger Yates (Char)
lain Cornish Simeon Jeffreys
Roger Yates Baroness Wheatcroft
The Role of the Board

Board Leadership

Your Board 15 collectively responsible for the long-term success

of the Company by

* Providing entrepreneurial leadership and direction to the
Company in setting out its strategic aims, visions and values
and overseeing delivery against these,

= Momitoning financal performance and reporting,

* Setting the Company’s risk appetite, assessing the principal
nisks facing the Company and ensuning that adequate controls
are in place to manage nisk effectively,

* Ensuring that the appropriate and effective successton planning
arrangements and remuneration pohces are in place,

* Implementing approprate corporate governance procedures,

* Reviewing major transactions or imtiatives proposed by the
Executives, and

* Deciding the Company’s policy on charitable and political
donations

There 1s a full schedule of matters reserved to the Board and
the Company also maintans a Board Control Manual which
sets out the primary policy and decision-making mechanisms
within the Company This includes terms of reference for the
various Board Commttees, as well as the Company’s risk
pohcies and risk appetite statement Detailed job descriptions
for each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors are also included

Biographical details of the Executive and Non-executive Directors
who make up your Board are set out on pages 60 and 61

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Board Orgamsation and Governance Structure
The Roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive

Sarah Bates was appointed as Chairman of the Board on

1 January 2014 The job descriptions of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, David Bellamy, and the diviston of
responsibilities between them are clearly defined and agreed
by the Board As Chairman, Sarah takes responsibility for the
leadership of your Board, ensuring its continued effectiveness,
and promoting effective communication between the Executive
and Non-executive Directors, as well as with shareholders
generally As Chief Executive, David’s primary responsibility
15 to manage the Comnpany via the executive management team
and rmplement the strategres adopted by the Board

The Sentor Independent Director

lain Cornish was appomted Senior Independent Director in
January 2014 and his job description has been agreed by the
Board The Senior Independent Director acts asa sounding
board and confidant for the Chairman and the Non-executive
Drrectors Iain also ensures he 1s available to meet with
shareholders and raises any shareholder concerns with the
Board that might not be resolved through normal channels

Committees

There are four Non-executive Commuttees of the Board Audit,
Nomination, Remuneration, and Risk The members of each of
these Commuttees are the independent Non-executive Directors,
with the exception of the chair of the Nomnation Commuttee,
which 15 the Chairman of the Company The membership and
terms of reference of each of these Board Commnuttees are
reviewed annually and are available on the corporate website
{www s)p co uk), or on request from the Company Secretary

The Executive Commuttee, (the ‘Executive Board’) comprises
the Executive Directors of the Board and other members of
senior management It s via the Executive Board that operational
matters are delegated to management The Executive Board 15
responsible for communicating and implementing the Group’s
business plan objectives, ensuring that the necessary resources
are 1n place 1n order to achieve those objectives, and managing
the day-to-day operational activities of the Group The terms of
reference for the Executive Board are also regularly reviewed
and are included 1n the Board Control Manual In addition,
there 1s a Disclosure Committee of Executive Directors,
responsible for 1dentifying and determining matters to be
disclosed to the market

Registered No 03183415




There are also a mumber of commuttees below the main Board Committees and these assist the Executive Board in executing its
responsibalities They each have Terms of Reference which set out clearly their delegated authorities and a right of ¢scalation of matters
outside that remt to the Executive Board A table showing the current supporting governance structure 1s set out below

§t. James’s Place plc

St. James’s Place plc Board

Sharcholders

sarah Bates)

ved to Board)

(Matiers reserved for Sharcholder resolution)

IC I Il
Audit Commuttee Risk Committee Executive Board Nommation Committee R(::muner:tnon
(NEDs) (NEDs) (Execs) (NEDs) o(x]:;nl;s)ee
I
{Chair simon [effreys) {Chair lan Cormsh) (Chair Dawid Bellamy) {Chair Sarah Bates) (Chasr Roger Yates)

I

[

il

|

(Char lan MacKenae)

Ad Stee Investment
“Ziou TIng Field ExCo Fimance ExCo Distribution ExCo Chent ExCo Committee
P {Chair lan Gascoigne) {Chair Andrew Croft) (Charr Ian Gascoigne) (Charr 'Wihll Alterman) (IMA)

(Charr Dawid Lamb}

1rodoy 218menQ
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Board Composition

Board $1ze and Composition

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, four independent Non-executive Directors and the Charman (who was
independent on appeintment) There were no changes to the Board durmg 2015 The Directors’ biographies are set out on pages 60
and 61

Independence

When determimng whether a Non-executive Director 15 independent, your Board considers each individual against the critera set
out 1n the Code and also considers how they conduct themselves in Board meetings, including how they exercise judgement and
independent thinking Talang these factors into account, the Board believes that all the Non-executive Directors continue to

demonstrate their independence

In the Remuneration Reportin the 2014 Report and Accounts, we hlghhghted the ownership of New Bridge Street {advisers to the
Remuneration Committee) and confirmed the other busmess relationships that Acn ple (NBS’s parent company) has with the
Company The Board was satisfied that this had no bearing on the independence of NBS as our advisers on remuneration and stated
this on page 77 of the 2014 Report and Accounts

Since the 2014 Report and Accounts, Simon Jeffreys (Non-executive Durector and member of the Remuneration Commuttee) has
become Chair of Aon UK Lirmited, part of the Aon Group of Compamies which also mcludes NBS The Board has now examined the
nature of the relationships between Stmon Jeffreys and NBS as a result of hus position at Aon UK Limited, and 15 satisfied that this has no
effect on the independence of erther party
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONTINUED

Duration qf Appointments

The Chairman and Non-executive Directors are appointed

for a speaified term and the Executive Directors have service
contracts with the Group (copzes of the terms and conditions of
appointment of all Directors are available for inspection at the
registered office address) However, all Directors are subject to
annual re-election by shareholders

Time Commitments

Non-executive Directors are 6xpcctcd to commut at least 15-25
days per annum and 1n practice commit considerably more time
than this The Board 1s satisfied that each of the Non-executive
Drrectors commuts sufficient time to the business of the
Company and further details of work carried out by the
Nomination Committee in this respect 15 set out on page 81

Since her appowntment 1n January 2014, the Chairman has
devoted a significant proportion of her time to the role In
conjunction with the Senior Independent Director, she regularly
assesses her various commitments and continues to manage her
portfolio of other activities to ensure that she has sufficient time
to meet the requirements of the position She currently holds
three other non-executive roles and two Chairmanship roles in
other publicly listed compamnies, however, the Chairmanships and
two of the non-executive roles are with Investment Trusts which
generally require less time commitment than an operational
company, and which provide useful and valuable investment
nsight to Board discussions She has a full attendance record at
the Company’s Board meetings in 2015 and has also attended
twenty Board Committee meetings 1n addition to spending a
substantial amount of time engaging with the business cutside
formal Board and Committee meetings The Board 15 satisfied
that she commuts sufficient time to the business of the Company

Succession Planning and Diversity

The Board has a responsibility to ensure that appropriate
successton plans are in place both for the Board, the Executive
Board and senior management The expansion of the Executwve
Board in 2014 and the restructuring of that Executive Board and
the roles held by 1ts members with effect from the end of 2015
has provided a robust succession plan for the future and this,
together with the Board succession plang, will continue to be
reviewed during 2016

The Board also continued to develop its initiative around patterns

of female participation and diversity in diiferent parts of the Group
and the Partnership and this will continue to be a focus 1 2016

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Board Effectiveness

The Board undertakes a review of its effectiveness each year,
orgamsed by the Chairman At least once every three years this
15 facilitated by an external party and a formal external
evaluation of the Board took place 1n 2015 Further details of the
review and 1ts key findings are set out on page 69

Board Training

Induction

An appropriate induction programme 1s designed to enable all
new Board Directors to meet semor management, understand
the business and future strategy, visit various office locations and
speak directly to Partners and staff around the country as well as
being introduced to other key stakeholders

Continuing Professional Development

The Chairman and Company Secretary also ensure the conthinung
professional development for all your Directors, based on their
individual requiremnents, and a st of tramng carnied out during
the year 1s mantained by the Company Secretary Such tramng
includes topacal 1ssues, visits to head office and other locations to
meet with staff and members of the Partnership and attending
seounars or other events taking place throughout the year In
addition to this, ad hoc tramng 1s set up in the year to deal with
indiwvidual requests and the Non-executive Directors are able to
attend seminars or conferences which they consider will assist
thern in carrying out their duties Non-executive Directors are
briefed on the views of major shareholders at Board meetings and
are provided with the opporturity to meet with shareholders,

as appropriate

Board Functioning

The Chairman 1s responsible for setting the Board Agenda
together with the Chief Executive Officer and the Company
Secretary For each Board meeting, all Board members are
supplied with an agenda and pack contaning speatfic papers on
strategic 1ssues, reports and management information on current
trading, operatonal 1ssues, compliance, risk, accounting and
financial matters The Chairs of the various committees of the
Board report to the Board at each Board meeting and copies of
committee meeting muinutes are included {where approprate) in

the Board packs

To ensure that there 15 sufficient ime for the Board to discuss
matters of a material or more discursive nature, Board dinners
are usually held prior to most scheduled Board meetings, which
allows the Directors greater time to discuss their views

Inaddrtion to the strategic discussion at Board meetings, the
Directors attend two separate Strategy Days each year and, during
2015, these facused on some of the areas set out on page 68
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Culture

The Board exercises oversight over the Company’s culture and regularly considers how both employees and Partners adhere to 1t and
reviews measures to retain the Group’s culture The manner in which employees and Partners can adhere to the culture1s setoutna
sertes of ‘Our Approach’ decuments, including The Spirit of the Partnership

Company Secretariat
Directors have access to the advice of the Company Secretary at all times, as well as independent professional advice where needed in

order to assist them in carrying out their duties

Relations with Shareholders
The Company mamntains close relationships with mstitutional shareholders through dialogue and frequem meetings, and meets
regularly with the Group’s brokers who facihtate mestings with investors and their representatives

During 2015, sharcholder interaction included giving shareholder roadshows, where the Chief Executive Officer and the Chuef
Financial Officer presented the Company’s full year and half year results to mvestors, attending nvestor conferences and holding
general imvestor meetings and conference calls

"The Chief Financial Officer provides feedback to the Board on any material topics raised 1n these meetings and Board members also
receive copies of the latest analysts’ and brokers’ reports on the Cornpany, and will attend shareholder and/or analyst meetings from
tme to time

The Chawrman, Senior Independent Director and other Non-executive Directors are available for consultation with shareholders on
request and will be available after the Company’s Annual General Meeting which wili be held on Wednesday, 4 May 2016, further
details of which are set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting The Chairman wrote to major shareholders in 2015, to make
sure they had contact details for her, the SID and the new Chairman of the Remuneration Comimittee, and to ask 1f any major
shareholder had specific comments or queries No such comments or queries were made The Chairman and Non-executive
Directars also attended the Capital Markets Day and post results analysts’ briefings She will be attending a number of shareholder
meetings with the executive team 1n 2016

Board Meetings and Focus During 2015

Meetngs
During the year, seven formal Board meetings were held and there were two additional Board Strategy meetings There were also

twenty Board Comrmuttee meetings

Attendance at both Board and Board Commuttee meetings 1s set out below Board and Commuttee Attendance mn 2015

yrioday o1801e03¢

Member Plc Board Audit Risk Remuneration Nomination
Sarah Bates 77 — — - 3 (3
David Bellamy 7(7) - — - —
lain Cormish 7(7) 7(7) 77 — 3(3)
Andrew Croft 7(7 — - - -
Ian Gascoigne 7N - - - -
Simon Jeffreys 7(7 707 7(7) 3(3) -
David Lamb 7(H - - — -
Baroness Wheatcroft 7(7) — 70 3 (3) 3(3)
Roger Yates 7N 7(7) 7N 3(3) -

Note The number in brackets denotes the number of mectings that the Board members were eligible to attend
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CONTINUED

In addinion, the independent Non-executive Directors met .
without the Executive Directors but with the Chairman three
times during the year, and also met once without the Chairman

Board Activities During 2015

A summary of some of the topics considered by the Board during
2015 15 set out below and 1n the Chairman’s Report on pages 62
and 63 Reports on the activines of each of the Board
Commuttees during 2015 are set out on pages 70 to 83

Highlights of 2015 Board Business
The following provides an overview of the key matters
considered by the Board 1n 2015

Reviewed and approved the ORSA required under the new
Solvency 11 regime, further details of which are set out on
page 41,

Conducted a deep dive on the Company’s risk strategy and
progress against plan, monitored the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems and carried outa
review of their effectiveness (see page 62 for a report on that
review), and

Oversaw the project to upgrade the Group’s back-office
admimstration systems, as discussed in the Report and
Accounts for 2014, and also risks 1n relation to third party
outsourcing arrangements

Governance
Strategy The Board
The Board + Considered and received training on the impending

* Discussed possible future financial market behaviours, with
an external speaker,

* Considered the strategic direction of ats Investment
Management Approach taking into account market and
polinical conditions, the scale of funds under management
together with proposed industry and product developments,
risks and constraints,

* Recerwved regular updates and discussed the changing landscape
n relation to pensions and the Government's Pensions Reforms
together with the Financial Advice Market Review,

* Considered and approved the acquisition of Rowan Dartington,
a discretionary fund manager, which acquisiion has received
regulatory approval and will be completed imminently,

*+ Approved the launch of a new Money Management Account
through Metrobank,

* Conducted ‘deep dives’ on the strategies relating to
— clients and clhient outcomes,

— the Partnership,

— capacrty and capability,

— sk, and

— expenses
* Reviewed and approved a new Partner Share Option scheme,
* Receved updates on progress of the Asian operations, and

1mplementauon of the Senior Insurance Managers P\eglme
and approved the Governance Maps for the Group and SfPUK
(a key requirement of the regime) that were submitted to the
PRA at the end of 2015,

Worked to ensure, via s various reporting forums, that the
Group camphed with all of its obhgations and responsibihities
under UK Company Law as well as the revised UK Corporate
Governance Code,

As noted mn the Audit Committee report, reviewed the
financial statements and considered they were indeed fair,
balanced and understandable, and that they provide the
necessary clarity required by shareholders to sufficiently
understand the business,

Considered the new requirement for a ‘viabihity statement’ to
be included in the Report and Accounts together with the most
appropriate timeframe on which to base its viabihity statement,
further details of which are set out on page 42,

Cormmissioned and participated 1n an external evaluation of
the effectiveness of the Board and its Commuttees generally
Details of the evaluation are set out en page 69, and

Internal individual peer reviews were also conducted with
each Director

* Approved the Company’s Business Plan for 2015 Succession and Dlversity
The Board
Rusk Management * Spent considerable time reviewing the Group'’s succession

The Board

* Undertook a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the Group, mn accordance with C 2 3 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, ncluding those that would threaten its
business model, future performance, sclvency or hqudity
{see pages 43 to 47 for description of these risks and how they
are being managed or miugated) and approved the Group’s
Risk Framework and the Group's Risk Appetite Statement
(see also the report of the Risk Commuittee on pages 77 to 79),

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

plans through the Nomination Comrmttee, looking to ensure
the continued development of semor management and
agreeing to the proposed restructuring of the Executive
Board members’ respensibilities as outhned on page 81, and
Noted the estabhshment of a group to review patterns of
female particrpation in the organisation
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Finance, Regulatory and Statutory

The Board-

* Receiwved regular updates on extensive regulatory changes
including Solvency Il and the Senior insurance Managers
Reg]me mentioned above,

* Was presented with a deep-dive on the Group's expenses,

* Had regular contact with the Group’s regulators to ensure
effective and appropriate engagements with them, with the
FCA also attending a Board meeting during the year, and

= Approved the Annual Report and the shareholder notice of
Annual General Meeting

Training

During the year all the Directors 1dentified and undertook
relevant training based on their individual requirements They
also attended a specific training day covering S|P products and
services, SJP funds, Governance and Resolution Planning In
addition, during 2015 the Non-execunive Directors dentified
areas that they particularly wished to receive training and
development including meeting Partners and vistang Locations
and attending Executive Commuttee meetings

2015 Board Effectiveness Review

Last year we conducted an internal evaluanion of the Board’s
effectiveness (the results of which were set out in last year’s
Report and Accounts) and I am pleased to say that we have made
good progress m relation to the key actions arising from that
review This included setung aside time at future Board meetings
to discuss 1ssues 1n more depth, and further training and
development for Non-executive Directors

As mentroned earlier 1n this Report, 1n 2015 the Board undertook
an external evaluation, which was conducted by Sean O"Hare
from Boardroom Dialogue Boardroom Dialogue also provided
some advice on long term succession planning Sean O’Hare wasa
partner i the Human Resource Services Group at PwC but
retired on 31 December 2013 and thus his independence was not
affected He does not have any other connections with, nor has
undertaken any other work for, the Group

This review focused on 1dentifying where the Board was working

well and areas for improvement It was conducted between

August and December and consisted of

= 11 interviews with each of the members of the Board, key
executives, the Company Secretary and the Audit Partner
from PwC,

* Observanon of Board and Commuttee meetings held over the
period, and

* A review of the Board and Commuttee agendas, minutes and
papers for the previous 12 months

69

The findings of the 2015 review were that the Board was working
well, considering the rght topics in a timely basis with an
appropriate level of challenge The Non-executive Directors were
conscaentious and prepared thoroughly for Board and Commuttee
meetings and the management team received value from, and were
influenced by, the Non-executive Directors’ contributions

Therefore, overall this was a positive report reflecting that the
Board had made good progress in the last three years and there
were no major 1ssues or concerns that were not already under
consideration However, to improve Board effectiveness further,
the main areas to focus on were

* Enhancing Board engagement by considering additional
informal meetings involving Board members, keeping
Non-executive Directors updated on 8JP communications
events and increasing engagement at shareholder meetings,
and contimung to enhance the quality of, and focus on,
strategic discussions,

* Improving meeting administration to streamline the format
and volume of information going to the Board and the
timeliness of papers, improving the scheduling of certain
Audit Commuttee meetings, reviewing attendance by
management at meetings and reviewing the secretariat
support for the Board Commuttees and the Executive Board,

* Engaging further in Board development by building on
the current training for Non-executive Directors through
further briefing sessions on more complex areas of the
business and reviewing and updating the induction process
for Non-executive Directors, and

* Building on existing long term succession planning to ensure
continued discussion on thus topic at Board level and greater
visibility to the Board of succession plans below the Board and
the Executive Board

The Company will report on the progress of the above action
plan 1n the 2016 Report and Accounts

During 2015, the Chairman also assessed the individual
performance of each member of the Board, by way of a
questionnatre and individual discussions, to consider performance
and establish Board related objectives Traimng and development
needs for 2016 were also identfied and the output from these
reviews will be taken into account 1n drawing up the Board
effectiveness plan for 2016

Comphance with the UK Corporate

Governance Code
The Board’s statement of compliance with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code 2014 15 set ont on page 100
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Simon feffreys
Chair of the Audit Commuttes

Role of the Committee in Summary

* To be responsible for the accuracy and integrity of the
Group’s financial statements,

* To oversee the work of the external auditor and consider its
reports,

= To monitor the work of the Internal Audit function and
ensure its effectiveness,

* To momtor the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
and risk management,

* To review, and where appropriate refer on to the Board, any
signuficant control failures, and

* To report to the Board on how the Commuittee has discharged
1ts responsibihities

Audit Committee Members
Sunon Jeffreys (Chair)

lain Cormish

Roger Yates

5T JAMES’S PLACE PLCANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 20t5

1 am pleased to present the report of the Audit Commuttee of
St James’s Place ple for the year ended 31 December 2015

As sharehclders will be aware, the Audit Commuittee has
numerous obligations to the Board and shareholders, including
assisting the Board 1n1ts monitoring of both the financal
reporting process, and the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control, 1nternal audit and nsk management systems

The Commuttee 15 also responsible for momtoring the statutory
audit of the annual report and the consolhdated financal
statements, and the independence of the Group’s statutory
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) In carrying out
these duties, the Commuittee must maintain an effective
relationship with the external auditors and pay due regard to any
findings and cenclusions resulting from external inspections of
previous audits and the results of our internal evaluation of the
effectiveness of prior year audits

A further duty of the Commuttee 15 to provide advice to the Board
that the Company’s financial reparts, taken asa whole, provide a
fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
financial position and results, and that they provide the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
financial position and performance, business model and strategy

A key activity of the Commuttee 1n 2015 was reviewing the
annual and half yearly Report and Accounts, assocated
announcements and the external auditor’s reports Engagement
with the Internal Audit function, and partrcularly development
of the Internal Audit plan for the year, momtoring progress of
the plan and considering the results from all Internal Audit
activity was also 1mp6rtant, as was maintenance of an
appropriate relationship with the Company’s external auditors

Thus report sets out how the Comrnittee has discharged these,
and its other dutes, through 2015

Simon Jeffreys
On behalf of the Audit Commattee
22 March 2016
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Committee Membership During 2015

Commuttee members are unchanged since January 2015 and, 1n accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, comprise
three independent Non-executive Directors This remains the case as at the date of this report The Board 1s satisfied that all
members have the experience and qualifications necessary to successfully perform their roles, noting m particular that the Chair of
the Commuttee 15 a quahfied accountant and former auditor, and other members also have recent and relevant financial experience

and expertise

Details of attendance of Commuttee members at the meetings of the Audit Committee throughout the year can be found on page 67
Additional invited attendees to the meetings during the course of the year included the Chairman, the Chief Financial Officer, the
Drrector of Internal Audit, the Corporate Actuary and other members of the Finance team, as well as representatives from the
external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP The Chief Executive Officer and the Group Risk Director both attended a joint
meeting of the Audit and Risk Commuttees held 1 May 2015

Committee Activities During 2015

Financial Reporting

The Commuttee reviewed both the annual and half-year Report and Accounts, together with the associated reports from the external
anditors An early draft of the Annual Report was discussed at the November meeting and the Commuttee held early discussions on
key disclosures including material assumptions, key judgements, changes since 2014 and sigmficant events and activities during 2015
The Commuttee reflected both on positive developments and challenges during the year The topics chscussed were driven both by
consideration of risk of mus-staternent of the accounts, and also by assessment of the scale of risk in the busmess

Given the nature of our business, there are certain areas which are always relevant and important, particularly valuation of assets and
actuartal reserving assumptions Other topues reflect the business experience mn the year During 2015 the activity has meluded

Area of Focus Activity
Asset Valuation (Particularly Property and Derivatives) Further to a request by the Audit Committee, semor management
presented on asset valuation systems and controls, with particular
focus on property and derivatives, but also outliming the process
of audit of Unut Trusts As a result the Comrittee was able to
conclude that the processes were appropriate and would provide
rehable finanaal information

Actuarial Reserving Assumptions (Including Persistency In hine with practice of recent years, Committee members
Assumptions in Relation to EEY and Solvency II Reporting) engaged n a separate briefing session to review the expenence
analys:s underlying demographic assumptions, and also reviewed
the key economic assumptions to be used 1n valuations This
prompted detailed discussion of the various judgements, and
resulted 1n a common understanding of, and agreement on
= The impact of changes n the pension market and chent
behaviour on persistency of pension business, and
+ The outlook for future maintenance expenses in light of the
new admanistration contract

Fraud 1n Revenue Recognition During the course of 1ts regular work, the Commuttee reviewed
the relevant policies and received regular reports from
management and internal /external audit on the controls

Management Override of Controls Much of the work of the Commuttee was directly or indirectly
focused on management and controls This included review of
systems of controls, reports on the self-assessment activity, and
external review, including internal audit co-sourcng

FSCS Levy As thus levy was such a sigmificant rtem 1n the first half of the year,
the Commuttee discussed the appropriate level of provision and
potential implications for the business 1n the future, concluding
that the reporting was appropriate
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Area of Focus Actrvity

Deferred Tax Assets from Legacy Caprtal Losses Follow1ng the identification of significant tax losses in legacy
compames, the Committee requested information about the
timing of recognition and realisation of this tax asset and
any risks which could impair its value The Committee also
considered the communtcation and reporting of these losses,
including engaging in discussion with external advisers, which
enabled #t to support management’s recommended approach
See further detail on page 28

The Commuttee also considered the expected use of tax losses
wdentrfied 1n earlier years, and reviewed other deferred tax assets
and habilines

Migration of UT and 15A Business to the The Commuttee discussed the migration testing strategy and

Bluedoor Administration Systemn work, targeted Internal Audit work on this important project
and receved reports prepared by both management and external
consultants Furthermore, members of the Commuttee attended
governance meetings to ensure the processes were robust, and
reviewed the results of dry runs The Commuittee concurred
with management’s decision to migrate UT and ISA business to
the new system, which was successfully completed 1n October

Revised Contract with IFDS As part of the final approval process for a new contract with
IFDS, the Commttee carried out an oversight review of
management’s review of the contract and in particular the
financials The Commuttee also discussed the imphications for
financial reporting, and in particular agreed with management
on the recogmtion 1n the financial statements, and the
recoverability, of a pre-payment for development costs that will
be recognised over the lifetime of the contract

Acquisition of Rowan Dartington The Comimittee reviewed and agreed the proposed approach
to consolidation of the additional entity and reporting of the
transaction costs and intangibles

New Partner Share Option Scheme During the year the business decided to offer a new share
option scheme to SIP Partners to support retention and
promaote productivity of our most successful Pariner businesses
The Commttee supported the proposed approach to financial
statement disclosure

Developments 1n relation to cyber security controls were considered by the Risk Commuttee as part of its discussions around the
Group’s risk appetite in this area of mcreasing risk
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Thas year was also sigmficant for Financial Reporting and Regulatory changes within the industry, with a number of key areas for the

Commaittee to consider

Area of Focus

Activaty

Solvency Il (In Conjunction with the Risk Commttee)

UK GAAP Update

2014 UK Corporate Governance Code
{Inclucding Viability Statement)

EU Audit Directive

New Busmess Metrics (APE — Annual Premium Equivalent)

Final preparations were made during the year, ready for
implementation n January 2016 The Committee was informed
of progress mn the project, including monitoring of the project and
reports by Internal Audit, and considered the potential impact on
corperate reporting The Commuttee also approved the approach
taken to reporting Solvency Il information 1n the year-end Report
and Accounts

As part of 1ts regular review of developments 1n accounting
standards, the Commuttee assessed and supported the move to
adopting FRS 101 for most of the Group companies

As well as monrtoring developments with the FRC, the
Commuttee considered the changes requured to satisfy the 2014
UK Corporate Governance Code In particular the Commattee
discussed and agreed the approach to the viability statement

Although national implementation of the EU Audit Directive 1s
yet to be completed, the Commttee has anticipated the hikely
implications and has updated the Group’s Policy on auditor
mndependence accordingly

Following developments in industry reporting, the Group
decided to stop reporting performance on the APE measure
The Commuttee was invelved 1n reviewing the proposed change
and considering any potentral risks

yaodoayr 018a3en3g

‘Farr, Balanced and Understandable’ Opmron
The UK Corporate Governance Code requires the Board to give 1ts opinion as to whether 1t considers the Company’s Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, provide a farr, balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s position, and that they provide
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's positicn and performance, business model and strategy

To aid the Board, the Audit Commuttee carried out a formal review of the Report and Accounts in relation to this requirement,
cluding a consideration of the results of activities and information described above In particular, the Commuttee reflected on the

following questions
Does the report present the whole story, mncluding challenges and 1ssues faced as well as Company achievements?

Does the report achieve consistency between the financtal statements and the narrative sections?

Are appropriate performance measures included and clearly explamned?

Are key Judgements and estimation uncertainties in the financral statements explained and are they consistent with the Audit
Committee report and the risks the external auditor mtends to include n its report?

Does the report have a clear and cohesive structure?

Is the report readable and are the :mportant messages highlighted appropriately?
Are explanations of business models, strategies and accounting policies clear?

Following this review, the Committee was able to advise the Board that the Company’s Report and Accounts for the year ended

31 December 2015 are indeed fair, balanced and understandable
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

External Auditor

CONTINUED

The Commuttee has responsibihity for the work of the external auditors of the Company

The auditors attended all Audit Committee meetings, and reported on their work The Charr of the Committee also met regularly

with the Semior Statutory Auditor

The Audit plan was presented, discussed and agreed with the Audit Commattee at the October meeting, setting cut the activity
planned and the major risks identified Regular progress updates were presented at the November and January meetings, with a full

report presented at the conclusion of the audit in February The Commuttee discussed the ﬁndmgs from the work under the headings
of the major risks as set out in the originat Audit plan and members applied their understanding of the scope of work, findings,

judgements and conclusions of the external audit 1n their evaluation that the financial statements had been propetly prepared

Durning the year the Commuttee developed a revised Policy on Auditor Independence The new palicy 15 available on the Company
website The policy makes clear the types of non-audit work which are prohibited, and our rebust policy of only engaging our auditor
for himited non-audit work, where there 1s no risk of compromising independence, and where 1t 15 appropriate to do so

The pohicy also sets out St James's Place’s commutment to regular rotation of the auditors, taking 1nto account both the EU and
Competition and Markets Authority rules In particular the Commuttee 1s commutted to reviewing the performance of the auditor every
year, and considening whether a change 15 required

The Committee used their expenence and the following additional information to assess the effectiveness, independence and
objectivity of the Company’s external auditor

Area of Focus

Activity

Anditor Effectiveness

.

Auditor Independence and
Objectivity

Level of Fees

* The findings of the annual review by the FRC of the main auditing firms

* The Audit Quality Review report on PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF speafically

* The outcome of the review by the FRC of the 2014 audit of the Company — the Commuttee
reviewed the comments, discussed them with PwC and was satisfied with the outcome

* The expenence and knowledge of the team (with due regard to the requirement for regular

rotation of audit team members)
* Results of an internal survey of auditor performance

* Results of the review of the 2014 Annual Report and Accounts, which was used to inform

the Commuttee’s review of the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts

* Review of the nature and extent of other ‘non-audit’ work undertaken to confirm

comphance with our policy

* Review by S]P to confirm no links or investments with the Company by the Audit Team

* Regular rotation of Audit Team
* Appropriate considerations when recrurting a former audit partner

Detailed information on the breakdown of fees paid to our external audit firm 15 provided n

Note 6 of the Accounts on page 134

As a result of this work, the Commuttee concluded that the audit service of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was fit for purpese and
provided a robust evaluation of the risks underlying the Company’s financial statements As a consequence it was agreed that 1t was
not necessary to tender the audit during the year However, since PwC was appointed as auditor 1n 2008, 1t 15 expected that, in the
best interests of shareholders, the audit will be tendered during 2016 in respect of the 2017 year-end audit; (though this need not
result 1n a change of audit firm) ‘We will need to change audit firm at least by 2027 Having rotated our Semor Statutory Audrtor in
2014, we will also at least require a further rotation by 2019 Taking into account these plans and disclosure, we beheve that we
comply with the provisions of the Statutory Audit Services Qrder
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Internal Audit
The Commuttee 15 responsible for monitoring the work of the internal Audit function and its effectiveness The Director of Audit has

regular access to the Chairman of the Audit Commmuttee and the Board and 15 accountable to the Audit Commttee

During the year the Commuttee reviewed and approved the Audit Charter, as required by the standards of the IIA (Institute of
Internal Auditors), and confirmed the updated document complies with the imternal audit policy requirements of the Solvency I1
directive The Internal Audit function also presented pertodic reviews of the skills and capabiliies within the team  The Commttee
encouraged the Director of Audit to put in place a formal co-sourcing agreement and Deloitte LLP was chosen for this purpose after
a competitive selection process Co-sourcing provides speciahist expertise and additional resources to maintain and enhance the level

of assurance

The work plan for the Internal Audit function was agreed at the start of the year, and progress was monitored through the year,

with particular focus on whether the team had the necessary resources to implement the plan in a timely manner The Commuttee
encouraged an external quality assessment of the Internal Audit function, which was conducted by independent consultants

This confirmed complance with the International IIA standards to which the function 15 benchmarked and the Code for Effective
Internal Audits 1n Financial Services There were a number of minor recommendations to improve the effectiveness and resihience of
the mternal audit function and the Commuttee ensured that appropriate changes were made

Rusk based Internal Audit work during the year has focused on several themes 1dentified at the planming stage with the Commuttee,
for example

Area of Focus Activity

Governance * Delegations of authority across the Group
* Management of conflicts of interest

Major Change Initiatives + Admumstration system — extensive coverage of the programme
to upgrade the Group’s back-office admimistration systems
* Solvency I — speaific auduts to ensure preparedness for
comphance 1n 2016

Core Comphance and Regulatory Risk Audits * Complamts handling and case checking of written business
* Praud controls

Management of Third Parties and Outsourced * Review of rnsk and control management at IFDS and Capita
Service Providers *+ General audit coverage of other key third parties
Other Key Operational Risks * Business continuity planning — including oversight of

third party administrators
* Information technology — review of data quality

When recerving regular updates from the Director of Internal Audit 1n relation to the results from completed audits, the Commattee
pad careful attention to any areas where the audit led to remedial zction being recommended The actions anising were monitored to
ensure completion In practice, 86% (2014 85%) of actions were completed in line with the original agreed deadlines, with the rest
expected to be completed by appropriately agreed revised deadlines

System of Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibality for the Company’s system of mternal controls, the ongomg monitoring of nsk and internal
control systems and for reporting on any significant failling or weaknesses The Audit Commuttee and Risk Committee work closely
together to support the Board in this responsibiity, with the Board having delegated responsibility to the Audit Commuttee for
reviewing the effectiveness and momitoring of the ‘risk and internal controls framework’, and responsibility te the Risk Commuttee
for oversight of risk management The Risk Committee therefore provides regular updates to the Audit Committee on the status of

risk management 1o the Group
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

The Group adopts the ‘three lines of defence model’ as the design basis for 1ts internal control framework and the process for
reviewing the effectiveness of the framework takes account of this model as follows

Area of Focus Activity
First Line — Operations * Control Self-Assessment attestation from management
* Attestation by sigmficant third party supphers of outsourced
administration services
* CEQ attestation to the Board Audit Commuttee on the first
hne operatrons

Second Line — Risk Management and Controls * Control assessments
— ‘Risk control’ self-assessments,

— Compliance monitoring, and
— Business assurance ‘thematic reviews’
* Review led by the Controls Manager at half year and year-end
«  CEO attestation to the Board Audit Commuttee on the second
line, risk management functions
* Reports from the Board Risk Commuttee

Third Line — Audit * Internal Audit ongoing actwvity, mncluding reviews by external
organisations, managed by Internal Audit (e g KPMG file
reviews)

* External Audit acavity
* Internal Audit — Internal Control Evaluation report

In summary, the Chief Executive has ultimate responsibility for the first two hnes of defence and uses his knowledge of the business,
and that of his senior management team, to provide an opimion on the control systems Separately, Internal Audit provides an
independent opinion (the Internal Control Evaluation report), from a third hine perspective, based on Internal Audit activity
conducted throughout the year and Internal Audit’s further 2nalysis and appraisal of the outputs from a wide range of other sources

These sources of assurance assist the Audit Committee in completing 1ts annual review and enable the Audit Commiuttee to attest on
behalf of the Board that 1t has been able to properly review the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control in
accordance with the 2014 FRC Guidance on risk management, internal control and related financial and business reporting The
Audit Commuttee did not identafy any ‘sigmificant failings or weaknesses” and it has ensured that corrective action 15 being taken on
matters anising from the review

Other Activity

The Chair of the Commutiee acts as the key contact for the Whistleblowing Pohicy and will be the whistleblowers” champion under
the Semor Insurance Managers Regime The Committee has reviewed whistleblowing arrangements m hght of the PRA policy
staternent in October 2015 and will oversee the amendments and communications required prior to the new rules coming into force

on 7 Septermnber 2016

Self-Assessment

As part of the annual process of Board evaluation, the Committee considered its overall performance during the year Overall the
Commuttee judged itself to be effective, but consideration was given to the possibility that, as both the Audit and Risk Commuttees
fulfil ssrmlar oversight roles, there could be duphcation As a result, formal arrangements have been introduced to further strengthen
the working relationship, including ensuring that the Chairs of the Audit and Risk Commuttees haise on agendas

The Commuttee was also mcluded m the Board Evaluation process and no material 1ssues were hiphlighted in respect of 1ts operation

The terms of reference, which were revised 1n 2015 and which set out the Commuttee’s role and authority, can be found on the

corporate website at www sp co uk
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REPORT OF THE RISK COMMITTEE

Iaimn Cormush
Charr qf the Risk Commuttee

Role of the Commuittee 1n Summary

* To foster a culture of effective risk 1dentification and
management throughout the Group,

= To provide leadership, direction and oversight of the Group’s
management of risk,

* To review the prinaipal risks affecting the Group and the
ways 1n which the risks are controlled and mitigated,

* To provide oversight of the Own Rusk and Solvency
Assessment process, and

* To report any material areas of concern to the full Board

Risk Comamittee Members
lain Cormsh (Chair)

Simon Jeffreys

Baroness Wheatcroft

Roger Yates

Fostering a culture of effectve risk management s of the utmost
rmportance to the Directors The Risk Commattee 15 a sub-
commuttee of the Board, the remit of which 1s to assist the Board
n developing this culture, by providing leadershup, direction and
oversight of the Group's management of risk

In carrying out this remit, the Commuttee’s key activittes 1n 2015
included

Overseeing preparations for the implementation of the
Solvency 11 Directive alongside the Audit Commuittee,
Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management 1n the Group and the risk management
funcoons,

Reviewing the principal risks and uncertainties affecting the
Group as well as the nisk appetite,

Considering reports produced by the Group’s Risk and
Compliance functions, to monitor the ongoing compliance
mteraction with the Group’s regulators, and

Receving presentations from members of senior management
about thetr business areas and reviewing the management of
the assocated risks

The following report sets out 1n more detail the Commuttee’s key
activities in 2015

Tamn Cornish
On behalf of the Risk Committee
22 March 2016
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REPORT OF THE RISK COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Committee Membership During 2015

All members of the Risk Commuittee have considerable financial,
risk and/or other relevant expertence and are independent
Non-executive Directors There have been no changes to the
membership of the Risk Commuttee during 2015 Detals of
attendance at the meetings of the Risk Commuttee throughout
the year can be found on page 67

Regular attendees at Committee meetings during the year
mcluded the Chief Executive, the Managing Director, the Group
Risk Director, the Chief Finanaial Officer, the Comphance
Officer and the Chief Actuary As Chairman of the Board, Sarah
Bates also attended all Risk Commuttee meetings during 2015

Committee Activities During 2015

A key focus for the Committee during 2015 has been oversight of
the implementation of Solvency Il requirements The Commuttee
set the strategy for the performance of a single, Group-wide,
ORSA and had conttnued mvolvement 1n this progess throughout
the year In particular, the Commuttee discussed the underlying
basis and assumptions, the nature and results of stress and
scenario tests, the assessment of operational nsks, key risk
management policies and the content of the Narrative Report,
ORSA report and viability statement It also received regular
reports an project progress

Animportant element of the work of the Commuttee 15 to
consider reports from senior executives and external consultants
on speafic topcs, including key corporate instiatives The
Commuttee spent time discussing management of the associated
risks, and provided challenge to the executives responsible
Topics considered 1n 2015 included

*  Cyber-security threats, the Group's defences and industry
best-practice The Commuttee considered the Group’s nsk
appetite, current level of maturity, and developments to
controls and awareness in this area of increasing risk,

* The Group’s financial crime prevention controls The
Commuttee considered the risks associated with overseas
clients and the due diligence required for such individuals,
and recerved an update on finaneial crime prevention controls
in the Asian subsidiaries In a separate discussion, the
Commuttee considered the financial crime prevention
strategy over the next five years, to ensure controls remain
effective i hight of a changing external risk environment and
increasing complexity within the Group,

* The progression of the project underway to implement the
Group's new admimstration platform The Commuttee
considered the financaial and contractual risks associated with
the development, and focussed on the controls operating
within the project, including quality gates in place at key
decision pomts,

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

*  Oversight of third party admimstrators, including the
potential impact on chents of any 1ssues expenenced by those
administrators and how these are mitigated The Commuttee
considered the controls 1n place to ensure correct handling
of chent money, discussing the implementation of new chent
assets regulations and the impact of the new administration
platform on the handling of client money The nature of the
Group’s oversight of cutsourced relationships was also
considered,

* The potential risks associated with the acquisition of Rowan
Dartington, with subsequent discussions around the process
of ahgning the two businesses, following the Board'’s decision
to proceed with the acquisition,

* The nature of client complaints and the way 1n which these
are handled and resolved The Commuttee also considered the
reporting of complaints, both within the Group and to
regulators,

* The approval process for new Partners, in particular the
checks that are carried out duning the recruitment process
and subsequent monitoring of new recruts,

* The political landscape 1n the UK, including the implications
of changes to pension legslation and potential impacts on the
Group from a Greek Euro exit or a Briish exit from the EU,
and

*+ The regulatory environment and management of key risks
within the Asian subsidiaries, including the progress towards
full integration of the acquired business into the S]P Group
and continued enhancements to controls and resource levels

Thrs gave the Commuttee the opportunity to ensure that risks
are being addressed and to test that the culture of risk
wdentification and management 1s embedded

Oversight of the Risk Management Framework 1s key to delivery
of the responsibihities of the Commuttee Further information
about the nsk framework can be found on pages 40 10 42 The
framework and associated documents are subject to annual
review, and in 2015, the Commuttee has focused on embedding
the changes made 1n 2014 In particular, the nisk appetite
statement has been realigned to reflect key drivers of the
business chents, Partners, the Investment Management
Approach, shareholders, regulators and our people This
represents an evolution of the existing statements, and there has
been no fundamental shuft 1n the underlying risk appetite of the
Group The set of indicators used by the Commattee to regularly
moniter performance against risk appetite has been aligned to
the new statement, as has the record of the top risks to the
Group Both have been regularly reviewed by the Commattee

du ring the year Further enhancements to the Risk Management
Framework have been 1dentified and will be implemented
during 2016

Registered No 03183415



The Commnuttee 15 supported 1n 1ts oversight of the Risk
Management Framewaork by Risk Management teams at Group
and local levels, and the Commttee spends a sigmficant
proportion of its ime receiving updates from the Group Risk
Director and the Head of Division — Group Risk, who both have
direct access to the Chairman of the Risk Commuttee should the
need arse The Commuttee 15 also able to review and provide
challenge on the implementation of nsk mitigaton 1n the business

As part of its oversight of risk management 1n the business, the

Commuttee also continued to receive and review reports from 2

number of Executive Commuttees and other functions in the

Group, mcluding

* Reports relating to relevant topics discussed at Group Rask
Executive and Finance Executive Committee meetings,
where executive oversight 1s given to the appropriateness and
observance of the Group’s Risk Appetite,

= Reports produced by the Compliance Oversight and Business
Assurance functions in respect of thematic reviews carried
out 1nto spearfic areas of the Group’s business,

* Reports from the Group Risk Director on the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management systems, and

+ Anannual report from the Money Laundering Reporting
Officer on the anti-money laundering, bribery and fraud
activities taking place within the Group

Since most of the activity within the Group 15 regulated, the
Commuttee also considered regular updates on the Group’s
ongong interactions with regulators, including the Prudentral
Regulation Authority, Financial Conduct Authority, Central
Bank of Ireland, Monetary Authority of Singapore, Securities
and Futures Commussion of Hong Kong and Office of the
Commussioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, and the wader
regulatory interactions with firms 1n the financial services
marketplace This allowed 1t to momitor ongoing comphance
with regulation

The Committee was also included in the Board Evaluation
process and no matertal 1ssues were highhghted in respect of
1ts operation

The terms of reference, which were revised 1in 2015 and which
set out the Commuttee's role and authonty, can be found on the
corporate website at www s5)p co uk
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REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Commuttee plays a crucial role 1n ensuring that
the structure and composition of the Board (inclucing the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity) 15 appropriate to continue

to lead the Group and achteve 1ts strategic objectives

The Committee must also ensure that the skills and attrmibutes
necessary at those levels immediately below the Board are
also constantly reviewed, 1n order to ensure that there 1s an
appropriate and talented succession pipehine There has been
considerable focus on succession planning 1n this respect,
continuing the work carried out last year (and referred to1n
the 2014 Report and Accounts) and reflected 1n the further
development of the Executive Committee and the roles of its
members over the last year

The Commttee has devoted time to reviewing diversity
within the Group and some good progress has been made
The Commuttee has also been engaged 1n the external Board

Sarah Bates Evaluation process which has been designed to highlight what

CHair of the Nomination Commastee the Board and 1ts Commuttees do well and any key areas for
improvement Further details of the Board Evaluation can be
found on page 69

Thus report provides further details of the work undertaken
Role of the Committee in Summary during the year

* To regularly review Board and Commuttee composition
and structure,
+ Toidennfy, report on and recommend for Board approval,

suitable candidates for appontment to the Board, Sarah Bates
= To appropriately consider succession planmng for Directors On behalf of the Nomination Commttee
and senior management, taking into account diversity, 22 March 2016

experience, knowledge and skalls, and
» To report to the Board on the work of the Commuttee

Nomination Committee Members
Sarah Bates (Chaur)

lain Cornish

Baroness Wheatcroft
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Committee Membership During 2015

The members of the Committee remained unchanged during
2015 and up to and including the date of this report Details of
attendance at the meetings of the Nomination Comimnittee
throughout the year can be found on page 67

Committee Actrivities During 2015

In 2015, a continued key area of focus was reviewing succession
plans for the Executive Good progress has been made 1n this
respect and the further restructuring of the Executive Board

and the reargamsation of functional responsibilities at the end of
the year has marked the continued development of a platform for
future succession Succession planning will continue to evolve

during 2016

The Commuttee contiued to keep the composition and structure
of the Board and 1ts various Commattees under review In
particular, looking to ensure that the existing skills, knowledge,
experience, diversity and independence of the various members
remained appropriate both now and 1n the future, as well as
considering whether there was any requirement to draw 1n
additional skills from elsewhere The Committee 15 still of the
opimon not to set a 25% target for female representation for the
Board in 2016, noting that the level of female representation on
the Board 15 still close to satisfying the target at the present time
and that the Company has a female Charrman

The Commuttee also undertook a review of the independence
of the Non-executive Directors, and, having satisfied itself that
the existing mux of skills, knowledge, experience, diversity and
independence and the structure of the Board and Commuttees
remain appropriate, the Commuttee has not felt 1t necessary to
make any recommendations to engage additional Board Members
or change the structure of the Board or 1ts Commuttees during
the current year, although 1t will be considering its plans for the
future in order to plan for 1ts own refreshment and succession
The proportion of the Board {(excluding the Chairman) that
comprises independent Directors remains at 50% and the Board
therefore continues to comply with the Corporate Governance
Code (further details are contained on page 100)

The Commuttee also reviewed some detailed analyss as to the
significant other commutments of the Non-executive Directors
and how much time they were spending on the Company’s
business and affairs As mentioned on page 66, the Non-
executive Directors are able to, and do, commut sufficient time
to the Company’s business and, indeed, considerably exceed the
expected number of days they are required to spend

81

During the year, the Commttee also concentrated on drversity
within the Group and the Partnership, recerving a number of
reports and statistics from senior management who had carried
cut reviews in this area Whalst there 1s female representation,
a number of measures have been 1dentified to make further
progress and this work will continue during 2016

The Commuttee also discussed the scope of the external Board
Evaluation exercise undertaken by Boardroom Dialogue and
considered the outcome, noting that no material 1ssues were
highlhighted 1n respect of 1ts operation

The terms of reference setting out the Commuttee’s role and

authenty, and which were reviewed and updated 1n 2015, can be
found on the corporate website at www s)p co uk
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Roger Yates
Chair of the Remuneratron Commatzee

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for 2015 which sets out how the
Directors’ Remuneration Pohcy (the ‘Pohcy’) was apphed in
2015 and how 1t will be implemented in 2016 The
Remuneration Commuttee (the ‘Commuttee’) believes that the
Policy remains appropriate and should continue to operate for
2016 with no changes propesed The remuneration policy table 1s
included in this report and a full copy of the Policy 1s available on
our wehsite www s)p co uk

Remuneration Pohcy and the Corporate Strategy
The Policy was approved by the shareholders in 2014 and
continued to operate in 2015 The Policy supports the Group's
business strategy in that the major part of remuneration for
Executives 1s performance-dependent, including both annual and
longer-term measures aligned to a balanced set of business
objectives There 15 substantial deferral of variable remuneration
1nto shares, and requirements for Executives to hold Company
shares, through minimum shareholding thresholds and a two year
post-vesting sale restriction on Performance Share Plan (PSP)
awards Further detail as to how each element of the Pohicy
supports the strategy 1s set out in the table on pages 96 to 99

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Corporate Performance and Remuneration for 2015
As reported in this Annual Report, 2015 has been another year
of strong performance and our Executives’ remuneration for
2015 reflects thas Based on the three-year performance te the
end of 2015, 100% of the Executive Directors’ PSP awards
granted in 2013 will vest in March 2018, as a result of relative
total shareholder return (TSR) and earnings per share (EPS)
growth at or above the upper end of the performance range set
by the Commuttee

The report includes disclosure of performance targets and

the outcome for the annual bonus for 2015 The Commuttee
determined that 93 3% of the maximum annual bonus should
be payable for 2015, reflecting the strong financial results for
2015 and strong progress against strategic objectives set by

the Commuttee at the start of the year, which are fully explained
in the report 50% of the bonus 1s deferred into shares for
three years

Remuneration for 2016
The Commuttee considered the overall remuneration
arrangements for the Executive Directors in 2016 1n accordance

with the Policy

Fellowing no increase in the base salaries of the Executive
Darectors for 2015, the Commuttee has decided to award an
increase of circa 2 5% 1n the base salares of the Executive
Directors for 2016, which 15 1n line with the overall increase

of base salaries for the workforce The Committee continues

to monitor the complexity of the responsibilities undertaken,
the remuneraton of staff generally, an element of market
companson and inflation trends from year to year The
Commuttee may consider further salary increases at subsequent
review dates as a result of analysis of these factors

The maximum annual bonus opportunity for 2016 will reman at
the same levels as 2015 Performance share awards will also be
granted at the same level as 2015, 200% of salary for our CEQ
and 190% for our other Executive Directors, which continues to
be below our shareholder approved policy maximum

In addition, the fees of the Chairman for 2016 were increased to
£190,000 (8 5% increase), the base fees of the Non-executive
Durectors were increased to £59,945 (3% increase) and
Committee Chair fees increased to £20,000 (21% increase) to
reflect their increased workload, regulatory responsibilines and
the size of the Group

Registered No 03183415




Engagement with Sharehclders and Best Practice
The Comrmittee ensures it 15 up to date with the developing
views of shareholders and investor representative bodies and best
practice Any views expressed by shareholders at general
meetings of the Company or otherwise will be considered by the
Commmttee as part of any review of the Poliey The Committee
understands the importance and rcreasing focus on clear and
transparent disclosure of remuneration outcomes demonstrating
the alignment of remuneration and performance and the
Commuttee beheves it provides complete disclosure n this area

Role of the Committee Durmg 2015

During 2015 the Commuittee’s main areas of focus were on

* Reviewing performance and agreeing the 2014 annual bonus
payments as well as the 2012 PSP awards vesting i 2015,

* Setting the individual objectives for the 2015 annual bonus for
both the Executive team and Code Staff,

* Setting annual targets for the 2015 annual bonus scheme and
performance measures for the 2015 PSP awards,

= 2015 salary reviews,

* Reviewing and approving the Remuneration Policy Statement
1n relation to Code Staff for 2015 (and the hst of the
employees classified as Code Staff),

* Remuneration pohcies and risk mitigation including the
mpact of Solvency 11, and

* Updates on regulatory developments including the recent
publication by the European Banking Authority on sound
remuneration policies and the potential impact of regulation
on the Company’s remuneration pohicies

Regulatory Change

The Committee 15 closely monitoring developments 1n
remuneration regulatton from European and UK authonties
Should there be a need to amend policy or practice 1n 2017, n
light of these regulatory developments, the Commuttee will
undertake consultation with major shareholders in advance of
any proposed changes

Summary

The Policy supports our corporate objectives and the
remuneration recerved by the Executive Directors reflects the
strong performance of the Company and management

1 hope that you will support the remuneration resolution to be
proposed at the next AGM If in the meantime you have any
questions regarding our Policy then my colleagues and I on the
Commuttee will be pleased to address them

Roger Yates
On behalf of the Remuneratien Committee
22 March 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This Annual Report on Remuneration will be put to an advisory
shareholder vote at the 2016 AGM The information on pages 85
to 99 has been audited where indicated

How the Commttee Operates to set the
Remuneration Policy

The Commuttee, on behalf of the Board, determines the Policy
and the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors of
the Company and the Chairman In addition, the Committee
monitors the remuneration of the senlor management team
{including the Group Risk Director and his senior colleagues in
the Group Risk Division) and employees classified as Code Staff
and oversees the operation of the Executive long term incentive
schemes and all employee share schemes

The membership and terms of reference of the Commuttee are
reviewed annually and the terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website

Membership of and Attendance at the
Remuneration Committee Meetings

The members of the Commuttee are Simon Jeffreys,

Patience Wheatcroft and Roger Yates There have been three (3)
Committee meetings during the year and all the members
attended each of the meetings (details of attendance at those
meetings can be found on page 67)

Advisers to the Committee

The Committee 15 advised, on remuneration matters generally,
by independent remuneration consultants New Brid ge Street
(NBS) NBS's appointment as adviser to the Commattee 1s
reviewed annually by the Committee NBS1s a signatory to the
Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct, which requires its
advice to be impartal and NBS has confirmed to the Commuttee
1ts comphance with the Code

The total fees paid to NBS for the advice provided to the
Commuttee during the year were £51,955 (excluding VAT)
Fees are charged on a “ume spent” basis

NBS has not provided any other services to the Company during
the year However, certain subsidiaries of Aon ple, the parent
company of NBS, have provided some investment advisory
services to the Company and the fees for this work during 2015
were £213,113 (excluding VAT) The Committee has been
advised of the basis on which NBS 15 orgamised and managed as
part of the wider Aon organisation and the basis on which 1ts
staff are remunerated and 1s satisfied that the additional services
provided by other Aon group companies did not 1n any way
compromise the independence of advice provided by NBS to
the Commuttee

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCQUN 152018

The Commttee also seeks mnternal support from the CEO,
CFO, Chairman, Charrman of the Risk Commuttee, Group Risk
Director and the Company Secretary No Director 1s present at
any part of a meeting of the Committee when their individual
remuneration o contractual terms are being discussed

Engagement with Shareholders

The Commuttee 15 updated on the latest views of major
sharcholders (and their representative bodies) through meetings
with investors (and their representative bodies) and from various
written communicatons recerved, including published
gurdelines The Chairman of the Commuttee 1s happy to meet
with shareholders on request to discuss any concerns regarding
remuneration 1ssues, should they anse

P
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How the Policy was Apphed n 2015
Remuneration Payable 1 Respect of Perfarmance i 2015 (Audrted)

The following teble sets out each element of remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 (or period thereof for
appointments or cessations during the year)

Salary Annual Long term
& fees Benefits® bonus®™® ncentives®® Pension®™ Other™? Total
I3 £ £ [ £ £ 3
Directors

David Bellamy 2015 492,000 59,168 688,800 1,776,526 98,400 20,596 3,135,490
2014 489,667 57,867 701,100 2,299,947 97,933 — 3,646,514
Andrew Croft 2015 356,000 41,292 498,400 1,184,411 71,200 19,380 2,170,683
2014 354,333 41,613 507,300 1,530,690 70,867 — 2,504,803
lan Gascoigne 2015 356,000 69,523 498,400 1,184,411 71,200 — 2,179,534
2014 354,333 49,508 507,300 1,530,690 70,867 — 2,512,698
David Lamb®? 2015 356,000 48,754 498,400 1,184.411 71,200 22,544 2,181,309
2014 354,333 46,176 507,300 1,530,690 70,867 - 2,509,366

Non-executive Directors
Sarah Bates (Chairmany 2015 175,100 3,365 178,465
2014 170,000 170,000
lIain Cormish 2015 77,460 7,829 85,289
2014 74,658 74,658
Simon Jeffreys . 2015 74,680 1,397 76,077
2014 68,167 68,167
Pattence Wheatcroft 2015 58,200 1,788 59,988
2014 56,375 56,375
Roger Yates 2015 74,680 - 74,680
2014 61,938 61,938

|

11o0day 018218015

Notes
() Benefits for the Exccutive Directors comprise the entitlement to company car or cash equivalent, fuel, private health care, life and critical allness cover, permanent health Insurance and health

screening and for Ian Gascoigne a housing allowance to faculitate working across the Company s twomain locations, and arc gencrally the amounts which are returned for taxation purposcs
Benefits for the Non-executive Dircctars are for reimbursement of taxable travel expenses grossed up for the tax payable thereon

() Asexplaned on page 97, half of the annual bonus iy paid 1o cash with the other half being used ta purchase St James s Place shares wluch arc subject to forfeiture for 3 years under the terms of the
Delerred Bonus Scheme

(i} The value of the long term incentives 1a the value of shares for the award where the performance period ends in the year togother with the value of the dividends that would have been recerved
during the three year performance periad The figures far 2015 have been calculated using the average of the S|P share price in the 3 manth period to 31 December 2015 heing £3 52 a3 the actual
vesung date of the PSP award s on 21 March 2016 The figares for 2014 have been updated from the 3 month average figures used in last year s report (being £1,847,115 for David Bellamy and
£1,229,315 for Andrew Croft, lan Gascorgne and David Lamb) to take into account the $]P share price on the date of vesting on 15 March 2015, being £9 45

(v} Pennon contributions, being 20% of base salary, for all Durectors were capped by legislation and so 2 non pensionable salary supplement was paid to the Executive Darectors ia Full for David
Bellamy, Andvew Crolt and lan Gascorgne and for the balance for David Lamb, who had a £40,000 contribution 1o the money purchase Group pension scheme

(#) The value of the SAYE 6ptions exercised by David Bellamy on 4 August 2015 when the mid market price of St Jamea's Place sharcs was £9 735 by Andrew Croft on 27 May 2015 when the
mud market price of St Jsmes’s Place shares was £9 335 and by David Lamb on 2 November 2015 when the mid-market price of St James's Place shares was £9 €4

(+i) David Lamb was a non executive director of the Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple duning the year and was paid a fee of £21,750 in 2015 10 connection with that role
(2014 £19,375)

(vu) Mike Wilson, a former Directar of the Company, was paud £200,000 1n 1015 (£200,000 in 2014} 1n respect af hu role as Chairman of the 8t James’s Place Found isting the Academy and
mentoring various members of the St James « Place Partnership

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

l uonepunog adely s,sowef 1< |

| S1UDMIAEIQ TRIDUBULY |

\ UOTIBULIOTUT I3



86

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Details of Variable Pay Earned 1n the Year

Annual Benus for 2015 Performance
The performance condrtions which apphied to the bonus and the resulting payout were as follows

Weighting Weighting Maximum Payout Payout

Measure (%o ofsalary) (% of maximum) Threshold value Actual (Mofsalary) (% of maximum)

EEV operating prefit 5% 50% £513m £569m £660 2m 5% 50%

Strategic business plan objectives 75% 50% Assessment by the Commuttee of the 65% 43 3%
performance of the Executive Directors

Total payout 140% 93 3%

In setting the operating profit target for the year it was assumed that the combined operating experience variance and operating
assumption changes would have a neutral impact on the outcome for the year The actual outcome for the year included a combined
positive impact to the operating profit from these two items of £122 2 mullion The Commuttee concluded that this posiive outcome
was as a result of management action during the year and should therefore be included when assessing the bonus payout for the year

Annual Bonus Strategic Targets Performance Assessment

As described 1n other parts of the Report and Accounts, the Company delivered strong performance in 2015 for our clents,
shareholders and other stakeholders The Commuttee considered these three groups when setting the strategic targets for 2015,
together with other objectives set out in the 2015 business plan In serving our clents well, developing our employees and the
Partnership for the future and striving to improve the effectiveness of our organisation, we will be best placed to meet our long-term
business objectives, and create additional value for our shareholders We also focus on the importance of safe and sustainable growth
through prudent management of nsk and the highest standards of regulatory compliance

The Commuttee assessed how well the Executive team had performed 1n relation to the objectives set at the start of the year

The Commttee did nat place fixed weightings on the factors assessed, but made a judgement based on the Commuttee’s view of the
relative importance and impact of those factors over the course of the year For some factors the Committee put in place quantitative
metrics, and for others qualitative judgements were made, depending on the nature of the strategic objective

As regards chent satisfaction, the Commuttee tock nto account the following chjectives

* The Annual Wealth Account Survey results for 2015 were very strong with 95% of clients saying they would recommend S[P to
friends or contacts and 58% of those surveyed confirming they have done so already,

* Chents continued to benefit from above average performance across the majority of funds and portfolios over a range of time
periods Across all ten year periods, the equity fund managers outperformed their benchmark, on average, 82% of the time
Over the three and five year periods, the equivalent average outperformance rate was 75% and 74% respectively For the range of
eight Growth and Income portfohios available to clients, outperformance compared to the relevant Asset Rusk Consultants (ARC)
Private Chent Index peer group occurred in 85% of all three year peniods on average,

* The Group won a number of industry awards, further details of which are set out on page 49, many of which were voted on by
clients, and

* The above factors, together with strong service levels, generally contributed to excellent retention of funds under management,
with 95% of existing funds being retained (see page 16 for further deta:ls)

In terms of strategic objectives designed to ensure the success of the business n the future, the Commuttee tock into account

* The growth in the size of the Partnership of 6 2% 1n 2015,

* The success of the Academy in attracting suitable candidates to the courses runin 2015, the establishment of 2 new Academy
based 1n Solihull and 71 advisers graduating from the Academy and jomming the Partnership 1n 2015,

* The high levels of retention for both employees and members of the Partnership, assisted by additional training and development
opportunities for the senior management team, the Partnership and the workforce generally, and

* The continwed ymprovements in the standard of documentation 1n relation to new business submatted by the Partnership
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In addition to the above, the Commnttee assessed and noted the satisfactory completion of the various strategic objectives set out in

the business plan, including

* Continuing the integration of the Henley Group in Asia with 2 60% increase in the number of advisers i Asia,

* Acquisition of Rowan Dartington,

*+ Continuing positive engagement with the Group's regulators and implementing Solvency 11,

* The completion of various objectives designed to enhance and strengthen the momtoring and mitigation of key regulatory risks
impacting the Group,

+ The mtroduction of the new admimstration platform for certain aspects of the business, although 1t was acknowledged that there
had been some mmiral challenges with implementation,

* Launching the new Money Management Account,

* The continuing development of the Group’s range of funds, the range of fund managers available to chents and the strengtheming
of the Investment Commuittee, and

* The ongoing success of the Group’s CSR objectives, mncluding raising a record £7 mlhon for the Foundation and expanding the

11oday or8areanq

volunteering opportunities available to employees

Taking all the above strategic objectives into account, the Commuttee awarded a bonius of 65% of salary (87% of the maxamum)
under the team performance element of the annual bonus scheme, recognising that a high proportion of the strategc objectives were
graded as ‘outstanding’ or ‘above stretch’ and that nearly all of the major business plan objectives had been satisfactorily completed

| UONEPUNOC.T 9384 s.5awef 11 I |

Notes

(t) The Commuttee has the discretion to scale back the annual bonus payable in respect of the strategic measures if 1t considers 1t mappropriate in the
context of the overall financial results of the Group The Commuittee reviewed the Group’s pezformance and agreed that no scale-back was
appropriate

(11} The Commuttee retasns the discretion to amend each element of the bonus, up or down, withm the overall cap of 150% of salary, to take mto
account other relevant factors such as the Group’s performance compared to competitor organisatons or, for instance, an exceptional positive or
negative event which impacts the Group The Commuttee reviewed the Group's performance as well as competitors and the external market at the
end of the performance period and agreed that no adjustment was required

(i) Half of the bonus 1s pard 1 cash, with the remainder being mvested n the Company's shares and deferred for three years, under the Group’s deferred
bonus plan

‘ UOTIBUWLIOTUT DU || SIUDUDILIC TRIDUBULY '
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Long Term Incentive Avwards

Vesting of Performance Share Plan (PSP) Awards (Audited)

On 31 December 2015, the awards made on 21 March 2013 under the PSP reached the end of their three year performance period
These will vest on 21 March 2016, being the third anmversary of the date of grant The performance conditions which apphed to the
2013 PSP awards, and the actual performance achieved against these conditions, are set out in the table below

Average annual adjusted EPS growth Average annual adjusted EPS growth

{including the unwind of the {excluding the unwind of the

TSR relative to the FTSE 250* discount rate) m excess of RPI discount rate) i excess of RPL
% of one % of one % of one
third of third of third of
award ! award award
Performance level hurdle Performance required vesting Performance required vesting Performance required vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0% Below 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Threshold Median 25% At least 5% 25% At least 5% 25%
Stretch or above Upper Quartile or above 100% 16% or above 100% 16% or above 100%
Actual achieved 23 out of 172 companies 100% 26% 100% 26% 100%

Above Upper Quartile

*  FTSE 250, excluding investment trusts and companies in the FTSE o1l gas and mining sectors

Accordingly, the total percentage of the 2013 PSP awards vesting was 100%, which resulted in the following awards vesting to the
2 P 8 4 g g

Executive Directors

Total Value

number of  Percentage Number of shares

shares of awards of shares vesting

Dhrector granted vesting vesting (£000)
David Bellamy 176,178 100% 176,178 1,677
Andrew Croft 117,458 100% 117,458 1,118
Ian Gascoigne 117,458 100% 117,458 1,118
David Lamb 117,458  100% 117,458 1,118

Mote1 The decmed share price used to caleulate the value of shares vesting was £9 52, being the 3 month average to 31 December 2015 {as the awsrds will not actually vest until 21 March 2016}
Note2 Up to 744 shares can be exercised by each Executive Director via a inked anard under an approved share aption sch withan exercise price of £5 155 [f such linled award 15 exercised, a
number of shares equivalent to the gain achicved upon such exercise will be lapsed from the number of Performance Share Plan shares noted, and the overall value of shares vesting 1s therefore

unchanged from the number set out above

Performance Share Awards Granted to the Executive Directors in 2015

Number of
§]P shares % of face
Average  over which value that
share price award was Face value would vest
at date of granted ofaward  at threshold
Diirector Type ofaward Basis of award granted grant (Note 1) (£°000) performance
David Bellamy Nil cost option 200% of salary of £492,000  £9 8125 100,280 £984 25%
Andrew Croft Nl cest option 190% of salary of £356,000  £9 8125 68,932 £676 25%%
Tan Gascoigne Nil cost option 190% of salary of £356,000  £9 8125 68,932 £676 25%
David Lamb Nil cost option 190% of salary of £356,000  £9 8125 68,932 £676 25%

Note 1 The number of shares awarded was calculated based on the average shate price over a period of 3 days prior to the date of grant on 26 March 2015 being £9 8125 per share The face value of
the award figure 1s calculated by multiplying the number of shares awarded by the average share price figure of £3 8125

PSP awards are structured as nil cost options and there 15 therefore no exeraise price payable on exercise Dividend equivalents accrue
to the Executive Directors between the date of grant and exeraise of the award (up to a maximum of five years from date of grant),
but are released only to the extent that awards vest Further details of the performance conditions which apply to the awards are set

outn Notes 1 and 2 on page 95

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCQUNTS 2015 Registered No 03183415



89

Total Shareholder Return Performance
The graph below shows a comparison of the Company's TSR performance agamnst the FTSE All-Share index over the last seven
financial years The Company considers this to be the most appropriate comparative index, given the broad nature of the index and

the compantes within 1t

Total Shareholder Return

Source Thomson Reuters

Thus graph shows the value, by 31 December 2015, of £100 mvested n St James’s Place on 31 December 2008 compared with the
value of £100 invested 1n the FTSE All-Share Index The other ponts plotted are the values at intervening financial year ends

Total Remuneration for the Chaef Executive

The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive over the last seven financial years The total
remuneration figure includes the annual bonus and long-term incentive awards which vested based on performance in those years
(and ending in that year for PSP scheme awards)

Year ending 31 December

1rodoy at8arenq

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Total Remuneration £1,039,723 £1,495,600 £1,998,758 £2,410,380 £3,362,651 £3,646,514 £3,135,490
Annual Bonus (% of maximumy 92% 96% 63% 46% 98% 95% 93.3%
LTIP vesting (% of maximum) 0% 57% 83% 87% 95% 96 37% 100%

The deemed value of the PSP award 1n the table above for 2015 15 £1,677,215 Of thus, £769,017 1s due to increases in the S]P share
price over the vesting period, being an increase of 85%

The value of long-term incentive awards for 2015 has been calculated using the average of the SJP share price in the three month
period to 31 December 2015, being £9 52, as the actual vesting date of the PSP award 15 on 21 March 2016 The 2014 figure for total
remuneration has been updated by substituting the three month average figure used to calculate the value of long-term incentive
awards m last year’s report by a revised figure based on the S]P share price on the date of vesting on 15 March 2015, being £3 45
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The following table sets out the percentage change in profit, dividends and overall spend on pay 1n the year ending 31 December

2015, compared to the year ending 31 December 2014

2014 2015 Percentage

£ Million £Million change

Operating profit after tax 1879 202.0 7 5%
Dividends : 1207 146 5 21 4%
Employee remuneration costs 1117 121 2 8 5%

The increase 1n the employee remuneration costs in 2015 was largely due to an increase m employee headcount, an mcrease to the
costs of share awards due to the headcount increase and the increase in the SJP share prace

Percentage Increase in the Remuneration of the Chief Executive
The table below shows the percentage movement in the salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive between the current

and previous financial year compared to that for the average Group employee

% change
2014 t0 2015
Ch:ef Executive
Salary —
Benefits (Note 1) 22%
Bonus (18)%
Average per Employee
Salary 3 4%
Benefits 3 3%
Bonus 79%

Note 1 See Note (1) on page 85 for further details

Share Awards
The tables below set out details of share awards that have been granted to individuals who were Directors during 2015 and which had

yet to vest or be exercised at some pomnt during the year

Performance Share Plan — Awards Held m Return  for Qualifying Services During 2015 (Audlted)

Balance at Balanceat

1 January Granted Lapsed Excrcised 3t December
2015 n yeart™ n year®? n yeart™ 2015 Dates from which exercisable
Dawid Bellamy 253,970 253,970 - 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
242,2200 8,795 233,425 - 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
176,178® 176,178 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
109,7826 109,782 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
100,280 100,280 26 Mar 2018 to 26 Mar 2021
Andrew Croft 169,025 169,025 — 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206 5,853 155,353 - 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 20159
73,16500 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
68,932 68,932 26 Mar 2018 to 26 Mar 2021
Tan Gascoigne 169,025 169,025 - 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206% 5,853 155,353 - 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
73,165 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
68,932 68,932 26 Mar 2018 to 26 Mar 2021
David Lamb 165,025 169,025 - 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206" 5,853 155,353 — 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
73,1650 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
68,932 68,932 26 Mar 2018 to 26 Mar 2021
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Notes
{i} Thesc awards were made on 26 March 2012 when the St James's Place share price was £3 733 The performance pertod 13 the three year period ending on 31 December 2014 The performance

conditions, cach in respect of one third of the sward, relate to (i) EPS (ncluding the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more fully on page 32), (i) EPS excluding the impact of
the said anwind and () TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, cxcluding investment trusts and companies in the oil, gas and muning sectors The EPS scale starts at RP +5% for 25% of the
award to vest and ends at RP[ +16% for 1009 of the award to vest with pro rata vesting between the said points The T5R sliding scaleis between median and upper quartile, with 25% of the

110dayw 83010

TSR part of the award vesung at median

() These awards were made on 21 March 2013 when the St Jumes's Place share price was £5 07 The performance period 15 the three yesr pericd ending on 31 December 2015 The performince
conditions cach In respect of one thrd of the award, relate 1o () EPS (including the impact of the wowind of the discount rate, as described mere fully on page 32) (ii) EPS excluding the impact of
the saxd unwind snd (1) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index excluding iovestment trusts and companies 1n the oil, gas and muning sectors The EPS scalestarts at RPI +5% for 25% of the
award to vest and erds at RP1 +16% for 100% of the award to vest, with prorata vesung between the 3aid points The TSR shiding scale 1s between median and upper quartile, with 25% of the
TSR part of the award vesung at median Up to 774 shares {being the maximum value under the £30k Inland Revenue cap on ‘approved’ share optians) can be excroised via a linked award under an
approved share option scheme with an exercise price of £5 155

(1) These awards were made on 26 March 2014 when the 5¢ James s Flace share price was £8 515 The perfortnance persod is the three year period ending on 31 December 2016 The three
performance conditions, eachin respect of one-third of the award refate to (1) EPS (lacluding the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described mere fully on page 32) (1) EPS excluding
the impact of the sasd unwind and (ul} TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding investment trusts and companies In the ol gas and mining sectars The EPS scale starts at RPL +5% for
25% of the award 1o vest and ends at REI 416% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vesting between the said points The T5R shding scale 15 between median and upper quartile, with
25% of the TSR part of the award vesting at median Up to 3,054 sharcs (being the maximum value under the £30k Inland R cap on app ] share options) can be e d via a inked
award under an approved share optlon scheme with an ¢xercise price of £8 515

(iv) These awards wore made on 26 March 2015 when the St James's Place share price was £9 8125 The performance period 13 the three year period ending on 31 December 2017 The three
performance conditions, each In respect of one third of the sward, relate to (1) EPS (including the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more fully on page 32) () EPS excluding
the impact of the s2id unwind and (itf) TSR compared to the FTSE 51 150 Index, excluding trusts and companies in the o, ga and mimng sectors The EPS scale gtartsat RP1+5% for
25% of the award to vest and ends at RPI +16% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vesting between the sard points The TSR shding scale 15 between median and upper quartle, with
25% of the TSR part of the award vesting st median

() These awards lapscd due to the performance conditlon based on EPS (more fully described 1n note (1) above) not being fully satsficd and, asa result, 3 63% of the award lapscd at the end of the
performance period (8,785 thares lapsed for David Bellamy and 5,853 shares lapsed for the other Execotive Directors)

(vi) All four Directors exercised thelr 2011 and 2012 PSP awards in 2015

l uonepunod aoei ssemel 3¢ | ‘

Deferred Bonus Scheme — Shares Held During 2015 (Audited)

The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the deferred element of the annual bonus scheme during 2015

Balance at Released Awarded Balance at

Durector 1 January 2015 durmgyear® during year® 31 December 2015 Vesting date

David Bellamy 49,563 49,563 - 26 Mar 2015
24,591 24,591 21 Mar 2016 —
33,924 33,924 26 Mar 2017 o
37,252 37,252 26 Mar 2018 2
Andrew Croft 35,813 35,313 - 26 Mar 2015 2
17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016 £
24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017 z
26,955 26,955 26 Mar 2018 g
lan Gascoigne 35,813 35,813 - 26 Mar 2015 g
17769 17,769 21 Mar 2016 &
24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017 -
26,955 26,955 26 Mar 2018 —
David Lamb 35,813 35,813 - 26 Mar 2015 c
17769 17,769 21 Mar 2016 g
24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017 g
26,955 26,955 26 Mar 2018 ]
g g
Notes g
(1} These deferred share awards were aw arded on 26 March 2012, equa! in valuc to the Exccative’s 2011 annual cash bonus The St James's Place share price on the date of the award was £3 733 and 8
on the date of relcasc {26 March 2015) was £9 435499 =

{1} These defetred share awards were awarded on 26 March 2015, equal in value to the Executive's 2014 annual cash bonus These shares will be held for a restricted period ending oo 26 March 2018

TheSt james's Place share price on 26 March 2015 was £9 43
(i) Outstanding awards at the year end relate 10 delerred share awards awarded in 2013, 2014 and 2015 (see (1) above) The share poce at the date of the 2013 award (21 March 2013) was £5 07 and

11 1t the date of the 2014 award (26 March 2014) was £8 515
(lv) Further details of the deferred element of the annuzt bonus scheme ate set out on page 97 Dividends accrue to the Exccutive Dirvectors during the three year period while the shares are subject

te forfeiture
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

SAYE Share Option Scheme ~ Shares Held During 2015 (Audited)
Details of the options held by the Directors in 2015 under the SAYE scheme and any movements during the year are as follows

Options Options
held at held at
I January Granted Lapsed Exercised 31 Deccmber Exercise

Director 2015 m year in year myear 2015 price Dates from which exercisable
David Bellamy 3,040 3,040 — . £296 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
Andrew Croft 3,040 3,040 - £2 96 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
1,219 1,212 £738 1 May 2018 to 31 Oct 2018
lan Gascmgne 3,272 3,272 £2775 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016
1,243 1,243 £724 1 Nov 2018 to 30 Apr 2019
Dawvid Lamb 3,272 3,272 - £275 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016
1,243 1,243 £7 24 1 Nov 2018 to 30 Apr 2019

Note
() At31 December 2015 the mid market price for 5t James & Place chares was £10 08 The range of prices between 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 was between £7 67 and £10 23

Share Incentive Plun — Shares Held During 2015 {Audited)
The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the Share Incentive Plan during 2015

Balanceat Partnership Matching Dividend Balance at

!January sharesallocated sharesallocated  sharesallocated 31 December
Director 2015 during year dunng year during year 2015 Holding period (matching shares)
Andrew Croft® 642 642 26 Mar 2010 to 26 Mar 2013
325 325 26 Mar 2013 to 26 Mar 2016
152 15 167 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
lan Gascorgne®? 502 ‘ 502 26 Mar 2011 to 26 Mar 2014
210 210 26 Mar 2014 to 26 Mar 2017
152 15 167 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018

Notes
(1) 152 partnership shares were awarded on 26 March 2015 st a price of £9 8125 per share, 1n return for £1,500 beng deducted from Mr Croft s pre tax salary A further 15 matching shares were

awarded on the same date
{(n} 152 partnership thares were awarded on 26 Masrch 2015 at a price of £9 8125 per share, i return for £1 500 being deducted from Mr Gascorgne s pre tax salary A further 15 matehing shaves were

awarded on the same date
(n1) The partnership, dividend and matching shares will be held by an employee benefit trust on behalf of the Director The matching and dividend shares must be held for a nunimum period of three

years fram the dute of the award

Between 31 December 2015 and 22 March 2016 there were no exercises or other dealings in the Company’s share awards by
the Directors
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The Executive Directors are required to build up a shareholding equivalent to 150% of salary, and a further 50% of salary 1n shares
and/or in one or more St James’s Place fund portfohos All of the Executive Directors have met the shareholding guideline

Directors’ Interests in Shares

Shares held Shares held % of base salary held
at | January at 31 December 0 5]P shares as at
Director 2015 2015 31 December 20159
David Bellamy 1,291,838 1,263,080 2,588%
Andrew Croft 785,980 890,569 2,522%
Ian Gascoigne 660,125 692 511 1,961%
David Lamb 381,162 461,345 1,306%
Sarah Bates . 13,500 13,500
Jain Cormish - —
Simon Jeffreys 18,364 18,364
Patience Wheatcroft 2,500 2,500
Roger Yates 10,000 10,000

wroday o18seng ‘I

Notet

(3 Caleulated using the mud market price a1 31 December 2015 of £10 08
{u} The Interests of the Directors include those of their Connected Persons as defined tn section 96B(2) of the Financial Services and Markets Act
(u1) The meerests of the Executive Directors set out above include deferved bonus scheme awards held in truse for the Directors detauls of which arc sct outon page 31 The interests of the Executive

Direciors also include awards under the Share Incentive Plan, details of which are set out on page 92
(i¥) The Company's register of Directors’ Interests contalns full detalls of Directors shareholdings and any share awards under the Company's various share schemes

(v} Disclosure of the Directors intereats in share awards is grven on pages 90 10 92 of the Remuneration Report and also in Note 32 — Related Party Transactions

Between 31 December 2015 and 22 March 2016 there were no transactions m the Company's shares by the Directors

Executive Directors’ Shareholdings and Outstanding Share Awards

Outstanding Qutstanding

Beneficially owned PSP awards SAYE options DBS awards SIP shares

at 31 December (performance (no performance (no performance {no performance

Executive Director 20150 conditions)™ conditions)#@ conditions)™ cendiions)”

Dawvid Bellamy 1,263,080 386,240 - 95,767 -

Andrew Croft 890,569 259,555 1,219 69,280 1,134

Tan Gascoigne 692,511 259,555 4,515 69,280 879

Dawid Lamb 461,345 259,555 1,243 69,280 -
Notes

() Beneficially owned shares include those DBS awards and S1P shares set out in columns (Iv) and {v) above

(i) Detalls on the PSP awards are set out on page 50
{ili) Dectails on the SAYE opuons are set out on page 92
{Iv} Detsils on DBS awardsare setout on page #1

{v) Details on the SIP shares are sct out on page 52
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Dilution

Dilution himits agreed by shareholders at the tme of shareholder approval of the vanous long term incentive schemes allow for the

following

* Up to 10% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees and members of the St James’s Place Partnership under

all share schemes 1 ¢ both the employee and ‘Partner’ share schemes, and

* Up to 5% of share capital 1n ten years to be used for grants to employees under discretionary schemes

The table below sets out, as at 31 December 2015, the number of new ordinary shares 1n the Company which have been 1ssued, or are
capable of being 1ssued (subject to the satisfaction of any applicable performance conditions) as a result of options or awards granted
under the various long term incentive schemes operated by the Company in the ten years prior to 31 December 2015

Share scheme i

Number of new % of total 1ssued
ordinary shares share caprtal as at
of 15 pence each 31 December 2015

SAYE schemes 4,302,173 082%
Executive share schemes 10,833,954 206%
Partners’ share schemes 10,758,626 2 05%
Total 25,894,753 4.93%

In addition, as at 31 December 2015, the Group’s Employee Share Trust held 1,727,510 shares in the Company which were acquired
to satlsfy awards made under the PSP, executive share option schemes and awards made under the Deferred Bonus Scheme to Irish
employees In addition, a further 621,001 shares are held to satisfy awards made 1n 2015 under the Deferred Bonus Scheme

A further 954,533 shares, registered to employees under the terms of the Group’s Deferred Bonus Scheme, have been allocated
by the Group’s Employee Share Trust for awards made in 2013 and 2014 These shares are allocated to the relevant mdividuals on a
restricted basis whereby the recipients are not entitled to the shares until completion of the three year restricted period Further

details of the deferred bonus scheme are set out on page 97

Interests in Shares Held 1n Trusts

Certain Executive Directors and employees are deemed to have an interest or a potential nterest as potential discretionary
beneficiaries under the St James’s Place Employee Share Trust As such, they were treated as at 31 December 2015 as being
interested 1 1,727,510 ordinary shares of 15p in the Company, such shares being held by S G Hambros Trust Company {(Channel

Islands) Limited, the trustee of that trust

Statement of Shareholding Voting at AGM

At last year’s AGM held on 14 May 2015, the Directors’ Remuneration Report received the following votes from shareholders

Remunecration Report

Total number of votes % of votes cast
For 393,469,563 9971
Agawnst 1,161,913 029
Total 394,631,476 100%
Abstentions 4,571,521 -
How the Policy will be Applied for 2016
2016 Salary Review ’
The base salaries of the Executive Directors are being increased in 2016
The current salaries as at 1 March 2015 and from 1 March 2016 are as follows

Salary from Salary from Inc¢rease from

Director 1 March 2015 1 March 2016 1 March 2016
David Bellamy £492 000 £505,000 2 6%
Andrew Croft £356,000 £365,000 2 5%
lan Gascoigne - £356,000  £365,000 2 5%
David Lamb £356,000  £365,000 2 5%
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Annual Bonus for 2016
The Executive Directors’ maximum bonus opportunity for 2016 will be the same as for 2015, being 150% of salary Half of the
annual bonus will be determined by EEV operating profit and half by key strategic targets

50% of the annual bonus earned for performance in 2016 will be paid in cash and the remaining 50% will be deferred in §JP shares
for a three year period and subject to contmued service

The EEV operating profit target set by the Commuttee 15 based cn a shiding scale to progressively reward incremental performance
The EEV result 1s calculated based on ‘best estimate’ assumptiens and any deviation or changes from these assumptions are reported
as an experience variance or an operating assumption change In setting the operating profit target for the yearitis assumed the
combined operating experience variance and operating assumption changes will have a neutral 1mpact on the cutcome for the year
In setting the 2016 EEV Operating Profit target, the Committee maintaned the new business and expense growth objectives at the
same level as in previous years However, it was recogmsed that, 1n comparison to the 2015 operating profit rarget, the 2016
contribution to operating profit from the unwind of the discount rate will be impacted posttively, but marginally, by the higher
discount rate, due to the O 2% increase 1n the UK ten-year Government gilt yield from 5 0% to 5 2% during 2015

The Board constders that the performance targets for the annual bonus are commercally sensiive and 15 not disclosmg them at this
time The performance metrics and performance against them will be disclosed 1n the 2016 Remuneration Report to the extent that
they do not remain commercrally sensitive at that time

The team element of the 2016 annual borus will be assessed by reference to key strategic targets based around the 2016 business plan,
including elements relating to chents, shareholders and other key stakeholders Specific cbjectives include the delivery of excellent
service to the Group’s clients as measured by surveys and other client feedback, enhancing the range of investment funds and
maintaining strong investment performance, the successful recruitment and retention of hugh quahty new Partners, successfully
implementing the next phase of the new adminstration system and transferring certain existing assets onto the new system,
successfully controlling and mitigating the material risks that could impact the Group, and maintaining the Group’s good relations
with 1ts shareholders and regulators

Performance Share Plan Awards for 2016
The Executive Directors will each recerve a PSP award 1n 2016 of 190% of salary, except for David Bellamy who will receive a PSP

award of 200% of salary

Awards will be subject to a relative TSR performance condrtion for one-third of the award and earnings per share growth targets for
two-thirds of the award as follows

11odoy o18xen1g

Average annual adjusted EPS Average annual adjusted EPS
growth (including the unwind of the growth (excluding the unwind of the
discount rate} in excess of RFI disgount rate) in excess of RPI
TSR relative to the FTSE 51 to 150 (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)

% of one % of one % of one

third of third of thard of

Performance level hurdle Performance required award vesting Performance required award vesting Performancerequired award vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0% Below 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Threshold Median 25% At least 5% 25% At least 5% 25%
Stretch or above Upper Quartle or 100% 16% or above 100% 16% or above 100%

above

Note | FTSE 51 to 150, excluding snvestment trusts and compantes 1n the FTSE oll, gas producers and muning sectors Straght line vesting oecursin between threshold and maximum vesting

tNote 2 The first EPS performance condition 1s calculated by refe to adjusted lidated profit after tax on the EEV bass of accounting for both the life and unit trust businesses (on a fully
duluted per share basts) The effect of the adjustment to the consolidated after tax figures will be to stnp out the post tax EEY investment variance and any econamic assumption change un the
final year of the performance period as these factors are not within the control of management and can produce wide variations to reported earnings due to stock market fluctuations However,

tlns measure ol EPS 15 still impacted by stock market movements in the pior year duc 10 the impact of any such movements on the unwind of the discount rate in the current year

The second EPS performance condition 15 caletlated 1n a simular way to the first EPS condicion save that a further adjustment is made 1o strip out the impact of the unwind of the discount rate
This adjustment eliminates any direct impact of stock market volatlity and changes i the economaz assumptions throughout the whole three year period of the performance condition

Straght line vesting occurs in between threshold and maximum vesting
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Fees for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors for 2016

The fees for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 are as set out in column 1 below
For 2016, the fees of the Chairman have been increased by 8 5%, the Non-executive Directors’ base fees have been 1ncreased by 3%
and the Committee Chair fee mcreased by 21% in recogmition of their increased workload, regulatory responsibilities and the size of
the Group The 2016 fee levels are set out 1n column 2 of the table below

U] (€] ()
Fees from Fees from Percentage
1Januaryto 1 Januaryto INCrease
31 December 31 December from
2015 2016 2015
Chairman £175,100 £190,000 8 5%
Base fee £58,200  £59,945 3%
Commuttee Chair £16,480  £20,000 21%
Semor Independent Director £2.780 £2,780 0%

Note No committee membershep feesare payable

Summary of Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The following table summarises each element of the Policy, explaiming how each element operates and how each part hinks to the

Corporate Strategy

Salary

Purpose and link to strategy including
choce of performance metrics

To provide the core reward for the role

Sufficient level to recrurt and retain individuals of the necessary calibre, taking into account
the shulls, experience, demands and complexaty of the role

Operation

Reviewed annually and fixed for 12 months commenang | March

Influenced by

— Role, expertence and performance of the individual,

— Company performance, ‘

— External economic condrtions,

— Average change 1n broader workforce salary,

— Periodic benchmarking for each role aganst stmilar UK hsted companies, and

— Overall policy, having regard to the factors noted, 15 normally to target salaries up to the
rmid market level

Maximum opportunity

Salary increases (1n percentage terms) will normally be linked to the average of the
workforce generally other than in exceptional circumstances such as where the increase
may be hugher for a significant change in responsibility, experience or increase 1n role or
the size or complexaty of the Group where increases may be phased

Where new joiners or recent promotees have been given a starting salary below mid-
market level, a series of increases above those granted to the wider workforce (in
percentage terms) may be awarded over the following few years, subject to satisfactory
mndividual performance and development in the role

The base salaries for the Executive Directors from 1 March 2016 are set out in the Annual
Report on Remuneration

Performance metrics

The Commuttee considers all of the factors described in this table when deciding how the
salary pelicy operates
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Purpose and hnk to strategy including
chorce of performance metrics

Rewards the achievement of annual financial and strategic business plan targets and
dehvery of strategic objectives

Deferred element aids retention, encourages long-term shareholding, discourages excessive
risk taking and aligns with shareholder interests

Performance metncs reflect the key performance drivers of the annual business plan,
achievernent of which will reflect performance in hine with the Group's stratepy

Operation

Performance measures, targets and weightings are reviewed annually and set 1n line with
the annual business plan

Bonus payments are determimed by the Commuttee after the year end, based on
performance against the targets set

50% of any bonus payable 1s paid 1n cash with the remamning 50% deferred into SJP shares,
the vesting of which 15 normally subject to a three year continuous service requirement

Dividends that accrue on the deferred shares are paid to the Executive Directors during the
three-year deferral period

All bonus payments are at the discretion of the Commuttee

The Commuttee has the overnding discretion to scale back payments under the strategic
part of the annual bonus if it deems them to be inappropriate 1n the context of the overall
financial results of the Company

The Committee has the overriding discretion to adjust the bonus outcome up or down
{subject to the overall 150% maxmum) to take account of factors such as an exceptional
positive or negatve event

Annual bonus payments including deferred amounts are subject to clawback if there 1
found to have been a material mis-statement, error or misconduct following the payment of
the bonus

Maximum opportumty

150% of base salary

Perform ance metrics

Performance. measured over one year

At least half the bonus 15 based on financal measures reflecting the key priorities of the
business for the relevant year

Up to half of the annual bonus can be based on the achievement of key strategic objectives
set at the start of the year

Actual measures and weightings may change from year to year to reflect the business
prionities at that time

Details of performance critenia set for the year under review and performance against them
15 provided in the Annuzl Report on Remuneration

20% of the annual bonus vests for threshold performance
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Performance Share Plan

Purpose and link to strategy including  Incentivises the Directors to achieve supenor long term shareholder returns

choice of performance metrics
Provides long term retention

Focuses the Executives on longer term corporate performance and performance objectives
A mux of three performanee conditions provides an appropriate balance of targets that both

mncentivise the Executives to achieve stretching long-term financial performance while also
keeping their interests ahigned to those of shareholders

Operation Awards are granted annually with vesting on the third anmversary of the date of grant
dependent on the achievement of stretching performance conditions measured over a
period of three financial years

Metrics and targets are set in hne weth the business plan and are reviewed annually to \
ensure they remain appropriate as well as the weighting between them

Awards in 2015 and beyond wall be made under the performance share plan, approved by
sharcholders at the AGM 1n 2014, and will have a post vesting holding period of two years
(net of tax) Dividend equivalents may accrue on awards made between the date of grant
and the end of the two year post vesting holding period These dividend equivalents will be
released only to the extent that awards vest

Subject to claw-back in the event of a matenal misstatement, error or rmsconduct allowing
summary disrmissal

Maximum opportunity The maximum annual award under the plan rules 15 250% of salary as at date of grant
although the Commuttee will not increase above the 2015 award levels without prior
consultation with the Company's major shareholders

The PSP award levels for 2016 w1ll be 200% of salary for the Chief Executive and 190% of
salary for the other Executive Directors (value of shares at date of award)

Performance metrics The vesting of awards 1s dependent on the achievement of three equally weighted
performance measures as set out below The Commttee may choose alternative measures
and weightings between them 1f 1t deems 1t appropriate taking into account the strategic
objectives of the Company The vesting of at least one-third of the PSP award will however
be determined by a relative TSR target

The performance targets for the 2016 PSP awards will be based on

* EPS growth based on EEV adjusted profit,

= EPS growth as above but excluding the impact of the EEV unwind of the discount rate
(effectively excluding the impact of stock market movements on earnings), and

* Relative TSR performance

For each performance condition, a threshold and stretch level of performance 1s set
At threshold, 25% of the relevant element vests
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s

Purpose and hink to strategy including
choice of performance metrxcs

Helps recruit and retain Executives

Provides a discrete element of the pack.age to contribute to post-retirement lifestyle

Operation

Defined contribution pension scheme 20% of salary 1s paxd into the Group personal
pension scheme for the Executive or an equivalent cash amount via non-penstonable salary
supplement if the Executive 15 affected by the pension cap

Maximum opportunity

20% of base salary

Performance metrics

N/A

Other Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy mncluding
choice of performance metrics

Operate competitive benefits to help recrut, retan and support the well-being of
employees

Operation

Including, but not Limited to
Company car (or salary supplement in lieu), private medical insurance, hfe, critical illness
and death 1n service cover, relocation assistance where necessary and the use of a driver for

business purposes

Participation 1 the Group's all employee SIP and SAYE schemes

Maxamum opportunity

Benefit costs are momtored and controlled and represent a small element of total
remuneration costs

Performance metrics

N/A

Non-executive Directors’ Fees

To attract high quality, experienced Non-executive Directors

The Chairman 1s paid an ell-encompassing annual fee, which 1s reviewed peniodically by the
Commuttee

All Non-executive Directors receive a basic annual fee for carrymg out their duties,
together with additional fees being paid 1n respect of Board Commuttees and other
responsibilities, with fee levels reviewed periodically by the Board They may also be paid
additional fees (calculated at an appropriate day rate) i the event of exceptional levels of
additional time bemng required, for mnstance 1n response to corporate developments

There 1s no prescribed maximum annual increase Reviews take 1nto account market data
for smmlar non-executive roles 1n other comparues of a summilar size and /or business to
5t James's Place as well as the time commitment of its Non-executive Directors

The Company's policy 1s to pay up to the mud-market level based on similar time
commitments of the chairman and non-executives 1n similar sized companies

This report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on 1ts behalf by

Roger Yates
Chairmen of the Remuneration Commuttee

22 March 2016
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The Directors present theirr Report and the Annual Report and
Accounts and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 All of the
Directors were 1n office throughout the financial year and up to

the date of signing this report

For the purposes of compliance with DTR 4 1 5R(2) and DTR
41 8R, the required content of the ‘Management Report’ can
be found n the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report,
mncluding the sections of the Annual Report and Accounts
mncorporated by reference Specific reference to CO, emissions

can be found on page 52

For the purposes of comphance with the UK Financial Conduct
Authonity’s Listing Rules (LR 2 8 4R), the information required to
be disclosed by LR 9 8 4 can be found 1n the following sections

Interest Capitalised

Not Apphcable

Publication of Unaudited
Financial Information

Not Applicable

Details of Long Term Incentive

The Directors’ Remuneration

Schemes Report on pages 82 to 99
Waiver of Emoluments by a Not Applicable

Dhrector

Waiver of Future Emoluments Not Applicable

by a Director

Non Pre-Emptive Issues of Not Applicable

Equty for Cash

Item (7) in Relation to Major Not Applicable

Subsidiary Undertakings

Parent Participation ina Placing  Not Applicable

by a Listed Subsidiary

Contracts of Sigmficance

Directors’ Report

Provision of Services by a

Controlling Shareholder

Not Applicable

Shareholder Waivers of
Dividends

Dhrectors’ Report

Shareholder Waivers of Future
Dividends

Dhrectors” Report

Agreements with Controlling
Shareholders

Not Applicable

UK Corporate Governance Code 2014
Under the FCA Listing Rules, all UK hsted companies must

state whether they have complied with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code dated September 2014 (the ‘Code”)
throughout the year and, where they have not comphed, they are
required to explain such non-compliance The provisions of the
Code can be found on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website, www frc org uk

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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The Company reviews its compliance with the Code on an
ongoing basis Details of how your Company has complied with
the Code throughout the year are set out in the Corporate
Governance sections of this Report Particular detail on those
principles from the Code which rejate to remuneration 1s
provided in the Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 99

Your Board considers that the Company has comphed wath all of
the provisions of the Code during 2015

As outlined in the Risk and Risk Management section on page
40, processes for 1dentifying, evaluating and managing the risks
faced by the Group have been 1n place throughout the year under
review and up to the date of thus report They are regularly
reviewed by the Board, with the assistance of the Risk
Commuttee, and accord with the Guidance for Directors in

C 2 3 of the UK Corporate Governance Code As outhned1n
the Corporate Governance Report on page 68, the Board has
undertaken a robust assessment of the principal nisks facing the
Group 1n accordance with the Guidance for Directorsin C 2 1
of the UK Corporate Governance Code

Status of Company
The Company 1s registered as 2 public hmited company under
the Compames Act 2006

For details of the Company’s subsidiaries and overseas branches,
please see page 170

The Directors

Board of Durectors

Details of the Directors as at 22 March 2016 and therr biographies
are shown on pages 60 and 61 Bnef particulars of the Directors’
membership of the Board Commuttees are contaned 1n the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 64 to 69

Appointment qf Darectors

The Company’s Articles of Assoctation require that any Director
appointed durig the year to fill a casual vacancy must stand for
reappointment at the next Annual General Meeting and that,

at each Annual General Meeting, all those Directors who were
elected or last re-elected at or before the Annual General
Meeting held in the third calendar year before the current year,
shall retire from office by rotanon  Directors can be removed
from office by an ordinery resolution of shareholders or 1n
certain other errcumstances as set out in the Articles of
Association However, 1n accordance with the recommendations
of the Code, all of the Directors will retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on 4 May 2016

Before a Director 15 proposed for re-election by shareholders, the
Chairman considers whether his or her performance continues
to be effective and whether they demonstrate commitment to
the role After careful consideration, the Chairman 1s pleased to
confirm that, following the external Board evaluation referred
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to on page 69, the Directors seeking re-electzon continue to
make a valuable contribution to the Board and continue to
ded:icate sufficient tame to their duties Your Directors each
bring sigmificant skall sets to the Board as 2 result of their varied
careers and we believe that this diversity 1s essential to
contributing to the appropriate m1x of skills and experience
needed by the Board and 1ts commuttees i order to protect the
interests of the Company’s shareholders The Board therefore
recommends to 1ts shareholders that all the Directors retiring at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting be re-elected

Power of the Darectors

The Directors are responsible for managing the business of the
Company and their powers are subject to any regulations of the
Articles, to the provisions of the Statutes and to such regulations
as may be prescribed by Speaial Resolution of the Company

The Company’s Articles of Assoctation contain, for example,
speafic provisions and restrictions concerning the Company's
power to borrow money They also provide that Directors have
the power to allot unissued shares, up to pre-determined levels
set and approved by shareholders in general meetings Thas also
apples to the Directors allotting equity securities otherwise
than 1n accordance with statutory pre-emption rules

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
This statement 15 set cut on page 105 The complete Corporate
Governance Report 1s set out on pages 64 to 69

Confhicts of Interest

The Company has in place procedures for the management of
Conflicts of Interest In the event a Director were to become
aware that they or any of their connected persons have an actual
ar potential conflict of interest, they must disclose this to the
Board immediately The Board will then consider the potential
conflict of interest based on 1ts partrcular facts, and decide
whether to waive the potential conflict and/or 1mpose
conditions on such waiver if it believes this to be 1n the best
nterests of the Company Internal controls also exist whereby
regular checks are conducted to ensure that the Directors have
disclosed material interests appropriately

Except as stated 1n the Directors’ Remuneration Report, no
Director has, or has had during the year under review, any
matenal mterest 1n any contract or arrangement with the
Company or any of its subsidaries

Darectors’ Service Agreements

The Company's pohicy 1s that service contracts may be
termnated with 12 months’ notice from ether the Company

or from the Executive Director (except in certain exceptional
recruitment situations where a longer notice period from the
Company may be set provided 1t reduces to 2 maximum of

12 months with a specified time lhimit) Service contracts do not
contain a fixed end date Executive Directors’ service contracts
will be avalable for mspection at the Company’s Annual General

Meeting to be held n 2016 The Company does not have
agreements with any Director or employee that would provide
compensation for loss of office or empleyment resulting from a
takeover, except that provisions in the Company'’s share schemes
may, 1n certain clrcumstances, cause share awards grcmted to
employees under such schemes to vest on a takeover

Drrectors” and Officers’ Indemnity and Insurance

The Company has taken out mnsurance covering Directors and
officers agamst habilines they may incur 1n their capacity as
Directors or officers of the Cormpany and 1ts subsidiaries The
Company has granted indemmnities to all of its Directors (and
Directors of subsidiary companies) on terms consistent with the
applicable statutory provisions Quahfying third party indemnity
provisions for the purposes of section 234 of the Compames Act
2006 were accordingly 1n force during the course of the financial
year ended 31 December 2015, and remain in force at the date of
thus report

Share Capital

Structure of the Company’s Capital

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s 1ssued and fully paid up
share capital was 524,665,212 ordinary shares of 15 pence each
All ordinary shares are quoted on the London Stock Exchange
and can be held 1n uncertificated form via CREST Details of the
movement 1n the issued share capltal'durlng the year are
provided m Note 29 to the financial statements on page 162

Voting Raghts

At any General Meeting, on a show of hands, each member who
18 present in person has one vote and every proxy present who
has been duly appointed by a member entitled to vote on a
resolution has one vote On a poll, every member who 1s present
1n person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of
which he 1s the holder

Forms appointing a proxy sent by the Company to shareholders,
n relation to any General Meeting, must be received by the
Company or their registrars not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting

Restrictions on Voting Rights

If any shareholder has been sent a notice by the Company under
section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 and failed to supply the
relevant information for a period of 14 days, then the shareholder
may not (for so long as the default continues) be entitled to
attend or vote either personally or by proxy at a shareholders’
meeting, or te exercise any other right conferred by membership
i relation to shareholders’ meetings

If those default shares represent at least D 25 per cent of their class,
any dividend payable 1n respect of the shares will be withheld by
the Company and (subject to certain hmited exceptions) no
transfer, other than an excepted transfer, of any shares held by the
member in certificated form will be regstered

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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Articles of Assocation

The full rights and obhgations attaching to the ordinary shares of the Company are set out in the Articles of Association The Articles
can be amended by a special resolution of the members of the Company and copies can be obtamed from Compames House Holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to recerve the Company’s Reports and Accounts, attend, speak and exercise voting nights, and appoint

proxies to attend general meetmgs

The Company proposes to amend 1ts Articles of Association at its forthcoming Annual General Meeting due to new requirements under
the Solvency Il regulations in relation to Tier 1 Instruments Full details are contatned in the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Restrictions on Share Trang"ars

There are restrictions on share transfers, all of which are set out in the Articles of Association Restrictions include transfers made in
favour of more than four joint holders and transfers held m certificated form Directors may decline to recogmise a transfer, unless it
- 1310 respect of only one class of share and lodged (and duly stamped) with the Transfer Office The Directors may zlso refuse to
register any transfer of shares held in certificated form which are not fully paid Directors may also choose to dechne requests for
share transfers from a US Person (as defined under Regulation § of the United States Securities Act 1933) that would cause the
aggregate number of benefical owners of 1ssued shares who are US Persons to exceed 70

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods (not exceeding 30 days 1n any year) as the Directors

may from time to time determine 1n respect of any class of shares
Y P ¥

The Company 15 not aware of any agreements between shareholders that restrict the transfer of shares or voting raghts attached to

the shares

Substantial Shareholders

Asat 22 February 2016, the Company had been notified of the following interests disclosed to the Company under Disclosure and

Transparency Rule 5

Holding at % held at Holding at % held at

Shareholder 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2015 22 Feb 2016 22 Feb 2016
Amenprise Finaneal Inc 28,184,506 538 28,184,506 538
The Capital Group Compames, Inc 27,174,893 519 27,174,893 519
FMR LLC 26,126,505 503 26,126,505 503
26,277,302 500 n/a n/a

BlackRock, Inc

E]

The interests of the Directors, thetr families and any connected persons 1n the 1ssued share capital of the Company are shown on page 93

Results and Dividends

The consolidated staternent of comprehensive income 15 on page 114 and profit after tax for the financial year attributable to equity
sharehalders increased to £202 0 million from £187 9 million 1n the prior year The profit before tax reduced from £294 4 mmlhon

to £174 1 milhon 1n the current year, principally due to the £88 7 million reduction in charges, from £111 5 million 1n 2014 to

£22 8 mulhonn 2015, deducted from Life Investment business in respect of pohicyholder tax due to HMRC and included within profit
before tax, as explained on page 28 This movement was mainly driven by relative investment performance m the year, reflecang

the fact that, whulst the mvestment return was still posttive in 2015, 1t was not as streng as in the prior year The profit before tax

was also impacted negatively by the £21 7 rmlhon movement in DAC/DIR /PVIF intangibles, which 1s explained on page 27, and the

£14 2 million increase 1n the charge from the FSCS levy in the year

An nterim dividend of 10 72 pence per share, which equates to £56 0 mlhon, was paid on 2 October 2015 (2014 8 93 pence per
share/£46 1 milhon) The Directors recommend that shareholders approve a final dividend of 17 24 pence per share, which equates to
£90 5 mulhon (2014 final dividend of 14 37 pence per share/£74 8 million) to be paid on 13 May 2016 to shareholders on the register at

the close of business on 8 Apnil 2016

In 2012, the Directors mntroduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP), details of which are set cut on page 198

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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Authority to Purchase Own Shares

At the Annual General Meeting 1n 2015, shareholders granted
authority to the Directors for the purchase by the Company of its
own shares Thes authority will expire at the end of the Annual
General Meeting to be held 1n 2016, or 18 months from the date
granted, whichever 15 the earher During the year, the Company
did not purchase any of 1ts own shares The Directors wall
propose the renewal of the authority to purchase its own shares
at the forthcoring Annual General Meeting

Employees

Details of the Company’s approach to mantaining an
appropriately skilled and diverse workforce can be found i the
Strategic Report on page 12

The Company 1s committed to attracting and retaining talented
people of both genders, and indeed of diverse skills and mind sets
in the wider sense The Company has a policy of ensuring that
no discrimination takes place with regards to 1ts job applicants
and employees Appointments and promotons are made based
on fair and considered judgements, with the individuals being
assessed on their merits and skill sets We need to make sure we
are not unwittingly excluding any particular group from the
opportunities we can offer or depriving ourselves of people who
could bring benefits to our community

We strive to give full and fair consideration to apphecations from
and promotions of disabled people, having regard to their
particular aptitudes and abilities, and where appropriate, we will
consider modifications to the working environment so they can
take up opportunities or enhance their role We wll stmilarly
make every effort in the event of an employee becomingll or
disabled, for example, by arranging appropriate training

We have also been looking at patterns of female participation
throughout the Group For mstance, we have a shghtly higher
level of female participation in the Partnership than 1s typical of
the financial advice industry (although it 1s still not very high),
and the level of female participation in other teams can vary
quite ssgmficantly We have also looked at the distribution of
salanes between male and female employees 1n particular pay
grades Duning the year, the Executive Board reaffirmed 1ts
commitment to make further progress A budget for work has
been agreed, and a steering group set up, chaired by Ian
Gascoigne, to develop our approaches

We believe that, by adopting best practice principles, we seek to
ensure that our responsibihties are met as an equal opportumty
employer and that everyone can enjoy an environment free from
discrimination of any sort

103

The right to collective bargaining has not been exeraised by any
of the Company’s employees, however, were they to do so, the
Company would look to comply with due process

The Company considers it important to provide its employees
with a balanced work and home Life, and does not expect 1ts
employees to work excessive hours

The Company has a calendar of regular communication with
employees and this includes a bi-annual employee satisfaction
survey, the most recent of which was conducted 1n 2014

The Company also offers a range of development options which

reflect business prionties and offer employees the opportunity to

grow their careers within the Group Such opportumties include

* An apprenticeship programme launched 1n 2012,

* Membership of the Institute of Customer Service,

* Arolling programme of Knowledge Development Meetings,

* Support for employees seeking externally recogmsed
professional qualifications,

* Management development activities for those with the
interest and abihity to develop their careers as leaders in the
business, and

* Speafic development programmes for the more specialist
roles within the Company’s Field Management Team

The Company encourages employee involvement in 1ts
performance through the use of employee share plans

Bribery Act 2010

The Board 15 responsible for the oversight of the Company’s
anti-bribery, corruption and whistleblowing policies and
procedures During 2015, the Company carried out its annual
review to ensure that 1t has adequate policies and procedures in
place to prevent bribery and corruption This included reviewing
the Bribery Act Policy Statement, along with other related
policies and procedures, and providing tramng to employees
and Partners with regards to money laundering, fraud, bribery
and corruption via an onhne training programme, the
completion of which 15 compulsory

The Company also operates a Whistleblowing pohcy, and
encourages employees, Partners and other interested parties to
advise, on an anonymous basis, the appropriate person in the
Company should they become aware of any wrongdoing The key
contact for Whistleblowing 1s the Chair of the Audit Commuttee

During 2015, no employees or Partners were disciplined or
dismissed due to non-compliance with the Anti-Bribery and
Corruption policies and no fines were levied against the
Company 1n relation to bribery or corruption
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The Bribery Act Policy Statement and the Whastleblowing
procedure are available to all employees and Partners via the
Company’s intranet

Significant Contracts and Change of Control

The Company has a number of contractual arrangements
which 1t considers essential to the business of the Company
Spearfically, these are commutted loan facihities from a number
of banks and arrangements with third party providers of
administrative services

A change of control of the Company may cause some agreements
to which the Company 1s a party to alter or terminate These
mclude bank facility agreements and employee share plans

The Group had committed facilines totalling £175 0 million as
at 22 February 2016 which contain clauses which require lender
consent for any change of control In addition, the Group
guarantees the obligations of loans made to Partners in
connection with facithties agreed with various lenders totalling
£68 7 mullion in aggregate Should consent not be given,

a change of control would trigger mandatory repayment of the
said facilities

All the Company’s employee share plans contain provisions
relating to a change of control Outstanding awards and options
may vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject
where appropniate to the sansfaction of any performance
conditions at that time and pro-rating of awards

Political Donations

It 15 the Group’s policy not to make any donations to politcal
parties within the meaning of the definitions set out 1n the
Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000 and
sections 362 to 379 of the Compantes Act 2006 The Group did
not make any political donations during the year (2014 nul)

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held on
Wednesday, 4 May 2016 at The Royal Aeronautical Saciety,
4 Hamlton Place, London W1J 7B(Q at 11 00am

Going Concern

The Code provides that in 1ts annual financial statements, the
Drrectors should state whether they consider 1t appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in prepanng them,
and dentify any matenial uncertainties to the Company's abihty
to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from
the date of approval of the financial statements The Company’s
Viability Statement 1s set out 1n the Risk and Risk Management
section on page 42

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors
hikely to affect 1ts future development, performance and position

are set out in the Strategic Report, as referred to on page 55
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The financial posihion of the Company, 1ts cash flows, Liquidity
position and borrowing faaibities are desembed in the Strategic
Report on pages 20 to 39 In addition, the Notes on pages 143
and pages 148 to 159 and the Risk and Risk Management secuon
on pages 40 to 47 mclude the Company’s objectives, pohcies and
processes for managing its capital, 1ts financial risk management
objectives, details of its finaneial instruments and 1ts exposures
to credit risk and hqudity

As shown on pages 35 to 32 of the Strategic Report, the Group's
capital position 1s strong and well in excess of regulatory
requirements The long-term nature of the business results in
considerable positive cash flows, ansing from existing business
As a consequence, the Directors beheve that the Company 1s
well placed to manage 1ts business risks successfully

The Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to continue 1n business
m hne with the Viabihity Statement set out on page 42 For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts Further information on the basis of
preparation of these accounts can be seen 1n Note | to both the
Consolidated Accounts under International Financial Reporting
Standards and the Parent Company Accounts under Financial
Reporting Standard 11

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the Directors, at the date of approval of this report,

confirms that

» So far as each Director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the auditors are unaware, and

* Each Director has taken all steps that he ought to have taken
as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditor 1s
aware of such information

Thus confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Comparnues
Act 2006

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their
willingness to continue 1n office and a Resolution that they be
re-appointed until the end of the 2017 Annual General Meeting
will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on

4 May 2016

On behalf of the Board
David Bellamy Andrew Croft
Chief Executive Cheef Financial Qﬂ}cer

22 March 2016
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financal year Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group financial statements 1n accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Umon, and the Parent Company financial
statements 1n accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law) Under Company Law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss
of the Group for that period In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required to

* Select surtable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

* Make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

* State whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
applhicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 1n
the Group and Parent Company financial statements
respectively, and

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s mappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explam the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation They are also responstble for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and the Group and hence for talang
reasonable steps for the prevention and detectzon of fraud and
other irregulanties

The Directors have chosen to prepare supplementary
information 1n accordance with the European Embedded Value
Principles 1ssued in May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers
Forum, as supplemented by the Additional Guidance on
European Embedded Value Disclosures 1ssued 1n October 2005
(the EEV Principles) When compliance with the EEV Principles
1s stated, those principles require the Directors to prepare
supplementary information 1n accordance with the Embedded
Value methodology (EVM) contained 1n the EEV Principles and
to disclose and explain any non-comphance with the EEV
Guidance included in the EEV Principles

In preparing the EEV supplementary information, the Directors

have
* Prepared the supplementary information in accordance with
the EEV Principles,

* Identified and described the business covered by the EVM,

= Appled the EVM consistently to the covered business,

* Deterrmined assumptions on a realistic basis, having regard to
past, current and expected future experience and to any
relevant external data, and then apphed them consistently,
and

* Made estimates that are reasonable and consistent

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrity
of the corporate and finanaal information included on the
Company'’s website Legislation 10 the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may duffer from legislation n other junisdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are histed in
the Board of Directors section of the Annual Report, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge

* The Group financmal statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit
of the Group,

* The EEV supplementary information has been prepared in
accordance with the EEV pranciples 1ssued in May 2004 by
the Chuef Financial Officers Forum as supplemented by the
Additional Guidance on European Embedded Value
Disclosures 1ssued 1n October 2005 (the EEV Principles),

* The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group, together with a description of the
prncipal risks and uncertainties that it faces, and

* The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for sharcholders to assess
the Company’s position and performance, business model
and strategy

By order of the Board

Ehzabeth Kelly
Company Secretary
22 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

REPORT ON THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opiruon, 8t James's Place plc’s Group financial statements

(the financial statements)

*+ gve atrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as
at 31 December 2015 and of 1ts profit and cash flows for the
year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Compames Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited

The financial statements, included within the Annual Report

and Accounts 2015 {the Annual Report), comprise

+ the consolidated statement of financal position as at
31 December 2015,

* the consohidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended,

+ the consohdated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended,

* the consolidated statement of changes n equity for the
year then ended, and

» the notes to the financal statements, which include a
summary of sigruficant accounting policies and other
explanatory mformation

Certamn required disclosures have been presented elsewhere
n the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial
statements These are cross-referenced from the financial
staterments and are 1dentified as audited

The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n the
preparation of the financial statements 1s applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

Our audit approach

Context

This year's audit focused on the core aspects of the business such
as the recogmition of revenue, and existence and valuation of
financial investments Developments during the year included
n particular the recogmtion and recoverability of deferred tax
assets on the winding up of SJP Partnership and 5P 1990
Limited Wath the Group's outsourced operating model for
administration, we also continued to look at the valuation of
the prepayment asset held in the balance sheet in relation to
the recently implemented administration platform

Overview

Materiality

* Overall Group materizlity represents 5% of profit before tax
£8 5 milhon, (2014 £15 mlhon)

Audit Scope

* The Group 1s structured to reflect its vertically integrated
msurance and wealth management business and operates
predominantly within the United Kingdom

+ The consohdated financial statements are a consohdation of
six financially sigmficant reporting entities, comprising the
Group’s operating businesses and the St James's Place Unit
Trusts

Areas of Focus

* Recognition of revenue

* Recoverabihty of deferred tax asset arising from historic
capital losses

¢ Valuation of the prepayment asset m respect of an
admmstration platform at an outsourced provider

« Exastence and valuation of financial investments and
investment property

The scope of our audst and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs (UK & Ireland))

We designed cur audit by determining materizhty and assessing
the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements

In particular, we looked at where the Directors made subjective
judgements, for example 1n respect of sigmficant accounting
estimnates that involved malking assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain As in all of our audits
we also addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias
by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud

The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect
on our audit, ncluding the allocaton of our resources and effort,
are identified as ‘areas of focus’ 1n the table below We have

also set out how we tailored our audit to address these specific
areas 1n order to provide an opimon on the financal statements
as a whole, and any comments we make on the results of our
procedures should be read 1n this context This 1s not a complete
List of all risks rdentified by cur audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

CONTINUED

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Recognition of revenue

See Note 2 to the financial statements for the Drrectors” disclosure of
eritical accounting estimates and judgements m applyng accounting
pelicies far fur[her n'{fbrmatmn

18As (UK & Ireland) presume there 1s a risk of fraud in revenue
recogmtion because of the pressure management may feel to
achieve market expectations In this regard we focused on
transactions which included a judgementai element in their
calculation, typical within the hfe insurance industry, as set
outin Note 2 to the financial statements

We focused specifically on the following

* Deferral of mcome and acquisition costs and amortisation of
Deferred Income Reserve (DIR), and Deferred Acquisition
Costs (DAC) under IFRS methodology In the year, the net
movement of DIR of £49 7 milhon was recogmised as revenue
(see Note 4) and £32 1 milhon of acquisition costs were
deferred and £100 1 million of DAC was amortised
(see Note 6), and

* Classification of the Group’s products between msurance and
mvestment business to ensure that investrment business 15
deposit accounted in the consohidated statement of financial
position

We also considered the recogmition of income or costs which
may have a close relationship 1o earned insurance premiums and
fees, 1 accordance with Auditing Practices Board Practice Note
20 — ‘The audht of insurers 1n the Umted Kingdom’, such as
remsurance costs The Group fully remnsures the UK insurance
risk of 1ts closed book of protection business and therefore we
focused on whether the £32 6 million of premmum mcome
associated with this business that was reversed out of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income was complete

We assessed the critical accounting estimates and judgements

as set out 1n Note 2 to the financial statements that had a

direct impact on revenue Specifically we

*  substantively tested the deferred income and acquisiion
costs and the amortisation of DIR and DAC, including
assessing the future profitability of the products to which
the income and acquisition costs related to ensure that
profitabihity was sufficient to support the carrying value of
the deferred balances, and

= confirmed substantively the classification of the Group's
products between insurance and investment business to
check that insurance product revenue was appropriately
included in the consohdated statement of comprehensive
income and nvestment business (except for fees related to
Investment contract management) was excluded

‘We confirmed that there were no new reinsurance
arrangements and agreed sample of premmums ceded to
mnvoice

Our work on the above areas of judgement was supported by
controls testing and substantive procedures over all matersal
revenue streams mncluding

= reconciling fees on investment business to confirmatory
documentation provided by the asset custodian, State
Street,

* testing internal controls over the accuracy and
occurrence of revenue recogmised 1n the financial
statements,

* obtaning and reading the International Standard on
Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3402 ‘Assurance Reports
on Controls at a Service Orgamisation’ for International
Financial Data Services (IFDS), i particular focusing on
the controls designed to prevent and detect fraud
operating over the Group umt trust business
administration system owned and operated by IFDS,

+ following migration of certamn products to a new
adminustration system also operated by IFDS, obtaimng
and reading an agreed upon procedures (AUP) report
prepared by an independent third party for the Directors
in respect of the relevant controls, and

* testing a sample of journal entries posted throughout the
year to revenue accounts that met speaific criteria to
1dentify unusual or lrregular 1tems

There were no 1ssues 1n the ISAE 3402 report or AUP that
impacted our audit scope  Overall, we noted no material
excephions 1n our testing and found the judgements taken by
the Directors to be reasonable
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Area of focus
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How our audit addressed the area of focus

Recoverability of deférred tax asset arising  from historie capatal losses
See Notes 2 and 13 to the financial statements for the Directors’

disclosure of determining the value of deferred tax assets for further
mformation

An additional deferred tax asset of £74 8 milkon was recogmsed
during the year following management's investigation of historie
capital losses crystallising within the Group on the planned
winding-up of §]P Partnership and SJP 1990 Limited (see Note
13}, bringing the total asset at the year end to £113 1 mulhon

We focused on thus itern due to the magnitude and complex
nature of the balance, requiring technical knowledge of tax, and
the judgements involved m forecasting future capital growth and
gams 1n future years in Group compantes to offset against the
capital losses

‘We assessed the basis of the capital losses that gave rise to the
addrhonal £74 8 million deferred tax asset, and had PwC tax
specialists evaluate the advice recerved by management from
external tax advisers

‘We considered the application of relevant taxation legisiation
and accounting standards around the recognition of the
deferred tax asset as a whole

We examined correspondence between the Group and
HMRC to confirm that, on the evidence provided, the
capital losses are expected to be available

We assessed the Group’s forecasts for the uulisation of the
losses aganst future capital garns, mcluding assessing the
likelihood of such gains

We challenged the asset growth assumptions used by the
Directors 1n the calculation of forecast capital gans and
compared these to relevant benchmarks including for
example average dividend yield and index growth versus RPI
for relevant market indices

We checked the information disclosed 1n the financial
statements back to the supporting records and calculations

No 1ssues were noted m the work performed

Valuation of the prepayment asset mn respect of the development gf a
new admimstration pIa_tﬁer at an outsourced provider

See the Report of the Audit Commuttee for further mformation and Notes
2, 16 and 26 to the financial statements for the Drrectors’ disclosure gf
other recewvables and payables

The Group 15 ¢harged costs by IFDS m respect of ensuring
operational readiness of a new policy admimistration platform
These costs are recognised as a prepayment to be unwound over
the duration of the related service agreement with IFDS once
benefits are receved from use of the system, and the balance of
the prepayment at 31 December 2015 was £87 9 rullhion The
maximum prepayment that can be recognused 15 capped at the
net present value of future cost savings

Due to the nature and magmtude of the amounts ansing from
the contractual terms the valuation of the prepayment asset was
an area of audit focus

In testing whether the asset was valued appropriately and

whether an 1mpairment was necessary we

* carried out tests of details on the payments to IFDS
associated with the new operational services agreement,

* assessed the reasonableness of the assumpnions underlying
management’s discounted cashflow calculating the
anticipated cost savings that support the valuation of the
prepaid cost asset in the consohdated statement of financial
postion

We also agreed the cost savings for 2015 to the new service
tariffs against the legacy platform tariff We sensitised the
inflation and discount rate assumptions as well as business
flow to determme the potential impact of changes m these
variables on the present value of future savings to check
whether they would affect the carrying value of the asset
ths year

We noted no material exceptions i our procedures and
we determined that the disclosure of the transactions 1n the
financial statements was appropriate
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

CONTINUED

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Existence and valuation of financial mvestments and mavestment
property

See Note 27 to the financial statement  for the Directors” dusclosure gf
financial risk for further information

Financial investments and investment properties were an area of
focus for our testing, 1n particular the judgemental valuations
of nvestment properties and derivatives, due to the magnitude
of the balances

The Group outsources investment custodian and valuation
activities to State Street Our audit procedures therefore
considered the evidence available over the relability of these
outsourced processes

We agreed the existence of holdings of the financial
mvestrnent portfoho to confirmatory documentation
recerved directly from independent custodians as at year end

We independently agreed the existence of a sample of
holdings of investment properties at year end to the Land
Register maintained by the Land Registry

We obtained and read the International Standard on
Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3402 ‘Assurance Reports on
Controls at a Service Orgamsation” for State Street’s Global
Fund Accounting and Custody operations, which provided

a description of the systems and controls 1n place and

the results of testing of the operational effectiveness of
those controls

Where appropriate we placed reliance on the controls
described i the ISAE 3402 report over the valuation and
existence of the finanaial investments withun the portfoho

‘We independently re-priced a sample of derivanve
investments as at year end We also independently re-priced
a sample of equity, fixed mncome and collective investment
scheme investments at the year end to complement our
controls rellance We agreed our independent prices to
those provided by State Street

For investment properties we tested the inputs to the
valuation process and tested the reasonableness of the rental
yield assumptions used by the Directors in the valuation of
the portfolio by reference to mdustry accepted benchmarks

‘We found no material exceptions 1n our testing
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an optmion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking 1nto account the geographic
structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls,
and the industry in which the Group operates The Group
outsources a large proportion of 1ts back office admimistration
services to IFDS, Capita and State Street, accordingly the
financially significant business processes performed for the
Group by these outsourcer services providers were addressed
1n our akdit

The Group financial statements are a consolidation including
six financially sgmficant business units, all of which are subject
to an audit of their complete financial information, comprising
the Group’s operating businesses and centralised functions

and the consolidated St James’s Place Unit Trusts The six
financially significant business units required an audht of thewr
complete financial information due to their size and for their
risk characteristics

In order to gamn sufficient coverage of all financial statement line
itemns we also carried out audit procedures on balances of certain
other entities that contributed over 5% to specific line items

This scope provided us with audit coverage (calculated on an
absolute basis as a percentage of the total balances) in excess of
90% for each of Profit before tax, Revenue and Total Assets

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audt,

we determined the type of work that needed to be performed

at the busmess units by us, as the Group engagement team, or
component auditors from other PwC network firms operating
under our instruction The Group team completed all work

on the financially ssgmficant components with the exception

of St James’s Place Internatronal Plc (Eire) Limited based in
Dublin We determined the scope of work for a component team
from PwC Ireland and mamntaimed regular contact with them
during the course of their work

Together with additional procedures performed at the
consohdated level, this scope of work gave us the evidence we
needed for our opinton on the consolidated financial statements
asa whole

Materiahty

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application

of materiahity We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
tuming and extent of our audit procedures on the individual
financiel statement hine 1tems and disclosures and 1n evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the
financial statements as a whole

R 111

Based cn our professional judgement, we determined materiality
for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Overall Group £8 5 mulbon (2014 £15 mallon)
materiahty

5% of profit before tax

How we determined 1t

Rationale for
benchmark applied

Profit before tax 1s a generally accepted
audsting benchmark Prior year
matenality was calculated based on
approximately 8% of profit before tax
attributable to shareholders’ returns,
which was approximately 5% of profit
before tax

Component materiality  For each component in our audit scope,
we allocated 2 materiality that was less
than our everall Group materahty
The range of materality allocated across
components was between £4 0 milhion
and £7 0 rmllion Certain components
were audited to a local statutory audit
materiality that was also less than our
overall Group materiality

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report
to them musstatements 1dentified during our audit above

£0 425 million (2014 £0 75 mallion) as well as misstatements
below that amount that, m our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
Dhrectors’ statement, set out on page 104, m relation to
gomng concern We have nothing to report having performed
Our review

Under I8As (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you
if we have anything material to add or to draw attention to

in relation to the Directors’ statement about whether they
considered 1t appropriate te adopt the going concern basis 1n
preparing the financial statements We have nothing materral
to add or to draw attention to

As noted 1n the Directors’ staternent, the Directors have
concluded that 1t 1s appropriate to adopt the going concern basis

n prepanng the financial statements The gomg concern basis
presumes that the Group has adequate resources to remai in
operation, and that the Directors intend 1t to do so, for at least one
year from the date the financial statements were signed As part of
our audst we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going
concern bans 1s appropriate However, because not all future
events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a
guarantee as to the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Consistency of other mformation

Compames Act 2006 opinions

In our opimon

* the information given 1n the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financal statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financial statements, and

* the nformation given 1n the Corporate Governance
Statement set out in the Governance section with respect
to 1nternal control and risk management systems and
about share capital structures 1s consistent with the
financal statements

1545 (UK & Ireland) reporting
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if,
1n our opinicn

* mformation in the Annual Report  'We have no exceptions to
15 report
materzally inconsistent with the
information in the audited financial
staternents, or
apparently materally incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent
with, our knowledge of the Group
acquured 1n the course of
performng our audit, or
otherwise misleading

the statement given by the We have no exceptions to
Directors on page 73 m accordance report
with provision C 1 1 of the UK

Corporate Governance Code (the

Code), that they consider the

Annual Report taken as a whole to

be fair, balanced and

understandable and provides the
information necessary for members

to assess the Group’s performance,
business model and strategy 1s

materially mconsistent with our

knowledge of the Group acquired

m the course of performing our

audit
* The section of the Annual Report ~ We have no exceptions to
on page 70, as required by report

provision C 3 8 of the Code,
describing the work of the Audit
Comrmttee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by
us to the Audit Commuittee

ST JAMES'S PLACEPLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

The Directors’ assessment c_Jf the prospects qf the Group and gf the
principal risks that would threaten the solvency or hqurdity of
the Group

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you1f
we have anything material to add or to draw attention to in
relation to

= the Directors’ confirmation on page We have nothing
100 of the Annual Report, in matenal to add or to
accordance with provision C 21 of  draw attention to
the Code, that they have carned out
a robust assessment of the princzpal
risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten 1ts business
model, future performance, sclvency

or hqudity

the disclosures 1n the Annual Report  We have nothing
that describe those risks and explain  materal to add or to
how they are being managed or draw attention to
mitigated

the Directors’ explanation on page ‘We have nothing
42 of the Annual Report, 1n material to add or to
accordance with provision C 2 2of  draw attention to
the Code, as to how they have

assessed the prospects of the Group,

over what period they have done so

and why they consider that peried to

be appropriate, and their staternent

as to whether they have a reasonable

expectation that the Group will be

able to continue 1n operation and

meet 1ts hiabilities as they fall due

over the period of their assessment,

mcluding any related disclosures

drawmg attention to any necessary

qualificatiens or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group and the Directors’ statement in
relation to the longer-term viabihty of the Group Our review was
substantially less 1n scope than an audit and only consisted of
makmg mquirzes and consu:ierlng the Directors process
supporting their statements, checking that the statements are 1n
alignment with the relevant provisions of the Code, and
considering whether the statements are consistent with the
knowledge acquired by us 1n the course of performing our audit
‘We have nothing to report having performed our review

Adequacy of information and explanations recerved

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you
1f, 1 our opimion, we have not receaved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit 'We have no exceptions to
report ansing from this responsibility

Registered No 03183415



Directors’ remuneration

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opimon, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report
arising from this responsihility

Corporate governance statement

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opinton, a corporate governance statement has not been
prepared by the parent company We have no exceptions to
report anising from this responsibihity

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to ten further
provisions of the Code We have nothing to report having
performed our review

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responstbilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Respon51b111tles set out on page 105, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
financial staternents in accordance with apphcable law and ISAs
(UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, mcluding the opimons, has been prepared for and
only for the parent company’s members as a body 1 accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 and for no
other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person
10 whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

What an audit qf ﬁnancml statements mvolves

An audit involves obtaning evidence about the amounts and

disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from

matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This

ncludes an assessment of

+ whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
Group’s carcumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed,

* the reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estimates made
by the Directors, and

* the overall presentation of the financal statements

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the
Directors’ judgements agamst available evidence, forming
our own Judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the
financial statements

113

We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financal
information n the Annual Report to wentify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
dentify any information that s apparently materatly incorrect
based on, or matertally inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us 1n the course of performing the aucht If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the 1mphications for our report

OTHER MATTERS

We have reported separately on the parent company financial
statements of St James's Place plc for the year ended

31 December 2015 and on the information 1n the Directors’
Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

Jeremy Jensen (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

22 March 2016

(2) The maintenance and integrity of the St Jarncy's Place ple website 15 the responsibility of the
Durectors, the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordinply, the auditors accept no responsibibity for any changea that may have
occurred to the [inancial statements since they were initially presented o the wehsite

(b) Legnlation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of flnanclal
statcments may delfer from legislation in other jurtsdictions
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

Note 2015 2014

£Mallion £Milhon

Insurance premium income 54.7 574
Less premums ceded to reinsurers (32.6) (33 5)
221 239

Net insurance premium income

Fee and commission 1ncome 4  1,3335 1,201 0
Investment return 5 1,755.8 3,3471
Other operating income 1.5 12
Net income 3 3,112 9 4,573 2
Policy claims and benefits
— Gross amount 65 0) (58 8)
— Remnsurers’ share 285 241
Net policyholder claims and benefits incurred (36 5) (347)
Change 1n 1nsurance contract habilines
— Gross amount 10.8 @80
— Rensurers’ share {0.5) 212
Net change n insurance contract habihities 10.3 132
Investment contract benefits 22 (1,7625) (3,234 %
Fees, commuission and other acquisition costs (835.7) (824 0)
Admimistration expenses (311 2) (1957)
Other operating expenses 32) 32
6  (1,150.1) (1,0229)
Profit before tax 3 174.1 294 4
8 (228 (ll15)

Tax attributable to policyholders’ returns

Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns

151.3 182 9
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2015 2014
£Mallion £ Mallion
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 513 1829
Total tax expense 8 279 (106 5)
Less tax attributable to poheyholders’ returns 8 22.8 111 5
Tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 8 507 50
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 202.0 1879
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests (0.2) 01
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 2022 880
Profit and total comprehensnve income for the year 202.0 1879
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 9 389 366
Diluted earnings per share 9 38.5 358
The notes and 1nformanion below and on pages 119 to 173 form part of these financial statements
Underlying profit measure
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2015 2014
£muallion £ Million
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 151.3 1829
Adjustments
DAC/DIR/PVIF 124 93
Underlying profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 3 163.7 173 6
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2020 1879
Adjustments
DAC/DIR/PVIF 48 (70)
Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the year 3 206.8 180 9
Pence Pence
Underlying basic earnings per share 9 398 352
Underlying diluted earnings per share 9 394 346
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Attributable to Equity Shareholders

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

Treasury Non-
Share Share Shares Retained Misc controlling Total
Note Capital Premmum Reserve Earmngs Reserves Total Interests Equity
£'Malhion £Million £Maillion £'Million L£Million £Million £Milhon £Mallion
At 1 January 2014 773 142 2 (10 2) 694 § 23 906 1 - 9061
Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive mcome
for the year 188 0 188 0 on 1879
Dividends 10 (95 5) (95 5) (95 5)
Issue of share capital 02 02 02
Exercise of options 04 52 56 58
Consideration paid for
own shares 52 (52) 52
Own shares vesting charge 49 “ 9) — -
Retained earnings credit
n respect of share
option charges 10 i1 0 1o
At 3] December 2014 779 147 4 (10 5) 793 1 23 1,010 2 (01) 11,0101
Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive income
for the year 2022 202 2 02 2020
Dividends 10 (130 8) (130 8) (130 8)
Issue of share capital 29 03 19 22 22
Exeraise of options 29 035 90 95 95
Consideration paid for
own shares (12 8) (12 8) . (12 8)
Cwn shares vesting charge 47 “7 — -
Retained earnings credit
m respect of proceeds
from exercise of share
options of shares held 1n
trust 01 01 01
Retained earnings credit
i respect of share
option charges 14 8 148 14 8
At 31 December 2015 787 158.3 (18 5) 874.6 2.3 1,095 4 (03) 1,0951

The number of shares held in the Treasury Share Reserve 1s given in Note 29 Share Capital on page 162

Miscellaneous reserves represent other non-distributable reserves

The notes and information on pages 119 to 173 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

A
=
g
31 December 31 December aQ
Nate 2015 2014 ;
£Milhion £ Million ,.g
Assets '%
Goodwill 11 101 101
Intangble assets
— Deferred acquisition costs 12 7450 8130 —
— Acquired value of in-force business 12 33.6 36 8 v
- Computer software 12 4.3 77 5
793.0 8676 g
Property & equipment 8.0 79 o
Deferred tax assets 13 2259 192 8 ;..E
Investment property 14 1,3449 1,031 4 e
Investments g
—Equities 37,960 8 34,7349 g
— Fixed income securities 8,934.0 6,8388 a2
— Investment 1 Collective Investment Schemes 3,2696 29617 =
— Denvative Financial Instruments 364.1 166 4 g
Reinsurance assets 20 85.0 855 —
Insurance and investment contract receivables 76 2 635 [
Other recervables 16 891.0 604 6
Cash & cash equivalents 17 5,325.1 5,1394 c
Total assets 59,2776 52,6945 %
Liabilities g
Insurance contract labihities 19 463.5 474 4 5
Other provisions . 21 15.4 114 e
Financial habilities
— Investment contracts benefits ' 22 43,1598 38,8512
— Borrowings 23 181 & 843
— Denvative Financial Instruments 2211 793
Deferred tax habilities 24 434.6 5198 E
Insurance and 1nvestment contract payables 459 504 g
Deferred income 25 413.5 463 2 2
Income tax habthities 256 328 5
Other payables 26 660 8 4997 2
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 15 12,5564 10,6178 2|
Preference shares 01 01 3
Total habilities 58,1825 51,6844 b
Net assets 1,095 1 1,0101 I
Shareholders’ equaty e
Share capital 29 787 779 g
Share premmum 158 3 1474 o
Treasury shares reserve (18.5) (10°5) 5
Maiscellaneous reserves 2.3 23 e
Retained earmings 874 6 7931 5
Shareholders’ equity 1,0954 1,0102 g’
Non-controlling nterests (03) B =
Total equrty 1,095 1 1,0101 -
Pence Pence
Net assets per share 208.7 194 5§

The financial statements on pages 114 to 173 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2016 and signed on 1ts behalf by

David Bellamy Andrew Croft The notes and information on pages 113 to
Chef Executive Chief Financial Qfficer 173 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

Note 2015 2014
£Malhion £ Milhon
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year 174 1 294 4
Adjustments for
Depreciation 2.5 19
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force business 12 32 32
Amortisation of computer software 12 34 28
Share-based payment charge 30 157 114
Interest income (23.9) (21 9)
Interest pawd 4.4 38
Changes 1 operating assets and liabilities
12 680 758

Decrease n deferred acquisition costs (net)

Increase in investment property

Increase 1n mvestments

Decrease/(increase) 1n reinsurance assets

Increase in insurance and investment contract recervables
Increase in other recervables

{Decrease)/increase 1n msurance contract Labilities
Increase 1n provisions

Increase 1n financial habihties (excluding borrowings)
(Decrease)/increase 1n 1nsurance and nvestment contract payables
Decrease 1n deferred income

Increase in other payables

Increase 1n net assets attributable to umt holders

(313.5)  (2987)
(5,826.7) (5,734 1)
05 (213)
127y (136)
@B165)  (849)

(109) 80
40 17
4,450 4 51252
(45) 123
@97 (7549
164.0 60 3

1,938.6 2,082 4

Cash generated from operating activities
Interest received

Interest pald

Income taxes paid

2704 1,433 3
239 219
(44 (3 8)

(617)  (355)

Net cash genecrated from operating activities
Cash flows from 1investing activities

2282 14159

Acquisition of property & equipment (10 40
Acquisition of intangible assets 12 = (18)
Acquisition of subsidianies and other business combinations, net of cash acquired (0.8) (72)
Net cash used 1n investing activities (+.8) (13 0)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the 1ssue of share capital 9.5 59
Consideration paid for own shares (12 8) G2
Proceeds from exercise of options over shares held 1n trust 01 —
Additional borrowings 1750 -
Repayment of borrowings (759.1) (14 4)
Dividends paid 10 (130 8) (95 5)

Net cash used 1n financing activities

(381) (1092

Net increase in cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents at 1 January
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents

1853 1,2937
51394  3,8457
04 -

Cash & cash equuvalents at 31 December

53251 51394

Exchange rate fluctuations result from cash held i the unit-linked funds

The notes and information on pages 119 to 173 form part of these financial staternents
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

St James's Place plc (the Company) 1s a company incorporated and domiciled 1n England and Wales

Statement of Compliance
The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group)

The Group financral statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors 1n accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (adopted IFRSs) and interpretations 1ssued by the IFRS Interpretanons Commuttee
(IFRS IC} and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 that are apphicable when reporung under IFRS

As at 31 December 2015, the following new and amended standards, which are relevant to the Group but have not been apphed 1n the
financial statements, were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective

IAS 1 Amendment — Disclosure Imtiative
1AS 16 and IAS 38 Amendments — Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Amendments — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and 1ts Associate or Joint Venture

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Amendments — Investment Entities Applyng the Consolidation Exception
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 16 Leases

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The adoptien of the above standards 15 not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s results reperted within the financral
statements other than requiring additional disclosure or alternative presentation, however the impact of these standards will continue

to be assessed

The Group financial statements also comply with the revised Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Assocration of British
Insurers in December 2005 (as amended in December 2006), to the extent that it 1s consistent with IFRS standards

Basis of Preparation
As discussed n the Directors’ Report, the going concern basis has been adopted 1n preparing these financial statements

The financial statements are presented in pounds Sterling, rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand pounds They are prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for assets classified as investment property, avatlable-for-sale financial assets and assets and habilities

at farr value through profit and loss

The preparation of financtal statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judpements, estimates and
assumnptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and Liabihties, income and expenses The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and hahhties that are not
readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogrused mn the
year in which the estimate 15 revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years, 1f the revision
affects both current and future years

Judgements made by management in the apphcation of IFRSs that have sigmficant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a sxgmﬁcant risk of materal adjustrment 1n the next year are discussed in Note 2

The finaneial statements are prepared i accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as apphicable to compames reporting under IFRS and
the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these consolidated financal statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

1., ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Consolidation

The consohdated financial informanon incorporates the assets, habilities and the results of the Company and of its subsidranes
Subsidiarzes are those entities in which the Group 1s exposed to, or has rights to, vaniable returns from 1ts involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entaty (including umt trusts in which the Group holds more than
30% of the units) Associates are all entities over which the Group has sigmificant mfluence but not centrol and are accounted for at
farr value through the profit or loss The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations and
expenses all acquisition costs as they are incurred The financial statements of subsidiaries are included 1n the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences untl the date that control ceases Accounting policies of subsidianies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with policies adopted by the Group

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group 1s recogmsed at fair value at the acquisition date Subsequent changes to
the fair vaiue of the contingent consideration that 15 deemed to be an asset or hability 15 recognised 1n accordance with IAS 39 1n the

consohdated statement of comprehensive income

The treatment of transactions with non-controlling interests depends on whether, as a result of the transaction, the Group alters
control of the subsidiary Changes 1n the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not resultin a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or recerved 15 recogmsed directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent entaty
Where the Group loses control of the subsidiary, at the date when control 1s lost the amount of any non-controlling interest 1n that
former subsidiary 1s derecogmsed and any investment retained 1n the former subsidiary 15 remeasured to 1ts fair value, the gain or loss
that 15 recognised 1n profit or loss on the partial disposal of the subsidiary includes the gain or loss on the remeasurement of the
retained interest

Intragroup balances, and any income and expenses or unreahised gains and losses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated
1n preparing the consolidated financral statements

{(b) Product Classification
The GTOUP’S pl'OdUCtS are Classlﬁf‘.’,d fOl" accountlng purposes as elther Insurance contracts or investment contracts

(1) Insurance Contracts
Insurance contracts are contracts that transfer sigmficant insurance nisk The Group's product range includes a variety of term

assurance and whole of ife protection contracts involving sigmificant insurance risk transfer

(11} Investment Contracts
Contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are treated as investment contracts The majority of the business written by
the Group 1s umt hinked vestment business and 15 classified as investment contracts

{c) Long Term Business

(1) Insurance Premium Revenue
For unit linked 1insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue when the liabihties arnsing from them are recognised All

other premiums are accounted for when due for payment

Investment contract premums are not included in the statement of comprehensive income but are reported as deposits to investment
contract liabilities 1n the balance sheet

{i1) Revenue from Investment Contracts

Fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts are recogmsed as revenue as the services are provided
Initial fees, including dealing margins from unit trusts, which exceed the level of recurring fees and relate to the future provision of
services, are deferred These are amortised over the anticipated period in which services will be provided
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(1)} Policy Claims and Benefits

For nsurance contracts, death claims are accounted for on notfication of death Critical iliness claims are accounted for when
admtted All other clarms and surrenders are accounted for when payment 1s due

For investment contracts, benefits paid are not included 1n the statement of comprehensive income but are mnstead deducted from
investment contract habilities The movement in investment contract benefits within the statement of comprehensive income
principally represents the investment return credited to policyhelders

Exphait advice charges are payable to St James's Place distribution company by most chents who wish to receive advice with their
investment 1 a St James’s Place retail wvestment product St James's Place facilitates the payment of these charges for the client, by
arranging withdrawals from the client’s pohcy, which are then recogmsed as income to St James’s Place distribution company A
proportion of the charge 1s then paid to the St James’s Place adviser (Partner) who provides the advice (see (g)(1) Expenses)

(v} Acquisition Costs
For insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise direct costs such as initial commussion and the indirect costs of obtaining and

processing new business Acquisition costs which are incurred during a financial year, net of any impairment losses, are deferred and
then amortised on a straight line basis over the pertod during which the costs are expected to be recoverable and 1n accordance with
the incidence of future related margins

For investment contracts, only directly attnbutable acquisition costs, which vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts, are deferred, and only to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue These deferred
acquisition costs, which represent the contractual right to benefit from providing investment management services, net of any
impairment losses, are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected hfetime of the Group’s investment contracts All other
costs are recognised as expenses when incurred Note, following the implementation of the Retail Distribution Review (RDR) on
31 December 2012, the mitial advice costs are no longer an acquisition cost hinked to the contractual right to benefit from providing
Investment management services and so they are no longer deferred

The pertod over which costs are expected to be recoverable are as follows

Insurance contracts 6 years
Investment contracts 12—14 years

(v) Insurance Contract Liabilities
Insurance contract liability provisions are determined following an annual actuarial investigation of the long-term fund 1n accordance

with regulatory requirements The provisions are calculated on the basis of current information and using the gross premmam
valuation method The Group's accounting policies for 1nsurance contracts meet the minimum speaified requirements for hability
adequacy testing under IFRS 4, as they consider current eshmates of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flow such as

claims handhing costs

Insurance contract habilities can never be definitive as to therr iming nor the amount of claims and are therefore subject to

subsequent reassessment on a regular basis

(v1) Investment Contract Liabilities
All of the Group's investment contracts are umt hinked Ut linked habilities are measured at fair value by reference to the value of

the underlying net asset value of the Group’s unttised investment funds, determined on a bid value, at the reporting date An
allowance for deductions due to (or from) the Company 1n respect of policyholder tax on capital gains (and losses) in the hie assurance
funds 1s also reflected 1n the measurement of unit hinked habihties Investment contract hahilities are recognised when units are first

allocated to the poheyholder, they are derecogmsed when units allocated to the policyholder have been cancelled

The decision by the Group to designate 1ts unit linked Liabihties as fair value through the profit and loss statement reflects the fact that
the underlying investment portfoho 1s managed, and 1ts performance evaluated, on a fair value basis

(v11) Insurance and Investment Contract Recewvables and Payables
Insurance and investment contract recervables and payables are mitially recogmsed at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost,

using the effective mterest method, less impairment losses
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(d) Reinsurance

Reinsurance premiums are accounted for when due for payment, and remnsurance recoveries, m respect of insurance contract
habilities, are accounted for in the same pertod as the related claim Amounts recoverable from remsurers 1n respect of claims and
amounts payable m respect of future reinsurance premiums are reported as part of insurance and investment contract receivables and

payables, respectively

() Fee and Commussron Income

Fee and commission 1ncome comprises

1) advice charges paid by clients who wish to receive advice with their investment in a St James’s Place or third party retail
mvestment product,

1) commussion, due 1n respect of products sold on behalf of third parties, and

1) fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts

Adwvice charges and commission are recognised 1n full on acceptance and neception of the associated policy by the relevant product
provider Where the product provider retains the right to clawback of commusston on an indemmity basis, turnover on sale of these
products is recognised net of a provision for the estimated clawback

Investment contract management fees are generally recognised as revenue as the services are provided (see also accounung policy
Note () (1))

(f} Investment Return
Investment return comprises investment 1ncome and investment gains and losses Investment income ineludes dividends, interest and

rental income from mvestment properties under operaning leases Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend bass, and rental income 1s
recogmised 1n the statement of cornprehensive income on a straight-hine basis over the term of the lease Interest, which is generated
on assets classified as fair value through profit or loss, 1s accounted for using the effective interest method

(g) Expenses

(1) Partner Remuneration

Partner remuneration compnises initial cornmussion and 1mitial advice fees (IAF) (paid for imtial advice, at policy outset and within an
‘imitial persod”), renewal commussion and renewal advice fees (payable on regular contributions) and fund fee commission or ongoing
advice fee (OAF) (based on funds under management) Imtial and renewal commission and advice fees are recogmsed in line wath the
assoCiated premium ncome, but 1nitial commission on surance and investment contracts may be deferred as set out in accounting
policy (c) (v) Fund fee commussion and ongoing advice fee are recogmsed on an accruals basis

Commussion and advice fees in respect of some 1nsurance and investment business may be paid 1n advance on renewal premmums and
accelerated by up to five years The unearned element of this accelerated remuneration 1s recognised as an asset withm other
recervables Should the contributions reduce or stop within the iminal period, any unearned amount 15 recovered

{1)) Operating Lease Payments

Leases where a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership 15 retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive mcome on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease Lease incentives received are recogmised 1n the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the total lease

expense and are spread over the life of the lease

(h) Income Taxes
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax payable by the Group in respect of policyholders and

shareholders Income tax 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that 1t relates to items
recogmsed directly in equity, m which case 1t 15 recognised 1n equity

(1) Current Tax

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date, and any ad]ustment to tax payab]e n respect of previous years
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{11) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the liabihity method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilitres for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following differences are not provided for
the imtial recognition of assets or hiabilines that affect nerther accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments i
subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse i the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habihties, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available agamnst which the asset
can be utihsed Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
Liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and labihties relate te income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intentton to settle the balances on a net basis

(11} Policyholder and Shareholder Tax

The total income tax charge 1s a separate adjustment within the statement of comprehensive Income based on the movement 1n current
and deferred income taxes 1n respect of Income, gains and expenses The total charge reflects tax incurred on behalf of pohcyholders as
well as shareholders, and so it 15 useful to be able to identify these separately Shareholder tax 1s estimated by making an assessment of the
effective rate of tax that 15 applicable to the shareholders, with the balance being treated as tax 1n respect of pohcyholders

(1) Dividends Pad -
Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recogmsed in the period 1n which the dividends are paid, and, for the final
dividend, are disclosed (but unpaid) when approved by the Company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

(3} Intangible Assets
() Deferred Acquisition Costs
See accounting pohicy (c) (v)

(13) Acquired Valre of In-force Business

The acquired value of in-force business 1n respect of insurance business represents the present value of profits that are expected to
emerge from 1nsurance business acquired on business combnations It1s calculated at the ime of acqusition using best esnmate
actuarial assumptions for interest, mortality, persistency and expenses, net of any impairment losses, and 1t 1s amortised on a straight
line basis as profits emerge over the anticipated hives of the related contracts 1n the portfoho An intangible asset 15 also recognised 1n
respect of acquired investment management contracts representing the fair value of contractual nghts acquired under those contracts
The acquired value of in-force business 1s expressed as a gross figure 1n the balance sheet with the associated tax included within
deferred tax Liabilines It 1s assessed for impairment at each reporting date and any movement is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income

(i) Computer Software
Computer software 15 stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any recognised impairment loss The carrying value 1s
reviewed for impairment when events or changes 1n circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Computer software 15 recogmised as an intangible asset during development with amortisation commencing when the software 15
operational Amortisation 15 charged to the statement of comprehensive income to administration expenses on a straight-line basis
aver four years, being the estimated useful hfe of the intangible asset

(k) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets of the
acquired entity at the date of acquisition Where the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired entity
15 greater than the cost of acquisition, the excess 1s recogmsed immedately in the statement of comprehensive income
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Goodwnll 1s recognused as an asset at cost and 1s reviewed at least annually for impairment or when circumstances or events indicate
there may be uncertainty over this value If an impairment is identified, the carrying value of the goodwill1s written down
ummediately through the statement of comprehensive income and 1s not subsequently reversed At the date of disposal of a subsichary,
the carrying value of attributable goodwill 1s included 1n the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal except where 1t has been
written off directly to reserves in the past

(1) Investment Property
Investment properties, winch are all held wathin the umit inked funds, are properties which are held to earn rental income and/or for

capital appreciation They are stated at fair value

An external, independent valuer, having an appropriate recogmised professional qualification and recent experience 1n the location
and category of property being valued, values the portfolio every month

The far values are based on open market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had
each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion

Any gain or loss arnising from a change in fair value 15 recognused 1n the statement of comprehensive income within investment
income Rental return from investment property 1s accounted for as described in accounting pohcy (f)

{m) Investments

The Group's investments are iniially and subsequently recogmsed at fair value through profit or loss, with all gans and losses
recognised within investment income m the statement of comprehensive income  The fair values of quoted financial investments,
which represent the vast majority of the Group's investments, are based on the value within the bid-ask spread that 1s most
representative of fair value If the market for a financial investment 15 not active, the Group establishes fair value by usin g valuation
techmques such as recent arm’s length transactions, reference to similar hsted 1nvestments, discounted cash flow models or option

pricing models

The decision by the Group to designate 1ts investments at fair value through the profit and loss reflects the fact that the mvestment
portfolio 15 managed, and its performance evaluated, on a fair value basis

The Group recognuses purchases and sales of investments on trade date The costs associated with investment transactions are
included within admimistration expenses in the statement of comprehensive income

(n} Denvative Financial Instruments

The Group uses dervative financial nstruments within some unit hinked funds, with each contract inttially and subsequently
recogmised at fair value, based on observable market prices All changes in value are recogmsed within investment income 1n the
statement of comprehensive income

{0} Other Recervables

Other receivables are minially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost less impairment losses, except for
renewal income which 15 held at fair value The value of any impairment recognised 1s the difference between the asset’s carrymg
amount and the present vahre of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate See accounting
pelicy Note (p) for information relating to the treatment of impaired amounts

(p) Impairment

(1) Non-Financial Assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment when circumstances or events indicate there may be uncertainty
over this value Animpairment loss 15 recogrused for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable
amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use
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(1) Finanaal Assets

Formal reviews to assess the recoverability of finaneial assets are carried out at ¢ach reporting date The recoverability of such assets
1s measured and the asset 15 deemed rmpaired if the projected future margns are less than the carrying value of the asset If there s
any indication of nrrecoverability or impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount 1s estimated based on the present value of 1ts

estimated future cash flows

In relation to debt instruments, impairment losses are reversed - through the statement of comprehensive income —if there 1sa
change n the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount Such losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation where
applicable, 1f no impairment loss had been recogmsed

(q) Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly hquid investments, and bank
overdrafts to the extent that they are an integral part of the Group’s cash management

Cash & cash equivalents held within unit linked and unit trust funds are classified at fair value through the profitand loss All other
cash & cash equivalents are classified as loans and receivables

(r) Provisions

Provistons are recogmsed when the Group has a present legal or constructive obhgation as a result of past events such thatitis
probable that an ocutflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the oblxganon and a rehable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made Provisions are measured as the discounted expected future cash flows taking account of the risks and
uncertzinties associated with the speafic habihity where appropriate

(s) Borrowings

Borrowings are measured initially at fair valug, net of directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortised
cost The difference between the proceeds and the redemption value 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the
borrowing period on an effective interest rate basis Borrowings are recogmised on drawdown and derecogmsed on repayment

(t) Other Payables

Other payables are recognised imtially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

(u) Net Asset Value Attnibutable to Urut Holders

The Group consolidates unit trusts in which 1t holds more than 30% of the umits and exercises control The third party interests in
these umit trusts are measured at fair value, since the underlying investment portfolios are managed on a fair value bass, and they are
presented 1n the balance sheet as net asset value attributable to unit holders Income attributable to the third party interests 1s
accounted for withun investment income, offset by a corresponding change m investment contract benefits

(v) Employee Benefits

(1) Penston Obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution personal pension plan for its employees Contributions to this plan are recognised as an
expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred  The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods

{11) Share-Based Payments

The Group operates a number of share-based payment plans The fair value of equuty instruments granl:ed 1s recognised as an expense
spread over the vesting per:od of the instrument which accords with the period for which related services are provided, with a
corresponding increase 1n equity in the case of equity settled plans The total amount to be expensed 1s determined by reference to
the fair value of the awards at the grant date, measured using standard option pnicing models
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity mstruments that are expected to vest and it recogmses
the impact of the revision of original estimates, 1f any, 1n the statement of comprehensive income, such that the amount recognised
for employee services are based on the number of shares that actually vest The charge to the statement of comprehensive income 15

not revised for any changes in market vesting conditions

(w) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Where any Group Company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares),
the consideration pad s deducted from equity attributable to shareholders, as disclosed in the Treasury Shares reserve Where such
shares are subsequently sold, reissued or otherwise disposed of, any consideration recerved 15 included in equity attributable to
shareholders, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects

(x) Foreign Currency Translation
The Group’s presentation and the Company's functional currency 15 pounds Sterling

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Sterlmg using the exchange rate prevallmg at the date of the transactions Monetary
assets and habihties denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and the
gain or losses on translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Non-monetary assets and lrabilities whach are held at historical cost are translated using exchange rates prevailing at the date of
transaction, those held at fair value are translated using exchange rates ruling at the date on winch the fair value was determined

(y) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported 1n 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
The chief operating decision maker, which 15 responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive Committee of the Board

(z) Current and Non-Current Disclosure
Assets which are expected to be recovered or settled no more than twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed as current

within the notes to the [inancial statements Those expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve months after the reporting

date are disclosed as non-current

Liabilities which are expected or due to be settled no more than twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed as current
within the notes to the financal statements Those habilines which are expected or due to be settled more than twelve months after
the reporting date are disclosed as non-current

(aa) Non-GAAP Measures
Included within the financial statements are a number of non-GAAP measures, being underlying profit before tax, EEV, EPS on the
post-tax underlying profit and the post-tax cash result A definition of the non-GAAP measures can be found within the Glossary and

reconciliations to IFRS on pages 115, 131, 132 and 137

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Judgements
The primary areas in which the Group has applied judgement 1n applying accounting policies are 1n the classification of contracts
between insurance and investment business and when applying the concept of control to determine which entities are subsidiaries

Classification of Contracts Between Insurance and Investment Business

Contracts with a sigmificant degree of insurance risk are treated asinsurance All other contracts are treated as investment contracts It is
this classificatzon that management considers to be a eriucal judgement, however, due to the carrying value of the insurance contract
liabihties within the Statement of Fananaral Position, management does not consider nsurance business to be sigmificant to the Group
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Subsidiaries
Subsidharies are those entities in which the Group 1s exposed to, or has nghts to, variable returns from 1ts involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity (including unit trusts in whch the Group holds more than

30% of the units)

Estimates

The principal areas in which the Group apphes accounting estimates are

* Determining the value of insurance contract habihties

* Deading the amount of management expenses that are treated as acquisition expenses
* Amortisation and recoverabihity of deferred acquisition costs and deferred income

* Deterrmning the fair value, amortisation and TECOVQI'Z})IIII')! of acquired in-force business
* Determining the fair value Lialility to policyholders for capital losses in unit funds

*  Determining the value of deferred tax assets

* Determimng the fair value of financal instruments and nvestment property

* Determining the fair value of share-based payments

* Recoverability of St James's Place Partnership loans

* Measurement of prepaid operational readiness costs

* Fair value estimation of assets acquired

Estimates are also apphed 1n deterrmining the amount of deferred tax asset recogmsed on unrelieved expenses and the value of

other provisions

Measurement of Insurance Contract Liabilities
The assumptions used 1n the calculation of insurance contract habilities that have an effect on the statement of comprehensive income

of the Group are

* The lapse assumption, which 1s set prudently based on an investgation of experience during the year

* The level of expenses, which 15 based on actual expenses in 2014 and expected long term rates

* The mortality and morbidity rates, which are based on the results of an investigation of experience during the year
* The assumed rate of investment return, which 1s based on current gilt yields

Greater detatl on the assumptions applied 15 shown in Note 19

Acqusitton Expenses
Certain management expenses vary with the level of new business and have been treated as acquisition costs Each line of costs has

been reviewed and 1ts variability to new business volumes estimated on the basis of the level of costs that would be incurred if new

business ceased

Amortisation and Recoverabihity of Deferred Acqusiion Costs (DAC) and Deferred Income (DIR)
Deferred acquisition costs on investment contracts are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected hfetime of the underlying
contracts The expected hifeme of the contracts has been estimated from the expenenced termination rates and the age of clients at

inception and maturity

Deferred mncome on mvestment contracts 1s amortised on a stratght hine basis over the expected hfetime of the underlying contracts,
although on certain contracts, the impact of early withdrawal charges means the income 1s effectively recogmsed over a shorter period

Deferred acquisition costs on insurance contracts are amortised over the period during which the costs are expected to be
recoverable in accordance with the projected emergence of future margins

Deferred acquisition costs relating to insurance and investment contracts are tested annually for recoverabihity by reference to

expected future income levels Future income levels are projected using assumptions consistent with those underlying our embedded

value calculation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

PQLICIES continued

Acquired In-Force Business

There have been no new business combinations generating acquired in-force business during the year The acquired value of the
mn-force business 1s amortised on a basis that reflects the expected profit stream arising from the business acquired at the date of
acqusition This profit stream 15 estimated from the experienced termination rates, expenses of management and age of the chents
under the individual contracts as well as global estimates of investment growth, based on recent experience at the date of acquisition

The acquired value of n-force business relating to msurance and investment contracts 15 tested annually for recoverability by
reference to expected future income levels

Valuing Capital Losses in the Uit Funds
In line with 1AS 12, the Group has recogmsed a deferred tax asset mn relation to capital [osses 1n the unit funds at the reporting date
This asset has been tested for impairment agatnst the level of capital gains realistically expected to anise 1n future

Much of the benefit of the deferred tax asset on capital losses 1o the unit funds will be shared with pohcyholders The pohcyholder
investment contract liability has therefore been increased to reflect the far value of this additional benefit The assumptions that have
a sigmificant effect on the fair value of the hability are as follows

* The assumed rate of mvestment return, which 1s based on current gilt yrelds

* The lapse assumption, which 15 set prudently based on experience during the year

* The assumed pertod for development of capital gans, which 1s estimated from recent experience

Determining the Value of Deferred Tax Assets

In line wath IAS 12, the Group has recogmised deferred tax assets for future tax benefits that will accrue The asset value has taken
nto consderation the hkelihood of appropriate future income or gains against which the tax asset can be utilised In particular,
future investment income from the existing assets and new business will be sufficient to utihise the unrelieved expenses, and capital
gans crystallising in the umt linked funds will unhse the capital losses Tax assets in relation to deferred income will be utilised as

the underlying income 15 recognised

Determining the Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Investment Proper

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Group categorises financial instruments carried on the balance sheet at fair value using a three level
hierarchy Financial instruments categonsed as level 1 are valued using quoted market prices and therefore there 1s minimal
judgement applied in determiming fair value However, the fair value of financial instruments categorised as level 2 and, in particular,
level 315 determined using valuation techniques These valuation techniques involve management Judgement and estimates, the
extent of which depends on the complexity of the instrument and the availability of market observable mformation Further details of
these valuations are deseribed 1n Note 27

Determining the Fair Value of Share-Based Payments

In determiming the fair value of share-based payments and the related charge to the income statement, the Group makes assumpnons
about the future events and market conditions In particular, judgement must be formed as to the likely number of shares that will
vest, and the fair value of each award granted Further details of these assumptions used are described in Note 30

Recoverability of St James's Place Partnership Loans

During the normal course of business the Group provides loans to St James’s Place Partners in order to support the development and
growth of the St James's Place Partnership The St James’s Place Partnership loans are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently held at amortised cost less impairment losses The recoverability of loans 1s measured and the asset 1s deemed impatred
if the projected future margins are less than the carrying value of the asset The allowance for impairment losses on St James's Place
Partnership loans 1s management's best esumate of losses mcurred 1n the portfolo at the statement of financial position date

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 Registered No 03183415




129

Measurement of Prepaid Operational Readiness Costs

Included within prepayments are operational readiness costs relating to the new administration service agreement which are imtially
recognised at the amounts advanced The prepayment 1s expensed 1n hine with the provision of services under the service agreement
At each statement of financial position date, the value of the prepayment 1s assessed for impairment recogmsed against the present
value of the esttmated future contract benefits In determining the present value of the estimated future contract benefits, the critical
judgements are the levels of future business that will be serviced, the anticipated future service tanffs, termination fees payable and
recervable under the contract and the rate used to discount amounts to present value

Fair Value Estimation of Assets Acquired

In accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, as of the acquisition date, the Group recognises, separately from goodwill, the
identifiable assets acquired, the abilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and classifies the 1dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed on the basis of the contractual terms, economic conditions, 1ts operating or accounting pohicies and
other pertinent conditions as they exist at the acquisition date The Group measures the 1dentifiable assets acquired and the Liabihittes
assumed at their acquisition-date fair values

3. SEGMENT REPORTING

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be 1dentified, on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board, 1n order to allocate resources to each segment and assess 1ts performance The
Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are therefore as follows

1 Life business — offering pensions, protection and investment products through the Group’s hife assurance subsidraries

2 Umt Trust business — offering unit trust wnvestment products, including 18As, through 5t James’s Place Unit Trust Group Limited
and St James’s Place Investment Admimistration Limited

3 Distribution business — the distribution network for the St James’s Place life and umt trust products as well as financial products
such as annuities, mortgages and stakeholder penstons, from third party providers

The figures for segment income provided to the Board in respect of the distribution business relate 1o the distribution of the products
of third party providers only The figures for segment profit provided to the Board take account of fees and comrmissions payable by
the Iife business and umt trust business to the distribution business

4 Other —all other Group activities

Separate geographrcal segmental information 1s not presented since the Group does not segment its business geographically Most of
1ts customers are based in the UK, as 15 management of the assets In particular, the operation based in south east Amia 1s not yet

materral for separate consideration

The income, profit and assets of these segments are set out over the next few pages
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

3. SEGMENT REPORTING continued

Segment Income

Gross Inflows to Funds Under Management

Gross inflows to funds under management 15 the income measure that 1s monitered on a monthly basis by the chief operating
decision maker

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3! December
2015 2014

£Million £'Million

6,110.0 51300
3,130.0 2,750 0

9,2400 7,880 0

Life busimess
Umt Trust business

Total gross inflows

Adjustments to IFRS basis
Life business
Exclude life gross inflows

(6,110.0) (5,130 0)

Insurance premiums recewvable 547 574
Less insurance premium income ceded to remnsurers (32 6) (33 5)
Fee income (management fees) 5719 5208
Net movement on deferred income 384 647
Investment return (primarily in umt hnked funds) 1,5317 2,9146

Unit Trust business

Exclude unut trust gross inflows (3,130 0) (2,750 0)

Fee income (dealing profit and management fees) 193 4 170 0
Net movement on deferred income 113 107
04 04

Investment return

Distribution business

Fee and commussion income receavable
Other investment return

Other business

Fee income receivable

5133 4293
02 03

52 55

Investment return on third party holdings in conschdated umt trusts 216.8 43259
Other investment return 67 59
15 12

Other operating income

Total adjustments (6,1271) (3,306 8)
Netincome (3,1129) 4,573 2

All segment nncome 18 generated by external customers and there are no segment ncome transactions between oper‘atmg segments as

measured by gross inflows

Segment Profit
Four separate measures of profit are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board These are European Embedded Value (EEV) and

IFRS (both pre-tax), underlying profit before tax and post-tax cash result Informanon as to the definition of these measures can be
found on pages 20 and 21 of the Financial Review and within the Glossary on pages 201 to 203
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EEV operating profit 1s momtored on a monthly basis by the Board The components of the EEV operating profit are included 1n more

detail 1n the Supplementary Information on the EEV basis within the Annual Report and Accounts on pages 186 to 196 A

reconciliaton of EEV operating profit to IFRS profit before tax 15 shown below

| l wonEpUNno. aderd s,sowe{ 1 ‘ l woday orforeaig
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EEV Result
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£Mallion £'Milhon
Life business 4670 4670
Unit Trust business 274.4 1777
Distribution business (212) (109
Other business (60.0) 374
EEV operating profit 660.2 596 4
Investment return variance (24 4) 802
Economic assumption changes 09 (70)
EEV profit before tax 6367 6696
Adjustments to IFRS basis
Deduct amortisation of acquired value of in-force (B2 32
Movement 1n hife value of in-force (net of tax) (187.6) 241 7)
Movement 11 unit trust value of in-force (net of tax) (176.4)  (1049)
Tax of movement in value of in-force (118.2) (136 9)
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1513 182 9
Tax attributable to policyholder returns 22.8 115
IFRS profit before tax 174 1 294 4
Cash Result
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£Million £'Million
Life business 1630 146 2
Umt Trust business 56 4 481
Distribution business (18 1) (8 5)
Other business (29 8) (207
Cash result after tax 171.5 1651
IFRS adjustments (after tax)
Share option expense (15 0) (14
Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) (527) (58 6)
Deferred income (DIR) 439 680
Acquired value of in-force (PVIF) (26) (2 6)
Sterling reserves (18) (74)
IFRS deferred tax adjustments 587 348
IFRS profit after tax 2020 1879
Shareholder tax (50.7) S0
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 151.3 182 9
Policyholder tax 22.8 1115
IFRS profit before tax 174 1 294 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED
3. SEGMENT REPORTING continued
IFRS Result
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£Miilian £'Mallion
Life business
— shareholder 1629 1717
— pohcyholder tax gross up 228 115
Unit Trust business 696 595
Distribution business (212) (10 9)
Other business (60 0) 379
IFRS profit before tax 174 1 294 4
Underlymg Profit
Year Ended Year Ended
3iDecember 31 December
2015 2004
£'Mallion £'Million
Life business 174 2 1607
Unt Trust bustness 70.7 61 2
Distribution business (21.2) (10 9)
Other business (60.0) (379
Underlying profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1637 173 6
Adjustments
DAC/DIR/PVIF . (12 4) 93
Profit before tax attributable to sharcholders’ returns 1513 182 9

Included within the EEV, IFRS profit before tax, post-tax cash result and underlying profit are the following

Ycar Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£'Million £'Million

Shareholder interest income 103 838
Depreciation 25 19
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FUM within the St James’s Place Group, rounded to the nearest £0 01 billion, are momtored on a monthly basis by the Board

31 Decermmber 31 December
05 2014

Life business
Unit Trust business

£Mallicn £'Mallion

43,3800 39,2000
15,2300 12,8000

Total FUM

Exclude third party holdings in non-consolidated umit trusts
Add balance sheet habihities in unit hnked funds

Adjustments for other balance sheet assets excluded from FUM

58,6100 52,0000
(2,4971) (2,086 4)
806.3° 4809

DAC 745.0 8130
PVIF 336 368
Computer software 4.3 77
Goodwill 101 101
Property & equipment 8.0 79
Deferred tax assets 2259 192 8
Fixed 1income secunties 831 833
Collective investment schemes 5327 52117
Remsurance assets 850 855
Insurance and investment contract recervables 76.2 635
Other receivables 412.5 292 6
Other recewvables eliminated on consolidation (125.4) (54 9)
Cash & cash equivalents 233.5 2743
Other adjustments 339 57
667.6 694 5

Total adjustments

Total assets

59,277.6 52,6945

4. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Decomber

2018 2014

£2Million £'WMalhon

Advice charges 4207 340 4
Third party fee and commission income 97 8 94 4
Life company imtial margm 30.5 263
Life company management fees 541.4 494 §
Unit Trust dealing profit 16 2 160
Umt Trust management fees 147 4 122 4
Unit Trust other income 298 314
Movement 1n deferred income 497 754

Total fee and commission iIncome

1,333.5  1,2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

5 INVESTMENT RETURN

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£Mallion £ Million

Dividend income 586.4 5053
Interest mcome 232 23 4
Rental income 60.4 508
Unut hnked funds cross holding investment income 4717 4231
Net realised gains 5621 3815
Net unrealised (losses)/gains (164.8) 1,5371
Income attributable to third party holdings i unit trusts 216.8 4259
Total investment return 1,755 8 33471

For further information on the mvestment return see page 22 of the Financial Review

6. EXPENSES
The following items are included within the expenses disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
£'Million £'Million
Employee costs (see Note 7) 121 2 m?-a
Depreciation 2.5 19
Amortisation of acquired value of m-force business 32 32
Amortisation of DAC 1001 1027
Amortisation of computer software 34 28
Deferral of DAC (321) (26 %)
Partner remuneration 518.5 455 4
Payment under operating leases 10.4 13 8
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and 1ts associates for the audit of the Parent Company and
consolidated financial statements 02 01
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other services
— The audst of the Company’s subsidiaries {excluding Unit Trusts) 05 03
— Audit of the Company’s Unit Trusts 03 03
— Audit-related assurance services 0s 02
7. EMPLOYEE COSTS
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Becember
2015 2014
£Mallion £ Milhon
Wages and salaries 92.0 84 2
Social security costs 103 101
Other pension costs 1n relation to defined contribution schemes 68 60
Cost of share awards and options 12.1 114
Total employee costs 121 2 17
Average monthly number of persons employed by the Group during the year 1,430 1,225

The above information includes Directors’ remuneration Details of the Directors’ remuneration, share options, pension entitlernents
and nterests 1n shares are disclosed 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 99
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8. INCOME TAXES

Year Ended Year Ended
3 December 31 December

2015 2014
£Muhon £'Million
UK corporation tax
— Current year charge 860 962
— Adjustment i respect of prior year 07 (76)
QOverseas taxes
— Current year charge 3.7 69
90 4 955§
Deferred tax on unreahsed capital gains and losses in umit hinked funds (50 0) 406
Deferred tax on unrehieved expenses 81 84
Deferred tax on recognition and usage of capital losses arising 1n the Group
— Capital losses recogmsed 1n the year (74.8) (39 5
— Utlisation in the year 121 99
— Adjustment 1n respect of prior year (1.1 68
Deferred tax charge on other items {10 2) (13 3)
Effect on deferred tax of change in tax rate “453) —
Overseas deferred taxes on losses 2.1 1%
(118.3) 1190
'Total tax (credit)/charge for the year (279) 106 5
Attributable to
— pohicyholders 228 1115
— shareholders (50.7) (X))
(279) 106 §

The prior year adjustment i current tax above includes a charge of £1 0 mllion in respect of policyholder tax (2014 £0 6 milhon charge)

In arrving at the profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ return, 1t1s necessary to estimate the analysis of the total tax charge
between that payable in respect of policyholders and that payable by sharcholders Sharcholder tax s estimated by makuing an assessment
of the effective rate of tax that 1s apphcable to the shareholders, with the balance being treated as tax 1n respect of pohicyholders

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

Deferred tax 2005 2014

£'Mallzon £'Milbon
Balance at 1 January 3270 314 8
(Credut)/charge through the consclidated statement of comprehensive income (118 3) 110
Anising on acqusitions during the year - 12
Balance at 31 December 208.7 3270

| l uonepunoy asers §sawel 1Q | 1 1today o18azeng
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The deferred tax components to which movements above relate are disclosed in Note 13 Deferred Tax Assets and Note 24 Deferred
Tax Liabiliies

Included within the deferred tax current year charge 15 a charge of £1 8 mllion (2014 £1 5 milhon credit) relating to share-based
payments Details of share-based payments are disclosed in Note 30 Share-based Payments

The reduction 1n the corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% effective from | April 2017 and from 19% to 18% effective from 1 April
2010 have already been incorporated 1nto the deferred tax balances as the changes were enacted n 2015 .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

8. INCOME TAXES continued

Year Ended Year Ended
3 December 31 December
Reconciliation of tax (credit)/charge 2015 2014
E'Million £'Mallion
Profit before tax 1741 294 4
Tax at 20 25% (2014 21 5%) 35.3 633
Effects of
Lower rates of corporate income tax 1n overseas subsidiarzes (14) (36)
Allowance for policyholder tax in the calculation of shareholder profit i81 875
Recogmuion and usage of Company capital losses arising 1n the Group {74 8) 325
Dhfferences 1n accounting and tax bases in relation to employee share schemes G4 210
Disallowable expenses 3.0 09
Adjustment in respect of prior year (15 0 2)
Change 1n tax rate (4.5) -
Other adjustments 33 02
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year (279) 106 5
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Reconciliation of tax (credit)/charge 2015 014
£Mallion £'Mllion
Profit before tax 174.1 294 4
Tax attributable to policyholders’ returns* (22.8) (111 5)
Profit before tax attnbutable to shareholders’ return 151.3 1829
Shareholder tax charge at corporate tax rate of 20 25% (2014 21 5%) 306 20 25% 393 21 5%
Adjustments-
Tax regime differences
Lower rates of corporation tax 1n overseas subsidiaries (1.4) (3 6)
(1.4) 0 9%) 36) (2 0%)
Other
Recognition and usage of capital losses arising in the Group (74 8) (395)
Adjustment 1n respect of prior year (1.5) 02
Differences in accounting and tax bases in relation to employee share schemes .4 21
Disallowable expenses 3.0 09
Other 3.3 02
{75.4) “49.8%) (40 7) (22 3%)
Change n tax rate #.5) -
Shareholder tax credit (50.7) {33 5%) G0 2 7%)
Policyholder tax charge 22.8 111 5
. Total tax (credit)/charge for the year (27 9) 106 5

* Taxattributable to policyholder returns 15 equal to the policyholder tax charge

In arnving at the profit before sharcholder tax, 1t 15 necessary to estimate the analysis of the total tax charge between that payable
respect of policyholders and that payable by shareholders Shareholder tax 15 estimated by making an assessment of the effective rate
of tax that s applicable to the shareholders, with the balance being treated as tax 1n respect of policyholders

As noted on page 28, 1n the second half of 2015, management completed the review of all historic Group companies, a project that
commenced a number of years ago During this process management identified further capital losses whaich 1t 13 expected will be
utilised over the next ten years, albett the actual rate of utilisation will depend on business growth and external factors, particularly
mvestment market conditions Therefore a further deferred tax asset of £74 8 million has been established within the IFRS result
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9, EARNINGS PER SHARE ug

i Year Ended Year Ended g

31 December 31 Decomber 'S

2015 2014 ]
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 38.9 36 6
Diluted earnings per share 38.5 359
Underlying basic earnings per share 39.8 352
Underlying diluted earnings per share 39.4 34 6

The earnings per share (EPS) calculations are based on the following figures

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

l [ uoneEpunodg adeid S,SB“IE['JC |

2015 2014
£'Million £ Mullion
Earnings

Profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 2020 1879

Underlying profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 206.8 1809

Millhion Milhon
Weighted average number of shares ¢
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1 1ssue (for basic EPS) 519.1 51490 b
Adjustments for outstanding share options 52 90 5
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (for diluted EPS) 524.3 5230 E

10. DIVIDENDS

The following dividends have been paid by the Group

Year Ended Year Ended  Year Ended Year Ended g
31 December 31 December 31 December 3t December o
2015 2014 2015 2014 =
Pence per Pence per £Mmallion £ Millon =
Share Share g
Final dividend in respect of previous financial year 14 37 958 748 494 ,:f;
Interim dividend 1n respect of current financial year 10.72 893 560 46 1 =
v
Total divaidends 2509 18 51 130.8 955

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 17 24 pence per share (2014 14 37 pence) This amounts to £30 5 million <
(2014 £74 6 mullion) and will, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 13 May 2016 to those 4
shareholders on the register as at § April 2016 ;,.:
8
11. GOODWILL 2
31 December 31 December g
2015 oM =
EMilhon £'Milhon I
Balance at 1 January 101 —
Additions — 101
Accumulated impairment loss - -
Balance at 31 December 10.1 101
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

11. GOODWILL continued

Goodwill 15 reviewed at least annually for impatrment or when circumstances or events indicate there may be uncertamty over this
value For the purposes of impairment testing, 100% of the goodwall 1s allocated to the appropriate cash generating umit, being Life

The recoverable amount has been based on a value 1n use caleulation The calculation applies an actuarially determined appratsal
value, based on the embedded value of the business The key assumptions used 1n the value 1n use calculation are growth in volume of
new busness at 15% and profitability in ine with our other exasting international business More information regarding the

assumptions used i the embedded value of the business can be found on pages 191 and 192

It1s considered that any reasonably possible levels of change 1n the key assumptions would not result in impairment of the goodwill

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer

software

& other

Life Life Unit Trust Acquired speafic

business business business valucof software

—insurance —mvestinent =investment n-force develop-
DAC DAC DAC Total DAC business Toents Total

£'Million £'Mallion £’Mallhion £'Million £'Milhon £Milhion £'Milhon

Cost
At ] January 2014 107 2 1,146 0 298 0 1,552 2 734 118 1,6374
Additions 05 17 2 92 269 - 18 287
At 31 December 2014 1077 1,163 2 308 2 1,5791 734 136 1,666 1
At1l ]anuary 2015 1077 1,163.2 308 2 1,5791 73 4 136 1,666 1
Additions 0.5 226 90 321 - - 32.1
At 31 December 2015 108 2 1,185.8 317.2 1,611 2 73.4 13.6 1,698 2
Accumulated amortisation
At January 2014 1057 4501 1076 663 4 334 3t £99 9
Charpge for the year 038 80 4 215 1027 32 28 108 7
At 31 December 2014 106 5 5305 1291 766 1 366 59 808 6
At Januar_y 2015 * 106.5 530.5 1291 766 1 366 59 808 6
Charge for the year 0.6 781 214 100.1 312 34 106.7
At 31 December 2015 107.1 608 6 150.5 866.2 39.8 9.3 915 3
Carrying value
At 31 December 2014 12 6327 179 1 813 0 368 77 8575
At 31 December 2015 1.1 577.2 1667 745.0 33.6 43 7829
Current 105.5
Non-current 6774
7829
Qutstanding amortisation period
At 31 December 2014 6years l4years 14 years 11 years 4 years
At 31 December 2015 6 years 14 years 14 years 10 years 4 years

Amortrsation of deferred acquisition costs 1s charged within the fees, commussion and other acquisition costs hne in the statement of
comprehensive income The amortisanion of the acquired value of in-force business 1s charged withmn other operating expenses with
the amortisation of computer software and customer hist charged within admimstration expenses Amortisation profiles are

reassessed annually
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13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS ag
31 December 31 December ?o:
2015 2014 g
£Mallion £ Malhon A

Life business — unrelieved expenses 57.1 653
Life business — deferred income 4.4 18 4 I
Unit Trust business — deferred income 40 8 461 o«
Catal losses available for future rehef 113.1 507 Rt
Employee share scheme costs 58 76 E
Future capital allowances 3.0 25 o
Other 1.7 22 ‘_‘;
Total deferred tax assets 225.9 192 8 E
o
Current 40.8 411 8
Non-current 185 1 1517 £
a
2259 1928 5
8

Appropriate mnvestment Income, gains or profits are expected to arise agamst which the tax assets can be utilised In particular

» Future investment income over the next six years from the existing assets will be sufficient to uttlise the unrelieved expenses

* Capital gamns crystallising in the unit linked funds will utilise the capital losses It 15 anticipated that the losses wall be utihsed
within approximately ten years In the three years from 2013 to 2015 losses with a tax value of £29 0 million have been utihised,
indicating an average of approximately £10 0 mullion per annum, which 1s consistent with the predicted usage

« ‘Fax assets n relation to deferred income will be utihsed over the next 14 years as the underlying income is recognised

DIUBUIIAON

At the reporting date there were unrecogmsed deferred tax assets of £1 4 mullion (2014 £0 2 mmlhon) in respect of losses 1n
companies where appropriate profits are not considered probable in the forecast perrod These losses primarily relate to our Asia
based businesses and can be carred forward indefimitely

During the year £12 1 milhon (2014 £i67 milhon) of deferred tax assets relating to capital losses have been utilised and a further
£74 8 mullion (2014 £39 5 million) have been recogmised It 1s expected that these losses will be utihised over the next ten years,
albert the actual rate of utilisation will depend on business growth and external factors, particularly investment market conditrons
The rate of utilisation has been tested for sensitivity to experience and 1t 15 resilient to a range of reasonably forseeable scenarios

A
=
-
£

The reductions 1n the corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% effective from 1 April 2017 and from 13% to 18% effective from 1 April
2020 have been incorporated mnto the deferred tax balances as the changes were enacted 1in 2015

Siuauml

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

31 December 31 Decemnber
2015 2014 c
£Million £'Mallion %
Balance at 1 January 1,031.4 7327 -
Additions 247.9 2542 §
Capitalised expenditure on existng properties 5.9 48 5
Disposals (14.3) 46 1) =
Changes in fair value 740 85 8§ é
Balance at 31 December 1,344 9 1,031 4

Investment property 1s held within unit hnked funds and 15 considered current

Investment property 1s valued monthly by external chartered surveyors in accordance with the guidance 1ssued by The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors The investment property valuation has been prepared using the ‘market approach’ valuation
technique — using prices and other relevant in formation generated by market transactions involving 1dentical or comparable

(1 e simular) assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

N\

14, INVESTMENT PROPERTY continued

The rental 1ncome and direct operating expenses recognised in the statement of comprehensive mcome 1n respect of investment
properties are set out below All expenses relate to property generating rental income

Year Ended Yeur Ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£Millien £'Milhon

Rental income 604 508
Direct operating expenses 58 62

At the year end contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property amounted to £9 0 rmilion (2014 £2 2
million) and to dispose of investment property amounted to £ml (2014 £ml)

15. ASSETS HELD TO COVER LINKED LIABILITIES AND THIRD PARTY HOLDINGS IN UNIT TRUSTS
Included within the balance sheet are the following assets and habilitzes which represent the net assets held to cover hnked liabilities
and those attributable to third party holdings m unit trusts (UTMI) The difference between these assets and Labihties and those
shown 1n the conschdated balance sheet represents assets and habilinies held outside the unit linked funds and the UTMI

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£Million £'Million
Assets
Investment property 1,344.9 1,031 4
Investments
— Equities 37,9608 347349
— Fixed income secunities 8,8509 6,7555
— Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 27369 24401
— Currency forwards 33.8 383
— Interest rate swaps 135 103
— Collaterised mortgage obhgations 2387 53 4
— Fixed mcome options — 12 4
— Index options 203 18 2
— Contracts for differences 107 277
— Equity rate swaps 16 1 -
— Foreign currency options 228 -
~ Total return swaps 6.6 —
— Other derivatives 16 61
Other receivables 478.4 3120
Other receivables eliminated on consohdation 125.5 94 8
Cash & cash equivalents 5,09L6 438651
Total assets 56,953.1 50,400 2
Liabilitres
Financial habilities
- Currency forwards 168.6 283
— Interest rate swaps 59 51
— Fixed income opticns 61 97
—Index options 36 81
— Contracts for differences 43 189
— Equity rate swaps 58 —
— Foreign currency options 196 -
— Total return swaps 02 —
— Other denvatives . , 70 92
Other payables 3110 1837
Other payables elrminated on consolidation 274 2 2179
Total hhabilities 806.3 4809
Net assets held to cover hnked habilities and third party holdings in umt trusts 56,146.8 49,9193
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Net assets held to cover hinked Labihttes and third party holdings in unit trusts are considered to have a maturity of up to one year

since they are actively traded and managed to facihtate immediate settlement

See accounting pohey (z) for further information on current and non-current disclosure

wodaw oi8ayeaic
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31 December 31 December

2015 014

£'Milhon £'Malhon

[nvestment contracts 43,1598 38,8512

Net asset value attributable to unit holders 12,556.4 10,6178

Insurance contract habihties 376 5 384 3

Consohdation adjustments 541 660

Net assets held te cover hinked Liabilities and third party holdings in unit trusts 56,146.8 49,9193
16, OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£'Million £ Milhon

St James's Place Partnership loans 178.7 158 9

Prepayments 114 2 625

Advanced Partner remuneration 27.% 251

Unit hnked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security sales) 478 4 3120

Unit Trust dealing receivables 35.5 32

Renewal income 26.8 291

Miscellaneous 295 138

Total other receivables 891 0 604 6

Current 650 4 4537

Non-current 240.6 1509

891.0 6046

The fair value of loans and receivables included :n other recevables 1s not materially different from amortised cost St James's Place

Partnership loans are interest bearing (linked to Bank of England base rate plus a margin), repayable on demand and secured against

the future renewal income streams of that Partner The St James’s Place Partnership loans are shown net of 2 £3 0 mullion provision
(2014 £2 9 mulhon) During the year £1 2 million of the provision was utihsed (2014 £1 4 million utilised) whilst new provisions

and adjustments to exasting provisions increased the total by £1 3 mulhon (2014 £0 5 milhon decrease)

Included within prepayments are operational readiness costs relating to the new administration platform being developed by our key
outsourced back-office administration provider Management have assessed the recoverability of this prepayment and 1t 1s believed
that any reasonably possible change 1n the assumptions applhied within this assessment would have no impact on the carrying value of

the asset

Movement in renewal 1ncome

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£'M:llion £'Milhon

At 1 January 291 16 6
Reclassification® - 59
Additions 14 95
Revaluation (G37) 29
Total renewal 1ncome 268 291

*  The prior yoar reclasmfication related to purchased §)P Partner renewal income previously dusclosed within mascellaneona
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

16. OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

The key assumptions used for the assessment of the fair value of the renewal income are as follows

31 Decemnber 31 December
2ms 2014

Lapse rate — S|P Partner renewal income** 6%—10% 6%—10%
Lapse rate — Non SJP renewal income** 9%—32% 14%-21%
Discount rate 5.0% 50%

** Futurc income streams are projected making use of persisteacy sssumptions deris ed from the Group 5 experience of the business or, where insufficient data exists, from external industry

experience These assumptions are reviewed on an 2nnual basis

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each business combination classified withun renewal income

17. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December

2015 014

£Mithion £"Million

Cash at bank 2335 2735
Cash held by third parties - 08
Cash & cash equivalents held outside unit inked and unit trust funds 2335 2743
Balances held within unit linked and umt trust funds 5,091.6 48651
Total cash & cash equivalents 53251 5,139 4

All cash & cash equivalents are considered current
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18. INSURANCE RISK

Insurance risk zrises from inherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and tuming of insurance habilities The Group assumes
insurance risk by 1ssuing insurance contracts under which the Group agrees to compensate the chent (or other beneficary) if a
speaified future event (the msured event) occurs The Group insures mortahty and morbidity risks but has no longevity risk as we
have never written any annuity business The Group has 2 mediim appetite for insurance risk, only actively pursuing it where
financially beneficial, or in support of strategic objectives

woday mi3syenic

DESCRIPTION MANAGEMENT

Underwriting Failure to price appropriately | The Group ceased writing new protection business in Apnl 2011 Expernence 1s
for a nsk, or the impact of monitored regularly For most business the premium or deductien rates can be
anti-selection re-set The Group has fully reinsured the UK insurance nisk

Epidemic/ An unusually large number | Protection s provided through reinsurance The Group has fully reinsured the

disaster of claims ansing from a UK insurance risk

single incdent or event

Expense Administration costs exceed | Administration 15 outsourced and a tanff of costs 1s agreed The contract1s
expense allowance monitored regularly to ratronalise costs incurred Internal overhead expenses are
monitored and closely managed

[

I I uonepuno.g aselJ s,samef 1 I |

Retention Loss of future profit dueto | Retention of insurance contracts 15 closely monitored and unexpected experence g
more chents than anticipated |1s investigated Retention expenence has continued 1 line with assumptions s

withdrawing thewr funds E

5

)

o

19. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2015 2014
£'Milhon £ Millien -
Balance at | January 474.4 466 4 E
Movement in unit linked Liabihties (7.8) (107 H
Movement 1n non-umt linked habilities 5
— New business 0.2 02 Y
— Existing business (1.3) 71 :.'.:.
— Other assumption changes (1.2) 69 £l
— Experience varmance (08 49 g
Total movement in non-umt hinked liabihities (3.1) 187 ¢
Balance at 31 December ’ 463.5 474 4 —
Unit hinked N 376 5 3843 c
Non-unit linked 870 901 5
4635 4744 o
Current 102 5 1067 §
Non-current 361.0 3677 g
[nd
463.5 474 4 g

Unit linked hiabilibes move as a function of net cash flows into policyholder funds and underlying investment performance of those funds

See accounting policy (2) for further mformation on the current and non-current disclosure

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015




144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

19. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES continued
Assumptions Used n the Calculation of Liabilities
The principal assumptions used 1n the calculation of the habihities are

Assumption

Description

Interest rate

Mortahty

Morbidaty
— Critical lllness

Morbudity

— Permanent Health Insurance

Expenses

Persistency

The valuation interest rate 15 calculated by reference to the long term gt yield at 31 Decemnber
2015 and the speafic glts backing the habilittes The specific rates used are between | 7% and
2 2% depending on the tax regime (1 6% and 2 1% at 31 December 2014)

Mortality 15 based on Company experience and 15 set at 72% of the TM/F92 tables with an
additional loading for smokers There has been ne change since 2006

Morbidity 1s based on Company experience There has been no change during 2015 Sample
annuzl rates per £ for a male non-smoker are

Rate
Age 2015 2014
25 0000760 0 000760
35 0.001334 0001334
45 0.003189 0003189

Morbidity 1s based on Company experience There has been no change during 2015 Sample
annual rates per £ income benefit p a for a male non-smoker are

Ratz
Age 2015 2034
25 0.00548 0 00548
35 0 01447 0 01447
45 003138 003138

Contract habihties are calculated allowing for the actual costs of admimstration of the business
The assumption has been amended to allow for changes to the underlying admimstration costs

Annual Cast

Product 2015 2014

Protection business £36.01 £34 98

Allowance 1s made for a prudent level of lapses within the calculation of the liabihities The rates
have not changcd 1n 2015 Sample annual lapse rates are

Lapses
2014 & 2015 Year 1 Year S Year 10
Protection business T% 9% 8%
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Sensitivity Analysis

The table below sets out the sensitivity of the profit on 1nsurance business and net assets to changes in key assumptions  The levels of
sensiivity tested are consistent with those proposedin the EEV principles and reflect reasonably possible levels of change in the
assumnptions The analysis reflects the change 1n the variable/assumption shown whle all other variables/assumptions are left
unchanged In practice varrables/assumptions may change at the same time, as some may be correlated (for example, an increase in
Interest rates may also result in an increase 1n expenses 1f the increase reflects higher inflation) It should also be noted that 1n some
Instances sensitivities are non-hnear The sensiavity % has been applied to proportion the assumption ¢ g application of a 10%
sensivity to a withdrawal assumption of 8% will reduce 1t to 7 2%

Changen Change in
profit/(loss) profit/(loss) Changen Changen

Change 1n before tax before max nect assets netassets

Sensitivity analysis assumption 2015 2014 2015 2014
% £'Mallron £'Millon £Milhon 4'Million

Withdrawal rates -10% (1.0) ) (0.9) ©9)
Expense assumptions -10% 03 c3 03 03
Mortality/morbidity -5% 0.0 0o 0.0 00

A change in interest rates will have no material lmpact Cn 1nsurance Pl'Oﬁt or net assets

| uonepunog aoerd s.sawrel 1 i | 11oday o18a1e03Q
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20. REINSURANCE ASSETS
31 Drecember 3 December
2015 2014
£'Million £'Malhon
Remnsurers’ share of msurance contract labilities
— Long term insurance contract labihty 76.4 766
— Claims outstanding 8.6 89
Reinsurance assets 85.0 855
Current 242 245
Non-current 608 610
850 855
A reconciliation of the movement 1n the net reinsurance balance 1s set out below
2015 2014
LMillon £ Malkon
Rewnsurance assets at 1 January 855 64 2
Reinsurance component of net change 1n claims provision (0 3) 52
Remsurance component of change 1n insurance habilities (0 2) 161
Reinsurance assets at 31 December 85.0 85 5

The overall impact of 1einsurance on the profit for the year was a net charge of £4 6 million (2014 credit of £11 8 million)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

21. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Tatal

prﬂﬂsmn!

£Milhon

At 1 January 2015 11.4
Unhsed during the year (8.9)
Additional provisions 129
At 31 December 2015 154
Current 8.5
Non-current 6.9
154

Total provisions relate to the cost of redress for complaints The proviston 1s based on estimates of the total number of complaints
expected to be upheld, the estimnated cost of redress and the expected timing of settlement

As mare fully set out in the summary of principal risks and uncertainties on pages 43 to 47, the Group could in the course of its
business be subject to legal proceedings and/or regulatory actavity Should such an event anse, the Board would consider their best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obhigation and, where appropriate and materal, establish a provision Whle there can
be no assurances that circumstances won't change, based upon information currently available to them, the Directors do not beheve
there 15 any possible activity or event that could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position

During the normal course of business, the Group may from time to nme provide guarantees to Partners, clients or other third
parties However, based upon the information currently available to them, the Directors do not believe there are any guarantees
which would have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position, and so the fair value of any guarantees has been assessed

as £ml (2014 £nil)

22, INVESTMENT CONTRACT BENEFITS

2015 2014

PMilhon £Mulhon

Balance at 1 January ‘ 38,8512 33,7175

Depaosits 6,039.1 5,022 8
Withdrawals (2,7043) (2,176 8)
Investment contract benefits (principally representing investment expense/income) 1,7625 3,234 4
Less investment contract benefits attributable to fund deductions (5719)  (5208)
Less investment contract benefits attributable to third party holdings m unit trusts (216 8) (425 9)

Balance at 31 December 43,1598 38,8512

3,237.0 29138
39,9228 35,9374

43,1598 38,8512

Current
Non-current

See accounting policy (z) for further information on the current and non-current disclosure
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23. BORROWINGS
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£Milhion £'Mithon
Bank borrowings 1320 843
Loan notes 49.8 —
Total borrowings 181.8 843
Current ~ 1.0 297
Non-current 180 8 546
181.8 843

Duning the year a new £250 mullion revolving credit facility {repayable over five years witha varable 1nterest rate) was entered into
with a group of UK banks The Group has imually drawn £125 million under the fully-commutted facihty

In addition, during the year, the Group entered mto a US Dollar $160 mllion private shelf factlity The Group authorised the issue of
£50 rmilion of loan notes during the year in relation to the aforementioned facility The notes were 1ssued in Sterling, ehminating any
Group currency risk The notes are repayable over ten years with a variable interest rate

The Group also guarantees £77 2 mullron (2014 £93 9 mullion) of direct loans from Bank of Scotland, £44 8 millon

{2014 £20 1 million) of direct loans from Metro Bank plc and £19 4 milhon 2014 £ml) of direct loans from Santander plc to
members of the 5t James’s Place Partnership drawn under total facilities of £90 0 milhon (2014 £120 0 million), £76 0 mithon
{2014 £40 0 million) and £25 0 million (2014 £nil), respectively In the event of default of any individual Partner loan, the Group
guarantees to repay the outstanding balance of that loan These Partners’ loans are secured against the future renewal income streams
of that Partner

The fair value of the outstanding bank loans and guarantees are not materially different from amortised cost

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December

|

| UonEPUNOg 308 §,somef ‘I I \ 11odoy mBarea1q

DOURILIIAOT)

2015 2014
£'Million £'Milhon

On deferred acquisitzon costs
— Life and pensions business 86 8 1150
— Unit trust business 3t.0 358
On acquired value of in-force business 62 74
On renewal income 3.5 41
In respect of unit linked funds 304 8 3547
Other 2.3 28
Total deferred tax liabilities 434.6 5198
Current 69.4 76 5
Non-current 365.2 4433

434.6 5198

The deferred tax habihty on deferred acquisition costs is expected to crystallise over approximately 14 years, on acquired value of
in force business over ten years and on renewal income over approximately 20 years The majority of the deferred tax on unrealised
gains s expected to crystallise over six years

The reductions 1n the corporanion tax rate from 20% to 19% effective from 1 April 2017 and from 19% to 18% effective from
1 April 2020 have been incorporated mnto the deferred tax balances as the changes were enacted 1n 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

25. DEFERRED INCOME
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£million £ Milhon
Life business 194 2 2326
Umit Trust business 219.3 2306
Total deferred income 413.5 463 2
Current 93.0 104 2
Non-current 320.5 3590
413 5 463 2

26. OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 December
1% 2014
£Mallion £'Million
Accruals 1124 %933
Unit Trust dealing payable 88.1 885
Uit hnked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security purchases) 311.0 1837
Miscellaneous 149.3 1342
Total other payables 660 8 4597
Current 605.8 4873
Non-current 55.0 32 4
660 8 4997

Included within miscellaneous 1s a Contract Payment of £48 3 million (2014 £27 4 mulhen) which 1s non-interest bearing and
repayable on a straight-line basis over the life ofa 12 year service agreement commeneing 1n 2017

27. INANCIAL RISK
Risk Management Objectives and Risk Policies

The Group seeks to manage risk through the operation of unit linked business whereby the policyholder bears the financial risk In

addition, shareholder assets are invested 1n Liquid investments with a strong credit rating
Under IFRS 7, the Group 1s required to analyse their exposure to the following risks

* Credit nisk

*  Liquudity risk

* Market risk

*  Currency nsk
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Credat risk 1s the risk of loss due to a debtor’s non-payment of a loan or other line of credit Credit risk also arises from holdings
of cash and cash equivalents, deposts and formal loans with banks and financial institutions  The Group has adopted a nisk averse
approach to such risk and has a stated policy of not actively pursuing or accepting credit risk except when necessary to support

cther objectives

Shareholders’

assets

Investment
matchmg of
non-hnked
lhiabilities

Reinsurance

Partner loans
and advances

DESCRIPTION

Loss of assets

Loss of value of assets

Failure of counterparty or
counterparty unable to meet
habilities

Inability of Partners to repay
loans or advances from
St James's Place

MANAGEMENT

Shareholder funds are predomnantly invested in AAA rated unitised money
market funds and deposits with approved banks Maximum counterparty lirmits
are set for each Company within the Group and aggregate Limuts are also setata
Group level

These liabalities are matched by fixed interest securities with minimum AAA
credit ratings or UK Government Gilts, maxamum counterparty limuts for such
holdings are again set for each Company within the Group and at an aggregate
Group level

Credit ratings of potential reinsurers must meet or exceed mumimum specified
levels Consideration 15 also given to size, risk concentrations/exposures and
ownership 1n the selection of reinsurers The Group also seeks to dwversify its
remnsurance credit risk through the use of a spread of reinsurers

Loans and advances are managed in line with the Group’s secured lending policy
Loans are secured on the future renewal income stream expected from a
Partner’s portfolio and loan advances vary in relation to the projected future
mncome of the relevant Partner Outstanding balances are regularly reviewed and
assessed on a conservative basis Support 1s provided to help Partners manage
their business appropriately Appropriate provision 15 made where there 1s
objective evidence of impairment

| uonepunog 3oeld s.souref 1 | I uOdO)I DIBOI?.IJQ
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Liquidlty risk 15 the risk that the Group, although solvent, either does not have available sufficient financial resources to enable 1t
to meet 1ts obligations as they fall due, or can secure such resources only at excessive cost The Group 15 averse to hquidity risk and
seeks to mammise this risk by not actively pursuing 1t except where necessary to support other objectives

Cash or expense
requirement

DESCRIPTION

A sigmficant cash or expense
requirement needs to be met
at short notice

MANAGEMENT

The majonity of free assets are invested 1n cash or cash equivalents and the cash
position and forecast are monitored on a monthly basis Also, the Group

mamntains a margin of free assets 1n excess of the tmmimum required solvency
capital within its regulated entities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. INANCIAL RISK continued

Market risk 1s the smpact a fall 1n the value of equity or other asset markets may have on the business The Group adopts a risk
averse approach to market risk, with a stated solvency pohicy of not actively pursuing or accepting market risk except where necessary
to support other objectives However, the Group accepts the nisk that the fall in equity or other asset markets will reduce the level of
annual management charge income derived from policyholder assets and the risk of lower future profits

The table below summarises the main market risks that the business 1s exposed to and the methods by which the Group seeks to
mitigate them

DESCRIPTION MANAGEMENT

Clent liabihtres | As a result of a reduction in | This risk 15 substantially mutigated by the Group’s strategic focus on unit-inked
equity valucs, the Group may [business, by not providing guarantees to chents on policy values and by the

be unable to meet chient matching of assets and habhites
liabihties
Tax In adverse market conditions, | The tax position 1s monttored closely, in particular the size and sources of

when the Group is realising | relevant mcome streams
mvestment losses rather than
gains, the working of the I-E
tax regime can lead to
short-term capital
mefficiencies, including the
deferral of the cash benefit
anising from tax rehef on
expenses

Retention Loss of future profit on Retention of investment contracts 15 closely momtored and unexpected
investment contracts due to €Xperiefnce variances are mvestlgated Retention has remained conSJStently strong
more chents than antieipated | throughout 2015, despite the challenging economic environment and volanlity,
withdrawing their funds, and fund surrender rates have remained low at ¢ 5%

particularly as a result of
poor investment

performance

New business Poor performance n the The benefits to clients of longer term equity investment as part of a diversified
financial markets n absolute | portfolio of assets 1s fundamental to our philesophy Advice and marketing
terms, and relative to become even more important when market values fall, and greater attention 1s
inflation, leads to exasting required to support and give confidence to exising and future chents i such

and future chents rejecting circumstances This 1s taken account of by the Group in 1ts activities
investment 1n longer term
assets

Currency Risk

The Group 15 not subject to any sigmificant currency risk since all material shareholder finaneal assets and financial habihties are

denommated 1n Sterling
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Categories of Financial Assets and Fmancial Liabilities
The categories and carrying values of the financal assets and financial habilines held 1 the Group’s balance sheet are summarised in

the table below

Financral Financial
assets at habalities at Financial
fair value fair value lhabibties
through through measured at
profitand Available Loans and profitand amortised
31 December 2015 loss™ forsale recervables loss™ cost Total

£Malhion £Million £'Mallien £Mmillion £Million £'Million

Financial Assets and Investment Properties

I | UORIEPUNOS 20814 §.sowel I | I 1zoday 01da1en1g
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Investment properties 1,344 9 1,344 9
Equities 37,960.8 37,960 8
Fixed tncome securities 8,934 0 8,934 0
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 3,269.6 3,269 6
Dervative financial instruments 3641 3641
Insurance & investment contract recervables 76 2 76 2
Other recervables™

— St James’s Place Partnership loans 178 7 178 7
— Renewal income 26 8 26.8
— Qther 543 4 543 4
Total other receivables 26 8 722 1 7489
Cash & cash equivalents 50916 2335 5,325.1
Total financial assets and 1nvestment properties 56,965.0 268  1,031.8 58,023.6
Financial Liabilities

Investment contract benefits 43,i59 8 43,159.8
Borrowings ) 181.8 181.8
Denvative financial instruments 221.1 2211
Insurance & mnvestrnent contract payables 45.9 45.9
Other payables 660.8 660.8
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 12,556 4 12,556.4
Total financial habilities 55,9373 888.5 56,825.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. FINANCIAL RISK continued

Financial Financial
assers at habilitres at Financial
fair value farr value halhities
through through measured at

profit and Available Loans and profitand amornsed
31 December 2014 losst® for sale recewvables lowst cost Total

£'Millhon £ Million £Million £ Milhon £E'Milhion £ Mallion
Financral Assets and Investment Properties
Investment properties 1,031 4 1,031 4
Equities 34,734 9 34,734 9
Fixed income securities 6,838 8 6,838 8
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 2,9617 2,9617
Derivative financial instruments 166 4 166 4
Insurance & investment contract recervables 635 635
Other recervables®
— St James’s Place Partnership loans 158 ¢ 158 9
— Renewal income 291 291
— Other 3280 3290
Total other receivables 291 4879 5170
Cash & cash equivalents 4,865 1 274 3 5,1394
Total financial assets and investment properties 50,598 3 291 8257 51,4531
Financial Liabthities
Investment contract benefits 38,851 2 38,851 2
Borrowings 843 84 3
Denivative financial instruments 7913 783
Insurance & investment contract payables 504 504
Other payables 4997 4997
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 10,6178 10,617 8
Total financial habihties 49,548 3 6344 50,1827

(1) Allfinancial assets and liabihites at fair value through profit or loss are dexignated as such upon initial recognition
(2} Other financial assets exclude prepayments and unearned commission from other receivables

The carrymg value of the umat hnked investment contract habilities may differ from the amount contractually required to pay at
maturity Maturity values of the financal habilities vary wath future policyholder mvestment and withdrawals as well as investment
return, coupled with the impact of capital losses in the funds The contractual value required to be pad to policyholders as at

31 December 2015 would be £9 6 million lower than the investment contract benefits stated above
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Income, Expense, Gains and Losses Arising ﬁ'om Financial Assets and Financial Liabithities

The 1ncome, expense, gams and losses arising from financial assets and financial habilities are summarnsed 1n the table below

153

Frnancial Financal
assets at habilities at Financial
fair value Farr value liabilities
through through measuredat
profit and Available Loans and profit and amortised
Year Ended 31 December 2015 Ioss™ forsale recewvables loss™ cost Total
£mallion £Milron £'Milhon £'Million £Million £Million
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment properties 74 0 740
Unit hinked assets 1,530 4 1,530.4
Fixed income securities (1.1) (1.1)
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3.0 30
QOther recervables
— 5t James'’s Place Partnership loans 59 5.9
— Renewal income 37) 37)
Total other receivables (3.7) 59 22
Cash & cash equivalents® . 1.4 14
Total financial assets and investment properties 1,606 3 3.7) 73 1,609.9
Financial Liablities™ ’
Investment contract benefits 973.9 9739
Borrowings “4) (44
Other payables (0.7) (0.7)
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 216 8 216 8
Total financial liabilities 1,190 7 (5.1) 1,1856
Financial Financial
asscts at liabihtres at Fmaneial
fair value Fair value habihties
through through measured at
profit and Available Loans and profit and arnortised
Year Ended 31 December 2014 loss @ for sale receivables loss™ cost Total
£'Million £'Mallion £Mllion £ Milhon £ Million £' Malhon
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment properties 85 8 85 8
Umt linked assets 3,3321 3,3321
Fixed income securities 60 60
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 27 27
Other receivables
— 5t Jarnes’s Place Partnership loans 60 60
— Renewal mncome 29 @9
Total other receivables (29) 60 31
Cash & cash equivalents” 12 12
Total financial assets and investment properties 34266 29 72 34309
Financial Liabilities®
Investment contract benefits 2,287 6 2,2876
Borrowings (3 8) 38
Other payables
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 4259 4259
Total financial liabilhities 2,713 5 (38 2,7097

(1) Allfinancial zssets and Labilities at farr value through profit or loss are designated as such upon sl recogrition
(2} The majority of the return from cash & cash equivalents s :ncluded within unit Linked assets
() None of the change in the farr valuc of financial hiabilies at fair value through profit or loss 15 attnibutable to changes in thewr credit risk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. FINANCIAL RISK continued
Fair Value Estrmation

Financral assets and habilities, which are held at fair value mn the financial statements, are required to have disclosed therr fair value

measurements by level of the following fair value measurement herarchy

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) 1n active markets for identical assets or habilihies (Level 1)
* Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either durectly (that s, as

prices) or indsrectly (that s, derived from prices) (Level 2)

* Inputs for the asset or hahility that are not based on observable market data (that 1s, unobservable inputs) (Level 3)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and habihties measured at fair value

Total
31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
£'Million £Millhon £Malhon E'Millzon

Financial assets and 1nvestment properties
Investment property 1,344.9 1,344.9
Equities 37,960 8 37,960.8
Fixed income securities 8,934.0 8,934.0
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,266.9 277 32696
Dernvative financial instruments 364.1 364.1
Other recervables 26.8 268
Cash & cash equivalents 5,091.6 5,091 6
Total financial assets and mnvestment properties 46,319.3 99,2981 1,374 4 56,9918

Finanaal habilities

Investment contract benefits 43,159 8 43,159 8
Dervative finanmal instruments 2211 2211
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 12,556 4 12,556 4
Total financial habilities 12,556 4 43,3809 55,9373
Total
31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
£'Million £'Malthon £Milhon £'Milhon

Financial assets and investment properties
Investrnent property 1,031 4 1,031 4
Equities 34,7349 34,734 9
Fixed income securities 6,838 8 6,838 8
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 2,931 8 289 2,961 7
Dervative finaneial instruments 166 4 166 4
QOther receivables 291 291
Cash & cash equivalents 4,865 1 4,865 1
Total financal assets and investment properties 42,5318 70052 1,0904 50,6274

Finanacial laabilities

Investment contract benefits 38,8512 38,8512
Derivative financial instruments 793 793
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 10,617 8 10,617 8
Total financial liabilities 10,6178 38,9305 49,548 3

The fair value of financial instruments traded 1n active markets 1s based on quoted bid prices at the reporting date, as described 1n the
accounting policy {m) These instruments are included in Level 1 Instruments included in Level 1 comprise primanly histed equity

mstruments
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The Group closely monitors the valuation of assets i markets that have become less hquid Determining whether a market 15 acuve
requires the exeraise of judgement and 15 determined based upon the facts and circumstances of the market for the instrument being
measured Where 1t 1s determined that there 1s no active market, fair value 1s established using a valuation techrique The techmques
applied incorporate relevant information avarlable and reflect appropriate adjustments for creditand liquidity nsks These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where 1t 1s available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates
The relative weightings given to differing sources of information and the determnation of non-observable nputs to valuation models
can require the exercise of sigmificant judgement

If all sigmficant mputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument 15 included 1n Level 2 If one or more of the
significant puts 15 not based on observable market data, the instrument 1s included 1n Level 3

Note that all of the resulung fair valug estimates are included 1n Level 2, except for certain equities and investments in Collective
Investment Schemes (CIS) and investment propertes as detailed below

Speaific valuation techmques used to value Level 2 financial assets and habilities include
*» The use of observable prices for identical current arm’s length transactions

Speaific valuation techniques used to value Level 3 financial assets and habilities include
* The us¢ of unchservable inputs, such as expected rental values and equivalent yields,
+ Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow and historic lapse rates, are used to determne fair value for the remaining

finanaal instruments

There were o transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year

Transfers into and out of Level 3 Portfolies

Transfers out of Level 3 portfolios arise when wnputs that could have a sigmificant rmpact on the instrument’s valuatton become market
observable, conversely, transfers into the portfolios arise when consistent sources of data cease to be available

Transfers 1n of certain equities and investments 1n Collective Investment Schemes (CIS) occur when asset valuations can no longer be
cbtained from an observable market price 1 e become ilhiquid, 1n hquidation, suspended etc The converse 15 true if an observable

market price becomes available

During 2015, £0 3 millien relating to CIS was transferred into the Level 3 portfolio During 2014, £28 7 million relating to CIS and
£5 9 mullion relating to a reclassificabon within other recervables were transferred mto the Level 3 portfolio

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial assets at farr value through the profit and loss

2015 2014
£Million £'Million
Opening balance 1,090 4 7506
Transfer into Level 3 0.3 345
Additions during the year 2552 2685
Disposed durtng the year 417) @6 3)
Gains recognised 1n the income statement 70 2 830
Closing balance 1,374.4 1,090 4
Total gains included in the statement of comprehensive income for assets held at the end of the reporting year
2015 2014
£'Milhon £ Milion
Realised losses (58) 7
Unrealised gans 76 0 877
Gains recogmsed 11 the income statement 702 830
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. FINANCIAL RISK continued

Addraons include £253 8 million of investment properties and £1 4 million of renewal income Gains recogmised in the statement of
comprehensive income are included within investment return for certain equities and investments in CIS and investment property,
and within administration expenses for the renewal income

The principal assets classified as Level 3 are imvestment properties amounting to £1,344 9 million (2014 £1,031 4 million)
Investment property 13 valued monthly by external chartered surveyors in accordance with the guldance 1ssued by The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors The mvestment property valuation has been prepared using the ‘market approach’ valuation
techmque — using prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable (1 ¢
stmular) assets The following table sets out the unobservable inputs utihsed m the valuation of the investment properties

Investment propcrty classification

31 December 2015 Dffice Industrial Retail & leisure All
Gross ERV (per sq fi)*

Range £14 75— £90 01 £3.00—£15.00 £5.00—£36546 £3.00—£36546
Weighted average £3018 £6 59 £14 73 £13 22
True equivalent yreld

Range 37%—8.0% 54% —71% 4.7% —13.1% 37% —13.1%
Weighted average 5.4% 61% 6 0% 5 8%

31 December 2014

Gross ERV (per sq ft)*
Range £14 75 —£92 51 £300—-£1500 £530—-£35039 £300-—£35039
Weighted average £28 04 £6 25 £15 67 £11 96
True equivalent yield
Range 38%—80% 57% -8 0% 43%—13 3% 38%—13 3%
Weighted average 5 7% 6 6% 6 1% 6 1%

*  Equivalent rental value (per aquare foot)

Senstuavity of Level 3 Valuations

The valuation of certain equities and investments mn CIS are based on the latest observable price available Whilst such valuations
are sensitive to estimates, 1t 1s believed that changing the price apphed to a reasonably possible alternative would not change the fair
value significantly

The valuation of renewal income 15 based on discounted cash flows and historic lapse rates The effect of applying reasonably possible
alternative assumptions of a movement of 100bps on the discount rate and a 10% movement 1n the lapse rate would result in an
unfavourable change 1n valuation of £3 0 million and a favourable change in valuation of £3 6 milhon, respectively

The investment property valuation has been prepared using the ‘market approach’ valuation technique — using prices and other
relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable {t ¢ similar) assets The following table sets
out the effect of applying reasonably possible alternative assumptiens to the valuation of the investment properties Any change 1 the
value of investment property 15 matched by the associated movement in the policyholder hability and therefore would not impact on
the shareholder net assets

Effect of reasonable possible
alternative assumptlons

Investment property Carrying Favourable Unfavourable

significant unobservable tnputs value changes changes

£'Million EMallion £Malhon

31 December 2015 Expected rental value/Relative yield 1,344 9 1,469 3 1,235.2
31 December 2814 Expected rental value/ Relative yield 1,031 4 1,125 5 947 8
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The following table sets out the maximum credit risk exposure and ratings of financial and other assets which are nether past due or

mmnpaired and susceptible to credit rnisk

Unat limked
funds and
third party
holdings in
31 December 2015 AAA AA A BBB Unrated unit trusts® Total
£Millon £Milhon £'Mullion £Milhon £Mullion £Mallion £Nallion
Equities 37,960.8 37,960 8
Fixed income securities 39 79.2 8,8509 89340
Investment 1n Collective Investment
Schemes®® 531.0 1.7 2,7369  3,2696
Dervative finaneial instruments 364.1 364.1
Insurance & 1nvestment contract receivables 76.2 76 2
Amounts due from remsurers
— Claims outstanding 86 8.6
— Rensurers share of long term insurance
contract habilities 76 4 76 4
Total amount due from remnsurers 85 ¢ 850
Other receivables 270.5 478.4 748 9
Cash & cash equivalents 22.1 177 8 254 8.2 2335
Total 5349 186.3 1778 254 356 6 50,3911 51,6721
(1) Creditrisk relaung to unit hinked and ung trust funds 1s borne by the policyholder/unit holder
(?) Investment of sharcholder assets 1n Collective fnvestment Schemes refers ta investment tn uniuised morey market funds held for the longer term
The table below sets out the comparative credit risk analysis as at 31 December 2014
Unat hinked
fundsand
third party
holdings in
31 December 2014 AAA AA A BBB Unrated nmt trusts™” Total
£'Million £'Milhon £ Million £'M:llion £'Million £'Mallion £' Million
Equitres 347349 347349
Fixed income securnities 24 809 6,7555 56,8388
Investment in Collective Investment
Schemes® 5173 43 24401 2,9617
Derivative financial instruments 166 4 166 4
Insurance & 1nvestment contract receivables 63 5 63 5
Amounts due from reinsurers
— Claims outstanding 89 89
— Reinsurers share of long term mnsurance
contract habilities 766 76 6
Total amount due from reinsurers 855 855
Other receivables 2050 312 0 5170
Cash & cash equivalents 518 212 4 15 86 4,8651 5,133 4
Total 5187 218 2 212 4 15 2814 49,2740 50,5072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. FINANCIAL RISK continued

Financial Assets that are Either Past Due or Impaired

Loans to St James’s Place Partnershap of £178 7 million (2014 £158 9 million) are net of an imparment provision of £3 0 milhon
(2014 £2 9 million) (see Note 16) The value of the loans that are past due but not impaired 15 not considered to be material and has
therefore not been aged The factors considered m determuning the mpairment include default istory, the nature or type of the
Partner loan, exposure levels to individual Partners and whether the individual Partner 15 active or has left

The movement in the impairment provision will reflect utilisation of the exasting provision during the year, but the overall cost of
mmpaired loans (including new prowvisions) recogmsed within admimistration expenses i the statement of comprehensive income

during the year was a charge of £1 4 milhon (2014 £0 9 muillion)

There are no other financial assets that are rmpaired, would orignally have been past due or impaired but whose terms have been

renegotiated, or are past due but not impaired

Contractual Maturity and Liquidity Analysis

The following table sets out the contractual maturnty analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial iabilities as at

31 December 2015

Total ex
unit  Unit hinked
linked fundsand
fundsand  thurd party
Uptol 1-5 Over5 otherumit  holdingsin
31 December 2015 year years years halders umit trusts * Total
£maillhon £Millron £'Million £ Mullion £’Million £NMlhon
Financial Assets
Equities — 37,960.8 37,9608
Fixed income securities 40.7 42 4 831 8,850.9 8,934.0
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 5327 5327  2,7369  3,269%
Dervative financial instruments - 364.1 3641
Insurance & 1nvestment contract receivables 76.2 76 2 76.2
Other receivables
— St James's Place Partnership loans 62.2 105.1 11.4 178 7 178 7
— Renewal income 26 8 26.8 26.8
— Other 295 29,5 5139 543.4
Total other recervables 118 5 1051 114 235.0 5139 748.9
Cash & cash equivalents 233.5 2335 5,096 5,325.1
Total financial assets 1,001 6 105 1 53.8 1,160 5 35,518.2 56,678 7
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits — 43,1598 43,1598
Borrowings 1.0 126.7 541 181 8 — 181.8
Dervative financial instruments - 221.1 2211
Insurance & investment contract payables 459 459 459
Other payables 256.3 5.2 48 3 349 8 3110 660.8
Total financial liabihties 343.2 131.9 102 4 5775 43,6919 44,2694
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The table below sets out comparative contractual maturity and hquidity analysis as at 31 December 2014

Total ex
unit Unit linked
linked funds and
fundsand third party

Upro t 1-5 Over other unit holdings in
31 December 2014 year years years holders umt trusts® Total
£'Million £'Mallion £'Million £'Mithon £'Mithon £'Malhon

Financial Assets

l | uorlepunog aoerd s,souref 41¢ l r 11oday o18a1enK

Equities — 34,7349 347349

Fixed income securities 274 117 442 833 67555 6,8388

Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 5173 5173 24444 29617

Dervative financial instruments — 166 4 166 4

Insurance & investment contract recervables 635 635 635

Other receivables

— St James's Place Partmershup loans 540 94 4 105 158 9 158 9

— Renewal income 291 291 291

— Other 244 244 3046 3290

Total other recevables 107 5 94 4 105 212 4 3046 5170

Cash & cash equivalents 274 3 2743 48651 5,139 4

Total finanaial assets 990 0 1061 547 1,150 8 492709 504217 g
Financial Lialnhities 5
Investment contract benefits — 38,8512 38,8512 g
Borrowings 297 504 42 843 843 8
Derwvative financial instruments - 793 793

Insurance & mvestment contract payables 504 504 504

Other payables 2851 10 3 206 316 0 1837 4997

Total financial hiabilities 365 2 607 24 8 4507 39,1142 39,5649

*  Finsncral liabilines included under unit linked funds and net assets attributable to unit holders are deemed to have 2 maturity of up to ene year since the corresponding umt hinked hiabillties are
repayable and transferable on demand In practice the contractual maturiues of the assets may be longer than one year, but the majority of assets held within the unit hinked and unn trust funds are
tghly Liquid and the Group also actively monitors Fand Liqadity

Sensitrvity Analysis to Market Risks

The majority of the Group'’s business 1s unit linked and the direct associated market risk 15 therefore borne by pohcyholders (although
there 1s a secondary 1mpact as shareholder income 15 dependent upon the markets) Financial assets and habihities held outside umtised
funds primarily consist of fixed interest securities, unuts 1n money market funds, cash and cash equivalents, and other assets and
habilities  The fixed mterest securities are held to match non limked habihities and the hahility values move broadly in line with the
matching asset values such that fair value mterest rate risk 1s immaterial, although there 15 some residual sk due to imperfect
matchmg Cash held in unitised money market funds and at bank 1s valued at par and 1s unaffected by movement in interest rates
Other assets and habilities are similarly unaffected by market movements
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As 2 result of these combined factors, the Group’s financial assets and liabilities held outside unitised funds are not matenally subject
to market risk, and movements at the reporting date 1n interest rates and equity values have an immaterial impact on the Group’s
profitafter tax and equity Future profits from annual management charges may be affected by movements m interest rates and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ALLOCATION

It 15 the Group’s policy to maintain a strong capital base in order to

* Protect chients’ interests,

* Meet regulatory requirements,

* Protect creditors’ interests, and

* Create shareholder value through support for business development

Within the Group, each subsidiary manages 1ts own capital 1n the context of a Group capital plan Any caprtal in excess of planned
requirements 1s returned to the Group’s parent, St James’s Place plc, normally by way of dividends The Group capital position 1s
monitored by the Finance Executive Commuttee on behalf of the St James’s Place plc Board

The Group’s policy 1s for each subsidiary to held the higher of
* The capital required by any relevant supervisory body uplhifted by a specified margin to absorb changes, or

* The capital required based on the Company’s internal assessment

For our msurance compames, we hold capital based on our own internal assessment, albeit recogmsing the regulatory requirement
For other regulated companies we generally hold capital based on the regulatory requirement uphfted by a specified margin

The following entities are subject to regulatory supervision and have to maintam a minimum level of regulatory capital

Entity Regulatory Body and Jurisdiction

St James’s Place UK plc PRA & FCA Long-term mnsurance business

St James’s Place International plc Central Bank of Ireland Life insurance business

St James’s Place Unit Trust Group Limited FCA UCITS Management Company

St James’s Place Investment Admamstration Lirmted FCA Investment Firmn

St James's Place Wealth Management (PCIS) Lumited FCA Securmes and Futures Firm

St James's Place Wealth Management plc FCA Personal Investment Firm

BFS Financial Services Limited FCA Personal Investment Firm

LP Financial Management Limited FCA Personal Investment Firm

PFPTime Limted FCA Personal Investment Firm

St James’s Place (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly The Henley ~ Securities and Futures Commussion (Hong Kong)
Group Limited) A Member of The Hong Kong Confederation of

Insurance Brokers
St James’s Place (Singapore) Private Limited ( formerly Henley Monetary Authonty Smgapore A Member of the Association of
Group Pte Lumited) Financial Advisers
St James’s Place Trust Company Jersey Limited Jersey Financial Services Commussion

In addition, the St James’s Place Group 1s regulated as an Insurance Group, subject to the Insurance Group’s Directive (IGD), and
with the PRA as the lead regulator
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As an msurance group, St James’s Place 15 subject to the new Solvency Il regulations, which were implemented on 1 January 2016
More infermation about the impact of the implementation of Solvency I1s included in the Financial Review on page 35 The overall
capital position for the Group at 1 January 2016, assessed in the standard formula basis, 1s presented 1n the following table

1 January 2016 Group
£ Millien
IFRS total assets $9,2776
Less Solvency Il valuation adjustments and unit hnked liabilities (58,555 2y
Solvency Il net assets 722 4
Management Solvency Buffer (MSB} 202 3
Eucess of free assets over MSB 5201
Solvency I VIF 2,306 6
Risk margin (624 0)
Standard formula SCR (A} (1,595 8)
Sub-total B6 8
Solvency II Free Assets (B) 809.2
Solvency Il ratio {(A+B)/A) 151%

An overall internal capital assessment 1s required for insurance groups Thisis known as an ORSA (Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment) and 1s described in more detail in the section on Risk and Risk Management on page 41

The capital requirement and the associated solvency of the Group are assessed and monitored by the Finance Executive Commuttee,
a Commuttee of the St James’s Place plc Board The regulatory requirements for the remaining companies within the Group are
assessed and momtored by the relevant subsidiary boards

Although there has been a sigmficant change in the approach to assessing ‘required capital’ during the year (as a result of Selvency II),
there has been no material change 1n the level of capital required, or in the Group’s management of capital All regulated entities
exceeded the mimmum solvency requirements at the reporting date and during the year

Capital Composition
The principal forms of caprial are included 1n the following balances on the conschdated statement of financial position

31 Decemmber 31 December

2015 2014

£Million £'Milhon

Share capital 787 779
Share premmm 158 3 147 4
Treasury shares reserve (18.5) (10 5
Miscellaneous reserves 23 23
Retained earnings 8746 7931
Shareholders’ equity 1,095 4 1,010 2
Non-controlling interests {0 3) ©1)
Total equity 1,095 1 1,010 1

The above assets do not all qualify as regulatory capital The required mimmurn regulatory capital and analysis of the assets that
quahfy as regulatory capital are outhned in Section 6 of the Financial Review on page 35, which demonstrates that the Group has met
13 1nternal capital ebjectives The Group and its individually regulated operations have comphed with all externally and internally
imposed capital requirements throughout the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

29, SHARE CAPITAL
Number of

Ordinary Shares Share Capital
£Milhon
At | January 2014 515,215,983 773
— Exercise of options 4,231,408 06
At 31 December 2014 519,447,391 719
— Issue of share capital 206,366 -
— Exeraise of options 5,011,455 08
At 31 December 2015 524,665,212 787

The total authorised number of ordinary shares 15 605 million (2014 605 million), with a par value of 15 pence per share
(2014 15 pence per share) All 1ssued shares are fully paid

Included in the 1ssued share capital are 3,309,971 {2014 3,760,585) shares held 1n the Treasury Shares Reserve with a nommal
value of £0 5 mallien (2014 £0 6 mulhon) The Treasury Shares are held by a subsidiary undertaking, St James's Place Management
Services Limited

The number of shares reserved for 1ssue under options and contracts for sale of shares, including terms and condstions, 15 included
within Note 30

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group operated a number of different equity settled share-based payment

arrangements, which are aggregated as follows

* SAYE plan — this 1s a standard HMRC approved scheme that 15 available to all employees where individuals may contribute up to
£250 per month over three years to purchase shares at a price not less than 80% of the market price at the date of the invitation
to participate

* Share incentive plan (SIP) — this 15 an HMRC approved scheme which 1s available to all employees where mdividuals may invest up
to an annual limit of £1,500 of pre-tax salary in S]P shares, to which the Company will add a further 10% If the shares are held
for five years then they may be sold free of income tax or CGT

* Executive deferred bonus schemes — under these plans the deferred element of the annual bonus 15 used to purchase shares
at market value in the Company The shares are held by the Company untl vesting after three years and, in addition to the
performance targets, whuch apply prior to any entitlement being granted, further performance conditsans may also apply
on vesting .

* Executive performance share plan — the Remuneration Commuttee of the Group Board may make awards of performance shares
to the Executive Directors and other senior managers Two-thirds of shares awarded to Directors are subject to an earmngs
growth condition of the Group and one-third of shares awarded to Directors are subject to a comparative tota! sharcholder return
(TSR) condition, both measured over a three year period Further information regarding the vesting conditions of the earmings
growth and total shareholder return dependent portions of the award 1s given 1n the Remuneration Report on page 98 Awards
made to sentor managers are largely only subject to the earnings growth conditton of the Group

* Partner share option schemes — these were offered to the Partners of the St James's Place Partnership and vest over three to six
years subject to satisfying personal sales related performance criteria The last award under these schemes was made 1n 2007

* Partner performance share plan — a new scheme was launched in January 2008 whereby Partners are entitled to purchase shares in
the future at nominal value (15 pence) The number of shares the Partners are entitled to purchase will depend on their personal
business volumes in the year of the award and validation over the following three years

* Partner & Adviser chartered plan —a new scheme was launched during 2015 whereby Partners and Advisers are entitled to
purchase shares in the future at nominal value (15 pence) The number of shares the Partners are entitled to purchase will depend
upon achieving specific professional qualifications and their personal sales production in a specified 12 month period and validation
over the folIowmg three years The first award under these schemes will be made 1n 2016
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Share options outstanding under the various share opticn schemes, together with shares due under the deferred bonus schemes at

31 Decemnber 2015, amount to 7 ! milhon shares (2014 11 9 million) Of these, 1 1 mulhon (2014 3 5 malhon) are under option to

Partners of the St James’s Place Partnershup, 4 7 milhion (2014 6 9 mulhion) are under option to executives and senior management

(including 1 5 milhon (2014 2 7 mullion) under option to Dhrectars as disclosed 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 20 to 92) and
1 2 mllion (2014 1 5 rmllion) are under option through the SAYE and SIP schemes These are exercisable on a range of future dates

The table below summarises the share-based payment awards made 1n 2014 and 2015

Share Executive Executive
Incentive Deferred Performance
SAYE Plan Bonus Share Plan
Awards n 2014
Date of grant 25 March 26 March 26 March 26 March
Number granted 281,243 4,639 555,428 889,357
Awards in 2015
Date of grant 25 March & 26 March 26 March 26 March
25 September
Number granted 637,327 5,245 629,572 724,370
Contractual hfe 3 5 years 3 years Jyears 3 5—6 years
Vesting conditions 3 year saving 3 year saving 3 years’ 3 years'
period period service and service and
achievement  achievement
of personal of earmings
targets and TSR
11 SoIme targets
instances
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS contimued

CONTINUED

Finanaal Assumptions Underlying the Calculation of Fair Value
The fair value expense has been based on the farr value of the instruments granted, as caleulated using appropnate derivative pricing
models The teble below shows the weighted average assumptions and models used to calculate the grant date fair value of each award

Share Executive Executive
Incentive Deferred Performance
SAYE Pian Bonus Share Plan
Valuation model Black Black Black Monte
Scholes Scholes Scholes Carlo
Awards in 2014
Fair value (pence) 23240 8515 8515 608 8/851 5%
Share price (pence) 8450 8515 8515 851 5
Exercise price (pence) 6770 00 00 00
Expected volatility (% pa)™ 29 N/A N/A 29
Expected dividends (% pa) 19 N/A N/A® N/A
Rusk-free interest rate (% pa) 12 N/A N/A N/A
Volatihity of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 20to 62
Correlation with competitars (%) N/A N/A N/A 20
Awards n 2015
Fair value (pence) 263 3/161 4@ 9750 9790/9825 979 0
Share price {pence) 990 0/836 6 9790 9790 973 0
Exercise price (pence) 7380/7240 00 00 00
Expected valatility (% pa)t? 25/25 N/A N/A 25
Expected dividends (% pa) 24/30 N/A N/A® N/A
Rusk-free interest rate (% pa) 07/09 N/A N/A N/A
Volatihty of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 181048
Correlation with competitors (%) N/A N/A N/A 20
Notes
(1) Expected volatlity 11 based on an analysis of the Company's hustoric share price volaulity over 1 period {typically three or five yean) which i ate with the expected term of the aptions
or the awards
(2) In 2014 and 2015, the vesting period for the SAYE plan was three years The vesting pertod may be extended by up to s:x months in order to catch up on nussed contributions
(3) Dividends payable on the shares during the restricted period are paid out during the restricted period for the executive deferred bonus schernes and no dovidend yield assumption i therefore
required
(+) Thq: awards made under the exccutlve performance share plan are dependent upon earnings grawth in the Company (twe thirds of the award) and 2 total shareholder return of 2 comparator group
of companies (one-third of the award) This results in having ewo falr values lor each of the awards made [n the table abave the first being in relation to the comparator tatal shareholder return and
the sceond relating to the Company s earnings growth
(5) Awards were made under the exegutive performance share plan an two separate occastons durmg 2015 (2014 threc)
(6) There were tioawards made tn 2014 or 2015 for the executrve share option sch or the sales g share option schemes
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 0
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 0
2015 2015 2014 2014 g
Numberof  Weighted average Number of Weaghted average g
options £XETCIse price ophons exercse price :‘0
SAYE
Outstanding at start of year 1,458,774 £3.86 1,487,337 £2 92 B
Granted 637,327 £7 30 281,243 £6 77 o
Forfeited (88,461) £5.52 (75,141) £417 =
Exercised (845,052) £2.82 (234,665) £243 g
Outstanding at end of year 1,162,588 £6.15 1,458,774 £3 68 g
Exercisable at end of year 108,103 £2.75 — — o
Executive Share Options ) §
Outstanding at start of year 54,270 £2 43 135,444 £222 g
Granted - — - - g
Forfeited - - - - a2
Exercised (54,270) £2 43 (81,174) £2 08 g
Outstanding at end of year - — 54,270 £243 _=
Exercisable at end of year - — 54,270 £243 —
Partner Share Options
Outstanding at start of year 3,407,365 £291 5,172,671 £2 81 c
Granted - - - - ©
Forfeited - - (11,262) £175 3
Exercised (2,261,139) £2 69 (1,754,044) £2 63 E
Outstanding at end of year 1,146,226 £3 35 3,407,365 £2 91 5
Exercisable at end of year 1,146,226 £3 35 3,407,365 £2 91

The average share price duning the year was 921 5 pence (2014 766 1 pence)

The SAYE plan options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had exercise prices of 275 pence (108,103 options), 389 pence
(209,692 options), 677 pence (237,868 options), 738 pence (253,587), 724 pence (353,338) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 1 1 years

The options outstanding under the Partner share option schemes at 31 December 2015 had exeraise prices ranging from 312 pence
10 465 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual Life of 0 6 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

Share Incentive Plan (mI €ost option — no proceeds on exercxse)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Number of Number of
optlons Opuﬂm
Qutstanding at start of year 23,069 19,611
Granted 5,245 4,639
Forfeited (879) (555)
Exeraised (2,543) (626)
OGutstanding at end of year 24,892 23,069
Exercisable at end of year 3,711 10,005
Executive Performance Share Plan (nil cost option — ne proceeds on exerase)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Number of Number of
options ophons
Qutstanding at start of year 5,212,411 5,168,598
Granted 724,370 889,357
Forferted (245,272) (225,315)
Exercised (2,502,018) (620,229}
Outstanding at end of year 3,189,491 5,212,411
Exercisable at end of year 310,188 1,447,642
Partner Performance Share Plan (15 pence nominal share value option — 15 pence per share on exercise)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Number of Number of
options optrons
Outstanding at start of year 95,500 131,000
Granted - -
Forfeited _ _
Exercised (80,500) (35,500)
Qutstanding at end of year 15,000 95,500
Exercisable at end of year 15,000 65,000
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Executrve Deferred Bonus (m] cost optton — no proceeds on exerase) Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Number of Number of

shares shares

Outstanding at start of year 1,676,958 2,210,882
Granted 629,572 555,428
Forfaited (26,339) (15,678)
Exerased (704,657)  (1,073,674)
Outstanding at end of year 1,575,534 1,676,958

Exerasable at end of year —_ —

Early Exerase Assumptions

The following allowance has been made for the :impact of early exercise once options have vested

1 SAYE plan — all option holders are assumed to exercise half-way through the six month exercise window

2 Executive, sales management and partner share option schernes — 1t 13 assumed that 10% of option holders exercise their options
each year irrespective of the level of the share price For the remainder 1t 15 assumed that one-half will exercise their options each
year 1f the share price 1s at least 33% above the exercise price

Allowance for Performance Conditions

The executive performance share plan includes a market based performance condition based on the Company’s total shareholder
return relative to an index of comparator companies The mmpact of this performance condition has been modelled using Mente Carlo
simulation techmiques, which involve running many thousands of stmulations of future share price movements for both the Company
and the comparator index For the purpose of these simulations it 15 assumed that the share price of the Company and the comparator
index are 20% (2014 20%) correlated and that the comparator index has volatilities ranging between 18% pa to 48%pa

(2014 20%pa to62%pa)

The perfarmance condition 15 based on the Company’s performance relative to the comparator index over a three year period
commencing on 1 Januvary each year The fair value calculations for the awards that were made in 2015 therefore include an allowance
for the actual performance of the Company’s share price relative to the index over the period between 1 January 2015 and the various
award dates

Charge to the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income
The table below sets out the charge to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1n respect of the share-based

payment awards

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

|
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2015 2014
£ Mallion £ Million
Share-based payment expense 15.7 11 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

31. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2015, the Group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases in connection with the rental of
office buildings and office equipment with varying lease end dates ranging from 2016 to 2041 The following table represents the
future aggregate lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

31December 31 December

2015 2014+

£Million £ Malhon

Within one year 14.9 126
Between two and five years 50.1 387
In more than five years 67 4 286
Total financial commitments . 1324 799

*  Represeated to reflect the total lease commitment over the term of the lease agreement.

Asat 31 December 2015, there was £0 1 million (2014 £0 1 mulhon) of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received
under non-cancellable sub-leases

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with St James’s Place Un1t Trusts

In respect of the non-consolidated St James's Place managed umit trusts that are held as investments in the 5t james's Place life and
pension funds, there was mceme recognised of £10 1 milhon (2014 £8 0 million income) and the total value of transactions with
those non-cansolidated unit trusts was £43 0 million (2014 £47 4 mllion) Net management tees recewvable trom these unit trusts
amounted to £22 3 mullion (2014 £20 7 mulhion) The value of the investment into the non-consolidated unit trusts at 31 December

2015 was £176 5 million (2014 £130 7 million)

Transactions with Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel have been defined as the Board of Directors and members of the Executive Board Commuttee

The remuneration paid to the Board of Directors of St James’s Place 15 set out in the Remuneration Report on page 85, n addition
to the disclosure below

The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the Deferred Bonus Scheme, the Performance Share
Plan, the Executive Share Option Scheme and the SAYE Share Option Schemes, together with details of the Directors’ interests 1n
the share capital of the Company

The remuneration paid to key management personnel 15 as follows

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£'Mallion £'Miltlion

Short-term employee benefits 32 25
Post-employment benefits 04 04
Other long term benefits 1.6 16
Share-based payment 1.6 15
68 64

The charge to the statement of comprehensive income in respect of the share-based payment awards made to the key management
personnel of St James’s Place during 2015 was £3 7 rmlhon (2014 £3 6 mullion)
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The total value of 5t James’s Place funds under management held by related parties of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
£20 4 mullion (2014 £16 2 rmilhon) The total value of 5t James's Place ple dividends paid to related parties of the Group during
the year was £1 3 mullion (2014 £0 6 million)

woday 18a1en1g

Commussion, advice fees and remuneration of £1,729,564 (2014 £1,639,654) was pawd, under normal commeraial terms, to
St James'’s Place Partners and employees who were related parties by virtue of being connected persons with key management
personnel The outstanding amount payable at 31 December 2015 was £93,423 (2014 £123,100)

Outstanding at the year end were Partner loans of £449,934 (2014 £420,039) due from St James’s Place Partners who were related
parties by virtue of being connected persons with key management personnel During the year £88,702 (2014 £ml) was advanced
and £74,696 (2014 £90,302) was repaid by Partners who were related parttes St James's Place Partnership loans are interest
bearing (linked to Bank of England base rate plus a margm), repayable on demand and secured against the future renewal income
streams of that Fartner

At the start of the year, related parties of key management personnel held 176,740 (2014 177,025) shares and options under
varous St James’s Place plc share option schemes During the year 23,413 (2014 28,993) shares and options were granted, 1,235
(2014 1,757) options lapsed, 113,568 (2014 mil) options were exercised and mil (2014 25,548) shares were released

| uonepunoq aderd §sowef 1 | |

33. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Unconsohidated Structured Entities

The Group operates mvestment vehacles, such as umit trusts, primanly to match umt holder Liabilibes The investment vehicles are
primarily financed by investments from unit holders Note 2 sets out the judgements inherent 1n determining when the Group
controls, and therefore consolidates, the relevant investment vehicles

FOUEUIAO0N)

The majority of the risk from a change in the value of the Group’s nvestment in unconsohidated umt trusts 15 matched by a change
1n policyholder habilities However, the maximum exposure to loss is equal to the carrying value of the investment, with the
balance being included within investments in Collective Investment Schemes At 31 December 2015, the total net asset value of
unconsolidated umt trusts in which the Group held a beneficial interest was £2,702 4 nullion (2014 £2,235 0 milhion)

The following unit trusts are not consohdated within the Group financral statements, however, the Group does act as the manager of
these unit trusts

Net asset value asat
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% of ownership interest 31 December
Natureof Measurcment
Name ol entity 2015 2014 relationship method 2015 2014
£'Milltan £’ Millton
St ]ames’é Place Property Umit Trust 0.00 000 Manager of N/A 859.2 6200
umt trust
St James's Place UK High Income Umnit Trust 964 810 Managerof Fawrvalue 1,843.2 1,6150
unit trust through
profit
or loss

2,7024  2,2350

Asat 31 December 2015 the value of the Group's interests in the indivadual unconsolidated umt trusts were £nil (2014 £ml) 1n
St James's Place Property Unit Trustand £177 7 million (2014 £130 8 million) n St James's Place UK High Income Unit Trust
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

33. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES continued

Assocates
The following unit trusts are not consolidated within the Group financial statements, however, they do meet the criteria of an associate

Netasset valueasat

% of ownership interest 3t December
Nature of Measurement
Name of entity 20t8 2014 relationship methad 2015 2014
£Million £'Mathon
5t James's Place UK High Income Unit Trust 964 8 10 Manager of Fairvalue 1,8432 16150
'

umit trust through
profit or loss

1,8432 1,6150

34. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Principal Subsidiaries

Investment Holding Compames St James’s Place Investments plc*
5t James’s Place Wealth Management Group plc*
Life Assurance St James’s Place UK plc
St James’s Place International plc (incorperated m Ireland}
Unit Trust Management S§t James's Place Unit Trust Group Limited
Unit Trust Administration and ISA Management St James's Place Investment Admimstration Limited i
Dastribution St James's Place Wealth Management plc |
Management Services 5t James’s Place Management Services Limited**
IFA Acquisitions St James’s Place Acquisition Services Limited
Asia Distribution St James’s Place International Distribution Limited

*  Directly held by St James s Place ple
*+ The Company also optrates a branch in the Republic of Ireland

The Company owns erther directly or indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capatal of the above-named subsidiaries, as
such they have been appropriately consolidated

Due to ongong solvency requirements, there are restrictions on the amount of distributable reserves within the life assurance, unt
trust and financial services operating companues of the Group which restricts their ability to transfer cash dividends to the Company

Included below 15 a full hist of the entites within the St James’s Place plc Group

Country of Audit
Entity Company number 1ncorporation Prlnmpa] activity extmption
Anglia Financial Limited 3835743 England & Wales  Non-trading Yes
Australian Expatriate Services Limited 1954254 Hong Keng Overseas Distribution No
BFS Financial Services Limited 4609753 England & Wales  Financial Advice Yes
Chapman Associates Limited 3047530 England & Wales Francal Advice Yes
Chapman Hunter Group Limited 6034452 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
E W Smuth & Co Independent Financial Advisors 4088394 England & Wales  Financial Advice No
Limuted
G M B Financial Services Limited 4074782 England & Wales  Non-trading Yes
Lansdown Place Group Holdings Limited 6350547 England & Wales  Holding Company No
Lopsystem Limited 1503794 England & Wales  Non-trading No
LP Auto Enrolment Solutions Limited 8257531 England & Whales  Pension Auto-enrolment No
LP Financial Management Limited 2195886 England & Wales Investment Advice No
LP Holdco Limited 8323278 England & Wales  Holding Company No
Lansdown Place Wealth Management Limited 5458948 England & Wales  Financial Advice No
M H 3 (Holdings) Limited 559995 England & Wales  Non-trading Yes
Nascent Life Lirmted IR325783 Ireland Non-trading No
PFPTime Ltd 4047197 England & Wales  Financial Advice Yes
SJP AESOP Trustees Limated 4089795 England & Wales  Nommee Company Yes
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Country of Audit
Entity Company number incorporation Prncipal actinity exemption
SJPC 2000 Limited SC013363 Scotland Non-trading No
SJPC Corporate Investments Limited 1476292 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
St James's Place {(Hong Kong) Limited 275275 Hong Kong Qverseas Distribution No
St James's Place (PCP) Limited 2706684 England & Wales  Transacts and Services S]P No
Income Streams
St James's Place (Properties) Limited 6890166 England & Wales  Non-trading Yes
St James's Place (Shanghait} Limited 310000400640051 China Overseas Distribunon No
St James’s Place {Singapore) Private Limited 200406398R Singapore Financial Advice No
St James's Place Acquisttion Services Lirmted 7730835 England & Wales  IFA Acquisitions Yes
5t James's Place Client Solutions Limited 5487108 England & Wales  Policy Administration Yes
St James's Place Corporate Secretary Limited 9131866 England & Wales  Corporate Secretary Yes
St james's Place DFM Holdings Limited 9687687 England & Wales ~ Non-trading No
St James's Place European S arl B77427 Luxembourg Noen-trading No
St James's Place International (Hong Kong) 2207694 Hong Kong Life Assurance No
Limited
St James's Place International Assurance Group 2727326 England & Wales  Holding Company No
Limited
St James's Place International Distribution 8798683 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
Limited
St James's Place International plc 185345 Ireland Life Assurance Neo
St James's Place Investment Administration 8764231 England & Wales  Unit Trust Admunistration  No
Limited and ISA Manager
St James's Place Investment Trust Lirmited 209445 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
St James's Place Investments ple 1773177 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
St James's Place Management Services (Asia) 2293151 Hong Kong Management Services No
Limited
St James's Place Management Services Limited 2661044 England & Wales ~ Management Services No
St James's Place Nominees Limited 8764214 England & Wales  Nominee Company Yes
St James’s Place Partnership Limited 425649 England & Wales ~ Non-trading No
St James's Place Partnership Services Limited 8201211 England & Wales  Treasury Company No
St James's Place Reassurance (2009) Limited 6718989 England & Wales ~ Non-trading No
St James's Place S A B1708% Luxembourg Non-trading No
St James's Place Trust Company Jersey Limited 98624 Jerse Trustee Services No
St James's Place UK plc 2628062 England & Wales  Life Assurance No
St James’s Place Umt Trust Group Limited 947644 England & Wales  Umit Trust Management No
St James's Place Wealth Management (PCIS) 6604824 England & Wales  Securities and Futures Frm No
Limited
St James’s Place Wealth Management (Shangha) 1511517 Hong Kong Overseas Distribution No
Limited
St James's Place Wealth Management Group ple 2627518 England & Wales  Holding Company No
St James’s Place Wealth Management International 201323453N Singapore Holding Company No
Pte Lud
St James’s Place Wealth Management plc 4113955 England & Wales UK Distribution No
THG Wealth Management Lirmted 8077989 England & Wales UK Distribution Yes

Where indicated above, the subsidiaries of St James's Place plc have taken advantage of the exemption from statutory audit granted
by section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 In accordance with section 479C, St James's Place plc has therefore guaranteed all the

outstanding labilities as at 31 December 2015

All Group compames have an accounting reference date of 31 December, except for PEPTime Ltd (04047197) and G M B Financial
Services Limited (04074782) which have an accounting reference date of 24 January

Unless otherwise stated, the tax residency of each subsidiary 15 the same as the country of incorporation

100% of the ordinary share capital 1s held for the above subsidiaries with the exception of LP Holdco Limited {08323278) and
Lansdown Place Group Holdings Limited (06390547) where 92 4% and 43 32% ordinary share capital 1s respectavely held
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

34. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS continued

In addition, the Group financial statements consohidate the following unit trusts, all of which are registered in England and Wales

St James's Place Alishare Income Umt Trust

St James's Place Alternative Assets Umt Trust

St James's Place Balanced Managed Unit Trust

St James's Place Continental European Unit Trust

St James's Place Corporate Bond Unit Trust

St James's Place Diversified Bond Unat Trust

St James's Place Emerging Markets Equity Unit Trust
5t James's Place Equity Income Umt Trust

St James's Place Ethical Unit Trust

St James’s Place Far East Unit Trust

St James’s Place Gilts Unit Trust

St James'’s Place Global Emerging Markets Unit Trust
St James’s Place Global Equity Income Unit Trust

St James’s Place Global Equity Unit Trust

St James’s Place Global Unit Trust

St James’s Place Greater European Progressive Umt Trust
St James's Place High Octane Umt Trust

St James’s Place Index Linked Gilts Unit Trust

St James's Place International Corperate Bond Unat Trust
St James's Place International Equity Unit Trust

St James's Place Investment Grade Corporate Bond Unit Trust
St James’s Place Managed Growth Umt Trust

St James’s Place Money Market Ut Trust

St James's Place Mults Asset Unit Trust

St James's Place North American Unit Trust

St James's Place Strategic Income Ut Trust

St James’s Place Strategic Managed Unit Trust

St James’s Place UK & General Progressive Ut Trust
St James's Place UK & Internattonal Income Unit Trust
St James's Place UK Absolute Return Unit Trust

St James's Place UK Growth Unit Trust

St James's Place UK Income Unit Trust

St James'’s Place Werldwide Opportumties Unat Trust
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35 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting pertod end, the Group received regulatory approval for the change 1n control and completed 1ts acqusition
of 100% of the voting equity interests of Rowan Dartington Holdings Limited and 1ts subsidianies Consequently, as of the date
that change of control was obtained, Rowan Dartington Holdings Lumited and its subsidiaries will be consclidated into the 2016
Group results The acquisiion 15 1n ine with the Group’s strategic objective of broadening the business model and expanding the

1today o1fereng

chent proposition

(74

Rowan Dartington Group I

The net assets, fair value adjustments and consideranon for these acquisitions are estimated below E

a

Fair value z\

Book value  adjustment Total =

£ Mallion £million £'Mullien §

Financial assets 73 308 381 z

Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 13 £

Financial liabilhities 67 67 (124 g

-t

Total 19 25.1 27.0 §

Consideration L
Iminal consideration 200
Deferred consideration 71
Contingent consideration 74
Total consideration 34.5
Goodwill 7.5

ADURLLIIADD

Goodwill comprises the value placed on the expenence and expertise of the Rowan Dartington management team within the

discretionary fund management sector

It 15 expected that the contingent consideration will be paid 1n full with no changes to the amount imitially recognised, however,
should the target number of Investment Executives not be met, the contingent consideration will decrease on a pro-rata basis down to

a value of £nil
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our oprnion

In our opinion, St James's Place plc’s parent company financal

statements (the ‘financial statements')

* gweatrue and fair view of the state of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2015,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

* have been prepared i accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006

What we have audited

St James's Place pl¢’s financial statements comprise

+ the balance sheet of the parent company as at
31 December 2015, and

* the notes to the finanaial statements, whichinclude a
summary of sigmficant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

Certam required disclosures have been presented elsewhere
in the Annual Report, rather than 1n the notes to

the financial statements These are cross-referenced from
the financial statements and are 1dentified as audited

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the financial statements 1s applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umited Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;), mgcluding FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Consistency of other mformation

Comparues Act 2006 opiruon

In our opimion, the informatuon grven in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financral statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financial statements

ISAs ( UK &Ireland) reporting

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland)

('ISAs (UK & Ireland)’) we are required to report to you if, 1n

our opimon, information 1n the Annual Report 1s

* materially inconsistent with the information in the audited
financial statements, or

+ apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially
mnconsistent with, our knowledge of the parent company
acquired in the course of performing our audit, or

* otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Adequacy of accounting records and mfermation and

e:rplanatwns recerved

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you

if, 1n our opinion

* we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recerved from branches not visited by us, or

+ the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not 1n agreement with
the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Drrectors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report — Compames Act 2006
opinion

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited has been properly prepared 1n accordance with the
Compames Act 2006

Other Companres Act 2006 reporting

Under the Compame:'s Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opimien, certamn disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report
anising from this responsibility

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibihties and those of the Directors

As explained more fully 1n the Statement of Directors’
Responsibthities set out on page 105, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satished that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibihity 15 to audit and express an opinien on the
financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and ISAs
(UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethacal Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for

and only for the parent company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companzes Act
2006 and for no other purpose We do not, 1n giving these
opimans, accept ot assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into
whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent 1n writing
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

CONTINUED

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT continued

What an audst of finanaal statements mvolves

We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK &

Ireland) An audit invelves obtarming evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from

material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Thas

includes an assessment of

* whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent
company's arcumstances and have been consistently apphied
and adequately disclosed,

* the reasonableness of ssgnificant accounting estimates made
by the Directors, and

* the cverall presentation of the financial statements

We primanly focus our work n these areas by assessing the
Directors’ _]udgements against available evidence, formmg our
own Judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial
statemnents

We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techruques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtamn
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financral

information in the Annual Report to identify material

inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to

dentify any information that 1s apparently materially incorrect .
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge

acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we

become aware of any apparent materral misstatements or

inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

OTHER MATTER
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements
of St James’s Place ple for the year ended 31 December 2015

Jeremy Jensen {Senzor Statutor_yAud:tor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountonts and Statutory Auditors
London

22 March 2016

(3) The maintenance and integrity of the St Jamey's Place plc websice 1s the responubility of the
Darectors, the work carned out by the suditors docs not invalve consideration of thetc
matters and, accordingly the suditors accept no responaibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website

{8) Legihtionn the United Kingdom govermng the preparation and dusemination of financal
statements may differ from legistation 1 other jurisdictions

rd

S1 JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 Registercd No 03183415




177

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A
5
5
31 December 31 December +:]
Note 2018 2014 ;
£Mallion £"Million ,_g
Fixed assets g
Investment 1n subsidiartes 2 352.8 4021
Current assets ——
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 242 1 1067 w
e
Current liabilities E
Corporation tax hiabilities (0.7) L) g
Net current assets 241 4 106 3 ;.E
Net assets 594 2 508 4 a
quuty E
Share capital 3 787 779 a
Share premium 4 158 3 147 4 2
Share option reserve 4 107 3 926 8
Miscellaneous reserves 4 0.1 01 L
Retained earmings 4 249 8 190 4 [~
Total shareholders’ funds 594.2 508 4
s
The finanaal statements on pages 177 to 182 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2016 and signed on 1ts i
behalf by é
2
3
David Bellamy Andrew Croft
Chief Executve Chief Financial Officer

The notes and information on pages 178 to 182 form part of these financial statements

~
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Bas:s of Preparation

St James’s Place ple (‘the Company’) 1s a hmited hability company incorporated in England and Wales and whose shares are publicly
traded The Compan)} offers a range of insurance, investment and other wealth management services through its subsidraries, which
are incorporated in the UK, Ireland and Asia

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical costs convention, on a going concern basis and in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 101 (FRS 101} ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework” and the Companies Act 2006

The preparation of financial statements 1 compliance with FRS 101 requires the use of certain critical accounting esnmates Italso
requires management to exercise judgement 1n applying the Company’s accounting pohecies No sigmficant accounting judgements
have been made

First Time Application of FRS 100 and FRS 101
In the current year the Group has adopted FRS 100 and FRS 101 In previous years the financ:al statements were prepared 1n
accordance with applicable LK accounting standards

This change 1n the basis of preparation has not materuaily altered the recogniton and measurement requirements previously apphed 1n
accordance with UK GAAP Consequently, the prinapal accounting policies are unchanged from the prior year The change m basis
of preparation has enabled the Group to take advantage of all of the available disclosure exemptions permitted by FRS 101 1n the
financial statements, the most sigmficant of which are summanised below There have been no other matenal amendments to the
disclosure requirements previously applied 1n accordance with UK GAAP

FRS 10I — Reduced Dhsclosure Exemptions

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101

* The requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures

* The requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

* The requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present comparative information in respect of
paragraph 79(2)(1v) of IAS 1

= The requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D, 111 and 134-136 of IAS 1
Preseptation of Financial Statements

* The requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

* The requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A of 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

* The requirements in IAS 24 Reloted Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more
members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which 1s a party to the transaction 1s wholly owned by such a member

* The requirements of paragraphs 13G(f)(n), 130(N(m), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135(c) to 135{e) of TAS 36 Impaument of Assets, provided
that equivalent disclosures are included in the consohdated financial statements of the group in which the entity 15 consohdated

In publishing the Parent Company financial statements, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption i Section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement and related notes that form part of these financial statements
The Company 15 not required to present a statement of comprehensive income

Gomng Concern
The Comipany 1s non-trading and has positive net assets, therefore the Company continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing these financial statements h
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Significant dccounting Policres
The following principal accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the years presented

(a) Investment Return
Investment return comprises dividends from subsidiaries, which are accounted for when received

{b) Taxation
Taxation 1s based on profits and mcome for the year as determmed 1n accordance with the relevant tax legislation, together with

adjustments to provistons for prior years

(¢) Investment 1n Subsidiaries
Investments 1n subsidiaries are carried at cost stated after any impairment losses, plus the cost of share awards granted by the

Company of its own shares

(d) Recervables

Receivables are initially recogmsed at far value and subsequently held at amortised cost less impairment losses

() Amounts Owed to Group Undertakings
Amounts owed to Group undertakings imtially are recogmsed at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost

{f) Impairment Losses

Non-financial assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment when circumstances or events indicate there may be uncertainty over this value An
imparrment loss 1s recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable
amount 15 the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use

2, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

2015 2014
£Mallion £ Malhion

Costat 1 January
Investment in Group undertakings 311 4 4
Share options granted by Company 92 6 8t 2

404 0 3926

Additions in the year
Investment in Group undertakings -

Share optiens granted by Company 14.7 114
14.7 114

Cost at 31 December

Investment in Group undertakings 3114 311 4

Share options granted by Company 107.3 92 6

4187 4040

Impairment mn value
Investment in Group undertakings (659 (19)

Net book value at 31 December 352.8 4021

The Directors believe that the carryimng value of the investments 1s supported by therr underlymng net assets
During the year St James's Place Partnership Lumited and St James’s Place Investments plc paid dividends to St James’s Place plc of

£42 0 mllion and £37 3 malhon respectively Overall there wasa £64 0 omlhon net decrease 1n the underlying net assets of these
subsidianes, resulting 1n the movement i ‘impatrment 1o value’ from £(1 9) mllion to £(65 9) mullion
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

2. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES contimued
Primncipal Subsidiary Undertakings at 31 December 2015

Investment Holding Companies
Life Assurance

Unit Trust Management

Unat Trust Administration and ISA Management
Distnibution

Management Services

IFA Acquisitions

Asia Dastrrbution

*  The Company operates a branch in Sungapore
*+  The Company operates a branchin the Republic of ircland

5t James’s Place Investments plc

St James's Place Wealth Management Group plc

St James's Place UK ple

5t James's Place International plc (incorporated 1 reland)*
St James’s Place Unit Trust Group Limited

St James's Place Investment Admimistration Limited

St James’s Place Wealth Management plc

St James’s Place Management Services Limited**

St James’s Place Acquisition Services Limited

St james's Place International Distribution Limited

The Company owns either directly or ndirectly 100% of the voting ordnary equity share capital of the above-named subsidianies
A full bst of the 5t James’s Place Group subsidiary undertakings can be found on pages 170 to 172 of the St James's Place Report and

Accounts

All of these companies are registered in England and Whales and operate principally in the United Kingdom except where otherwise

stated

Due to ongoing solvency requirements, there are restrichions on the amount of distributable reserves within the hfe assurance, umt
trust and financial services operating companies of the Group which restricts their ability to transfer cash dividends to the Company

3.SHARE CAPITAL
Number of Called up
Ordinary Shares Share Capatal
£Mallion
At 1 January 2014 515,215,983 773
— Exeraise of options 4,231,408 06
At 31 December 2014 519,447,391 7759
— Issue of shares 206,366 -
— Exeraise of options 5,011,455 08
At 31 December 2015 524,665,212 78.7

The total authorised number of ordinary sharcs 1s 605 millien (2014 605 million), with a par valuc of 15 pence per share

(2014 15 pence per share) Allissued shares are fully pad

5,217,821 shares were 1s5ued in the year at a nomnal value of £0 8 million, for which the Company recerved censideration of

£11 7 mullhon
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4 RESERVES
Share
Share Retained Optron Misc.
Premiutm Earnmgs Reserve Reserves Total
£'Milhen £'Million £'Mallion £'Million £'Mallion
At 1 Janmary 2014 142 2 144 3 812 01 3678
Profit for the financial year 1416 141 6
Dividends (955) (95 5)
Issue of share capital
Exercise of options 52 52
Cost of share options expensed in subsidiary 114 11 4
At 31 December 2014 1474 190 4 92 6 01 4305
Profit for the financial year 190 2 190 2
Dividends (130 8) (130 8)
Issue of share capital
Issue of share capital 19 19
Exercise of options S0 90
Cost of share options expensed 1n subsidiary 147 147
At 31 December 2015 158 3 2498 107.3 01 5155

As at 31 December 2015 the total distributable reserves of the Company were £249 8 milhion (2014 £190 4 milhon) Information on
the Company’s dividend pohicy can be found within the Capital Management section of the St James’s Place Group Report and
Accounts on page 39

5. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The total audit fee 1n respect of the Group 15 set out in Note 6 on page 134 of the consolidated financial statements The audit fee
charged to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 15 £1,000 (2014 £1 ,000)

6. DIVIDENDS
The following dwvidends have been paid by the Group

Year Ended YearEnded  Year Ended Year Ended
31D b 31 D b L), 3 31D b

raaday o8areng

| , uonepunog aoeq s.samef g | |
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2015 2014 2015 2014
Pence per Pence per £'Mallion £'Mallion

share share
Final dividend 1n respect of previous financial year 14.37 958 748 49 4
Interim dividend 1n respect of current financial year 1072 893 560 46 1
Total 2509 18 51 130.8 955

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 17 24 pence per share (2014 14 37 pence) This amounts to £90 5 million
(2014 £74 6 million) and will, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 13 May 2016 to those

shareholders on the register as at 8 April 2016
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
At the year end the following related party balances existed

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
£Million £'Milhion
Investments 11 Group compames ¢
St James’s Place Partnersp Limited - 420
St James's Place Wealth Management Group plc 1949 180 3
S5t James's Place Investments plc 1579 179 8
St James's Place DFM Holdings Limited - -
Intragroup debtors
St James'’s Place Investments plc 238 8 106 7
St James's Place Management Services Limited 14 -
St James’s Place International Distribution Limited 19 —

During the year, the Company received £254 9 mallion (2014 £142 0 mullion) dividends from subsidiary undertakings
gthey pany b g

The total value of St James's Place funds under management held hy related parnes of the Company as at 31 December 2015 was
£20 4 mlhon (2014 £16 2 mllion) The total value of dividends paid to related partes of the Company during the year was £1 3

miilion (2014 £0 6 milhon)

The following wholly-owned subsidiaries of 5t James's Place plc have taken advantage of the exemption from statutory audit granted
by section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 In accordance with sectton 479C, St James's Place plc has therefore guaranteed all the

outstanding habilitzes as at 31 December 2015 of

Angla Financial Limited (3835743)

BFS Financial Services Limated (4609753)

Chapman Associates Limited (3047530)

Chapman Hunter Group Limited (6034452)

G M B Financial Services Limited (4074782)

M H S (Holdings) Limited (559995)

PFPTume Ltd (4047197)

SJP AESOP Trustees Limited (4089795)

SJPC Corporate Investments Limited (1476292)

St James's Place (Properties) Limited (6820166)

St James’s Place Acquisition Services Limuted (7730835)
St James’s Place Clhient Solutions Limited (5487108)

St James’s Place Corporate Secretary Limited (9131866)
St James’s Place International Distrtbution Lirmted (8798683)
St James’s Place Investment Trust Limited (209445)

St James's Place Investments plc (1773177)

St James’s Place Nominees Limited (8764214)

THG Wealth Management Limuted (8077289)

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Dhrectors’ responsibilities relate primarly to the trading companies of the Group and accordingly their costs are charged to

those companies and none are met by the Parent Company Disclosure of the Directors’ emoluments 15 made within the
Remuneration Report on page 85

9. COMPANY INFORMATION

In the opinion of the Directors there 1s not considered to be any ultimate controlling party

Copies of the consolidated financial statements of S5t James’s Place plc may be obtained from the Company Secretary, St James's

Place ple, St James's Place House, 1 Tetbury Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 1FP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
DIRECTORS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

REPORT ON THE GROUP SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — EUIROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

Our opimion

In our opinion, St James's Place plc (the ‘Group”)
Supplementary Financial Statements — European Embedded
Value Basis (the ‘supplementary financial statements’) for the
year ended 31 December 2015 have been properly prepared, 1n
all materal respects, mn accordance with the European
Embedded Value (EEV) basis set out in Note | — Basis of
preparation

Emphasis of matter — Basis of preparation

In forming our opinton on the supplementary financial
statements, which 1s not modified, we draw attention to Note |
— Bags of Preparation which explains that, as permitted by the
additional guidance 1ssued 1n October 2015 by the European
Insurance CFO Forum, the supplementary financial statements
have been prepared making no allowance for the 1mpact of
Solvency II regulatory requirements

What we have audited

The §t James’s Place plc’s supplementary financial statements

comprise

= the consolidated statement of financial position, European
Emnbedded Value Basis as at 31 December 2015,

* the consolidated statement of income, European Embedded
Value Basis for the year then ended,

* the consohdated statement of changes in equity, European
Embedded Value Basis as at 31 December 2015 for the year
then ended, and

* the notes to the supplementary financial statements, which
should be read 1n conjunction with the Group’s financial
statements

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the supplementary financial statements 15 the EEV
basis set out 1n Note I — Basis of preparation

In applying the EEV bass, the Directors have made a number
of subjective judgements, for example 1n respect of sigmificant
accounting estimates In making such estumates, they have
made assumptions and considered future events as set out in
Note 1II — Assumptions

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Qur responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully 1n the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement, the Dhrectors are responsible for the preparation of
the supplementary financial statements i accordance with the
EEV basis set out in Note I — Basis of preparation

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opimion on the
supplementary financal statements m accordance wath applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
(ISAs (UK & Ireland)) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards

for Auditors

Thas repbrt, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s Directors as a body 1n conformuty with
the methodology and disclosure requirements contained 1n the
document ‘Supplementary Reporting for Long Term Insurance
Business (the European Embedded Value Method)’ 1ssued by the
CEFO forum, 1n accordance with our engagement letter dated

8 January 2016 and for no other purpose We do not, 1n giving
this opinton, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpaose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or
into whose hands it may come, including without hmitation
under any contractual obligations of the Company, save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnting

What an audrt of finanaal statements mvolves

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with ISAs (UK &

Ireland) An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from

matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Thas

includes an assessment of

= whether the accounting policies are appropniate to the
Group’s arcumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed,

* the reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estimates made
by the Directors, and

* the overall presentation of the financal statements

We primarily focus our work i these areas by assessing the
Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming cur
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the
supplementary financial statements
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We test and examine information, using samphing and other
audrting techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both

In 2ddition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information 1n the Annual Report and Accounts to dennfy
material inconsistencies with the audited supplementary financial
statements and to rdentify any information that 15 apparently
materially incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by usin the course of performing the
audit If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or 1nconsistencies we consider the imphcations for
our report

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants

London

22 March 2016

Nores

(2) The supplementary interim financial information i3 published an the webslte of St James s
Place Plc, www sip co uk The maintenance and mtegrity of the St James's Place ple website
15 the respansibility of the Directors, the work carried out by the auditors docs not unvolve
consideration of thess matters and, accordmgly the aud acceptnor bility for any
changes that may have occurred to the financial statements stnce they were tmittally
prescated on the website

Legslauon in the Uaited Kingdom goverming the preparatl and di 10n of fi 1
statements may differ from legislation 1n other junsdictions

[
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186

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS'

The following supplementary information shows the result for the Group adopuing a European Embedded Value (EEV) basis for
reporting the results of its wholly owned hfe and unit trust businesses

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3] December

Nate 2015 2014
£vailon £ Mullion
Life business 467.0 4670
Unit Trust business 274 4 1777
Distnbution business (212) (10 9)
Other (60 1) 3749
EEV operating profit 660 2 596 4
Investment return variances (24 4) 80 2
Economic assumption changes 09 (70)
EEYV profit before tax 6367 669 6
Tax
Life business (82.2) (104 1)
Unit Trust business (51.7) 3924
Distribution busimess 31 21
Other 14 3 88
Corporation tax rate change 47 8 -
(68 7) (132 6)
EEV profit after tax 5680 5370
EEV profit attributable to non-controlling interests ‘ (0.3) 01
EEV profit attributable to equity share holders 5683 5371
EEV profit on ordinary activities after tax 568.0 5370
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share Vi 109.4 104 5
Diluted earmings per share VI 108.3 1027
Operating profit basic earmings per share Vi 1039 931
Crperating profit diluted earnings per share VI 102.8 915

The notes and information on pages 189 to 196 form part of this supplementary information
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMEN'T

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

187

Year Ended Year Ended
3| December 31 December
2015 2014
£Million £'Millien
Opening equity on an EEV basis 3,417.2 2,9641
EEV profit after tax for the year 568.0 5370
Issue of share capital 117 58
Retained earmngs credit in respect of share option charges 14.8 110
Retaned earmings credit in respect of proceeds from exercise of share options of shares held 1n trust 01 —
Dividends pad (130 8) (95 5)
Consideration paid for own shares (12 8) 52
Closing equity on an EEV basis 3,868 2 3,417 2

The notes and information on pages 189 to 196 form part of this supplementary information
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188

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

3t December 31 December

2015 2014
£'Million £'Milhon
Assets
Goodwill 101 101
Intangble assets
745.0 8130

Deferred acquisition costs

Value of long-term busmess in-force
~ long-term nsurance

— unit trusts

2,0129 1,825 3
787.6 611 2

Computer software 43 77
3,559.9  3,2673
8.0 79

Property & equipment

Deferred tax assets

Investment property

Investments

Remnsurance assets

Insurance and investment contract recewvables
Other recervables

Cash & cash equivaients

2259 192 8
1,3449 1,031 4
50,528.5 44,701 8
850 855

76 2 635
8910 604 6
53251  5,1394

Total assets

62,044.5 55,0942

Liabilities

Insurance contract habilities

Other provisions

Financial habilities

Deferred tax habihities

Insurance and investment contract payables
Deferred income

Income tax habilities

Other payables

Net asset value attributable to unat holders
Preference shares

463 5 474 4

15 4 114
43,5627 39,014 8
428 4 512 4

459 504
4135 463 2
296 328

660.8 4997
12,556.4 10,6178
o1 01

Total habilities

58,176.3 51,6770

Net assets 3,868 2 34172
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 78.7 779
Share premmum 158 3 147 4

Treasury share reserve
Miscellaneous reserves
Retained earnings

(185)  (105)
23 23

3,6474  3,2001

Total shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis

3,868 2 3,417 2

Pence Pence

Net assets per share

7373 6579

The supplementary information on pages 186 to 196 was approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2016 and signed on 1ts

behalf by
David Bellamy Andrew Croft
Chief Executive Chaef Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

I. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The supplementary mformation on pages 186 to 196 shows the Group's results as measured on a EEV basis This includes results for
the hfe, pension and investment business, and also the umit trust business The valuation 1s undertaken on a basis determimed in
accordance with the EEV Principles 1ssued in May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum (CFO Forum}, a group of chief
financial officers from 19 major European insurers as supplemented by the Additional Guidance on EEV Disclosures tssued in
October 2005 (together ‘the EEV Principles’) with the exception of new business Consistent with prior reporting periods, the value
of incremental prermums to exisung business 1s treated as new business in the year of increment, rather than at the outset of the
policy This approach better reflects the way the Group manages its business

In recognition of the late finalisanon of the Solvency Il requirements, the CFO Forum 1ssued additional guidance 1n October 2015 noting
their view that the Embedded Value does not require an allowance for Solvency Il and its associated consequences The EEV basis has
therefore been prepared assuming the future continuation of the regulatory solvency requirements as they applied at 31 December 2015

The treatment of all other transactions and balances s unchanged from the primary financial statements on an IFRS basis The EEV
basis recognises the long-term nature of the emergence of shareholder cash returns by reflecting the net present value of expected
futare cash flows

Under the EEV methodology, profit 1s recogmsed asit1s earned over the life of the products-within the covered business The
embedded value of the covered busmess 1s the sum of the shareholders’ net worth 1n respect of the covered business and the present

value of the projected profit stream

II. METHODOLOGY

(2 Covered Business
The covered business s the life, pension and investment business, including unit trust business, undertaken by the Group

(b) Calculation of EEV on Existing Business

Profit from existing business comprises the expected return eon the value of in-force business at the start of the year plus the impact of
any changes 1n the assumptions regarding future operating experience, plus changes 1n reserving basis (other than economic
assumption changes), plus profits and losses caused by differences between the actual experience for the year and the assumptions
used to caleulate the embedded value at the end of the year

During the period a new contract for administration has been completed with our thard party administrator which, after a period of
development, will reduce future expenses The expected future impactis a modest increase to the EEV, applied as an operating
assumptien change on the EEV at the end of the year

(c) Allowance  for Risk

The allowance for risk in the shareholder cash flows 1s a key feature of the EEV Principles The EEV Principles set out three mam
areas of allowance for risk 1n the embedded value

* The nisk discount rate,

+ The allowance for the cost of financial options and guarantees, and

» The cost of holding both prudential reserves and any additional capital required

The reported EEV allows for risk viaa nisk discount rate based on a bottom-up market-consistent approach, plus an appropriate
additional margm for non-market risk The Group does not offer products that carry any sigmficant financial guarantees or options

(d) Non-Market Risk

Best estimate assumptions have been established based on available information and when used within the market consistent
calculations provide the primary evaluation of the impact of non-market risk However, some non-market operational risks are not
symmetric, with adverse experience having a higher impact on the EEV than favourable experience Allowance has been made for
this by tncreasmg the risk discount rate by 0 73% (2014 0 76%)
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

CONTINUED

II. METHODOLOGY continued

(e) The Risk Discount Rate
A market-consistent embedded value for each product class has been calculated

In principle, each cash flow 15 valued using the discount rate apphed to such a cash flow 1n the capital markets However, 1n practice
where cash flows are either independent or move linearly with market movement, 1t 15 possible to apply 2 simplified method known as
the ‘certainty equivalent’ approach Under this approach all assets are assumed to earn the risk free rate and are discounted using that
risk free rate A market-consistent cost of holding the required capital has also been calculated

As part of this approach, an appropriate adjustment has been made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on expenses does not
move linearly with market movements Finally, an additional allowance for nen-market risk has been made by increasing the discount

rate by 0 73% (2014 0 76%)

For presentational purposes, a risk discount rate has then been calculated which under the EEV basis gives the same value determined
above This provides an average risk discount rate for the EEV and 1s described in relation to the nisk free rate Thas average risk
discount rate has also been used to calculate the published value of new business

(f) Cost of Requrred Caprtal
In ight of the results of internal analysis, the Directors consider that the mimimum regulatory capital provides adequate capital cover
for the risks inherent in the covered business The required capital for the EEV calculations has therefore been set to the optimised

minimum regulatory captal

The EEV includes a reduction for the cost of holding the required caprtal No allowance has been made for any potential adjustment
that the mnvestors may apply because they do not have direct control over their capital Any such adjustment would be subjective, as
different investors will have different views of what, 1f any, adjustment should be made

(g) New Business

With the exception of expenses, the new business contribution arising from reported new business premiums has been calculated
using the same assumptions as used in the EEV at the end of the financial year The value of contractual incremental premums to
existing business 1s treated ag new business in the year of the increment, rather than at the outset of the pelicy Thus approach better
reflects the way the Group manages 1ts business

The value of new business has been estabhished at the end of the reporting year and has been calculated using actual acquisition costs
The new contract for admimistration completed with our third party administrator 1s expected to reduce future expenses The
reduction 1n future expense has been apphed to the total EEV at the end of the year, and the new business contribution for business
written during the year therefore reflects the previous tanff

(h) Operating Profit
Operating profit 15 determined as the increase in the embedded value over the year excluding market-related impacts such as the
effects of economic assumption changes and investment variances and grossed up for shareholder tax

1} Tax
The EEV includes the present value of tax rehef on hfe assurance expenses calculated on a market-consistent basis Thus calculation
takes into account all expense and income amounts projected for the in-force business (including any carried forward unutilised rehef
ol £xpenses)

In determining the market-consistent value an approprate allowance 15 made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on
expenses does not move linearly with market movements

When calculating the vaiue of new business, priority 1s given to relieving the expenses relating to that business
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IIL. ASSUMPTIONS

(a) Economic Assumptions
The principal economic assumptions used within the cash flows at 31 December are set out below

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Decomber

2015 2014
Risk free rate 2.1% 1 9%
Inflation rate 2 7% 2 9%
Rusk discount rate (net of tax) 5.2% 50%

Future investment returns
— Gilis 2.1% 19%
—Equities 51% 4 9%

— Umt linked funds

— Capital growth 13% 15%
— Dividend income 3.1% 27%
- Total 4.4% 4 2%
Expense inflation 3 2% 3 7%

The risk free rate 1s set by reference to the yield on ten year gilts Other investment returns are set by reference to the risk free rate

The nflation rate 15 derived from the imphait inflation 1n the valuation of ten year index-hinked gilts This rate 15 increased to reflect
higher increases in earnings related expenses

( b) Experience Assumptions
The principal experience assumptions have been seton a best estimate basis They are reviewed regularly

The persistency assumptions are derived from the Group's own expertence and reflect our best estimate of expenence over the long
term Where sufficient data does not exast, external industry experience may be used As a result of the review completed 1n 2015,
our approach to modelling future lapse rates on pensions business has been developed to allow for the duration of the policy, 1n
addition to age of the client, as a further risk factor affecting future experience We have also updated our assumptions to allow for
retention of pension business beyond age 75 following changes announced 1n the March 2014 budget regarding the removal of the
requirement to purchase an annwty by this age We will continue to momtor any change in palicyholder behaviour arising from the
pension freedom changes also announced 1n the March 2014 budget and the development of future expenence To aid investors who
wish to make their own judgement about these changes, we have included a pensions persistency sensitivity separately in our analysis

on page 194

The expense assumptions include allowance for both third party admimstration costs and corporate overhead costs incurred 1n
respect of covered business The worpurate costs have been apportioned so that the total maintenance cost represents the anticipated
ongoing expenses, Including systems development costs, which are expected to arise in future years in meeting the policy servicing
requirements of the in-force business Asa result of good progress with the investment programme at our key outsource provider to
enhance our *back office” systems, and the commencement of the migration business to the new administration system, we have now
reflected the benefit from these changes 1n the ongoing expense assumpuions via a change 1n operating assumption This s apphedasa
change 1n operating assumptions to the total EEV at the end of the year and does not therefore feed 1nto the reported new business
contribution

Mortahity and morbidity assumptions have been set by reference to the Group's own experience, published industry data and the rates
set by the Group's reassurers
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192

NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

IIL. ASSUMPTIONS continued

(¢) Tax

CONTINUED

The EEV result has been calculated allowing for tax and has been grossed up to a pre-tax level for presentation in the profit and loss
account The corporation tax rate used for this grossing up 15 18 6% (2014 20 196} for UK hife and penstons bustness, 12 5% (2014
12 5%) for Irish hfe and pensions business and 18 8% (2014 20 2% for unit trust business Future tax has been determined

assuming a continuation of the current tax legislation The reducnion 1n tax rates for UK and umt trust bustness reflects the changes

1n tax rate enacted in the year

IV. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT

(2) Life Busmess
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2015 2014
£malhion £'Milhon
New bustness contribution 1 265.5 2337
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate 136 3 144 9
Experience variances 832 781
Operating assumption changes (22 8) 30
Investment income 48 73
EEV gperating profit 4670 4670
Investment return variances (25.0) 618
Economie assumption changes 1.1 (33
EEV profit before tax 4431 5255
Tax (822) (104 1)
Corporation tax rate change 38.1 -
EEV profitafter tax 3990 421 4
Note 1 New business contnbution after tax is £216 7 million (2014 £187 6 mllion)
( b) Unit Trust Business
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2015 2014
£xalhon £ Milhion
New business contribution 1 175 2 1394
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate 361 371
Expentence variances (51) 04
Operating assumption changes 66.9 -
Investment income 13 083
EEV operating profit 274 4 1777
Investment return variances 0.6 184
Econorme assumption changes (0.2) 37
EEV profit before tax 274 8 192 4
Tax (517) (394
Corporation tax rate change 97 -
EEV profit after tax 2328 153 0

Note 1 New business contribution after tax is £142 2 milhon (2014 £110 8 mitlion)
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(c) Combined Life and Unit Trust Business

193

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

Note 2015 2014

£Million £'Million

New busimess contribution 1 4407 3731

Profit from existing business

Unwind of discount rate 172 4 1820
Expenence variances 781 785
Operating assumption changes 441 30

Investment income 6.1 81
EEV operating profit 741.4 644 7
Investment return variances (24 4) 80 2
Economic assumption changes 0.9 (70
EEV profit before tax 7179 79
Tax (133.9) (1435
Corporation tax rate change 47.8 -
EEV profit after tax 631.8 57 4

Note 1 New business contributlon after tax 18 £358 9 mullion {2014 £298 4 million)

( d) Detailed Analysis

In order to better explain the movement in capital flows, the components of the EEV profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
shown separately between the movement in IFRS net assets and the present value of the in-force business (VIF) 1n the table below All

figures are shown net of tax

I l uouepunog aseiq s,sowel 1< l I 1.10(:[9“ DIEBJE.IJQ
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Movement

n [FRS Movement Movement

Net Assets mn VIF in EEV

£Mallion £Milhion £'Million

New business contribution (67 3) 426 2 3589

Profit from existing business 2575 (257.5) -

Unwind of discount rate - 1407 140.7

Experience variances (17.4) 550 376

Operating assumption changes 56 294 350

Investment return 49 - 49
Investment return variances (0.2) (19.6) {12 8)

Economuc assumption changes (0 3) 11 08
Miscellanecus 19.2 (5771) (37.9)

Corporation tax rate change - 478 478

2020 366.0 5630

EEV profit after tax
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

CONTINUED

IV. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT continued

The comparative figures for 2014 are as follows

Movement
n [FRS Mavement Movement
Net Asscts m VIF 1 EEV
£ Mallon £ Million £ Mulhon
New business contnbution (49 3) 3477 298 4
Profit from exasting business 2367 (236 7) -
Unwind of discount rate — 145 5 145 5
Experience variances 277 213 4950
Operating assumption changes 14) 40 26
Investment return 66 - 66
Investment return variances On 643 642
Econommc assumption changes (0 9) 47 (5 6)
Miscellaneous (313) 76 237
EEV proﬁt after tax 188 0 3490 5370
V. EEV SENSITIVITIES

The table below shows the estimated mmpact on the combimed life and unit trust reported value of new business and EEV to changes
in key assumptions The sensitivities are speaified by the EEV principles and reflect reasonably possible levels of change In each case,

only the indicated item 1s varied relative to the restated values

Change in
European
Change wn new business Embedded
contribution Value
Note Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax
£million £Milhion £'Mulion
Value at 31 December 2015 440.7 3589 3,8682
100bp reduction 1n risk free rates, with correspondlng change 1n fixed interest asset
values 1 (5 6) “7 (26 1)
10% reduction 1n withdrawal rates 2
Pensions 177 14 4 853
Other 229 18 7 1279
Total 406 331 232
10% reduction m expenses 3 73 60 297
10% reduction in market value of equity assets 4 - - (371 2)
5% reduction 1n mortality and morbidity 5 — - —
100bp increase 1n equity expected returns & - - -
100bp 1ncrease m assumed inflation 7 a7 (6 3) (343

Note 1 This 1s the key economic basia change sensitivity The business model is relatrvely ingensitive to change in economic basis Note that the sensitivity assumes a corresponding change in all

teeestment rettrnt but no change i tnflation
Note 2 The 10% reduction is applicd to the lapse rate For instance 1 the lapse raic 15 8% then a 10% sesiuvity reduction would reflect a change 1o 7 2%
Note 3 The new business contribution withia the EEV does not reflect future expense levels that would apply under the new sdministration contract

Note 4 For the purposes of this required scnsitivity, all unit linked funds are assumed to be invested in equities. The actual mux of assets varies and 10 recent years the proportion invested directly in

UK and overseas equlties has excecded 7094
Note 5§ Assumes the benelit of lower expenence 13 passed on to clients and resssurers at the carliest opportunity

Note 6 Asa market-consistent approach is used, equity expected returns only affect the derlved discount rates and not the embedded value or contribution to profit from new business

Note 7 Assumed inflation 1s set by reference to ten year index linked gilt ylelds

Changen

European

Change 1n new busimess Embedded

contribution Value

Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax

£Million £Mallion £Million

100bp reduction in risk discount rate 855 45 2 2713

Although not directly relevant under a market-consistent valuation, this sensitivity shows the level of adjustment which would be

required to reflect differing investor views of risk
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VI. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year Ended Year Ended
3i December 31 December
2015 2014
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 109 4 104 5
Diluted earnings per share 108.3 1027
Operating basic earmings per share 1039 931
Operating diluted earnings per share 102 8 915
The earnings per share caleulations are based on the following figures
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£'Mallhion £'Miuhon
Earnings
Profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS} 568.0 8370
Qperating profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 535.2 478 4
Muilhon Milbon
‘Weighted average number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue (for basic EPS) 519.1 514 0
Adjustments for outstanding share options 5.2 90
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {for diluted £FS) 524 3 523 0
VIL. RECONCILIATION OF IFRS AND EEV PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND NET ASSETS
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Decermber 31 December
2015 2014
£Millien £’Million
IFRS profit before tax 1741 294 4
Tax attributable to policyholder returns (22 8) )]
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 151.3 182 9
Add back amortsation of acquired value in-force business 3.2 32
Movement in Life value of in-force (net of tax) 187 6 417
Movement 1n unit trust value of in-force (net of tax) 176 4 104 9
Tax gross up of movement 1n value in-force 118 2 136 9
EEV profit before tax 636.7 6696
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£'Milhion £ Million
IFRS net assets 1,095 t 1,010 1
Less acqured value of m-force (33 6) (36 8)
Add deferred tax on acquired value of in-force - 62 74
Add life value of in-force 2,012 9 1,825 3
Add umt trust value of in-force 7876 6112
EEV net assets 3,868 2 3,417 2
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

CONTINUED

VIIL. RECONCILIATION OF LIFE COMPANY FREE ASSETS TO CONSOLIDATED GROUP EQUITY AND

ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENT IN FREE ASSETS

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£Million £'Milhen

Life company estimated free assets 298.9 278 3
521 48 9

Estimated required life company solvency capital
Other subsidiaries, consolidation and IFRS adjustments

744 1 6829

TERS net assets

1,0951  1,0101

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

Life company estimated free assets at 1 January
Investment 1n new business

£¥allion £ vulhon

2783 2349
(G41) (26 8)

Profit from existing business 2039 1639
Dividends pard (150 ) {100 0y
Investment return 40 59
Movement in required solvency capital 3.2) 04
Life company estimated free assets at 31 December 2989 278 3
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANALYSIS OF NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Analysis by Number of Shares Holders % Shares Held %
1-959 N 2,410 4313 907,723 017
1,000--9,999 2,253 40 32 6,691,479 128
10,000-99,993 604 10 81 19,507,747 372
100,000 and above 321 574 497,558,263 94 83

5,588 10000 524,665,212 100 00

2016 FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Ex-dwidend date for final dividend Thursday, 7 April 2016
Record date for final dividend Frday, 8 Apnl 2016
Anncuncement of first quarter new business Tuesday, 26 April 2016
Annual General Meeting Wednesday, 4 May 2016
Payment date for final dividend Friday, 13 May 2016
Announcement of Interim Results and second quarter new business Wednesday, 27 July 2016
Ex-dividend date for interim dividend Thursday, 1 September 2016
Record date for interim drvidend Frlday, 2 September 2016
Payment date for interim dinidend Friday, 30 September 2016
Announcement of third quarter new business Tuesday, 25 Cctober 2016

The above dates are subject to change and further information on the 2016 financial calendar ean be found on the Company’s website,
www s)p co uk

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The Directors introduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) during 2012 If you would prefer to recerve new shares instead of
cash dividends, please complete a Dividend Rexmbursement Plan (DRP) mandate form, which is available from our Registrars,
Computershare Investor Services PLC Their contact details are on page 199

SHARE DEALING

A telephone share deahing service has been estabhished with the Regustrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, whach provides
shareholders with a simple way of buying or selling St James’s Place plc shares on the London Stock Exchange Hf you are interested in
this service, telephone 0370 703 0084

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS
If you would Iike to have access 1o shareholder communications such as the Annual Report and the Notice of General Meeting
through the mnternet rather than receive them by post, please register at www etreeuk com/stjamesplace

An internet share dealing service 1s also available Further information about this section can be obtained by logging on to
www computershare com/mvestor/sharedealing

p— p—
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HOW TO CONTACT US AND ADVISERS

HOW TO CONTACT US

Registered Office
St James’s Place House
1 Tetbury Road
Cirencester
Gloucestershire

GL7 1FP

Tel 01285640302
www s)p co uk

Chairman
Sarah Bates
email c/o hz kelly@s)p co uk

Chief Executive
David Bellamy
emal david bellamy(@sjp co uk

Chaef Financial Officer
Andrew Croft
emarl andrew croft@s)p co uk

Company Secretary
Liz Kelly
emall liz kelly@s)p co uk

Customer Service

Mike Karn

Tel 01285 878140

emal mike karn(@s)p co uk

Analyst Enquiries

Tony Dunk

Tel 0207514 1963

email tony dunk@SJp co uk

Media Enquiries

Bell Pottinger

Tel 020 3772 2566

email SJP@RBell-Pottinger com

ADVISERS

Bankers

Bank of Scotland
150 Fountainbridge
Edinburgh

EH3 9PE

Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchill Place
London

Ei4 SHP

The Royal Bank of Scotland
135 Bishopsgate

London

EC2ZM 3UR

Brokers

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
25 Bank Street

London

E14 5P

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
2 King Edward Street

London

ECIA 1HQ

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
7 More London Riverside

London

SE1 2RT

Registrars & Transfer Office
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS13 8AE

emall web queres@computershare co uk

Tel 0370702 0197

www computershare com
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ST. JAMES’S PLACE
PARTNERSHIP LOCATIONS

-

UNITED KINGDOM
1 ABERDEEN 12 NEWBURY i
Mark Wylhe Chris Faerber
mark wylhe@s)p co uk chris fzerber@s)p co uk
0122 420 2400 01635 582424
2 GLASGOW 13 BRISTOL
Ross Cameron George Hills
ross cameron(@s)p co uk george hills@sp co uk
0141 304 §700 01454 618700
3 EDINBURGH 14 PICCADILLY
Steve Herkes Darmien Bradbury
steve herkes@syp co uk damien bradbury(@s)p co uk
0131 459 9200 020 7399 6889
4 NEWCASTLE ELSTREE
Phihp Pringle Mark Newman
philip pringle@syp co uk mark newman{@s)p co uk
0191 260 5373 020 8207 4000
5 BELFAST CITY
Keith Willete Roger McKibbin
keith wallett(@s)p co uk roger mckibbin@s)p co uk
028 2072 6500 020 7638 2400
6 LEEDS HAMILTON PLACE
Richard Balmforth Nick Brett
richard balmforth@s)p co uk nick brett@sp co uk
0113 244 4054 020 7495 1771
7 MANCHESTER KINGSWAY
Frank Gorrie Ryan McDonald
frank gorme@s)p co uk ryan medonald@s)p o uk
0161 834 9480 020 7744 1600
8 LIVERPOOL 15 WESTERHAM
John Ronan Nick Froggatt
john ronan@s)p co uk mick [ roggatt@s;p co uk
0151 224 8700 01959 561 606
¢ NOTTINGHAM 10 SOLIHULL 1 WITHAM 16 SOLENT
Andy Marks Sean McKallop Paolo Payne Tan Grant
andy marks@s)p co uk sean mckillop@sjp co uk paolo payne(@syp co uk 1an grant{@s)p co uk
0115924 2899 0121733 6733 01376 501947 01485 881400
ASIA 17 SHANGHALI 19 SINGAPORE
Oliver Wickham MNagel Preston
Shanghai mfo@s)p asa Singapore mfo@s)p asia
+86 21 6045 2688 +65 6536 0121
18 HONG KONG

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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GLOSSARY

Adwviser or Financial Adviser
An mndividual who 15 authorised by the FCA to provide
financial advice

Admimstration Platform, alsc Bluedoor

A new client-centric administration system, being developed 1n
conjunctron with our third party outsourced admmmstration
provider, IFDS

Capita

A provider of business process outsourcing and integrated
professional support service solutions, which 1s our third party
outsourced provider, responsible for the admimstration of our
Dublin-based hife insurance company, SJP1

Cash Result

A post-tax measure of emergence during the year of cash available
for paying a dividend The measure reflects underlying cashflows
conststent with the IFRS results, but without adjustment for
intangbles incduding DAC, DIR, PVIF and deferred tax The
result also reflects any reserving constraint imposed on an
nsurance company 1n the Group by its local statutory solvency
regime Finally, no allowance 1s made for the cost of share options
The cash result should not be confused with the IFRS cash flow
statement which 1s prepared in accordance with [AS7

Chief Operating Decision Maker

The Executive Commuttee of the Board which 1s responsible for
allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
operating segments

Client Numbers
The number of ndividuals who have receved advice from a
St James’s Place Partner and own a St James’s Place wrapper

Clhient Advocacy

The Company requests feedback from clients each year through
a survey distributed with the annuzl Wealth Account Advocacy
is measured by the response to the question “Would you
recommend SJP services to others?” The potential responses
distinguish between ‘Yes, and have done so already’, “Yes, but
have yet to do so’ and *No’

Client Retention

Client retention 15 assessed by calculating the proportion

of clients at | January 1n the year who remain as a chent
throughout the year and are still a client on 31 December of
the same year

Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC)

An mtangible asset required to be established through the
apphcation of IFRS to our long-term business The value of the
asset 15 equal to the amount of all costs which accrue 1n hine with
new business volumes The asset 1s amortised over the expected
hifetime of the business

Deferred Income (DIR)

Deferred income which anises from the requirement in IFRS that
mmitzal charges on long-term financial instruments should only be
recogmised over the Iifetime of the business The 1mtial amount
of the balance 1s equal to the charge taken

Earnings Per Share
Non-GAAP earmings per share measures, both basic and diluted,
are calculated based on IFRS profit after tax

European Embedded Value (EEV)

A value determined 1n accordance with the EEV Principles
1ssued 1n May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, as
supplemented by the Additional Guidance on EEV Disclosures
1ssued 1n October 2005 {together ‘the EEV Principles’) The
EEV recogmses the long-term nature of the emergence of
shareholder cash returns by reflecting the net present value of
expected future cash flows

Field Management Team
The team of managers within 5t James’s Place with day to day
responsibility for support and supervision of the Partnershp

Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)

One of the two bodtes (along with the PRA) which replaced the
Financial Services Authority from 1 April 2013 The FCA1sa
company hmited by guarantee and 15 independent of the Bank of
England It 15 responsible for the conduct of business regulation
of all firms (including those firms subject to prudential
regulation by the PRA) and the prudential regulation of all
firms not regulated by the PRA The FCA has three statutory
objectives securing an appropriate degree of protection for
consumers, protechng and enhancing the integrity of the UK
financial system, and promoting effective competiion 1n the
interests of consumers

Financral Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS)
The FSCS 15 the UK’s statutory compensation scheme for
customers of authorised financial services firms This means that
the FSCS can pay compensation if a firm 15 unable, ors likely to
be unable, to pay clasms against 1t The FSCS 15 an independent
body, set up under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
(FSMA), and funded by a levy on ‘authorised financial services
firms’ The scheme covers deposits, 1nsurance pohctes, insurance
brokering, investments, mortgages and mortgage arrangement

Funds under Management (FUM)

Represents all assets actively managed or admimistered by or on
behalf of the Group, including all life mnsurance and unit trust
assets, but not assets managed by third parties where we have
only introduced or advised on the business Assets managed by
Rowan Dartington will count as funds under management when
the acquisition 1s complete

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLCANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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GLOSSARY

CONTINUED

Gross Inflows

Total new funds under management accepted mn the peniod New
funds accepted by Rowan Dartington will also count for Gross
Inflows when the acquisition 1s complete

International Financial Data Services (IFDS)

A provider of investor and policyholder, administration and
technology services IFDS 1s our third party outsourced
provider, responsible for the admimstration of our UK hfe
mnsurance company, SJPUK, our unt trust manager, SJPUTG,
and our investment administration company, SJPIA

International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

These are accounting regulations designed to ensure comparable
preparation and disclosure of statements of financial position,
and are the standards that all publicly listed companies 1n the
European Unien are required to use

Investment Management Approach (IMA)

The IMA 1show St James's Place manages clients’ investments
It 15 managed by the St James’s Place Investment Commuttee,
which 1n turn 1s advised by respected independent investment
research consultancies, led by Stamford Associates The
Investment Commuttee 15 respensible for 1dent1f)qng

fund managers for our funds, selecting from fund management
firms all around world They are also responsible for momitormg
the performance of our fund managers, and, 1f circumstances
should change and 1t becomes necessary, then they are
responsible for changing the fund manager as well

Net Inflows

Gross inflows less the amount of funds under management
withdrawn by chents during the same period The net inflows1s
the growth i funds under management not attributable to
mnvestment performance

Policyholder and Shareholder Tax

The UK tax regime facilitates the collection of tax from hife
insurance policyholders by making an equivalent charge within
the corporate tax of the company This part of the overall tax
charge, which s attributable to poheyholders, 1s called
policyholder tax The rest 1s shareholder tax

Profit Before Shareholder Tax

A prolit measure which reflects the IFRS result adjusted for
policyholder tax, but before deduction of shareholder tax
Wathin the financral statements the full title of this measure 15
Profit before rax attnbutable to shareholders’ returns

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA)

The PRA 15 a part of the Bank of England and 1s responsible for
the prudential regulation of deposit taking institutions, insurers
and major wnvestment firms The PRA has two statutory
objectives to promote the safety and soundness of these firms
and, specifically for insurers, to contribute to the securing of an
appropriate degree of protection for pohcyholders

Purchased Value of In-Force (PVIF)

An intangble asset estabhshed on takeover or acquisition,
reflecting the present value of the expected emergence of profits
from a portfoho of long-term business The asset 1s amortised 1n
line with the emergence of profits

Registered Individuals (RT)

An individual who 1s registered by the FCA, particularly an
mdividual who 15 registered to provide financial advice See also
Adviser and 5t James’s Place Partner

Rowan Dartington

A wealth management business providing investment
management, advisory stockbrokuing and wealth planning
services During 2015 5t James’s Place announced the mtention
to acquire Rowan Dartington to enhance the offering to chents
and Partners In early 2016 change of control has been granted
by the FCA and completion will follow shortly

Solvency It

New nsurance regulatlons dESJgrlEd to harmomse EU insurance
regu[atlon which became effective from 1 January 2016 The key
concerns of the regulation are to ensure robust risk management
1n msurance companies and to use that understanding of \nsk

to help deterrnine the right amount of capital for European
insurance companies to hold to ensure their ongoing viability 1n
all but the most severe stressed scenarios

St. James’s Place Foundation

The mdependent grant making charity esteblished at the same
time as the Company in 1592 More information about the
Foundation can be found on page 56 or on the website

www sjpfoundation co uk

St. James’s Place Partner

A member of the St James’s Place Partnership Specifically,
the individual or business that 1s registered as an Appouwnted
Representative of St James's Place on the FCA website

St James's Place Partner businesses vary in size and structure,
Many are sole traders but there are also a growmng number of
businesses employing many advisers

Registered No 03183415




i
St. James’s Place Partnership
The collective name for all of our advisers, who are Appointed
Representatives of St James’s Place

State Street .

State Street 1s a global financial services holding company
offering custodian services, investment management SeTViCes,
and investment research and trading services State Strect s
responsible for the custody of the majority of the St James's
Place assets, and also provides other investment management
services

Underlying Cash Result

Timing variances in cash emergence, partcularly due to tax and
mnsurance reserve impacts, will impact the regular development
of the cash result The underlying cash result 15 adjusted for
these 1tems, and therefore provides the most useful measure
which the Board reviews (in conjunction with Group solvency)
when determining any proposed dividend to sharcholders

The underlying cash result should not be confused with the IFRS
cash flow statement which 1s prepared 1n accordance withIAS 7
An EPS measure 15 also calculated on this basis

Underlying Profit

A profit measure, based upon Profit before shareholder tax, but
adjusted to remove the smpact of movements m DAC, DIR and
PVIE balances and associated tax balances An EPS measure 15
also calculated on this basis
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ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

ST JAMES'S PLACE HOUSE
1 TETBURY ROAD
CIRENCESTER
GLOUCESTERSHIRE

GL7 IFP

T 080001 38 137

www.sjp.co.uk




